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For purposes of compliance with Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this document, as the same may
be supplemented or corrected by Charleston County, South Carolina (the “Issuer”) from time to time (collectively, the “Preliminary
Official Statement™), may be treated as an “Official Statement” with respect to the Bonds described herein that is deemed final as of
the date hereof (or of any such supplement or correction) by the Issuer, except for the omission of certain information referred to in
the succeeding paragraph.

The Preliminary Official Statement, when further supplemented by an addendum or addenda or final official statement
specifying the interest rates of the Bonds, together with any other information permitted or required by law, shall constitute a “Final
Official Statement” of the Issuer with respect to the Bonds, as that term is defined in Rule 15¢2-12. Any such addendum shall, on and
after the date thereof, be fully incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference.

By awarding the Bonds to any underwriting syndicate submitting a bid pursuant to the terms of the Official Notice of Sale,
the Issuer agrees that, no more than seven business days after the date of such award, it shall provide without cost to the senior
managing underwriter of the syndicate to which the Bonds are awarded copies of the Final Official Statement described in the
preceding paragraph in the amount specified in the Official Notice of Sale.

The Issuer designates the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to which the Bonds are awarded as its agent for
purposes of distributing copies of the Final Official Statement to each Participating Underwriter. Any underwriter executing and
delivering a bid with respect to the Bonds agrees thereby that if its bid is accepted by the Issuer (i) it shall accept such designation and
(ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all Participating Underwriters of the Bonds for purposes of assuring the receipt by
each Participating Underwriter of the Final Official Statement.

No dealer, broker, salesman, or other person has been authorised by the Issuer to give any information or to make any
representations with respect to the Bonds other than those contained in this Official Statement and, if given or made, such other
information or representations may not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer. This Official Statement does not
constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in
which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation, or sale. Certain information contained in the Preliminary Official
Statement and the Final Official Statement may have been obtained from sources other than records of the Issuer and, while believed
to be reliable, is not guaranteed as to completeness or accuracy. THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION IN THE
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. NEITHER
THE DELIVERY OF THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE
MADE UNDER EITHER DOCUMENT SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE
AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER SINCE THE DATE HEREOF.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, NOR HAVE THE ORDINANCES OR OTHER PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER
THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS.
ADDITIONALLY, WHILE THE BONDS MAY BE EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION
PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE VARIOUS STATES, SUCH EXEMPTION CANNOT BE REGARDED AS A
RECOMMENDATION OF THE BONDS. NEITHER THE STATES NOR ANY OF THEIR AGENCIES HAVE PASSED UPON
THE MERITS OF THE BONDS OR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

Reference herein to laws, rules, regulations, resolutions, agreements, reports, and other documents do not purport to be
comprehensive or definitive. All references to documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to the particular document, the
full text of which may contain qualifications of and exceptions to statements made herein. Where full texts have not been included as
appendices to the Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, they will be furnished on request.
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SUMMARY STATEMENT

The following Summary Statement is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and financial
statements contained in this Official Statement and the Appendices hereto (collectively, the “Official Statement”).
All capitalised terms not otherwise defined in the Summary Statement shall have the meanings ascribed to such
terms elsewhere in this Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of
this entire Official Statement and no person is authorised to detach this Summary Statement from the Official
Statement or otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

The Issuer

Charleston County is located in the southeastern part of South Carolina bordering on the Atlantic Ocean.
Charleston is the third most populous county in South Carolina and ranks seventh according to landmass. Charleston
County has developed into a business, financial, medical, and service center for the southeastern part of the State. The
County is governed by the County Council of Charleston County. See “DESCRIPTION OF CHARLESTON
COUNTY AND ITS SURROUNDING AREA” herein.

The Bonds

The Bonds are being issued in the initial principal amount of $68,745,000*. The Bonds are being issued
initially in book-entry only form in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof. See “THE BONDS -
Book-Entry Only System.”

Date of Issue

The Bonds will be initially dated and bear interest from their date of delivery.

Purpose of the Bonds

The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to advance refund the County’s outstanding General
Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2006 that mature in the years 2016*-2024*, inclusive and its General
Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2007 that mature in the years 2018*-2021*, inclusive, to achieve debt
service savings. See “THE BONDS - Plan of Refunding” herein.

Security and Source of Payment

The Bonds are general obligations of the County; and the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County
are irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal and interest thereof. The Bonds are payable from and
additionally secured by an irrevocable pledge of the net revenues from the transportation sales tax imposed in
Charleston County. See “THE BONDS - Security for Bonds” herein.

Interest Payments

Interest on the Bonds is payable on May 1, 2012, and semi-annually thereafter on each May 1 and
November 1.

Redemption Provisions

The Bonds maturing on or prior to November 1, 2022 are not subject to optional redemption prior to their
maturity. The Bonds maturing after November 1, 2022, are subject to redemption on and after November 1, 2022, at
the option of the County, in whole or in part at any time, and by lot as to Bonds or portions of Bonds within a
maturity (but only in integral multiples of $5,000), at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date
fixed for redemption.

Delivery of Bonds

It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of The Depository Trust
Company in New York, New York, on or about March 22, 2012.

*Preliminary, subject to change.
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$68,745,000*
CHARLESTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL OBLIGATION TRANSPORTATION
SALES TAX REFUNDING BONDS OF 2012

INTRODUCTION
General

This Official Statement of Charleston County, South Carolina (herein, the “County” or the “Issuer”),
including the cover page and appendices, sets forth certain information concerning the County and its proposed
$68,745,000* General Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of 2012 (the “Bonds”), for all who
may become holders thereof. This Introduction is only a brief description of the securities offered hereby. Any
potential purchaser of the Bonds should make a full review of this entire Official Statement, as well as of the
documents summarised or described herein. The information contained in this Introduction is qualified in its
entirety by more complete information set forth elsewhere in this Official Statement. Insofar as any statements
made in this Official Statement involve matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not expressly stated, such
statements are set forth as such and not as representations of fact. No representation is made that any of the opinions
or estimates will be realised.

Throughout the Official Statement, the term “Issuer” or “County” refers to Charleston County as a political
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, while the term “Charleston County” generally refers to Charleston
County as a geographical area.

Charleston County and its Government

Charleston County is located on the southeastern coast of South Carolina, bordering on the Atlantic Ocean.
It is the third most populous county in South Carolina based on its population of approximately 350,000. It
encompasses an area of 945 square miles and contains 15 municipalities, including the City of Charleston, North
Charleston, Mt. Pleasant, Kiawah Island, Seabrook Island, Sullivans Island, and Isle of Palms. The County is the
successor to the Charleston District, one of the original districts created by the colonial government in 1769.

The County is responsible at the local level for activities involving public safety, welfare, health, collection
of property taxes, public works, solid waste management, judicial administration, libraries, planning and zoning
administration, and veteran’s assistance. The County’s budgeted revenue for all funds for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 is
approximately $332 million and the total assessed valuation of taxable property located within Charleston County is
over $3.1 billion. The legislative body of the County is a nine-member County Council (the “County Council”)
elected from single-member districts for four-year staggered terms. Other elected officials, including the County
Auditor, the County Treasurer, and the County Sheriff, are elected for four-year terms. The County Administrator,
who is appointed by the County Council, administers the daily affairs of the County and carries out policies of the
County Council. Department heads are appointed by the County Administrator.

For certain economic, demographic, and financial information with respect to the County and Charleston
County, see “DESCRIPTION OF CHARLESTON COUNTY AND ITS SURROUNDING AREA,” “CERTAIN
FISCAL MATTERS,” “DEBT STRUCTURE,” and “APPENDIX A - AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 herein.

Security for the Bonds

The payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as they respectively mature, is secured by an
irrevocable pledge of the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County. The proceedings under which the Bonds
are being issued require that there shall be levied annually by the Charleston County Auditor and collected by the
Charleston County Treasurer, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all
taxable property in Charleston County, sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they
respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. The Bonds are payable from and
additionally secured by an irrevocable pledge of the net revenues from the Transportation Sales Tax as is further
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described in “THE BONDS - Security for Bonds” and “TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX” herein for additional
information regarding security for the Bonds. The annual ad valorem tax to be levied to pay debt service on the
Bonds will be reduced to the extent net revenues from the Transportation Sales Tax are available to pay debt service
on the Bonds.

Use of Proceeds

The County is issuing the Bonds to provide funds (i) to advance refund the County’s outstanding General
Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2006 that mature in the years 2016*-2024*, inclusive and its General
Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2007 that mature in the years 2018*-2021*, inclusive, to achieve debt
service savings, and (ii) to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS - Plan of Refunding” herein for
additional information regarding the use of proceeds of the Bonds.

Description of Bonds

The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery, and will mature on November 1 in the years and amounts set
forth on the front cover of this Official Statement, and will bear interest at such rates as named by the successful
bidder. The principal shall be payable to the registered owner thereof at maturity upon presentation and surrender of
the Bonds at the corporate trust office of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Atlanta, Georgia (the “Paying Agent”). Interest
on the Bonds will be paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1, beginning May 1, 2012 (the “Interest Payment
Dates”), by cheque or draught mailed by the Paying Agent to each person in whose name a Bond is registered at the
close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date. The Bonds
are issued in fully-registered form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds may be
transferred only on the registration books of the County maintained by the Paying Agent as bond registrar at the
expense of the County.

Book-Entry Only System

The Bonds will be available to purchasers under the book-entry system maintained by The Depaository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Purchasers will not
be entitled to receive physical delivery of the Bonds. For so long as any purchaser is a beneficial owner of a Bond,
such purchaser must maintain an account with a broker or dealer who is, or acts through, a DTC participant in order
to receive payment of principal of and interest on such Bonds. See “APPENDIX E — DTC AND BOOK-ENTRY
ONLY SYSTEM?” hereto for additional information regarding DTC and its book-entry system.

Optional Redemption

The Bonds maturing on or prior to November 1, 2022 are not subject to optional redemption prior to their
maturity. The Bonds maturing after November 1, 2022, are subject to redemption on and after November 1, 2022, at
the option of the County, in whole or in part at any time, and by lot as to Bonds or portions of Bonds within a
maturity (but only in integral multiples of $5,000), at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date
fixed for redemption.

Notice of redemption will be given by the County by mailing it by first class mail, not less than 30 days nor
more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owner of each Bond or portion thereof called for
redemption. Interest on the Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue from and after the
redemption date, unless the County defaults in making due provision for the payment of the redemption price
thereof.

*Preliminary, subject to change.



Authorisation

Pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 37 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the
“Transportation Facilities Financing Act”), a referendum was held in Charleston County on November 2, 2004 (the
“Sales Tax Referendum”), to authorise the imposition of a one-half of one percent sales and use tax in Charleston
County for the purpose of funding costs of certain transportation-related projects. A bond referendum was approved
by the voters on November 7, 2006 (the “2006 Bond Referendum”) to authorise the issuance of $300,000,000
general obligation bonds to fund costs of transportation related projects. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the
Refunding Act (Title 11 Chapter 15, Article 5 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended), as
amplified by Title 11, Chapter 21 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, and as amended and
continued by Section 11-27-40 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “Enabling
Act”).

The County Council has authorised the issuance of the Bonds under and pursuant to a bond ordinance (the
“Bond Ordinance™) enacted by the County Council on June 16, 2011. A summary of certain provisions of the Bond
Ordinance is attached hereto as APPENDIX B.
Parties and Professionals to the Transaction

Issuer Charleston County, South Carolina
Charleston, South Carolina

Paying Agent, Bond Registrar, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
and Authenticating Agent Atlanta, Georgia
Securities Depository The Depository Trust Company
New York, New York
Disclosure Dissemination Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
Agent Jacksonville, Florida
Escrow Agent Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Atlanta, Georgia
Financial Advisor Davenport & Company LLC
Charlotte, North Carolina
Verification Agent Grant Thornton LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
Bond Counsel and Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC
Disclosure Counsel Charleston, South Carolina
County Attorney Joseph Dawson, 111, Esq.

Charleston, South Carolina

Auditors Scott and Company LLP
Columbia, South Carolina

Underwriter




Tax Status of Interest on Bonds

In the opinion of Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC, Bond Counsel to the County, under existing law and
assuming compliance by the County with certain covenants described herein, interest on the Bonds is excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the
Bonds will not be treated as an item of preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on
individuals and corporations; it is noted, however, that interest on the Bonds will be taken into account in
determining adjusted current earnings for the purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on
corporations. Bond Counsel expresses no other opinions with regard to federal tax consequences arising from
ownership of the Bonds. Bond Counsel is of the opinion that the Bonds and the interest thereon will also be exempt
from all State, county, municipal, school district, and other taxes or assessments in the State of South Carolina,
except inheritance, estate, transfer, and certain other franchise taxes. See “LEGAL MATTERS - Tax Exemption”
herein for additional information regarding the tax status of interest on the Bonds. The form of the opinion of Bond
Counsel with respect to the Bonds is attached hereto as APPENDIX C.

Terms of Offering and Custodial Depository

The Bonds are being offered by the County when, as, and if issued, and subject to the delivery of the
approving opinion as to legality of Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC, Charleston, South Carolina, as bond counsel. It
is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery to the successful purchaser, on or about March 22, 2012,
through the facilities of DTC.

Continuing Disclosure

Pursuant to a Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement (the “Disclosure Dissemination Agreement”), the
County will agree for the benefit of the Holders and the “Beneficial Owners” (as defined in the Disclosure
Dissemination Agreement) of the Bonds, to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the
County (the “Annual Report™), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events with respect to
the Bonds, if material. The Annual Report and notices of such material events will be filed by or on behalf of the
County with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. Digital Assurance Certification LLC, Jacksonville,
Florida (“DAC”) has agreed to serve as the initial disclosure dissemination agent under the Disclosure
Dissemination Agreement. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the
notices of material events is set forth in APPENDIX D - “Form of Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement”.
See “MISCELLANEOUS - Continuing Disclosure” herein for additional information regarding the County’s
continuing disclosure undertaking.

Miscellaneous

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to
change.

Prior to the delivery of the Bonds, copies of the documents described herein may be obtained by contacting
the County’s Financial Advisor, Davenport & Company LLC, 401 North Tryon Street, Floor 10, Charlotte, North
Carolina 28202; telephone (704) 375.0550, Attention: J. Walter Goldsmith. After closing, copies of the documents
may be obtained from the Paying Agent.

THE BONDS
Description of Bonds

The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery, and will mature on November 1 in the years and amounts set
forth on the front cover of this Official Statement, and will bear interest at such rates as named by the successful
bidder. The principal shall be payable to the registered owner thereof at maturity upon presentation and surrender of
the Bonds at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. Interest on the Bonds will be paid semiannually on each
Interest Payment Date. The Bonds are issued in fully-registered form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral



multiple thereof. See “APPENDIX E - DTC AND BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM?” for a description of the Book-
Entry Only System with respect to the Bonds.

See “DEBT STRUCTURE - Debt Service For General Obligation Bonds and Lease Purchase Obligations”
herein for a table setting forth the annual principal and interest payments on the Bonds.

Security for Bonds

The Enabling Act, and the Bond Ordinance pursuant thereto, irrevocably pledge for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds, as they respectively mature, and for the creation of such sinking fund as may
be necessary therefor, the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County, and require that there shall be levied
annually by the Charleston County Auditor and collected by the Charleston County Treasurer, in the same manner as
other County taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in Charleston County,
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking
fund as may be necessary therefor.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, any law which attempts to repeal or modify the aforesaid provisions of the
Enabling Act would be invalid under Section 10 of Article 1 of the Constitution of the United States which prohibits
the enactment of a law impairing the obligation of contracts.

The Transportation Sales Tax Act authorises the County to pledge the net proceeds from the collection of a
one-half of one percent sales and use tax imposed in Charleston County as security for the Bonds. The Bond
Ordinance provides that the annual ad valorem tax to be levied for the payment of debt service on the Bonds will be
reduced by the amount of net revenues collected from the Transportation Sales Tax. In the Bond Ordinance, the
County Council have pledged the net revenues of the Transportation Sales Tax to pay debt service on the Bonds.
See “TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX” herein for a more complete discussion of the Transportation Sales Tax and
the pledge of net revenues securing the payment of the Bonds.

Application of State Funds

Article X of the South Carolina Constitution provides that: “if at any time any political subdivision shall
fail to effect the punctual payment of the principal of or interest on its general obligation debt, then, in such instance,
the State Treasurer shall withhold from such political subdivision sufficient moneys from any state appropriation to
which such political subdivision may be entitled and apply so much as shall be necessary to the payment of the
principal and interest on the indebtedness of the political subdivision then due. Any and all appropriations for
political subdivisions of the State shall be subject to the provisions of this subsection.”

Article X does not contain an express pledge or covenant to apply the State moneys referred to therein to
the payment of county indebtedness. Neither the Enabling Act nor the Bonds nor the proceedings pursuant to which
the Bonds are being issued contains any reference to the above-quoted provision of Article X. In the opinion of
Bond Counsel, the constitutional provision above-quoted can be enforced only so long as it remains a part of the
South Carolina Constitution, but an amendment to the South Carolina Constitution modifying or repealing the
above-quoted provision of Article X would be sustained against a claim by the holders of the Bonds that such an
amendment is a law impairing the obligation of contracts in violation of Section 10 of Article 1 of the Constitution
of the United States.

Any such constitutional amendment, to become effective, would have to be proposed by a vote of two-
thirds (2/3rd) of the members of each House of the South Carolina General Assembly, favourably voted on in the
succeeding State-wide general election, and then ratified by a majority vote of each House of the General Assembly
at the next session.



During the last ten fiscal years, the County has received State appropriations as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount Received
Ended June 30 From State Appropriations
2002 $14,940,976
2003 14,756,285
2004 14,882,414
2005 15,060,853
2006 15,704,586
2007 17,165,123
2008 18,966,163
2009 18,137,979
2010 15,324,720
2011 13,212,515

Plan of Refunding

The County is issuing the Bonds to provide funds (i) to advance refund the County’s outstanding General
Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bonds™) that mature in the years 2016*-
2024*, inclusive and its General Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2007 (the “Series 2007 Bonds”) that
mature in the years 2018*-2021%*, inclusive (the Series 2006 Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds to be refunded are
collectively referred to herein as the “Refunded Bonds™), to achieve debt service savings, and (ii) to pay costs of
issuance of the Bonds.

In order to accomplish the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the
Bonds will be deposited with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) for the Refunded
Bonds. The amount so deposited will be held uninvested or invested in United States Treasury Securities (the
“Government Obligations™), the maturing principal of and interest on which will provide funds sufficient to pay,
when and as due, the principal of, redemption premium, and interest on the Refunded Bonds. The Escrow Agent has
been given irrevocable instructions to call the refunded Series 2006 Bonds for redemption on November 1, 2015 and
call the refunded Series 2007 Bonds for redemption on November 1, 2017. The Refunded Bonds will be legally
defeased and no longer outstanding upon the deposit being so made. See “MISCELLANEOUS - Verification of
Arithmetic and Mathematical Accuracy of Escrow” herein for information regarding verification of the accuracy and
sufficiency of amounts deposited into the Escrow Fund.

The Government Obligations will be irrevocably pledged under the Escrow Agreement to the payment
when due and as due of those portions of the principal of, redemption premium, and interest on, the Refunded
Bonds, in accordance with the plan of refunding, and will not be available to pay principal of and interest on the
Bonds.

Estimated Sources and Uses of Proceeds

The table below sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds.

Sources

Face Amount of Bonds $
Original Issue Premium

Total $
Uses

Refunding Bond Escrow $
Costs of Issuance

Total 3

*Preliminary, subject to change.



Optional Redemption

The Bonds maturing on or prior to November 1, 2022 are not subject to optional redemption prior to their
maturity. The Bonds maturing after November 1, 2022, are subject to redemption on and after November 1, 2022, at
the option of the County, in whole or in part at any time, and by lot as to Bonds or portions of Bonds within a
maturity (but only in integral multiples of $5,000), at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date
fixed for redemption.

Notice of redemption will be given by the County by mailing it by first class mail, not less than 30 days
nor more than 60 days prior to redemption date, to the registered owner of each Bond or portion thereof called for
redemption. Interest on the Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue from and after the
redemption date, unless the County defaults in making due provision for the payment of the redemption price
thereof.

Any notice of optional redemption of the Bonds delivered in accordance with the Bond Ordinance may be
conditional and if any condition stated in the notice of redemption has been satisfied on or prior to the redemption
date, the notice will be of no force and effect and the County will not be required to redeem such Bonds and the
redemption will not be made. The Paying Agent will within a reasonable time thereafter give notice, to the persons
and in the manner in which the notice or redemption was given, that such condition or conditions were not met and
that the redemption was cancelled.

The County may rescind any optional redemption and notice thereof for any reason on any date on or prior

to the date fixed for optional redemption by causing written notice of the rescission to be given to the registered
owners of the Bonds so called for redemption.

Debt Service on the Bonds

The table below sets forth scheduled principal and interest payments on the Bonds.

Fiscal Year Total Debt
June 30 Principal* Interest Service
2012 $ -0-
2013 320,000
2014 330,000
2015 330,000
2016 345,000
2017 3,135,000
2018 3,230,000
2019 10,905,000
2020 11,900,000
2021 12,970,000
2022 14,035,000
2023 3,605,000
2024 3,745,000
2025 3,895,000
Totals $68,745,000

*Preliminary, subject to change.



Book-Entry Only System

The Bonds will be available to purchasers under the book-entry system maintained by The Depaository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Purchasers will not
be entitled to receive physical delivery of the Bonds. For so long as any purchaser is a beneficial owner of a Bond,
such purchaser must maintain an account with a broker or dealer who is, or acts through, a DTC participant in order
to receive payment of principal of and interest on such Bonds. See “APPENDIX E — DTC and Book-Entry Only
System” herein for a more complete description of the Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds.

Miscellaneous

The interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months. In the event that any action to be taken under the Bond Ordinance, including the payment of principal of
and interest on the Bonds, is to be taken on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday or bank holiday in the State of South
Carolina or in a state where the office of the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, or the authenticating agent is located,
such action shall be taken on the first business day occurring thereafter. In that event, there shall be no additional
interest due on the Bonds.

TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX
Authorisation

The imposition and collection of the Transportation Sales Tax is authorised by Title 4, Chapter 37 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Transportation Facilities Financing Act”). The
Transportation Sales Tax is collected and remitted in the same manner as the general sales tax. See “-Sales Tax
Collections in South Carolina” below.

The Transportation Facilities Financing Act authorises any county council to impose a sales and use tax by
county ordinance, subject to referendum approval, to pay for the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass
transit systems, greenbelts, and other transportation-related projects and facilities. If the imposition of the tax is
approved in the referendum, the tax will be imposed on the first day of May following the date of the referendum.

On November 2, 2004, the Sales Tax Referendum was conducted in Charleston County on the issue of
imposing the Transportation Sales Tax in the amount of one-half of one percent (1/2%) to pay costs of highways,
roads, streets, bridges and other transportation-related projects facilities, and drainage facilities related thereto, and
mass transit systems operated by the County or jointly operated by the County and other governmental entities in the
maximum amount of $1,081,788,800, and the costs of greenbelts in the maximum amount of $221,571,200
(collectively, the “Referendum Projects”) in the total amount of $1,303,360,000, for a maximum period of 25 years.

The Sales Tax Referendum was approved by a 59% to 41% voter margin. The Transportation Sales Tax
authorised by the Sales Tax Referendum has been collected on net taxable sales in Charleston County since May 1,
2005. The Transportation Sales Tax will be collected until the earlier of (i) total collections equal $1,303,360,000 or
(i) April 30, 2030.

Article X, Section 14 of the South Carolina Constitution authorises counties to incur general obligation
debt which is authorised by a majority vote of the qualified electors of the political subdivision voting in a
referendum authorised by law. Pursuant to Section 11-27-40, paragraph 1 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina
1976, as amended, County Council is authorised to order a referendum as required by Article X of the State
Constitution and to prescribe the notice thereof and to conduct or cause such a referendum to be conducted in a
manner prescribed by Title 7 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. In compliance therewith
and with the Transportation Facilities Financing Act, on November 2, 2004, the voters of Charleston County
approved a bond referendum regarding the approval of $113,000,000 general obligation bonds to fund costs of
Referendum Projects (the “2004 Bond Referendum’). The Series 2006 Bonds, a portion of which are to be refunded
from the proceeds of the Bonds offered hereby, were issued pursuant to the authority of the 2004 Bond Referendum.



On November 6, 2006, the voters of Charleston County approved a second bond referendum (the “2006
Bond Referendum”) regarding the approval of (i) $205,000,000 of general obligation bonds payable from the
Transportation Sales Tax for road projects and (ii) $95,000,000 of general obligation bonds payable from the
Transportation Sales Tax for greenbelt projects. The Series 2007 Bonds, a portion of which are to be refunded from
the proceeds of the Bonds offered hereby, were issued pursuant to the authority of the 2004 Bond Referendum and
the 2006 Bond Referendum. On July 27, 2011, the County issued an additional $167,000,000 General Obligation
Capital Improvement Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2011 (the “Series 2011 Bonds”) pursuant to the authority of
the 2006 Bond Referendum.

The authority to issue additional general obligation bonds under the 2004 Bond Referendum and the 2006
Bond Referendum has been exhausted or expired. Because the Bonds offered hereby are issued to refund bonds
which were originally approved by referendum, they are not subject to the 8% debt limit imposed by the State
Constitution on general obligation indebtedness. See “COUNTY DEBT STRUCTURE - Additional General
Obligation Debt Now Permitted” herein.

The Transportation Sales Tax is administered and collected by the South Carolina Department of Revenue
in the same manner as other sales and use taxes. The revenues of the tax are remitted to the South Carolina
Department of Revenue and placed on deposit with the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct
from the General Fund of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds made and costs to the South
Carolina Department of Revenue of administering the tax, not to exceed one percent of the revenues, the State
Treasurer will distribute the revenues quarterly to the County Treasurer and the revenues must be used only for
Referendum Projects or debt service on bonds issued to finance Referendum Projects. Net revenue derived from the
collection of Transportation Sales Tax will be remitted quarterly in January, April, July, and October, by the State
Treasurer’s Office to the Charleston County Treasurer. Net revenues received by the County Treasurer will be
deposited into a separate Transportation Sales Tax Fund and applied solely to pay the costs of Referendum Projects
or debt service on bonds issued to finance Referendum Projects, including debt service on the Bonds offered hereby.

Pledge of Net Revenues of Transportation Sales Tax

The Bonds offered hereby are general obligations of the County, secured by an irrevocable pledge of the
County’s full faith, credit, and taxing power. In accordance with the Transportation Sales Tax Act, the County has
also secured the payment of debt service on the Bonds with a pledge of the net revenues received by the County
from the collection of the Transportation Sales Tax on a parity with the pledge securing the payment of the Series
2006 Bonds, the Series 2007 Bonds, and the Series 2011 Bonds. In the Bond Ordinance, the County has reserved
the right to issue additional bonds or other obligations (including general obligation bonds and revenue bonds) also
secured on a parity basis with the pledge of net revenues securing the Bonds.

Sales Tax Collections in South Carolina

South Carolina imposes a 6% sales tax on the gross proceeds of all retail sales of tangible personal property
(with certain exceptions) within the State. There is a complementary 6% use tax on tangible personal property
purchased at retail on which the sales tax was not paid. Various items are exempted from the sales and use tax;
among these items are: textbooks used in elementary schools, high schools, and institutions of higher learning;
livestock; feed for use in the production and maintenance of poultry or livestock; insecticides, chemicals, fertilizers
and seeds for use solely on the farm, etc. in the productions for sale of products on the farm; newspapers; fuel to
manufacturers, meals to school children; telephone toll charges; gasoline or other motor fuels taxed at the same rate
as gasoline, machinery used in planting or cultivating of farm crops; machines used in mining, quarrying,
compounding, processing and manufacturing of tangible person property; railroad cars and locomotives; fuel used in
the curing of agricultural products; electricity used in manufacturing tangible personal property for sale; sales of
motor vehicles and certain trailers to nonresidents for immediate transportation to and use in another state; sales of
automobiles and motorbikes to a person domiciled in or resident of another state who is located in South Carolina by
reason or orders of the Armed Forces of the United States; library books, sales of medicine and prosthetic devices
sold by prescription; sales of electricity and combustibles for residential purposes; 35% of gross proceeds of sales of
mobile and modular homes, and sales of tangible personal property of the federal government.



Sales and use taxes are reported and paid monthly on a form provided by the South Carolina Department of
Revenue. Returns and payments are due no later than the 20™ day of the month following the month in which the
sales were made. The tax is remitted for the month the sale was made regardless of whether the tax was collected
from the customer during the month. If returns are filed and taxes paid in full by the due date, a discount on taxes
due will be allowed. For taxes of less than $100, a discount of 3% of the tax is provided. For taxes of $100 or more,
the discount of 2% of the tax due. Failure to pay the sales tax may result in a penalty of 25% plus interest at the rate
of %% per month.

On June 10, 2006, the Governor of South Carolina approved legislation adopted by the South Carolina
General Assembly (“Act No. 388”), which provides, among other things, a new mechanism for the funding of a
portion of school operations and a limitation on annual growth in millage levied by political subdivisions and school
districts for operations. Act No. 388 essentially substitutes revenues to be collected by an increase in the State sales
tax of one percent (in addition to the previous five percent) for local property taxes on owner-occupied residential
property attributable to school district operating levies. See “CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS-Property Tax
Reform” herein for a more complete discussion of recent property tax reform legislation.

Until recently, the sales tax in South Carolina was imposed solely for State government purposes. Local
option sales taxes are authorised to be imposed within individual counties pursuant to several state statutes,
depending upon the purpose to which the tax proceeds will be applied. All of these statutes require that the local
option sales tax must be approved by referendum before the sales tax may be imposed.

In 1990, the County implemented the imposition of a local option sales tax (“LOST”) in the amount of one
percent (1.0%) approved by a referendum held on November 6, 1990. County Council has applied nearly all the net
revenues collected from LOST to a reduction of property taxes. See “CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS - Local
Option Sales Tax” herein for more information on LOST and for a ten-year history of collections of LOST.

Act No. 388 has recently exempted the sale of certain items from the sales tax. See “CERTAIN FISCAL
MATTERS - Property Tax Reform —Sales Tax Imposition; Exemption of Owner-Occupied Residential Property
from School Operating Taxes” herein. Legislation is periodically introduced to exempt certain items from the sales
tax. No assurance can be given by the County that the sales tax will continue to be imposed upon the sale of all
items upon which it is currently levied until all of the Bonds have matured.

Historical Net Transportation Sales Tax Collections

The Transportation Sales Tax pledged to secure the issuance of the Bonds offered hereby has only been
imposed and collected since May 1, 2006. The table set forth in “CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS - Transportation
Sales Tax” on page 27 provides a collections history for the Transportation Sales Tax.

DESCRIPTION OF CHARLESTON COUNTY AND ITS SURROUNDING AREA
Description of Charleston County

Charleston County is located along the southeastern coast of South Carolina. It has a land area of 945 square
miles and a 97-mile coastline along the Atlantic Ocean. The Intracoastal Waterway from New York to Florida runs
through the entire length of the County. Charleston County has the third largest county population in South Carolina.
Charleston County has developed into a business, financial, medical, and service center for the southeastern part of the
State.

Located within Charleston County are 15 incorporated municipalities and several special purpose districts

which provide various local governmental services. The largest municipalities are Charleston, North Charleston, and
Mt. Pleasant.
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Some of the largest employers located within the Charleston County MSA and the approximate number of
employees are listed below:

Name Service Employees
Joint Base Charleston* Military 22,000
Medical University of South Carolina Healthcare, education 11,000
Charleston County School District Education 5,150
Roper St. Francis Healthcare Healthcare 3,800
The Boeing Company Aircraft manufacturer 5,900
JEM Restaurant Group, Inc. Hospitality 3,000
Trident Health System Healthcare 2,500
Charleston County Government 2,150
Piggly Wiggly Grocery Stores 1,900
City of Charleston Government 1,700

*Result of merger of Charleston Air Force Base and Charleston Naval Weapons Station in 2010.
Source: Charleston Metro Chamber of Commerce, Center for Business Research.

Some of the largest manufacturing employers and their major activity are shown in the following table:

Industry Products Employees
The Boeing Company Aircraft 5,900
SAIC System engineering and integration services 1,800
Force Protection, Inc. Military vehicles 1,300
Kapstone Paper and Packing Corporation Paper, lumber, chemicals 850
Cummins Turbo Technologies Turbochargers and air compressors 700
BAE System Electronic security and communications systems 575
Detyens Shipyards, Inc. Shipyard (repairs and modifications) 500
MWV (MeadWestvaco Corp.) Diverse portfolio of specialty chemical products, 350
community development, and forest management
Hill-Rom, Inc. Specialty medical equipment 350
Getrag Precision Gear Transmission and drivetrain systems 285

Source: Charleston Regional Business Journal 2010 Report.
Charleston County has a strong and diverse economy that is driven by six engines of growth as follows:

Port of Charleston
Medical Industry

Tourism

Military

Higher Education
Manufacturing

Port of Charleston - The South Carolina State Ports Authority (the “SPA™) operates the Port of Charleston, which
directly employs approximately 470 people. Charleston’s five port facilities, located close to the open ocean for fast
turnarounds, consist of two container ports, two break-bulk ports, and one container and break-bulk port.
International trade through the SPA’s facilities provides 50,700 jobs paying $2.2 billion for the tri-county area of
Charleston, Berkeley, and Dorchester counties. In all, trade provides $7.1 billion in total economic impact to the tri-
county region.

The Port of Charleston is the fourth largest container port of the U.S. East and Gulf coasts. It is recognised
as one of the nation’s most efficient and productive ports. The Charleston Customs district ranks as the nation’s
eighth largest in dollar value of international shipments, with cargo valued at more than $50 billion annually. In
2010, the Port of Charleston handled 1.36 million TEUs, or 20-ft equivalent units which was an increase of 16
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percent from the previous year. The SPA’s Charleston break-bulk cargo totaled 647,811 tons. Top commodities
across Charleston docks include consumer goods, agricultural products, metals, vehicles, machinery and, chemicals.

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is completing a feasibility study for the next harbor deepening project
which will take the harbor to 50 feet in depth. The Army Corps of Engineers’ work plan for the rest of 2012 includes
$2.5 million for the continuation of the feasibility study for the deepening project. In addition, the President’s fiscal
2013 budget includes an additional $3.5 million for the project.

With 45 feet of depth at mean low water, Charleston currently has the deepest channel in the South Atlantic
region and can handle ships drafting up to 48 feet on high tide. Deepening the Charleston harbor will open the port
to expanded trade opportunities and increased big-ship traffic via the new locks of the Panama Canal 24 hours a day.

In addition to the deepening project, port activity is expected to rise over the next decade, largely due to the
new container terminal currently under construction on the former Naval base. The new 280-acre terminal is
expected to open in 2014 and, at build out, will increase Charleston’s total container capacity by 50 percent. The
SPA’s fiscal year 2011 capital improvement program calls for $77 million in development and enhancements of new
and existing facilities. In addition, the SPA plans to invest nearly $1.3 billion on capital projects over the next
decade.

Medical Industry — The region’s medical industry accounts for over 10 percent of the area’s total employment and is
anchored by the state’s teaching hospital, the Medical University of South Carolina (“MUSC”). The majority of the
employment currently exists in Charleston’s seven area hospitals - five private regional hospitals, MUSC, and the
Ralph H. Johnson Veterans® Affairs Medical Center.

Several of the private hospitals have been in growth mode. Roper St. Francis Health Care opened a new 85-
bed full-service hospital in Mt. Pleasant in 2010. East Cooper Regional Medical Center also opened a new 140-bed
hospital in Mt. Pleasant during 2010.

Tourism - The Charleston region attracted over 4.22 million visitors in 2010, generating an economic impact of
$3.03 hillion. Hotel occupancy rates were 69 percent, and the average daily rate for lodging was $115. The average
expenditure per visitor, per day was $183. The hospitality industry directly employs 35,200 people in Charleston
County, accounting for 12 percent of the workforce.

Charleston offers a vast array of festivals and events that bring tourists to the region. These include cultural
events such as the annual Spoleto and Piccolo Spoleto festivals as well as the sports events like the Family Circle
Cup tennis tournament and the annual Cooper River Bridge Run.

Tourists arrive in Charleston from land, sea, and air. The region sees vast numbers of tourists who like to drive
to Charleston for its charm and hospitality. In addition, the centrally located Charleston International Airport brings in
tourists from around the world. The airport offers daily non-stop service to 15 cities in the US including, Atlanta,
New York, Charlotte, Washington, Chicago, and Houston. Carriers include American Eagle, Continental, Delta,
United Express, US Airways, and Southwest (which started flying out of Charleston in March 2011).

The past few years have seen the emergence of a new facet to Charleston’s tourism market — the cruise ship
industry. Both Carnival Cruise Lines and Celebrity Cruise Lines have chosen to make Charleston a new departure
and arrival point. In addition, many other cruise lines (Holland America, Aida, Princess, Costa, and Crystal Cruises)
bring their ships to Charleston as a port of call. The cruise business has an estimated $37 million annual impact on
the Charleston market.

Military — The military makes a large annual economic impact to the region. There are 29,000 active-duty, reserve
personnel, civilians, and civilian contractors employed in the region by the area’s defense facilities. In total, the
military provides an annual economic impact on the Charleston region estimated at $4.7 billion.

In October 2010 the Charleston Air Force Base and the Charleston Naval Weapons Station merged to

create Joint Base Charleston. Joint Base Charleston employees approximately 22,000 active-duty, reserve, and
civilian personnel.
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Charleston Air Force Base is one of three military transport service aerial ports on the Atlantic seaboard. It
provides airlift support for military installations in Europe, Africa, the Middle East, and South America. The base is
home to the 437™ Airlift Wing and its squadron of over 50 C-17 transport planes that are currently serving a vital
supply role to military personnel in Afghanistan and Iraqg.

Other facilities include the Space and Naval Warfare Systems Center (SPAWAR), the Nuclear Power
Training Command, the Nuclear Power Training Unit, and the Army’s Combat Equipment Group Afloat and
Surface Deployment Distribution Commands.

Higher Education — There are 26 colleges and universities offering a range of two-year, bachelor’s, master’s and
doctoral degree programs in Charleston. The five largest are: Trident Technical College, with 14,800 students; the
College of Charleston with 11,800 students; The Citadel with 3,300 students; Charleston Southern University with
an enrollment of 3,200; and the Medical University of South Carolina with 2,500 students. Two of the more recently
established schools are the Charleston School of Law, which saw its fifth class graduate in May 2011; and the
American College of the Building Arts which had its third class graduate in 2011.

Manufacturing — New business recruitment during 2011 brought in $131.9 million in investment and 761 new jobs.
Most notable were TIGHITCO and PeopleMatter. TIGHITCO is a FAA approved Repair Station providing
maintenance, repair, and overhaul (MRO) services for helicopter dynamic components such as gear boxes, rotor
heads and rotor blades. TIGHITCO is expected to bring $30 million in new investment and 300 new jobs.
PeopleMatter’s relocation of its headquarters to downtown Charleston will provide a $19 million investment and
256 new jobs. PeopleMatter provides human resources software.

In 2004, Charleston County developed a recruitment strategy that centers on five key economic clusters:
aerospace and aviation; automotive manufacturing and suppliers; biotech medical and pharmaceutical activities;
information technology and advanced security; and the cluster of internet, movie making, architecture and urban
design activities. The success of this strategy has been evidenced by the following openings: aerospace and aviation
- The Boeing Company; automotive manufacturing — Daimler Sprinter Van reassembly facility and Cummins Turbo
Technologies; biotech medical and pharmaceutical activities — GenPhar and Charles River Laboratories; information
technology and advanced security — Scientific Applications International Corporation and BAE Systems; and
internet, movie making, architecture and urban design activities — production of the television series “Army Wives”
which is entering its fifth season, and the May 2011 announcement of the opening of a film studio located in
Charleston.

Population

The table below sets forth the population of each of the three counties, including Charleston County, that
constitutes the “Tri-County” Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area for the past five decennial censuses.

Census Census Census Census Census

1970 1980 1990 2000 2010
Charleston County 247,650 276,974 295,039 309,969 350,209
Berkeley County 56,199 94,727 128,776 142,651 177,843
Dorchester County 32,276 58,266 83,060 96,413 136,555
Total SMSA (Tri-County) 336,125 430,462 506,875 549,033 664,607

Source: US Census Bureau.
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Per Capita Personal Income

The per capita income in Charleston County and the State for each of the past ten years is set forth below.

Year County State

2002 $29,555 $26,073
2003 30,051 26,688
2004 31,784 27,908
2005 34,419 29,226
2006 36,749 30,925
2007 38,702 32,107
2008 36,097 32,947
2009 38,199 32,338
2010 38,969 31,890
2011 39,536 32,505

Source:  South Carolina Board of Economic Advisors and South Carolina Department of Revenue.

Labor Force

The table below sets forth the labor force estimate in Charleston County prepared by the South Carolina
Department of Employment and Workforce for the past five years.

Labor Force Estimate
(Charleston County)

Annual Average

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Civilian Labor Force 175,337 176,873 175,317 176,357 177,140
Employment Total 167,533 167,505 159,826 160,330 162,428
Unemployment 7,804 9,368 15,491 16,027 14,712
Percent of Labor Force 45 5.3 8.8 9.1 8.3

Source: South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce.

Workers involved in labor disputes are included among the employed. Total employment also includes
agricultural workers, proprietors, self-employed persons, workers in private households and unpaid family workers.

14



Nonagricultural Wage and Salary Employment

The table below sets forth average monthly employees in the industries described below located in Charleston
County, based on the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS).

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Natural Resources and Mining 434 296 289 172 165
Construction 13,351 13,281 12,208 10,127 9,068
Manufacturing 9,825 11,391 11,522 10,801 11,041
Wholesale Trade 4,842 5,196 5,408 5,193 5,253
Retail Trade 27,550 27,025 27,150 25,337 24,996
Transportation and Warehousing 8,201 8,265 8,262 7,395 7,457
Utilities 595 600 610 618 624
Information 3,418 3,548 4,153 3,993 3,717
Financial Activities 10,129 10,596 10,426 9,522 9,131
Professional and Business Services 29,107 31,441 30,970 28,243 31,686
Education and Health Services 22,300 23,149 23,969 24,462 24,906
Leisure and Hospitality 28,202 29,559 29,742 28,411 28,215
Other Services 5,829 5,985 6,024 5,676 5,489
Unclassified 424 164 - - -
Total, Federal Government 7,335 7,309 7,415 7,483 8,448
Total, State Government 17,149 17,672 18,164 17,765 17,990
Total, Local Government 15,123 15,712 16,143 16,000 16,005
Total 203,814 211,189 212,455 201,198 204,190

Source: South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce.

GOVERNMENT STRUCTURE

Government of the County

The County adopted a Council-Administrator form of government under Home Rule in 1976. Under this
form of county government, the elected County Council must employ an administrator who is the administrative head
of the County government and is responsible for the administration of all of the departments of the County government
which the County Council has the authority to control. State law requires that the administrator be employed with
regard to his executive and administrative qualifications only. The term of employment of the administrator is at the
pleasure of the County Council, and he is compensated for services as the County Council may determine. The County
Council is composed of nine members who are elected from single-member districts for staggered four-year terms.
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The current members of County Council are as follows:

Number of Years Term
Name Served on Council Principal Occupation Expires
Teddie E. Pryor, Sr., 7 Municipal Tourism December 31, 2014
Chairman Coordinator
J. Elliott Summey, 3 Real Estate Developer December 31, 2012
Vice Chairman
Colleen T. Condon 6Y> Attorney December 31, 2012
Henry E. Darby 7 Educator December 31, 2012
Anna B. Johnson 1 Retired Administrative December 31, 2014
Coordinator
Joseph K. Qualey 1 Attorney December 31, 2014
A. Victor Rawl 3 Retired State Judge December 31, 2012
Herbert R. Sass, 111 Y Real Estate Appraiser December 31, 2014
Henry D. Schweers 5 Engineer December 31, 2014

The County Council is the policy-making body of the government. Annually the Council elects one of its
members as chairman to guide the County Council, act as its spokesman and preside at meetings. The chairman has
no more power than any other member of County Council. The responsibilities of County Council include making
appropriations, levying taxes, incurring indebtedness and issuing bonds; establishing the basic legislative policies for
the County through ordinances and resolutions governing all County affairs; and establishing guidelines and
standards to govern all administrative decisions and procedures.

Kurt Taylor began as the Charleston County Administrator in February of 2012. He has worked for the
County for more than 20 years, starting as an Assistant Solicitor in 1991. He then served as Assistant County
Attorney, and Chief Deputy County Attorney before becoming Deputy County Administrator in 2006. He has
managed the County’s $1.3 billion Transportation Sales Tax Program, as well as an award-winning greenspace
preservation program.

Mr. Taylor has served as the President of the South Carolina Association of County Attorneys, chair of the
Local Government Law Section of the South Carolina Bar, and chair of the Counties and Special Municipal Districts
section of the International Municipal Lawyers’ Association (IMLA). In January of 2012, Mr. Taylor retired from
North Charleston City Council, after serving for 14 years. Mr. Taylor also served as the Vice Chairman of the
Charleston Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA) and as chair of the CARTA passenger intermodal
facility project committee. Mr. Taylor is a 1984 graduate of the College of Charleston, and a 1987 graduate of the
University of South Carolina Law School.

Keith D. Bustraan is the Deputy County Administrator for Finance and has served in a variety of senior
management positions with Charleston County since joining the County in 1987. In August of 2007 he was assigned
Chief Financial Officer duties. He has previously served as the Deputy County Administrator for Operations,
County CFO, Deputy County Administrator for Community Services, and Budget Director. He has also worked for
the County of Fairfax, Virginia and the Congress of the Federated States of Micronesia. He received an A.B. degree
from Lafayette College and an M.P.A. from The George Washington University.

Corine Altenhein has been the County’s Finance Director since August 2007. She previously served as the
Chief Financial Officer and Budget Director. Ms. Altenhein joined the County in 1990 as Assistant Controller. Ms.
Altenhein earned her B.S. degree in Accounting from New York University in 1983. She is a Certified Public
Accountant, having worked two and a half years with a national C.P.A. firm and four years with a major banking
firm, both in New York City.

Mack Gile has been the County’s Budget Director since January 2003. Mr. Gile also served as Assistant
Budget Director and as a Budget Analyst. Prior to then, he was in practice as a Certified Public Accountant for four
years. Mr. Gile earned his B.S. degree (Accounting) from Bob Jones University in 1990 and his Masters in Business
Administration from The Citadel in 1999. Mr. Gile is a Certified Governmental Finance Officer through the South
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Carolina Government Finance Officer’s Association and the Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada.

In addition to the elected County Council, various County officers are elected including the County
Treasurer, County Auditor, Clerk of Court, Probate Judge, Sheriff, Coroner, Solicitor, and Register of Mesne
Conveyance.

Services Provided

The County operates and maintains various programs which are funded from County revenues, as reflected
in its annual budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. These programs include:

(D) Public Safety (including law enforcement, emergency preparedness planning, detention
facilities and fire protection in the Awendaw Consolidated Fire District);

2 Health Services (including Emergency Medical Services, drug and alcohol rehabilitation
programs and substantial contributions to the State’s Medically Indigent Assistance
Fund);

3) Public Works (including street and drainage maintenance and mosquito abatement);

4) Solid Waste Management (solid waste disposal and recycling);

(5) Judicial Administration (including prosecuting and public defender legal services and
criminal, civil, probate and family court administration);

(6) Tax Collection and Dispersal;

(7) Libraries;

(8) Planning and Zoning Administration; and

9) Veterans Assistance.

The County has a budgetary accounting system which provides for control of appropriations by department
and major objects of expenditure using a proprietary automated financial accounting system. Encumbrance
accounting is also utilised. Financial reporting provides periodic reports of expenditures, encumbrances,
unencumbered balances and revenues. Monthly expenditure to budget reports are delivered to the County Council.
Quarterly budget reviews are performed and brought to Council when appropriate.

Also in place are legislative controls (covering transfers, appropriations and amendments), position controls
(utilising authorised position lists), purchasing controls (governing compliance with budget and bidding procedures),
travel controls (mode of travel and related costs), payroll controls (ensuring that attendance records are kept) and
inventory and fixed asset controls.

The County has a comprehensive set of financial policies which have been adopted by County Council.
These policies cover the following areas:

1. Operating budget 6. Investments

2. Revenues and expenditures 7. Accounting, auditing and financial reporting
3. Financial reserves 8. Procurement

4. Capital improvements 9. Risk management

5. Debt management 10. Human resources

The General Fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was $52,348,663. The ending balances
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were $52,596,024 and $45,711,848, respectively.

During the present fiscal year, the County has approximately 2,150 employees. The County’s total payroll
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was approximately $99,974,819.
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CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS
Revenue Sources
The County has historically derived its revenues for the most part from general property taxes on real and
personal property located within the County limits, state aid to political subdivisions, local option sales taxes
imposed by the County, accommodation taxes imposed by the County on all commercial lodging, license and permit
charges made by the County, and charges for services imposed and collected by the County.

Revenues from Property Taxes

Until recent years, county governments in South Carolina have generated the largest portion of revenues for
general governmental purposes from ad valorem property taxes. Property taxes have constituted the largest single
source of revenues for Charleston County historically. Until the enactment of property tax reform by the State
Legislature in 2006 (effective for fiscal years beginning after January 1, 2007), counties in the State generally could
impose property tax levies without limit so long as certain procedural requirements were met. Beginning with the
fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2007, local governments in the State, including Charleston County, have been
subject to the limitations set forth in property tax reform legislation. Property tax levies for the purpose of funding
debt service on bonded indebtedness or payments for real property purchased using a lease-purchase agreement or
used to maintain a reserve account is not subject to the limitations imposed under property tax reform. See “-
Assessment of Property for Property Tax Purposes” herein for a more complete discussion of the property tax levy
and collection process in South Carolina. See “-Property Tax Reform — Limitation on Millage Increases” herein for
a description of these limitations. Charleston County currently levies an operational millage of 39.1 mills, which is
expected to generate approximately $108.9 million of revenues for the general fund in the fiscal year ending June
30, 2012. See “-Property Tax Collection Record” and “-Millage Levied Within the County” herein for historical
information concerning tax levies and collections in Charleston County.

Revenues from Local Option Sales Taxes

At the general election held on November 6, 1990, each county in the State voted on an initiative to levy an
additional 1% to the (then) 5% State sales tax, which additional 1% would be used by counties and municipalities
located in counties which approved imposition of the Local Option Sales Tax. Charleston County was one of six
counties in the State which initially approved imposition of a Local Option Sales Tax. The additional 1% sales tax was
imposed effective July 1, 1991. Sales tax revenues are collected by the State government and remitted to the County on
a monthly basis. The Fiscal Year 2012 budget includes $40.3 million in Local Option Sales Tax receipts and a
corresponding credit against tax revenues.

State Aid to Political Subdivisions

Unrestricted State aid to political subdivisions has constituted the third largest source of revenues to the
County’s general fund for the past several years. The annual amount paid to the County is subject to appropriation
by the State Legislature in the annual State budget. See the table on Page 6 hereof for the history of receipts of State
aid to political subdivisions by the County.

Transportation Sales Tax

The imposition and collection of the Transportation Sales Tax is authorised by Title 4, Chapter 37 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Transportation Facilities Financing Act”). The
Transportation Sales Tax is collected and remitted in the same manner as the general sales tax. The Transportation
Facilities Financing Act authorises any county council to impose a sales and use tax by county ordinance, subject to
referendum approval, to pay for the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, greenbelts, and
other transportation-related projects and facilities. If the imposition of the tax is approved in the referendum, the tax
will be imposed on the first day of May following the date of the referendum.

On November 2, 2004, the Sales Tax Referendum was conducted in Charleston County on the issue of
imposing the Transportation Sales Tax in the amount of one-half of one percent (1/2%) to pay costs of highways,
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roads, streets, bridges and other transportation-related projects facilities, and drainage facilities related thereto, and
mass transit systems operated by the County or jointly operated by the County and other governmental entities and
greenbelts.

The Transportation Sales Tax authorised by the Sales Tax Referendum has been collected on net taxable
sales in Charleston County since May 1, 2005. The Transportation Sales Tax will be collected until the earlier of (i)
total collections equal $1,303,360,000 or (ii) April 30, 2030. See the table at “-Transportation Sales Tax” for a
history of the annual collections of the Transportation Sales Tax by the County

The Transportation Sales Tax is administered and collected by the South Carolina Department of Revenue
in the same manner as other sales and use taxes. The revenues of the tax are remitted to the South Carolina
Department of Revenue and placed on deposit with the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct
from the General Fund of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds made and costs to the South
Carolina Department of Revenue of administering the tax, not to exceed one percent of the revenues, the State
Treasurer will distribute the revenues quarterly to the County Treasurer. Net revenues received by the County
Treasurer are deposited into a separate Transportation Sales Tax Fund and applied solely to pay the costs of eligible
projects or debt service on bonds issued to finance eligible projects.

Revenues from Local Accommodations Taxes

Pursuant to the Local Accommodations Tax Act, the County imposes a local accommodations tax in the
amount of 2%. The tax is levied on the gross proceeds derived from the rental or charges for accommodations
furnished to tourists for any rooms, campground spaces, lodgings, or sleeping accommodations by any hotel, inn,
tourist court, tourist camp, motel, campground, residence, or any place in which rooms, lodgings, or sleeping
accommodations are furnished to tourists for a consideration. The tax does not apply where the facilities consist of
less than six sleeping rooms, contained on the same premises, which is used as the individual’s place of abode. In
accordance with the Local Accommodations Tax Act, revenues collected from the imposition of the local
accommodations tax may only be used for the following purposes or for operation and maintenance of those
purposes, including police, fire protection, emergency medical services, and emergency-preparedness operations
directly attendant to the following facilities:

1) tourism-related buildings;

(2) tourism-related cultural, recreational, or historic facilities;

©) beach access, renourishment, or other tourism-related lands and water access;
4) highways, roads, streets, and bridges providing access to tourist destinations;
5) advertisements and promotions related to tourism development; or

(6) water and sewer infrastructure to serve tourism-related demand.

The local accommodations tax is required to be remitted to the County on a monthly basis when the
estimated average monthly tax is more than $50; on a quarterly basis when the estimated average monthly tax is $25
to $50; and on an annual basis when the estimated average monthly tax is less than $25.

Revenues from License and Permit Fees, Franchise Fees, User Fees, and Administrative Fees

The County generates revenues from a variety of fees, including various business licenses and professional
fees, franchise fees and building permits, zoning fees, and solid waste disposal fees. In addition, there are court and
other administrative fees charged by the County.

Recent State Property Tax Reform

On June 10, 2006, the Governor of South Carolina approved legislation adopted by the South Carolina
General Assembly (“Act No. 388”), which provides, among other things, a new mechanism for the funding of a
portion of school operations and a limitation on annual growth in millage levied by political subdivisions and school
districts for operations. Act No. 388 essentially substitutes revenues to be collected by an increase in the State sales
tax of 1% (in addition to the previous 5%) for local property taxes on owner-occupied residential property
attributable to school district operating levies. In June 2011, the South Carolina General Assembly approved certain
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amendments to Act No. 388. The County has no responsibility for funding school district operations or debt service.
See “-Property Tax Reform” herein for a more complete discussion of recent property tax reform legislation.

Assessment of Property for Property Tax Purposes

The South Carolina Constitution mandates the equal and uniform assessment of taxable property
throughout the State for the following classes of property and at the following ratios:

1) Real and personal property owned by or leased to manufacturers, utilities, or mining operations —
10.5% of fair market value (certain industrial facilities may be entitled to a limited exemption or
to pay at lower ratios; see “-Exemptions and Limitations for Certain Industries” herein).

2) Real and personal property owned by or leased to transportation companies for hire (railroads
and pipelines) — 9.5% of fair market value.

3) Inventories of business establishments — 6% of fair market value (this category
has been phased out; see discussion below).

4) Legal residence and not more than five contiguous acres — 4% of fair market value (if the
property owner makes proper application and qualifies).

5) Agricultural real property used for such purposes owned by individuals and certain small
corporations — 4% of use value (if the property owner makes proper application and qualifies).

6) Agricultural real property and timberlands belonging to large corporations (more than 10
shareholders) — 6% of use value (if the property owner makes proper application and qualifies).

7) Power-driven farm machinery and equipment — 5% of fair market value.
8) Personal motor vehicles — 6% of fair market value.

9) All other real property — 6% of fair market value.

10) All other personal property — 10.5% of fair market value.

The business inventory tax has been phased out as of 1988. The business inventory exempted from
property taxation is nonetheless considered taxable property for purposes of calculating the bond debt limits for all
political subdivisions. The legislation creating the exemption provides that the exemption is conditioned upon the
State legislature appropriating annually to each taxing entity an amount equivalent to taxes which would have been
collected by such taxing entity based upon the value of business inventory in 1987. The amount of the 1987
business inventory taxes in the Charleston County was $21,648,190.

In 1975, the South Carolina General Assembly enacted Act No. 208 (Act 208), requiring all counties within
the State to initiate a reassessment program during calendar year 1975 to insure that all taxable properties are
assessed on a uniform basis. Prior to enactment of Act 208, there was little or no uniformity in the assessment of
property in South Carolina. All properties located in Charleston County are assessed in compliance with the ratio
mandates of Act 208. Further, all properties in Charleston County are presently listed at appraised values computed
in accordance with the regulations promulgated pursuant to Act. 208.

The South Carolina Department of Revenue and Taxation (“DOR”) has been charged with responsibility of
taking steps necessary to ensure equalisation of assessment statewide and may require reassessment of any part or all
property within any county. Regulations of DOR effectively require that a reassessment must be instituted by any
county if the median appraisal for all property in such county (as a whole or for any class of property) is higher than
105% or lower than 80% of fair market value. In addition, in its 1995 session, the South Carolina General Assembly
enacted provisions requiring each county to assess all properties on the newly appraised values every fifth year.
Upon completion of a reassessment, the total ad valorem millage for any political subdivision of the State may not
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exceed the total ad valorem tax millage of such political subdivision for the year immediately prior to completion of
such reassessment, adjusted for new taxable property, by more than the increase in the consumer price index for the
year in question. The previous reassessment of all real property in the Charleston County was completed during
2004 and implemented in January 2005. After County Council voted in May 2009 to delay for one year the next
reassessment due to pending state legislation and implementation of a new automated assessment and tax system the
reassessment was performed and reassessment notices were sent on June 30, 2011.

The Charleston County Assessor appraises and assesses all real property and mobile homes located within
Charleston County, and certifies the results to the Charleston County Auditor. The County Auditor appraises and
assesses all motor vehicles, marine equipment, business personal property, and airplanes. DOR furnishes guides for
use by the County in the assessment of automobiles, automotive equipment, and certain other classes of property and
directly assesses the real and personal property of public utilities, manufacturers, and business equipment.

In each year, upon completion of its work, the DOR certifies its assessments to the County Auditor. During
August and September of each year the County Auditor prepares assessment summaries from the respective
certifications, determines the appropriate millage levies, prepares the tax rolls, and then in September charges the
County Treasurer with the collection of taxes. With the exception of motor vehicles, the South Carolina Tax Control
date is December 31 for the ensuing tax year. South Carolina has no state-wide property tax.

Homestead Exemption

South Carolina provides, among other exemptions, an exemption for homesteads. This is a general
exemption from all ad valorem property taxes and applies to the first $50,000 of value of the dwelling place of
persons who are over 65 years of age, totally and permanently disabled, or legally blind (the “Homestead
Exemption”). The revenues that would have been received by various taxing entities but for the exemptions are
replaced by funds from the State. The State pays each taxing entity the amount to which it is entitled by April 15 of
each year from the State's general fund. The Homestead Exemption reimbursement to the County for the 2011 fiscal
year amounted to $1,705,295.

Property Tax Reform

Sales Tax Imposition; Exemption of Owner-Occupied Residential Property from School Operating Taxes

Pursuant to property tax reform approved by the State Legislature and a state-wide referendum in 2006, Act
No. 388 imposed an additional one percent sales tax State-wide beginning on June 1, 2007. The additional tax does
not apply to certain items, including certain accommodations (e.g., hotels, motels, and campgrounds), items taxed at
a defined maximum tax (e.g., automobiles), and unprepared food (upon which the prior 5% tax was eliminated in
October, 2007). Receipts from the new 1% sales tax are to be credited to the “Homestead Exemption Fund” created
pursuant to Act No. 388.

Effective beginning with fiscal year 2008, all owner-occupied residential real property in the State is
exempted from ad valorem real property taxes levied for school district operations (the “New Homestead
Exemption™). Proceeds of the sales tax deposited in the Homestead Exemption Fund are distributed to the school
districts in substitution for the ad valorem real property taxes not collected as a consequence of the New Homestead
Exemption. Act No. 388 provides that a minimum of $2,500,000 of sales taxes per county will be distributed to the
school district or districts within such county. Owner-occupied residential real property is not exempt from millage
imposed for the payment of general obligation indebtedness incurred by school districts.

The amount of the reimbursements in fiscal year 2008 was equal to the amount estimated to have been
otherwise collected (but for the New Homestead Exemption) in fiscal year 2008 by the school district from school
operating millage imposed on owner occupied residential property therein, subject to the minimum of $2,500,000
described above. Beginning in fiscal year 2009 and continuing each year thereafter, the aggregate reimbursement to
the school districts will increase by an amount equal to the Consumer Price Index, Southeast Region, plus the
percentage increase in the previous year in the population of the State. The aggregate amount of the reimbursement
increase in any year will be distributed among the school districts proportionately based on each school district’s
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weighted pupil units as a percentage of statewide weighted pupil units as determined annually pursuant to the South
Carolina Education Finance Act.

Any amounts remaining in the Homestead Exemption Fund after the distribution of moneys as described in
the preceding paragraphs will be distributed to the school districts of the 46 counties of the State, proportionately
based upon population, to be applied as a credit against ad valorem real property taxes levied against, first, owner-
occupied residential real property, and, thereafter, to all other classes of taxable property, for county operating
purposes.

To the extent revenues in the Homestead Exemption Fund are insufficient to pay all reimbursements to the
school districts as described above, Act No. 388 provides that the difference is to be paid from the State’s general
fund. Enforcement of this provision is not self-executing, and will in each applicable year be subject to the
appropriation of the necessary amounts by the General Assembly.

Limitation on Millage Increases

Act No. 388 also imposes a limitation on increases in millage levied for operational purposes by all
political subdivisions in South Carolina, which has been recently amended by legislation approved by the South
Carolina General Assembly in June, 2011. As so amended, Act No. 388 provides that annual millage levies may
increase only at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population
growth of the political subdivision. There may be added to the operating millage increase any such increase
permitted under clauses (a) or (b) of the prior sentence, that was allowed but not previously imposed, for the three
property tax years preceding the year to which the current limit applies. This limitation may be overridden by a vote
of two-thirds of the governing body of the political subdivision, but only for the following purposes and only in a
year in which such condition exists:

(D) a deficiency of the preceding year;

(2) any catastrophic event outside the control of the governing body such as a natural
disaster, severe weather event, act of God, or act of terrorism, fire, war, or riot;

3) compliance with a court order or decree;

(@) taxpayer closure due to circumstances outside the control of the governing body that
decreases by 10% or more the amount of revenue payable to the taxing jurisdiction
in the preceding year; or

(5) compliance with a regulation promulgated or statute enacted by the federal or state
government after the ratification date of this section for which an appropriation or a
method for obtaining an appropriation is not provided by the federal or state government.

Local Option Sales Tax for Additional Tax Relief

Act No. 388 further authorises the imposition within any county, subject to approval by referendum, of a
local sales tax to provide additional property tax relief. The local sales tax may only be imposed to the extent
necessary to provide a 100% credit to all classes of taxable property against (a) county operating taxes, (b) school
operating taxes, or (c) both, as set forth on the referendum ballot. The rate of such local sales tax may not exceed
1%. Act No. 388 also provides a procedure for rescinding this local sales tax, as well as any other local sales taxes in
force. Charleston County has not implemented the provisions of this Section of Act No. 388 as of this date.

Reassessment Valuations Limited

Act No. 388 also provides that the growth in valuation of real property attributable to reassessment may not
exceed 15% for each five-year reassessment cycle. Growth in valuation resulting from improvements to real
property are exempt from this restriction. Except for property classified as “all other real property” subject to the
6.0% assessment ratio, upon the sale of any parcel of real property or other “assessable transfer of interest,”
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including long-term leases, conveyances out of trusts, and other defined events, but excluding transfers between
spouses, such parcel will be reassessed to its then-current market value.

Exemptions and Limitations for Certain Industries

Pursuant to various economic development incentives enacted by the State Legislature, the assessment ratio
for certain manufacturing facilities and other facilities can be reduced to 6% (and, in some instances, as low as 3%)
under fee-in-lieu of tax transactions and multi-county industrial parks by action of the County Council. These
incentives can remain in effect up to 35 years in certain instances. In addition to lowering the assessment ratio, this
legislation permits the negotiation of a fixed or periodically adjusted millage rate by the industry and County
Council, which can differ from the millage rate imposed upon taxable property located within Charleston County. In
addition, the County can rebate a portion of the fee-in-lieu of tax payment to the industry.

The South Carolina Constitution exempts from ad valorem taxation (except school and municipal taxes) all
new manufacturing establishments for five years from the time of establishment and all additions to existing
manufacturing establishments for five years from the time each such addition is made if the cost of such addition is
$50,000 or more. The exemptions authorised by the South Carolina Constitution for manufacturing establishments
do not include exemptions from school taxes or municipal taxes.

Assessed Value of Taxable Properties in Charleston County

The following table shows the assessed values of real and personal property and the estimated market value of
taxable property in Charleston County for the fiscal years indicated:

Assessed
Value as a
Percentage
Fiscal Total of
Year Direct Estimated
Ended Personal Total Taxable Tax Estimated Actual Actual
June 30 Real Property Property Vehicles Assessed Value Rate Taxable Value Tax Value
2002 $1,297,211,547  $ 201,808,305 $172,330,164 $1,671,350,016 180.2 $29,666,989,206 5.63%
2003 1,347,982,940 208,482,465 169,956,308 1,726,421,713 187.7 30,851,205,551 5.60%
2004 1,394,103,212 210,193,376 173,309,334 1,777,605,922 191.9 32,425,619,687 5.48%
2005 2,041,172,452 213,698,050 164,182,170 2,419,052,672 161.3 46,536,987,902 5.20%
2006 2,197,536,874 194,576,361 153,380,326 2,545,493,561 160.8 47,282,058,031 5.38%
2007 2,308,701,112 210,195,223 159,335,124 2,678,231,459 168.0 49,446,157,317 5.42%
2008 2,525,310,042 215,663,434 175,326,815 2,916,300,291 177.0 52,960,945,426 5.51%
2009 2,567,170,930 225,355,873 167,364,803 2,959,891,606 181.0 55,081,538,273 5.37%
2010 2,530,782,359 236,859,543 156,340,695 2,923,982,597 181.0 54,571,987,194 5.36%
2011 2,729,144 ,416 234,746,374 155,001,548 3,118,892,338 181.0 58,181,179,259 5.36%

Source: Charleston County Auditor.
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The following table sets forth the assessed values and approximate market values, by tax class categories,
for all taxable property in Charleston County for fiscal year 2011.

Approximate

Market

Class of Property Assessed Value Value
Real Property and Mobile Homes — County Assessor $2,729,144,416 $53,668,065,257
Motor Vehicles — County Auditor by DOR Manual 155,001,548 1,272,591,055
Public Utilities 86,311,320 822,012,571
Manufacturing Property —-DOR Full Levy 22,505,860 214,341,524
Water Craft — County Auditor 28,978,170 276,571,738
Business Personal — County Auditor 18,022,520 173,070,429
Business Personal — DOR 63,324,710 603,092,476
Railroads 2,819,580 29,679,789
Aircraft 5,194,950 49,475,714
Rental Residential 3,178,050 30,267,143
Multi-County Park Personal Property 4,411,214 42,011,563
TOTALS $3,118,892,338 $57,181,179,259

Source: Charleston County Auditor.
Method by Which Tax Levy is Made

South Carolina taxing entities (including counties, school districts, cities and towns, and special tax districts)
levy property taxes as a single tax bill which each taxpayer must pay in full. In Charleston County, the Charleston
County Treasurer collects all current taxes and the County Administrator is responsible for delinquent tax collections.

Notices are mailed in October of each year or as soon as practicable thereafter. All taxes may be paid without
penalty through January 15. A 3% penalty is added on January 16. An additional 7% penalty is added on February 2.
On March 17, another additional penalty of 5% is added on and delinquent taxes are forwarded at this time to the
Charleston County Delinquent Tax Collector for collection.

Property Tax Collection Record

The following table shows the total amount of property taxes levied for operational and debt service purposes
for the County for each of the years shown:

Adjusted Collected within the Fiscal
Fiscal Year =~ Tax Levy Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Ended for Fiscal Percentage Subsequent Percentage
June 30 Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2002 $69,979,712 $66,574,527 95.1% $3,329,410 $69,903,937 99.9%
2003 70,724,095 67,801,645 95.9 2,834,190 70,635,835 99.9
2004 73,504,819 70,729,990 96.2 2,667,216 73,397,209 99.9
2005 71,982,912 69,530,828 96.6 2,363,833 71,894,661 99.9
2006 75,825,360 73,525,524 97.0 2,126,044 75,651,568 99.8
2007 76,026,583 73,199,901 96.3 1,220,087 74,419,988 97.9
2008 78,854,461 75,500,629 95.7 1,776,394 77,277,023 98.0
2009 82,649,921 77,757,867 94.1 4,031,689 81,789,556 99.0
2010 92,300,468 86,401,791 93.6 3,197,038 89,598,829 97.1
2011 93,003,513 88,052,370 94.7 3,468,138 91,520,508 98.4

Source: Charleston County Treasurer’s Office.
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Tax Levy

The following table shows total tax millage for the County and overlapping governments in Charleston County for the tax years shown:

County Direct Rates 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Charleston County 50.8 50.8 51.3 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2 39.1
Government Operating

Charleston County 10.4 10.4 9.9 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.1
Government Debt Service

Park and Recreation 35 35 35 35 35 35 3.6 3.7 3.7 3.6
Commission Operating

Park and Recreation 3.7 3.7 3.7 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8
Commission Debt Service

Trident Technical College 21 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.4

98.7 98.7 98.7 98.6

County School Board 89.3 105.1 109.0 91.1 92.8 95.4
Operating

County School Board Debt 20.4 12.1 12.4 15.8 13.6 18.2 23.9 27.9 27.9 27.9
Service

Total Direct Rate 180.2 187.7 191.9 161.3 160.8 168.0 177.0 181.0 181.0 179.5

Fire District Rates: 21.8-50.9 23.2-50.9 23.9-51.5 16.7-38.0 16.7-40.3 12.0-415 12.0-42.7 12.0-47.7 12.0-48.4 11.2-48.6

City/Town Rates: 26.2-116.4  27.9-116.4  28.5-116.4 17.9-115.5 18.5-92.8 22.4-92.8 22.2-92.8 22.2-92.8 22.2-92.8 22.9-93.6

Public Service District Rates: 72.1-1045 74.2-1045  74.2-111.4 55.2-111.2 55.2-102.3 51.6-102.3  55.2-102.3  57.6-102.3  57.6-102.3 53.9-102.3

Source: Charleston County Auditor.
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Local Option Sales Tax

At the general election held on November 6, 1990, each county in the State voted on an initiative to levy an
additional 1% to the State sales tax, which additional 1% would be used by counties and municipalities located in
counties which approved imposition of the Local Option Sales Tax. Charleston County was one of six counties in the
State which initially approved imposition of a Local Option Sales Tax. The additional 1% sales tax was imposed
effective July 1, 1991. County Council has determined to apply all of this amount to a reduction of property taxes.

The following table provides the Local Option Sales Tax Receipts retained by Charleston County while the

second table reflects the Total Distribution of Local Option Sales Tax receipts to all eligible political subdivisions
located in Charleston County and net taxable sales which generate the taxes:

Local Option Sales Tax Receipts Retained by Charleston County

% Increase(Decrease)

Fiscal Year Receipts Over Prior Years
2002 $32,061,842 0.0%
2003 32,445,350 1.2
2004 35,629,077 9.8
2005 38,100,097 6.9
2006 42,159,174 10.7
2007 44,024,396 4.4
2008 44,458,297 1.0
2009 41,085,569 (7.6)
2010 39,955,809 2.7
2011 41,340,223 35

Source: Charleston County Treasurer.

Total Distribution to All Charleston County Entities

Fiscal Year Amount of Distribution Net Taxable Sales
2002 $52,780,801 $5,541,984,105
2003 53,326,355 5,599,267,275
2004 61,015,606 6,406,638,630
2005 65,758,445 6,904,636,725
2006 71,822,991 7,541,414,055
2007 75,580,355 7,935,937,275
2008 75,818,097 7,960,900,185
2009 71,403,947 7,497,414,484
2010 68,802,305 7,224,242,047
2011 70,787,125 7,451,276,186

Source: Charleston County Treasurer.
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The effective County operating millage rate following application of Local Option Sales Tax Receipts to
County millage for homeowners whose property is assessed at 4% as well as those properties assessed at 6% and
10.5% is shown in the following table:

Fiscal Year Actual
Ended Operating

June 30 Millage Levied
2003 50.8
2004 50.8
2005 51.3
2006* 40.2
2007 40.2
2008 40.2
2009 40.2
2010 40.2
2011 40.2
2012* 39.1

Effective

Operating Millage after
Local Option Sales Tax
Credit (4%) Applied

Effective

Operating Millage after
Local Option Sales Tax
Credit (6%) Applied

Effective
Operating Millage after
Local Option Sales Tax
Credit (10.5%) Applied

To Ad Valorem Tax to Ad Valorem Tax to Ad Valorem Tax
23.6 32.6 40.4
23.6 32.6 40.4
21.8 31.6 40.1
17.7 25.2 31.6
16.7 24.5 31.2
16.7 24.5 31.2
18.7 25.9 32.0
22.5 28.4 334
22.5 28.4 334
21.6 27.4 324

Source: Charleston County Auditor.

*Reassessment.

The State legislation mandating that the initiative be placed before the voters at the November 6, 1990 general
election, provides that a petition signed by 15% of the qualified electors in a county may place before the voters at a

subsequent election an initiative to rescind the Local Option Sales Tax.

Transportation Sales Tax

The table below sets forth the amounts of annual collections of the Transportation Sales Tax remitted to

Charleston County:

Year Ended
June 30

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Amount of Collections

$ 5,008,243*
37,978,097
39,521,712
40,096,515
37,469,812
36,248,432
37,963,668

* Collections for only the months of May and June 2005.

% Increase (Decrease)
Over Prior Year

See “TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX” for a discussion of the Transposition Sales Tax.
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Largest Taxpayers

Some of the largest property taxpayers in Charleston County and the June 30, 2011 fiscal year assessed value
for the taxable property of each located within Charleston County are as follows:

Estimated Assessed

Taxpayer Value
South Carolina Electric & Gas Co. $44,582,430
Kapstone Kraft* 14,728,415
Bell South 13,798,840
Boeing 8,270,113
Kiawah Real Estate Co. 7,247,820
Berkeley Electric Co-OP 5,931,340
Charleston Place LLC 5,635,510
Cummins 5,049,300
Kiawah Resort Associates 4,933,070

*In 2009 Westvaco sold its power generation plant and the paper mill to Kapstone Kraft.
Source: Charleston County Auditor.

Retirement Plan

All full-time County employees except public safety department employees are under the South Carolina
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (“SCRS”) established by the State for county government employees.
Public safety department employees are covered by the South Carolina Police Officers’ Retirement System (“PORS”),
also a defined benefit plan. These plans are funded on a matching basis, using an actuarial method, by the employees
and the County.

The County is required to make contributions on behalf of its employees into the pension system. The
County’s expenses are funded on an actuarial basis determined by the State, and the County is assessed on an annual
basis for its share of the State retirement system’s pension costs. The County’s local pension contributions have
risen substantially since fiscal year 2000. This has resulted in substantial increases in the County’s pension costs as
shown in the table below.

Retirement Plan Costs

Pension System 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Projections
S.C. Governmental Employee’s $5,721,280 $6,157,100 $6,038,511 $6,025,133 $ 6,500,000
Retirement System (SCRS)
S.C. Police Officer’s Retirement 3,157,167 3,290,463  3,303451 3,694,484 3,800,000
System (PORS)
Total Pension Payments $8,878,447 $9,447,563 $9,341,962 $9,719,617 $10,300,000

Each year employees (other than police officers) contribute 6.5% of their salary. Police officers also
contribute 6.5% of salary. The County’s share is 11.53% on police officers’ salaries and 9.39% on all other
employees. Police officers are eligible for retirement at age 55 or after 25 years of service. All other employees are
eligible for retirement at age 65 or after 30 years of service. Both groups’ vesting rights are after five years of
service. See Note | to the Notes to Financial Statements in APPENDIX A hereto for more information regarding the
County’s employee benefits plans.
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Other Post Employment Benefits

The County provides certain other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) as part of the total compensation
offered to attract and retain qualified employees. Employees hired before July 1, 2008, who meet certain eligibility
requirements (including the last five years of employment must be served consecutively and as a full-time regular
employee) can continue receiving their health, life and dental benefits with the County. The County will pay 50
percent of the retirees’ and dependents’ health insurance premiums. Employees hired after June 30, 2008 can receive
a 25 percent benefit after 15 years of service and a 50 percent benefit after 25 years of service.

The County currently funds its OPEB plan on a pay-as-you-go basis as calculated by Gabriel Roeder Smith
& Company. The net OPEB liability at June 30, 2010 was $10,938,993. The total recorded liability at June 30,
2011, was $13,917,496, all of which has been cash funded in the Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. The
County’s FY 2012 budget anticipates fully funding the net OPEB liability for that year.

The tables below set forth schedules of funding progress and employer contributions for the OPEB liability
as of June 30, 2011.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered UAAL as a Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded AAL Ratio Payroll of Covered Payroll
Date Assets (a) (AAL)(b) (UAAL) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]
7-1-2007 $ - $52,972,306 $52,972,306 0% $93,550,000 56.62%
7-1-2008 - 52,972,306 52,972,306 0 97,800,000 54.16
7-1-2009 - 47,374,110 47,374,110 0 96,600,000 49.04
7-1-2010 - 47,374,110 47,374,110 0 99,400,000 47.66

Schedule of Employee Contributions

Fiscal Year Annual Employer Amount Percentage Net OPEB
Ended June 30 OPEB Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation
2008 $5,874,245 $1,662,441 28.30% $4,211,804
2009 5,947,354 1,872,824 31.50 8,286,334
2010 4,402,193 1,749,534 39.70 10,938,993
2011 4,570,445 1,676,012 36.70 13,833,426
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CHARLESTON COUNTY

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

REVENUES
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Public Safety
Judicial
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Economic Development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of Fixed Assets
Transfers In/(Out)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - July 1 of Fiscal Year
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCE - June 30 of Fiscal Year

Source: Charleston County CAFR.

FY 2011 Results and FY 2012 Budget Commentary

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
$137,872,960 $141,307,990 $138,091,481  $146,341,514 $149,583,344
17,786,911 21,408,124 20,498,085 17,559,632 17,944,977
2,066,937 1,803,948 1,892,607 3,158,883 5,313,635
157,726,308 164,520,062 160,482,173 167,060,029  $172,841,956
41165521 45,991,880 42,681,499 40,543,509 42,975,385
62,491,799 68,153,018 70,622,385 68,057,230 72,973,181
16,816,852 17,869,238 15,787,755 15,548,585 15,641,906
8,953,619 9,421,539 8,215,240 7,897,432 7,425,824
3,783,914 3,929,327 3,850,047 3,513,184 3,567,531
13277590 14,103,768 14,232,540 13,824,355 13,921,189
550,728 470,763 -0- -0- -0-
147,040,023 159,939,533 155,389,466 149,384,295 156,505,016
10,686,785 4,580,529 5,092,707 17,675,734 16,336,940
1,661 3,577 2,122 1,337 531
(9,901,810)  (9.557.298)  (4.111,358) (10,792,893)  (16,584,862)
(9,900,149)  (9,553,721)  (4,109,236) (10,791,556)  (16,584,331)
786,636 (4,973,192) 983,471 6,884,178 (247,391)
48934222 49,701,568 44,728,376 45711,847 52,596,024
(19,290) -0- -0- 1) -0-
$49.701568  $44,728,376  $45711,847  $52,596,024  $52,348,633

Actions were taken by the County Administrator during FY 2011 to manage actual expenditures to revenue
estimates. As a result of the County’s diligence in controlling expenditures, FY 2011 expenditures were under
budget by $6 million with $4 million of this amount carried over to FY 2012 for completion of ongoing projects and
encumbrances. In addition to the reduction in expenditures, revenues for FY 2011 were over budget by $13 million
due to stronger than anticipated revenues from property taxes, sales tax, foreclosures, and housing federal prisoners
in the recently expanded detention center. As a result, the County ended FY 2011 with $52.3 million in fund
balance. In FY 2012, the County decided to use the some of the unanticipated fund balance for PAYGO capital
items that were previously deferred during the height of the national recession.

The FY 2012 General Fund total budgeted revenues originally equaled $165.0 million.

The FY 2012

General Fund original disbursement budget totaled $171.1 million, and used $6.1 million of fund balance for
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PAYGO capital items. Based on FY 2011 results and the sustainability of the revenue sources, the General Fund
budget was increased by $2.1 million to award the first across-the-board cost-of-living pay increase since July 2008.
To address the accounting pronouncement on post retirement benefits, this budget continues setting aside funds
above the current costs (Annual Required Contribution) for the fifth consecutive year.

Due to the difficulty in accurately forecasting revenues during a period of economic turmoil, the current
projection is that the stronger than anticipated revenues seen in FY 2011 will continue into FY 2012. The County
projects that actual revenues will be above the adjusted General Fund budget by $6.4 million for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2012. Projected actual expenditures for FY 2012 are estimated to be $4.5 million below the 2012
General Fund’s budgeted amount. The County’s General Fund balance is projected to be $53.1 million at the end of
fiscal year 2012, which includes the unreserved/undesignated amount of two months of disbursements required by
the County’s Financial Policy. The Rainy Day Fund is maintained between the General Fund and the Environment
Management Fund.

DEBT STRUCTURE
Outstanding General Obligation Debt

As of June 30, 2011, the County had general obligation bonds outstanding as follows:

(@) The outstanding $38,530,000 of an original issue of $63,740,000 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2004, dated April 2, 2004.

(b) The outstanding $56,860,000* of an original issue of $65,000,000 General Obligation Transportation
Sales Tax Bonds of 2006, dated May 2, 2006.

(©) The outstanding $72,460,000** of an original issue of $75,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of
2007, dated December 13, 2007.

(d) The outstanding $145,250,000*** of an original issue of $150,000,000 General Obligation
Transportation Sales Tax Bonds of 2007, dated December 13, 2007.

(e) The outstanding $50,000,000 of an original issue of $50,000,000 General Obligation Capital
Improvement Bonds of 2009, Series A, dated August 1, 2009.

U] The outstanding $17,835,000 of an original issue of $20,775,000 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds of 2009, Series B, dated August 1, 2009.

On July 27, 2011, the County issued additional general obligation bonds, which remain outstanding, as
follows:

@) The amount of $167,000,000 General Obligation Capital Improvement Transportation Sales Tax
Bonds of 2011.

(b) The amount of $27,100,000 General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds of 2011.

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds offered hereby the County intends to issue its $22,395,0001 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2012, secured by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County.

t  Preliminary, subject to change.

*  Approximately $30,910,000 of this issue is anticipated to be refunded from the proceeds of the Bonds offered hereby.

**  Approximately $21,780,000 of this issue is anticipated to be refunded from the proceeds of the County’s General Obligation
Bonds of 2012 being issued simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds offered hereby.

*** Approximately $37,355,000 of this issue is anticipated to be refunded from the proceeds of the Bonds offered hereby.
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Certificates of Participation

The County issues Certificates of Participation (“COPs”) through the Charleston Public Facilities
Corporation, a blended component unit, to finance the acquisition of essential government facilities. The County’s
obligation to pay the underlying lease rental obligation is subject to annual appropriation by County Council.
Consequently, the COPs do not count against the County’s 8% constitutional debt limit. As of June 30, 2011, the
County had outstanding Certificates of Participation in the aggregate principal amount of $41,725,000.

Outstanding Lease Purchase Obligations

As of June 30, 2011, the County had an aggregate of $2,810,433 of equipment lease purchase obligations
which mature by October 2014. The County’s obligation to make lease purchase payments is subject to annual
appropriation by County Council. Consequently, these lease purchase agreements do not count against the County’s
8% constitutional debt limit.

Intergovernmental Note Payable

In July 2001, the County entered into an intergovernmental loan agreement with the South Carolina
Transportation Infrastructure Bank to fund a portion of the cost of the new Arthur Ravenel, Jr. Bridge over the Cooper
River. The County agreed to pay $3,000,000 per year for 25 years solely from revenues derived from the County’s
Transportation Sales Tax. The County has recorded the obligation on its records at a net present value using the
discount rate of 5.73%.

Annual requirements to amortise the intergovernmental note payable outstanding at June 30, 2011, are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Intergovernmental
Ending June 30 Note Payable Principal Interest

2012 $ 3,000,000 $ 1,163,460 $1,836,540
2013 3,000,000 1,230,126 1,769,874
2014 3,000,000 1,300,612 1,699,388
2015 3,000,000 1,375,137 1,624,863
2016-2020 15,000,000 8,151,886 6,848,114
2021-2025 15,000,000 10,770,832 4,229,168
2026-2028 9,000,000 8,059,263 940,737
Total $51,000,000 $32,051,316 $18,948,684

County User Fee Revenue Bonds

The County levies and collects a service charge on all owners of real property in Charleston County for solid
waste disposal (the “User Fee™), in an amount which together with other available moneys will be sufficient to pay debt
service on any County User Fee Revenue Bonds. The County has adopted an ordinance providing for the imposition of
User Fees to be collected in the current fiscal year. The User Fee will be $99 per year per user for residential property
and a per tonnage charge for non-residential users for FY 2012. Under the User Fee Ordinance, User Fees may be used
to finance any of the County’s solid waste disposal operations including costs currently financed from the general fund.
The County currently pays for waste disposal out of appropriations from its solid waste enterprise fund. The County’s
current expectation is to continue such practice with respect to operating costs of its landfill operations together with
other available revenue. As of June 30, 2011, the County had outstanding $5,005,000 in Solid Waste User Fee
Revenue Refunding Bonds (“2004 Solid Waste User Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds”), secured by a lien on the User
Fee.

Notes

The County’s fleet management internal service fund has a note payable dated April 11, 1999 to the solid
waste enterprise fund. The note is payable from debt service fund transfers to the fleet management internal service
fund. The note matures in 2014. The outstanding principal at June 30, 2011, was $216,396.
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Debt Service for General Obligation Bonds and Lease Purchase Obligations

The following table, based on a fiscal year, shows the annual debt service requirements on the County's outstanding general obligation debt and lease
purchase obligations, as well as on the Bonds offered hereby.

Other
Outstanding
Series 2012 General Obligation Series 2012 General Obligation General Other
Refunding Sales Tax Bondst Refunding Bondst Obligation General
Sales Tax Obligation COPS &
Debt Debt Leases
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest  Total Service* Service** Total*** Total
2012 $ -0- $ -0- $20,628,994 $15,918,315 $6,376,781 $
2013 320,000 90,000 27,369,475 17,361,356 6,103,119
2014 330,000 90,000 27,856,044 17,678,975 6,123,050
2015 330,000 95,000 28,340,231 18,006,298 6,104,394
2016 345,000 95,000 28,805,100 18,455,145 6,098,769
2017 3,135,000 100,000 29,314,413 19,079,008 6,117,788
2018 3,230,000 100,000 29,998,825 19,463,808 6,113,513
2019 10,905,000 3,620,000 30,753,213 19,872,883 4,520,944
2020 11,900,000 3,970,000 31,576,588 20,307,139 2,997,000
2021 12,970,000 4,345,000 32,439,263 15,178,914 1,455,500
2022 14,035,000 4,740,000 33,263,188 15,066,033 -
2023 3,605,000 5,150,000 34,172,544 13,556,108 -
2024 3,745,000 -0- 35,145,666 13,911,323 -
2025 3,895,000 -0- 36,154,728 14,288,725 -
2026 -0- -0- 37,190,400 14,672,025 -
2027 -0- -0- 38,265,638 15,069,275 -
2028 -0- -0- 20,609,413 15,471,563 -
2029 -0- -0- 16,080,400 7,265,344 -
2030 -0- -0- 14,958,300 2,066,200 -
2031 -0- -0- - 2,064,900 -
2032 0 -0- - 2,065,500 -
Totals $68,745,000 $22,395,000 $552,922,419 $296,818,833 $52,010,856

t  Preliminary, subject to change.

*  Does not include the Refunded Bonds being refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds offered hereby.

** Does not include bonds being refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2012 General Obligation Bonds being issued simultaneously with the Bonds offered hereby.
*** Indicates COPS only.
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No Variable Rate Debt or Derivative Contracts

The County currently has no variable rate debt outstanding, and is not a party to any derivative contracts
such as interest rate swaps.

Overlapping Debt

Contained within Charleston County are the Charleston County School District and numerous municipalities
and special purpose districts providing public services, a number of which have issued general obligation bonds. Direct
debt constitutes debt directly issued by the County while overlapping debt constitutes that portion of debt issued by
different public entities within Charleston County. The County is not responsible for the overlapping debt of other
local agencies.

The following table shows each political subdivision which lies within Charleston County and which has
long-term general obligation debt (excluding tax anticipation notes) outstanding and the total outstanding general
obligation debt as of June 30, 2011, of each such political subdivision.

Outstanding General

Issuer Obligation Debt
Charleston County Park & Recreation Commission $ 25,972,995
Charleston County School District 231,017,000
City of Charleston 64,664,999
City of Folly Beach 1,027,740
City of Isle of Palms 14,120,000
City of North Charleston 32,395,000
James Island Public Service District 369,297
St. Paul’s Fire Department 3,093,630
Town of McClellanville 140,154
Town of Mt. Pleasant 38,365,000
Town of Sullivan’s Island 1,375,000

Source: Individual political subdivisions.

Overlapping Debt Limits

Under the applicable debt limitation provisions of Article X of the South Carolina Constitution, each school
district, incorporated municipality, and special purpose district has the power, in such manner and upon such terms
and conditions as the General Assembly shall prescribe by general law, (a) to incur general obligation debt,
authorised by a majority vote of the qualified electors thereof voting in a referendum, without limitations as to
amount, and (b) to incur, without an election, general obligation debt (in addition to bonded indebtedness authorised
by referendum) in an amount not exceeding 8% of the assessed value of all taxable property therein.

Avrticle X of the South Carolina Constitution also authorises all school districts, incorporated municipalities,
and special purpose districts to incur general obligation debt in anticipation of the collection of ad valorem taxes (tax
anticipation notes) in amounts which do not count against the 8% constitutional debt limit described above.

Additional General Obligation Indebtedness Now Permitted

The County Bond Act empowers the governing body of any county to issue general obligation bonds of that
county in any amount not exceeding the constitutional debt limit applicable to the county upon compliance with
certain conditions.

The County Council is permitted, by virtue of the County Bond Act and under the applicable debt

limitation provisions of Article X of the South Carolina Constitution, to incur general obligation debt of the County
as follows:
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(a) If the general obligation debt is authorised by a majority vote of the qualified electors of
the County in a referendum, general obligation debt may be incurred without any limitation as to amount
(other than the amount specified in the referendum).

(b) General obligation debt also may be incurred by counties for sewage disposal or treatment,
fire protection, street lighting, garbage collection and disposal, water service, or any other service or facility
benefiting only a particular geographical section of such county, without an election and without limitation
as to amount, provided a special assessment, tax or service charge in an amount sufficient to provide debt
service on the bonds issued for such purposes shall be imposed upon the area or persons receiving the
benefit therefrom.

(c) General obligation debt may also be incurred in an amount not exceeding 8% of the
assessed value of all taxable property of the county.

Acrticle X of the South Carolina Constitution also authorises all counties to incur general obligation debt in
anticipation of the collection of ad valorem taxes (tax anticipation notes) in amounts not subject to the 8%
constitutional debt limit described in paragraph (c) above.

Of the County’s currently outstanding $380,935,000 general obligation indebtedness, $207,110,000 was
approved by voters in previous referendums. Consequently, $173,825,000 of the County’s outstanding general
obligation indebtedness counts against the County’s 8% constitutional debt limit.

Based on the Fiscal Year 2011 assessed value of $3,118,892,338, the County’s 8% constitutional debt limit
is $249,511,387. Consequently, the County will be permitted to incur under the constitutional debt limit additional
general obligation debt in the total amount of $75,686,387. See “-Anticipated Capital Needs” herein for the
anticipated issuance of additional general obligation debt by the County.

Additional Lease-Purchase and Annual Appropriation Indebtedness

South Carolina law permits county governments to finance the acquisition and construction of capital assets
by means of lease-purchase financing. Lease-purchase financing of personal property, such as vehicles and
equipment, does not count against the 8% constitutional debt limit described in “- Additional General Obligation
Indebtedness Now Permitted” herein. In most instances, lease-purchase financing of real property acquisition or
improvements will, however, count against a similar statutory 8% debt limit.

County governments are permitted under State law to use annual appropriation instalment purchase
financing to acquire and construct real property improvements. This form of financing generally will not count
against either the constitutional or statutory 8% debt limit.

The County has no plans at this time to incur lease-purchase or annual appropriation indebtedness to
finance capital projects as described above.

County’s Authority to Issue Other Revenue Bonds

The South Carolina Constitution grants authority to county governments to incur indebtedness payable
solely from a revenue-producing project or from a special source, which source does not involve revenues from any
tax or license on such terms and conditions as are prescribed by general law. Revenue bond indebtedness issued in
compliance with this provision of the State Constitution does not count against the 8% constitutional debt limit
described in “- Additional General Obligation Indebtedness Now Permitted” herein.

Pursuant to this authorisation, State law permits county governments to issue revenue bonds payable from
user fees or charges, such as for utility systems, solid waste disposal facilities and systems, parking facilities and
systems, healthcare facilities, and similar revenue-generating projects. South Carolina law also permits county
governments to finance public infrastructure by means of tax increment financing and special assessment district
financing. County governments that receive fee-in-lieu of tax payments from qualifying businesses may also issue
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special source revenue bonds payable from those payments. As of the date of this Official Statement, the County
has its 2004 Solid Waste User Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds issued pursuant to this authorisation.

The County is currently studying the continued delivery of solid waste disposal services, but has not
developed a capital plan at this time. The County may issue additional solid waste user fee revenue bonds in the
event the capital plan, when prepared, requires such funding, but it has no such plans at this time. See “-Anticipated
Capital Needs” herein for further discussion of this issue.

County governments are also permitted to provide conduit private activity bond financing for qualifying
industrial, pollution control, and healthcare facilities. Conduit revenue bonds are payable solely by the private
conduit borrower, and are not an obligation of the county government which issues the bonds. Although the County
has issued conduit bonds for various qualifying projects, none of these bonds are considered debt obligations of the
County for legal, balance sheet, or accounting purposes. Consequently, no information is provided in this Official
Statement regarding such bonds.

Debt Payment Record

The County has not issued any refunding bonds within the last 25 years for the purpose of preventing a default
in the payment of the principal of or interest on securities then outstanding, nor have securities of the County been in
default as to the payment of principal or interest or in any other material respect at any time within the last 25 years.
The proceeds of the sale of securities have not within the last 25 years been used for operating expenses.

Anticipated Capital Needs

County Council annually reviews and approves a five-year capital plan for facilities and a five-year
operating and capital plan for the Transportation Sales Tax. These plans do not anticipate the borrowing of funds
during the five-year period. In addition, County Council annually reviews and approves a five-year capital plan for
its Solid Waste System. Although not included in the current plan, there may be a need to borrow funds for the Solid
Waste System towards the end of the five-year period.

LEGAL MATTERS
Litigation

There is no litigation of any nature now pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the sale, execution,
issuance, or delivery of the Bonds or in any way contesting the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the
County taken with respect to the authorisation, sale, or issuance of the Bonds or the pledge or application of any
moneys provided for the payment of or security for the Bonds. Certifications to those effects will be delivered at the
time of the original delivery of the Bonds.

The County has several matters in various stages of litigation, none of which challenge the validity of the
Bonds offered hereby. In the opinion of the County Attorney, none of this litigation will have a materially adverse
affect upon the County’s ability to repay the Bonds offered hereby.

United States Bankruptcy Code

The undertakings of the County should be considered with reference to Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code,
11 U.S.C. 901, et seq., as amended, and other laws affecting creditors’ rights and municipalities generally. Chapter
9 permits a municipality, political subdivision, public agency, or other instrumentality of a state that is insolvent or
unable to meet its debts as such debts mature to file a petition in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the purpose
of effecting a plan to adjust its debts; directs such a petitioner to file with the court a list of its creditors; provides
that the filing of the petition under the Chapter operate as a stay of the commencement or continuation of any
judicial or other proceeding against the petitioner; directs a petitioner to file a plan for the adjustment of its debts;

36



permits the petitioner in its plan to modify the rights to payment of its creditors; and provides that the plan must be
accepted in writing by or on behalf of creditors or each impaired class of claims holding at least two-thirds in
amount and more than one-half in number of the creditors which have accepted or rejected the plan. The plan may
be confirmed notwithstanding the negative vote of one or more classes of claims if the court finds that the plan is in
the best interest of creditors, is feasible, and is fair and equitable with respect to the dissenting classes of creditors.
A petitioner has the right to reinstate indebtedness under its plan according to the original maturity schedule of such
indebtedness notwithstanding any provision in the documents under which the indebtedness arose relating to the
insolvency or financial condition of the debtor before the confirmation of the plan, the commencement of a case
under the Bankruptcy Code, or the appointment of or taking possession by a trustee in a case under the Bankruptcy
Code or by a receiver or other custodian prior to the commencement of a case under the Bankruptcy Code.

Legal Proceedings and Disclosure Counsel

The legal proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds were prepared by Howell Linkous & Nettles,
LLC, attorneys and counsellors at law, Charleston, South Carolina, whose approving opinion will be furnished
without charge to the purchaser of the Bonds at the time of their delivery. The form of Bond Counsel’s opinion is
set forth as APPENDIX C to this Official Statement.

Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC have also served as disclosure counsel to the County regarding the
issuance of the Bonds offered hereby. On delivery of the Bonds, Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC will deliver an
opinion letter as disclosure counsel addressed to the County and the Underwriter to the effect that (1) the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking on the part of the County satisfies the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12, (2) the Bonds are
exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (3) that, subject to their
limited review, nothing has come to their attention that would lead them to believe that the Official Statement
contains any untrue statement of material fact or omits to state any material fact necessary to make the statements
made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they made, not misleading (except that no statement will be
made regarding information on DTC or financial or statistical information contained in this Official Statement or in
APPENDIX A hereto).

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the County by Joseph Dawson, I, Esq., Charleston, South
Carolina, Charleston County Attorney.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as
to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by state and federal laws, rulings, and
decisions affecting remedies, including judicial discretion in the application of the principles of equity, and by
bankruptcy, reorganisation, or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.

Tax Exemption

In the opinion of Howell Linkous & Nettles, LLC, Charleston, South Carolina, Bond Counsel, under
existing laws, regulations, rulings, and judicial decisions, and assuming compliance by the County with certain
covenants, the interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, except
as discussed below. The proposed form of the opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Bonds is set forth in
APPENDIX C. The actual legal opinion to be delivered may vary from that text if necessary to reflect facts and
law on the date of delivery. The opinion will speak only as of its date, and subsequent distribution of it by re-
circulation of the Official Statement or otherwise shall create no implication that Bond Counsel has reviewed or
expresses any opinion concerning any of the matters referenced in the opinion subsequent to its date.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™) imposes various restrictions, conditions, and
requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal and South Carolina income tax purposes of
interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The County has made certain representations and covenanted to comply
with certain restrictions, conditions, and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply
with these covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal and South
Carolina income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond
Counsel assumes the accuracy of theses representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has
not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events occurring
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(or not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel’s attention after the date of issuance of the Bonds
may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds. Accordingly, the opinion of Bond
Counsel is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon, in connexion with any such actions, events, or matters.

The following is a brief discussion of certain federal income tax matters with respect to the Bonds under
existing statutes. It does not purport to deal with all aspects of federal taxation that may be relevant to the particular
owner of Bonds. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules, are advised to consult
their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Bonds.

Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds is not treated as a preference item in
calculating minimum taxable income for the purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed by the Code on
individuals and corporations. The Code provides, however, that a portion of the adjusted current earnings of certain
corporations not otherwise included in alternative minimum taxable income will be included for purposes of
calculating alternative minimum taxable income for such year. The adjusted current earnings of a corporation will
include the amount of any income received that is otherwise exempt from taxes, such as interest on the Bonds.

Interest on the Bonds must also be taken into account in determining the tax liability of foreign
corporations subject to the branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code.

Prospective owners of the Bonds should be aware that the ownership of such obligations may result in
collateral federal income tax consequences to various categories of persons, such as corporations (including S
corporations and foreign corporations), financial institutions, property and casualty and life insurance companies,
individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement benefits, and individuals otherwise eligible for the
earned income tax credit.

Legislation affecting municipal bonds is regularly under consideration by the United States Congress.
Future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions may cause interest on
the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state
income taxation, or otherwise prevent Beneficial Owners from realising the full current benefit of the tax status of
such interest. The introduction or enactment of any such future legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or
court decisions may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the
Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation,
regulations, or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

South Carolina Tax Exemption

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all taxation
of the State of South Carolina, except inheritance, estate, or transfer taxes. Section 12-11-20 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina 1976, as amended, imposes upon every bank engaged in business in South Carolina a fee or
franchise tax computed at the rate of 4 2% of the entire net income of such bank. Regulations of the South Carolina
Department of Revenue and Taxation require that “entire net income” includes income derived from any source
whatsoever including interest on obligations of any state or political subdivision thereof. Interest on the Bonds will
be included in such computation.

Limitations on Bond Counsel Opinion

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly
addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or the courts. Furthermore,
Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the future activities of the County, or
about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the
enforcement thereof by the IRS. The County has covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the
Code.

The opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment

of the attorneys rendering the opinion as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. By rendering a legal
opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression of professional judgment, of
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the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of parties to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an
opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, unless
separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the County or the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other
than the County and its appointed counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would have little, if any, right to
participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connexion with an
audit examination of tax-exempt obligations is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with
which the County legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to
selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or any audit of bonds or notes presenting
similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause the County or
the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.

Bond Counsel expresses no other opinion with respect to the tax consequences of owning the Bonds. Bond
Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events
occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds.

In rendering their opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certificates of officials of the County with respect
to certain material facts solely within their knowledge relating to the application of the proceeds of the Bonds.

Original Issue Premium

The Bonds (the “Premium Bonds”) have been sold at initial public offering prices which are greater than
the principal amounts payable at maturity. The difference between the initial public offering prices to the public
(excluding bond houses and brokers) at which price a substantial amount of each maturity of the Premium Bonds is
sold and the amount payable at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond. A purchaser of a Premium
Bond must amortise any premium over such Premium Bond’s term using constant yield principles, based on the
purchaser’s yield to maturity. As premium is amortised, the purchaser’s basis in such Premium Bond is reduced by a
corresponding amount, resulting in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal
income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the
purchaser’s basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed.

The owner of any Premium Bond should consult its own tax advisors with respect to the treatment of bond
premium for federal income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and state and local tax
consequences, in connexion with the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of such Premium Bond.

MISCELLANEOUS
Underwriting

The Bonds have been purchased at a competitive sale from the County for resale by (the
“Underwriter”). The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Bonds at an aggregate
premium of $ . The initial public offering prices of the Bonds are as shown on the front page of this
Official Statement and may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter. The Underwriter may also allow a
concession from the public offering prices to certain dealers. The Underwriter has received no fee from the County
for underwriting the Bonds. If all of the Bonds are sold at the public offering yields set forth on the cover page of
this Official Statement, the Underwriter anticipates total selling compensation of $

Financial Advisor

Davenport & Co., LLC, Charlotte, North Carolina has served as Financial Advisor (the “Financial
Advisor”) to the County with respect to the issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor does not assume any
responsibility for the information, covenants, and representations contained in any of the legal documents with
respect to the federal income tax status of the Bonds, or the possible impact of any present, pending, or future
actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies. The Financial Advisor has reviewed the information in this
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Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to the County and, as applicable, to
investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the
Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

Ratings

Application has been made to Fitch, Inc. (“Fitch”), Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s™), and
Standard & Poor’s, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P™), for ratings for this issue of Bonds.
The Bonds have received the ratings of “Aaa” from Moody’s, “AAA” from S&P, and “AAA” from Fitch. An
explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from the respective rating agency furnishing the
same. The County has furnished the rating agencies the information contained in this Official Statement and certain
publicly available materials and information about the County. Generally, the rating agencies base their ratings on
such materials and information, as well as investigations, studies, and assumptions of the rating agencies. Such
ratings may be changed at any time, and no assurance can be given that they will not be revised downward or
withdrawn entirely by any of the rating agencies if, in their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Such
circumstances may include, without limitation, changes in or availability of information relating to the County. Any
such downward revision or withdrawal of the ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

CUSIP Numbers

At the written direction of the undersigned, a “CUSIP” identification number will be imprinted on the
Bonds, but such number shall not constitute a part of the contract evidenced by the Bonds and any error or omission
with respect thereto shall not constitute cause for refusal of any purchaser to accept delivery of or payment for the
Bonds. In addition, failure on the part of the County to use such CUSIP number in notice to holders of the Bonds
shall not constitute an event of default or similar violation of the County’s contract with such holders.

Continuing Disclosure

Pursuant to Section 11-1-85 of the Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, the County has covenanted
to file with a central repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested:

An annual independent audit within thirty days of the County’s receipt of the audit; and

Event specific information within thirty days of an event adversely affecting more than five percent of the
revenues of the County.

The only remedy for failure by the County to comply with these covenants is an action for specific
performance. Moreover, the County has specifically reserved the right to amend the covenants to reflect any change
in Section 11-1-85 without the consent of any Bondholder.

In order to provide certain continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds in accordance with Rule 15¢2-
12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the
same may be amended from time to time (“Rule 15¢2-12"), the County has entered into a Disclosure Dissemination
Agent Agreement (“Disclosure Dissemination Agreement”) for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds with Digital
Assurance Certification, L.L.C. (“DAC”), under which the County has designated DAC as Disclosure Dissemination
Agent. The form of Disclosure Dissemination Agreement is attached as APPENDIX D.

At the issuance of the County’s 1997 Resource Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds and at the issuance of
the County’s 2004 Solid Waste Use Fee Revenue Bonds (the “1997 and 2004 Undertakings”), the County
covenanted to provide annual financial statements and certain other financial information and operating data to
Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories (the “NRMSIRs”). For fiscal years 2002
through 2006, inclusive, the County failed to provide all financial information and operating data as provided in the
1997 and 2004 Undertakings, although the County did file copies of its annual financial statements with the
NRMSIRs for each of those years in compliance with the 1997 and 2004 Undertakings. As of the date of this
Official Statement, the County has provided to the NRMSIRs the information required with respect to the 1997 and
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2004 Undertakings. The County has remained current with all continuing disclosure obligations under Rule 15¢2-12
with regard to the County’s outstanding general obligation indebtedness.

Verification of Arithmetic and Mathematical Accuracy of Escrow

The accuracy of the mathematical computations of the adequacy of the amounts of maturing principal and
interest on the Government Obligations and cash maintained in the Escrow Fund to pay, when and as due, all of the
principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded Bonds to their first redemption or final
maturity dates will be verified by Grant Thornton LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota (the “Verification Agent”). The
Government Obligations will be purchased at interest rates such that the actuarial yield thereon (computed in
accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Code and regulations applicable thereto) will not exceed the
actuarial yield on the Bonds as determined under the Code and Regulations.
Conclusion

The execution of this Official Statement and its delivery have been duly authorised by the County.

CHARLESTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Chief Financial Officer
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To the members of County Councl and the cliizens of Charleston County, South Carolina:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish at the close of each fiscal year a complete sat
of financial statements, presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and audited In
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certifled public accountants. Pursuant to
this requiremant, we heraby Issue tha Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Charleston County, South
Caralina, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

This report consists of management's representations conceming the finances of the County. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibllity for the completeness and fairness of presentation of all of the Information
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basls for making these representations, management of the County
has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, requlations and County policles, and safeguards the County's assets. It is designed to compile sufficient reliable
Information for the preparation of the County financial statements In conformity with GAAP. Bacause the cost of
internal controls should not outwelgh thalr benefits, the County’'s comprehensive framework of Internal controls has
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
materlal misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financtal report is
complate and accurate In all material respects, and presents falrly the financlal position and results of operations of the
varlous funds and component units of the County.

Charleston County's financlal statements have been audited by Scott and Company LLP, a firm of licensed certified
publlc accountants. The goal of the Independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the County for the flscal year ended June 30, 2011, are free of materlal misstatement. The Independent
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the flnanclal
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financlal statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audlt, that there was
a reasonable basis for rendering an unquallfled opinion that Charleston County’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report Is presented
as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The Independent audit of the financlal statements of Charleston County was part of a broader, federally mandated
"Single Audit” that is designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencles. The standards governing Single
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial
statements, but also on the audited governments Internal conirols and compllance with legal requirements, with
speclal emphasis on Internal controls and legal requirements Involving the adminlstration of federal awards. These
reports are available in Charleston County's separately issued Single Audlt Report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative Introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financlal statements In the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This Letter of Transmittal is
designed to complement, and should be read in conjunction with MD&A. Charleston County’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The County of Charleston was established by the state of South Carolina on April 9, 1948, under the provislons of Act
681 of 1942. The County operates under a Council-Administrator form of government. Policy-making and legislative
authority is vested in & governing council consisting of nine Council members. The Council is elected to single member
districts on a partisan basls.

Charleston County Councll is responsible for, among other duties, passing ordinances and policies, approving the
budget, appointing committee members, and hiring the County's Administrator, Internal Audltor, and Attorey. The
Administrator Is responsible for enforcing the policles and ordinances of the governing councll, overseeling the day-to-
day operations of the government services and its approximately 2,300 employees, and for appointing the heads of the
varlous County depariments.

Charleston County provides a broad range of services that include:

e Public safety - countywlde law enforcement (Sherlffs Office), detentlon faclliies, emergency
preparedness plans to Include activation of the County's Emergency Operations Center in an
event of a disaster, as well as fire protection in the Awendaw Consolidated Fire District, the East
Cooper Fire District, the West St. Andrew’s Fire District, and the Northern Charleston County Fire
District

o  Veterans' assistance

o  Health-related assistance - Emergency Medical Services (EMS), alcohol and other drug abuse
services, indigent health care, and socieal sarvices

¢  Voter registration

e  Street and dralnage maintenance

«  Waste disposal and recydling

+  Planning and zoning administration

¢ Criminal, civil, probate, and family court administration

o  Public defender assistance

o Properly assessments, tax billing, collection, and dispersal to appropriate entities/municipalities

e  Mosquito control
Blended component units, although legally separate entitles, are, in substance, part of the primary government's
operations and are Included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the Charleston Public Facllities
Corporation has been shown In the government-wide statemenis in both the governmental and business-type
actlvities, as appropriate. It is also shown in the fund financial statements, in the debt service and capital project
governmental funds, and in the parking garages and other enterprise funds. The Charleston Development Corporation
has been shown In the government-wide statements In the governmental activities, and in the fund financial
statements In other governmental funds.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the Statement of Net Assets and in the

Statement of Activitles In order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government, and to
differentlate thelr financlal position and resulis of operations from those of the primary government.



The following entities are being reported as discretely presented component units:
e Charleston County Library (CCL)
e Charleston County Park and Racreation Commisslon (CCPRC)
e Cooper River Park and Playground Commission (CRPPC)
e James Island Public Service District (JIPSD)
e North Charleston District (NCD)
e St Andrew’s Parish Parks and Playground Commission (SAPPPC)
e St. John's Fire District (SJFD)
e St Paul's Flre District (SPFD)
e Charleston County Volunteer Rescue Squad (CCVRS)

Additional information on these nine legally separate entities can be found In Note L.B. In the Notes to Financlal
Statements starting on page 64.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Charleston County's financial planning and control. All agencles of the
County are required to submit requests for appropriation to the County's Budget Office by February 1 each year. The
County Administrator presents the proposed budget to County Councll for review during May. Councll Is required to
hold public hearing(s) on the proposed budget, and to adopt a final budget each year no later than June 30, which is
the close of Charleston County's fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public
safety), and department (e.g., Sheriff's Office).

The legal level of budgetary control [s determined by County Council at the individual fund level. Expenditures by
department, sub-organizational level, and major category (personnel, non-personnel, and capital outlay) are further
defined in the budget document. The County Administrator has the authority to make transfers between major
expenditure categories within departments and between depariments within the same fund. The Administrator has
further delegated to the Deputy County Adminlistrator and three Assistant Administrators the authority to transfer
between departments under their authority. County Council may effect changes in fund totals through amendment to
the budget ordinance directive or the County Administrator has the authority to change fund totals, with the exception
of the General Fund, If avallable sources (revenues, transfer In, and fund balance) differ from the budget

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison Is presented on pages 47-49 as
part of the Baslc Financlal Statements for the governmental funds. For governmental funds, other than the general
fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison Is presented In the nonmajor govemmental fund subsection
of this report, which begina on page 145.



LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Charleston’s Economy st a Glance. Charleston County’s economic base Is diversified and growing. The Charleston-
North Charleston Metropolitan Statistical Area ranked 11th in the Milken Inetitute’s “Best-Performing Citles 2011,” up
from 18th [ast year and from 30th In 2008. The economy has gone through a significant shift in the past two decades
from a military dependent sconomy to a more diversified economy that Is stimulated by six engines of growth:

e The Port of Charleston, fueling the manufacturing and supply chain sectors in Chareston, statewkde, and
around the nation.

e The military, with significant Air Force, Navy, Army, and Coast Guard facilities in Charleston.
e The tourism industry, with a year round tourist season.

e The medical industry, focused around the Medical University of South Carolina (MUSC), the State’s teaching
hospital.

e Manufacturing and service companies, where recruitment activity has grown with the focus on a tri-county
collaborative industry recruitment program.

s Higher education, with 26 colleges and universities offering a range of two-year, bachelor's, master's and
doctorial degree programs.

Recent Economic Indicators. General economigc indicators for 2010 were reported by the Charleston Metro Chamber
Economic Outiook Board in March of 2011. Highlights are as follows:

Population - The Charleston metro area population Increased by over 8 percent, 506,875 to 549,033 persons, from
1890 to 2000. According to the U.S. Census Bureau's 2010 Census, the population in the melro area is 664,607,
meaning that the percentage growth from 2000 to 2010 has been just over 21 percent. The percentage growth is
significant as it surpasses the State of South Carolina's growth (15.3 percent) and the Unlted State’s growth (9.7
percent) during the same period.

Labor Force & Employment - Since the Naval Base closed in 1985, the civilian labor force in the Charleston region has
grown by 31 percent, from 245,840 to 322,107 persons as of 2010. As of June 2011, the Charleston region Is
experiencing 9.8 percent unemployment, compared to the state of South Carolina at 11.2 percent.

Housing - A total of 9,808 homes were sold in the Charleston region in 2010, which was an increase of 12.7 percent
from the previous year. The forecast, by the Charleston Metro Chamber of Commaerce's Center for Business
Research, Is for sales to Increase by an additional one percent In 2011.

Retail Sales - Total retail sales for the Charleston area rebounded in 2010 with & 12.9 percent increase over the
previous year, totaling $18.38 billion with over $12.7 billion of that total being spent in Charleston County.

Visitor Industry - The Charleston reglon attracted over 4.22 million visitors In 2010, generating an economic impact of
$3.03 blilion. Hotel occupancy rates were 69 percent for the year, and the average dally rate for lodging was $115 per
night. Attendance rates at area atfractions increased by 2.6 percent during 2010. The impact of addilional cruise
passengers fo the Charleston area contributed to the increase. The industry Is expected to continue to strangthen over
the next few years. The arrval of low-cost carrler Southwest Alrlines Is expecied to boost both lelsure travel as well as
conventlon visitatlon. Kilawah Island will also be host to the 2012 PGA Champlonship golf toumament in August 2012,
which is expected to have a significant impact on the tourism industry in the Charleston ragion.



Port Activity - The Port of Charleston is consistently recognized as one of the nation's most efficient and productive
poris. In 2010, the Port of Charleston handled 1.38 million TEUs (twenty foot equivalent cargo contalners), which was
an Increase of 16 percent from the previous year. Break-bulk cargo totaled 847,811 tons. Port actlvity Is expected to
rise over the next decade, largely due to the new contalner terminal currenfly under construction on the former Navy
base. The new 280-acre terminal i8 expected to open in 2014 and, at build out, will increase Charleston's total
container capacity by 50 percent. In addition, a new 25-acre yard opened in late 2008 at the Wando Welch Terminal,
representing a 10 percent capaclty Increase for the terminal.

Airport Activily - Total passenger activity at the Charleston International Airport decreased by 7 percent in 2010 with
the loss of AirTran Airlines from the market. By comparison, passenger activity also declined 7 parcent in Savannah.
However, passenger activity for 2011 has already significantly Increased with the addltion of low cost carrier Southwest
Airlines in March 2011. Passenger activity Is up 21 percent from January to June of 2011 when compared fo the same
fime period In 2010. The addition of Southwest Is expected to have an annual economic impact of $139 million in
Charleston and bring an additional 200,000 annual passengers.

BRIEF SECTOR PROFILES

The Port. The Port of Charleston is one of the buslest contaner ports of the U.S. East and Gulf
Coasts and is also one of the nation's most productive and efficlent ports. Port volume Is
expected to increase in the coming years due to the new threa-berth, 280-acre marine terminal
under consfruction at the former Charleston Naval Base. The State Poris Authority (SPA) fiscal
year 2011 caphal Improvement program calls for $77 million in development and enhancements
of new and existing facilities. In addition, the SPA plans to Invest nearly $1.3 bllllon on caplial ||
projects over the next decade. .

The Charleston customs dlstrict ranks as the natlon’s eighth largest in dollar value of Internatlonal
shipments, with the Port of Charleston's cargo valued at over $50 bllllon In 2010. Top
commodities that pass through Charleston docks include consumer goods, agricultural products,
vehicles, machinery, chemicals and metals. Charleston's five port facilities, located close to the
open ocean for fast turnarounds, consist of two contalner ports, two break-bulk porls, and one
contalner and break-bulk port.

The SPA, which operates the Port of Charleston, employs approximately 470 people. Locally, the Port of Charleston ks
directly and Indirectly responsible for 26,000 jobs, which provides $1.2 billion in labor income, and $4.3 blllion In total
output. Statewlde, Intemnational trade through the SPA's facilities provides 280,600 jobs paying $11.8 blllion In wages
to South Carolinians. In all, rade pumps nearly $45 billion into the state economy and generates $1.5 billion in state
and local taxes.

The Military. The military has a large annual economic Impact In the Charleston reglon. There are 22,000 active-duty,
reserve personnel, civilians, and civiian contractors employed in the reglon by the area’s defanse facllitles. In fotal, the
military provides an annual economic Impact on the Charleston raglon estimated at $4.67 bllllon. This figure does not
include the private sector contractors in Charleston who do work on behalf of the miitary.

Charleston Alr Force Base and the Charleston Naval Weapons Statlon recently merged to create Joint Base
Charleston. They are now the region’s largest single employer wih 20,172 employeas. The comblned payroll of Joint
Base Charleston has an economic |mpact of $4.38 billion to the Charleston reglon annually. The Air Force portion of
Joint Base Charleston is home to the 437" Airlift along with 6,150 (airbase) employees and over 50 C-17 alrcraft. The
C-17s are currently serving a vital supply role to the military in both Afghanistan and Iraq.



The Space and Naval Warfare Systems Center Atlantic (SPAWAR) Is a high technology, engineering facility that
designs, bullds, tests, flelds, and supporis the Navy as well as other federal customers. SPAWAR Afiantic Is
responsible for integrating the Mine Resistant Ambush Protected (MRAP) vehicles that are used to protect the war
fighters on the ground in Iraq and Afghanistan. The facility employs over 3,100 Clvil Service employees with an
average salary of $75,678 and supports an estimated 80 local defense contractors operating In the region, which
employ 12,000 contractor employess. SPAWAR's economic Impact on South Carolina’s economy is estimated at $2.6
billion.

Other facilities Include the Nuclear Power Training Command and Nuclear Power Tralning Unlt, which are both state-
of-the-art nuclear power schools that graduate over 3,000 students each year. The Army’'s Combat Equipment Group
Afloat and Surface Deployment Diatribuion Command 841%* Transportation Battalion both transport equipment to
support the war efforts. The U.S. Coast Guard and Federal Law Enforcement Training Canter also operate facilities In
the region, and trains more than 12,000 students annually.

Visitor Industry. Tourlsm has long been an sconomic mainstay in one of America's most photogenic and historic
cltles. In the 1890's this sector soared, recording visitation and earnings once thought Impossible. Charleston recorded
4.22 mllilon visitors in 2010, providing an economic impact of $3.03 bilion to the local economy. The hospitality
indusiry directly employs 35,200 people in Charleston County, accounting for 12.4 percent of the workforce. When
direct and Indirect employment from the hospltallty industry Is combined, the total number employed balloons to over
50,000.

Charleston hoteliers have widely expanded the regional room inventory and range of choices in the past decade.
Charleston County's Inventory of hotel rooms stood at 14,784 at the end of 2010, with a 69 parcent occupancy rate
and an average dally rate of $115 per night.

The past few years have seen the emergence of a new facet to Charleston's tourism market — the cruise ship industry.
Both Carnival Crulse Lines and Celebrity Crulse Lines have chosen to make Charlesion a new departure and arrival
point. In addition, many other crulse lines (Including Holland America Cruises, Oceania Crulses, Princess Crulses,
Costa Crulses, P & O Cruises, Aida Cruises, Regent Seven Seas Cruises, and Crystal Cruises) bring their ships to
Charleston as a port of call. The SPA is in the process of upgrading its passenger terminal to more effectively meet
new security requirements, as well as o better serve the growing number of crulse customers. The cruise business
has an estimated $37 mllllon annual Impact on the Charleston market.

Restaurants in Charleaton multiply and flourish, nourished by a constant flow of aspiring and accomplished chefs
coupled with an Increasingly affluent Charleston visitor. The New York Times, Southern Living, Bon Appélit, and Wine
Spectator have all pralsed area restaurants where seefood, nouvelle, and southern cooking predominate in the over
100 restaurants In downtown Charleston alone. The average Charleston visltor Is wall acquainted with these wonderful
restaurants, as they spent an average of $183 per day Iin 2010 on food, accommodations, local attractions, shopping,
and other entertainment.

The Medical Industry. The reglon's medical Industry Is anchored by the State's teaching hospital, the Medical
University of South Carolina (MUSC), and accounts for aver 10 percent of the area's total amployment. The majority of
the employment currently exists In five private reglonal hospitals, MUSC, and the Ralph H. Johnsorn VA Medical
Center, along with the hundreds of general practitioners, dentists, and medical specialists in the region.

The center of energy In the reglon’s medical arena s MUSC. It s made up of six collegas which give students a variety
of options for their focus of study. Enroliment in the six colleges collectively stands at 2,580, with over 1,300 faculty
members being emplayed. In 2010, MUSC received over $238 million in research funding.

MUSC established one of the first Infirmaries spechfically for teaching purposes In 1834, which Is now known as the
MUSC Medical Center. Among the programs that have earned distinguished reputations at the MUSC gre:
neuroscience, substance abuse, cardiovascular medicine, drug sciences, prenatal medicine, ophthalmology, hearing
loss, genetics, rheumatology, and cancer care.



Several of the private hospitals are curently in a growth mode. Roper St. Francls Heslithcare recently completed
308,000 square-foot, $164 million campus in Mt. Pleasant which Includes a medical office bullding (90,000 square
feet, $21 mllllon) and a leading-edge hospltal (218,000 square feet - $143 million). The 85-bed full-service hospital
opened in late 2010. The hospital includes 24-hour emergency care, women's services, inpatient and outpatient
surgery, and intensive and critical care units. East Cooper Regional Medical Center also opened a new hospital on
Aprl 1, 2010, in Mt. Pleasant to replace its existing facility. The new 250,000 square-foot hospltal cost $160 milllion to
build, and is equipped with 140 beds. Along with the addltlonal bed space, the new hospltal brings 200 more jobs In
addition {o the over 600 that East Cooper currently provides.

Manufacturing and Service Companies. In 2010, Charleston County continued Its success In the recrultment of new
jobs and capital investment. Over $152.5 million In capital investment and 744 jobs were announced. These numbers
put Charleston County In the top ten In the state In both jobs creation and capltal Investment for the year. These
results pushed Charleston County aver two previous high watermarks, as its cumulative capital investment reachad $4
billion and the creation of new jobs reached 22,000.

Pro-business government attitudes permeats through the State of South Carolina and the Charleston reglon, where
state commerce department offlclals work hand-n-hand with economic developers from the Charleston Reglonal
Development Alliance, Charleston County, and its three largest municipalities: City of Charleston, City of North
Charleston, and Town of Mount Pleasant. This team searches out national and International business prospects,
facllitating their relocatlons and expansions. State and local financlal Incentives are strategically utllized to leverage
private sector relocatlon and expanslon declslons.

in 2010, the Charleston Regional Development Alliance hired targeted economic development strategy developers
Avalanche Consulting parinered with renowned site selection consultants McCallum Sweeney to develop a new
economic development strategy for the reglon. The study, Opportunity Next, Identifled four vertical Industry targets for
the Charleston region:

-Aerospace

-Blomedical

-Advanced Security & IT
-Wind Energy

Acrospace - The date of October 28, 2009, Is now forever etched In
Charleston County and South Carolina history books as tha day that The
Boeing Company announced that it had chosen North Charleston as the
location for a second final assembly site for the 787 Dreamliner program.
Boeing’s selection of Charleston was the largest economic development §
announcement In South Carolina history, featuring 2 commitment to create
3,800 direct jobs and make a minimum $750 milion capital investment. A
recent economic impact study valued Boeing's future economic impact to South Carolina’s economy at $6.1 blllion
each year, with an addltional $3 blllon fo state tax revenues over the next 30 years. The Impact on the Charleston
reglon speclfically accounts for $5.9 blllion of the total, Including more than 15,000 direct, Indirect, and Induced Jobs
that will be created as a result of Boeing's presence.

The Final Assembly Bullding had its official ribbon cutting on June 10, 2011. The first alrcraft Is axpected o be
delivered from the Charleston facllity In the first quarter of 2012. The nearly one milllon square-foot assembly building
will be accompanied by a visitor's center, a tail fin and rudder facility, an enlarged employee training center, and a
cutting-edge delivery center where aircraft customers will be entertained, delivery ceremonies held, and where the
finished airliners will be presented.



This latter function deserves further mention, because the 787 Delivery Center will present unprecedented cultural and
economic opportunities for the Charleston area. Heads of state, aircraft executives, and many guests comprising the
international delegations will journey to Charleston to be entertalned and to take part in week-long ceremonles marking
the delivery of their aircraft fleets. Extensive hospitality industry impacts are anticipated, along with vast opportunities
for local sarvice providers and very significant consumerism by the international visitors.

Biomedical — Construction at MUSC Is ongolng, and they are expected to complete the construction of both the Drug
Discovery Buiding and the Bioengineering Building in late 2011. The Drug Discovery Bullding Is 114,000 square feet,
and will house leading edge laboratory space as well as bio-tech start up space. The South Carolina Research
Authority MUSC Innovation Center continues to be a wonderful asset for the biomedical community. The Center is
equipped with 11 high-tech labs for use by its entrepreneurial tenants. This facliity ks a critical plece of infrastructure in
the commercialization of pharmaceutical discoveries emanating from the Medical Universlty of South Carolina.

Advanced Security & IT - Information technology companles continued to expand In Charleston during 2011, anchored
by nationally known companies servicing research and development contracts from the U.S. Navy's (SPAWAR)
Center Atlantic. SPAWAR Systems Center Aflantic added a new $9.5 mllllon Consolidated Engineering Laboratory in
2011 that will focus on service oriented architecture, server virlualization, cloud computing models, cyber securlty,
virtual storage and other state-of-the-art Innovations.

Wind Energy — Wind Energy represents a real growth opportunity for the Charleston reglon. The sector Is anchored
locally by the Clemson University Restoration Institute’s drive train test facility. The facility is expected to be completed
In 2012. The project is expected to cost $98 million, of which $45 milllon will be flnanced by a US Department of
Energy grant. The sector also received a boost in April 2011 when TAM Energy, an afflliate of Titan Aflas
Manufacturing, announced it was bringing 75-100 jobs to Charleston that will be responsible for assembling wind
turbines for the production of supplamental energy.

Higher Education. There are 26 colleges and universities offering a range of two-year, bachelor's, master's, and
doctoral degree programs In Charleston. The flve largest are: Trident Technical College, with 14,800 students; Collage
of Charleston, with 11,800 students; Charleston Southern University, with 3,200 students; The Citadel, with 3,300
students; and Medical Universlty of South Carolina with 2,500 students.

WHY CHARLESTON?

Companles relocating to Charleston, as well as enfrepreneurs, who start businesses in the area, typlcally give two
primary reasons for why they chose to do business here: the renowned quallty of life and the enviable competitive
posture.

Quality of Life. Key among the region’s advantages Is Its geographic locetion, s natural beauty, moderate climate,
and a quallty of Iife which has been deliberately and carefully protected.

Charleston's history spans over 300 years and is widely acknowledged as among the world's
leaders In the area of historic preservation. The stunning, well-preserved eighteenth and
nineteenth century homes and commerclal bulldings in downtown Charleston are a
testament to this passion. Famlllar scenes In historic downtown Charleston are sightseeing
pedestrians and tourists in horse-drawn carriages. Far from receiving a staid museum-like
experlence, the visitor to Charleston Is struck by the busy streets of a vibrant city which are
packed with tourlsts and Iocals well Into the night.

Charleston is a medium-sized city with big-city arts offerings. The worldrenowned Spoleto
Festival USA Is an annual two-week celebration of opera, jazz, dance, and visual arts that
aitracts legendary performers to the clty. Charleston has an active arts community, with over

ey, 70 arts and cultural organizations, Including a first-class symphony, museums, a prollferation
eSSl of art galleries, and local stage and theater groups.
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Sports are an important part of the Charleston soclal landscape In a town where the median age is 36. Sporting events
contribute over $50 milllon annually to the regional economy and employ nearly 1,200 people. Charleston hosts
several professional teams. The Charleston RiverDogs Baseball team is a Class A affiliate of the New York Yankees,
the Charleston Battery Soccer feam is part of the USL Firat Division, and the South Carolina Stingrays Hockey team is
a member of the ECHL Southem Dlivision, and an affillate of the NHL Washington Capltals. Southern Conference and
Big South Conference collegiate sports round out the mix, with the teams of The Cltadel, College of Charleston, and
Charleston Southern University taking center stage.

Charleston also plays host to many high-proflle sporting events throughout the year. The annual Famlly Circle Cup
Tennls Tournament, a Women's Tennis Assoclation Tler 1 event, Is played at the Family Circle Tennls Center
(capacity 10,200) on Daniel Island. The 2011 tournament was atiended by 84,241 people with a $25 milllon economic
impact. The Cooper River Bridge Run 1OK hosted 34,680 runners in April 2011. Kiawah Island’s world-class Ocean
Course has been selected to host the 94™ Annual PGA Champilonship In 2012,

Competitive Poature. Charleston has won numerous accolades in recent years from esteemed business and travel
publications. Charleston was named one of the Top Ten Placaes to visit before you die by Andrew Harper. Forbes
named Charleston one of the Best Places for Business & Careers in their July 2011 issue. The Miken Institute ranksd
Charleston among the nation's Best Performing Cities in October 2010. Travel + Leisure Magazine named Charleston
one of America's Favorite Cldes In November 2010.

The Charleston region offers a sizeable real estate portfollo for a mid-slzed market, with over 9.2 mllllon square feet In
upscale executive buildings and offices. The 19.6 million square feet of retail space in the region is distributed between
regional malls, strip centers, and the downtown Charleston central business district. Since 2000, over 3.5 million
square feet of offlce space has been added to the Charleston reglon's Inventory. Vacancy rates are currently at 15.4
percent. The average lease rate for Class A office space Is $23.13 per square-foot In the region.

Over 20 Industrial parks are strategically located throughout the Charleston region. As of the end of 2010, the
Charleston reglon had over 42.8 million square feet of warehouse and flex space. Vacancy stands at 13.5 percent and
average lease rates are $4.11 per square-foot for warehouse space, and $6.60 per square-foot for flex space.

The Chareston International Alrport, no more than a thirty-minute ride from anywivere in the region, has experienced
great growth In racent years. The mix of passengers has shifted away from Its tourlst base toward one increasingly
characterlzad by business travelers. Dally non-etop service Is avallable to 15 cldes In the U.S. Including Atlanta,
Charlotte, Chicago, Houston, New York, Philadelphia, and Washington D.C.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

Charleston County's initlatives In flscal year 2011 focused on anhancing the value of services provided to our cltiizens,
partnering with municipal governments, encouraging economic development, and continulng with an extensive
facilities improvement and replacement program.

County Council Meetings Televised: To better serve the public, Charleston County Councll began televising Its
committee and regular meetings, as well as streaming live on the Intemet through the County's webslte. County
Council maintains a DVD collection of past meetings for anyone who does not have a computer. In addition, for real-
time emergency information, the public can follow “ChasCountyGov" on Twitter or access the County's Emergency
Management Department on Facebook

9-1-1 Center: Moving towards full consolidation, four more dispatch operations were
added into the County’'s Consolidated 911 Center. New efficiencies obtained from j== »- J

the consolldation afforts allow a call taker to remain on the line with the caller, gather Reav
more Information, and provide addiional safety at the scene and/or medical ; :

dispatcher. The ability for dispsichers to falk directly to each other as they are

handling emergency calls requiring mulfi-jurisdictional response has already proven - '
to reduce time spent in getling the appropriate responders.
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Library Services: To promote pre-iteracy and encourage famllies to come fo the library, Charleston County Public
Library created a new PLAY (Public Librarles and You) initlative with programs held in the evenings and on Saturdays
so working familles would have the opportunity to visit the llbrary together. Each month, more than 100 PLAY
programs were held far chlldren at the library’s 16 branch locatlons.

The library increased its program and events, averaging more than 500 programs every month. Programs Included:
computer classes, jazz, bluea and opera music, puppet shows, book discussions, business counseling, crafts and
gaming, movles, story times, crafts, resume and cover letter workshops, legal asslstance presentations, and much
more. Also, WIFI Is avallable at all 16 branches.

Charleston County Counci authorized the employment of up to 75 students for a Summer Youth Work Program.
The goal was for students to obtain summaer employment and explore the various career opportunities that exist within
County departments whlle galning critical workforcs skills. All students were screened In advance, providing them with
interview training skllls, professional behavlor training, and an orientation.

The Elections & Voter Registration Office received federal grant funds from the Help America Vote Act enabling the
use of the Curbside Ballot Call Bell System. The system improved the voting process for Individuals with disabilities
who required curbside voting and reduced the walt time for assistance to voters. Also, improved wheelchair-marked
parking spaces, entrance ramps, and entrance ralls were offered at more precinct locations.

The Emergency Medical Services Department was named EMS magazine's National Pald EMS Service of the Year.
This honor is given to one pajd EMS system in the United States each year. The department was chosen based on
varlous criteria that included Its Innovation In pre-hospital care, program upgrades, the high certification level of Its
personnel, worker safety and well-belng, education and tralning program, Involvement In the medical community,
ilinese and injury prevention project, and public education Initlatives. Charleston County EMS was established by
County Councll In 1973 as the first Countywide EMS service in the State of South Carolina. It serves every municipality
in the County.

Through the efforts of the Economic Development Department, Charleston County
celebrated the addition of Southwest Airlines to Charleston International Alrport.
Southwest is the nation's largest and most profitable low-fare carrier. The airline’s arrival
is credited with helping lower fares on other carrlers and encouraging more passengers
to fly through Charleston. Passenger activity Increased 21 percent from January-June
2011 compared to January-June 2010.

Transportation Solutions:

The Transportation Sales Tax's weekly local program, Charleston
Charlegton County County RoadWise, was launched to discuss the goals, challenges, and

RD ADMi I S E successes of the Transportation Sales Tax Program. Viewers are
taken to tha various project sites, see the progress taking place, and
hear from the people responsible for construction. Guests with varied

A Program of Charleston County Government o ¢ expartize are Intarviewad each week.

The Charleston County RoadWise Program was extremely busy during FY 2011 with the commancement/completion
of several major bonded improvement projects throughout the County.

The Palmetto Commerce Parkway, nearly six miles In length, Is Intended to relleve congestion along Dorchester
Road and 1-26. It will also serve as a direct route for workers traveling to facilities in the Palmetto Commerce Business
Park. The Parkway Is the first major bonded project that Is a brand new road. It will have a tremendous impact on
traffic and willl be the third way to get between Ashley Phosphate Road and Ladson Road.
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The Johnnie Dodds Boulevard Project will Inprove approximatsly threa mlles of US 17 from just north of the Arthur
J. Ravenel, Jr. Bridge to the south side of the I-528 inferchange, including associated frontage roads and slde streets.
The project also Includes the design and construction of a bridge on Bowman Road over Shem Creek, including all
required roadway and dralnage Improvements. The bridge will be approximately 90 feet long and 80 feet wide, and will
include sidewalks on both sides.

Other Projects Improving Transportation: Many addltional road improvements were Implemented by Charleston
County Government through annual funding allocated by Charleston County Counci to smaller projects throughout the
community. These projects included roads and streets which have been resurfaced; drainage improvement projects;
Intersection improvements projects; and local paving projects. Also completed during the year were the Bee Street and
Courtenay Drive Improvements, as well as the Glenn McConnel Parkway/|-526 Improvements.

Detention Center: Through the receipt of federal grant funds, Charleston County completed the installation of solar
panels at the Detention Center to save energy costs. Power generated by the solar power system is fed directly into
the bullding power system eliminating the need for an energy storage system. This further reducas the effect on the
environment as batterles require replacement and disposal. The system was I[nstalled with an estimated savings of
$888,372 over the 30 year life of the solar panels. In the brief time the solar panels have been Installed, the amount of
carbon dioxide going into the atmosphere has been reduced by 17,710 pounds, which is equlivalent to what 1,226
average frees remove from the atmosaphere each year. The average production by the solar panel system per day is
enough to run six average slzed houses per day.

Land Use: Charleston County Government was awarded the 2010 Oufstanding Planning Award for Large
Jurisdictions by the South Carolina Chapter of the American Planning Assoclation. The award was given to the County
for its “Comprohensive Plan Updale - Guiding the Future for a Lasting Lowcouniry.” Adopted by Charleston County
Councll In November 2008, the 10-year update of the Comprehensive Plan is the future vision for preservation and
development in Charleston County. The Plan established strategies for the County to pursue In order to maintain and
enhance its high quality and unique landscapes with a focus on strategies that county government can achleve. The
Plan includes achievable strategies and innovativa Implementation toole to preserve rural areas, link fiscal policles to
land use and transportation planning, formalize inter-jurisdictional coordination, and promote sustainable development.

Urban/Rural Parikdand and Rural Greenspace:

During flscal year 2011, County Council approved four rural applicatlons that were recommended by the Greenbelt
Bank Board. These projects totaled $3.622 million in rural funding to protect 469 acres. Of the rurel funds awarded,
$2.87 million was used to purchase 178 acres for public use. The rural projects were located in the Town of Meggett,
the Wiltown Community, and Edisto Island.

Addltionally, the Urban Grants Review Committee and the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission
{CCPRC) recommended County Council approve four urban projects located in the municipalities of North Charleston,
Mt. Pleasant and Kiawah Island. Councll approved all projects which totaled $6.16 million to purchase 188 acres for
public, urban parkland.

Environmental Management:

In fiscal year 2009, County Counci established several goals for the Environmental Management Department,
including closing the waste-to-energy incinerator and increasing county-wide recycling to 40 percent The County
closed the incinerator In January 2010, and has made advances toward reaching the 40 percent recycling goal by
expanding the recycling program to accept all paper and plastics. Staff and consultants continue to analyze the best
approach, and the cast of improving the overall Environment Management Program.

The Environmental Management Department received the 2011 Oufstanding Composting Program Award for
developing and initiating a plan to maximize productivity, expand the operations and materials, and enhance the end
product quality of the compost program. This resulted In doubling the County's recycling rate In lass than a year.
Criteria for the award selection included measurable waste reduction, an education component, full compllance with all
applicable federal, state, and local regulators and documented end-use of compost accompanied by laboratory
analysls of components.
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Also, a new effort to Increase curbside participation In recycling through a Single-
Stream Recycling Residential Pifot program was announced. Approximately 4,600
homes are participating in the pilot program throughout selectad neighborhoods with
both low and high recycling particlpation rates. The process, known as single-stream
recycling, commingles paper products with containers of plastics, glass, and steel In a
roll-cart. The goal is to encourage non-recyclers to participate in the curbside program
and for current participants to recycle even more.

In conjunction with the Town of Mount Pleasant, 70 recycling bins were located at ten .3

recreational facllties. The department has also partnered with rural fire stations o off "8
more drop-off locations for recyclable materials. With the additional locations, rural
residents can drop off their recycling at locations along major routes without having to
drive to one of the elght regular county convenlence centers.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Cash Management. Cash that was temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates of
deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, repurchase agreements, or interest-bearing checking accounts. The average
vield on Investments was less than 1 percent for the year ending June 30, 2011. Charleston County’s Investment policy
Is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yleld on lts portfollo. The County's bank
balances were approximately $196,671,505 at June 30, 2011, and all were collateralized or covered by insurance.
More detail on the County's deposits and investments is found in Note Ill. A. of the Notes to Financlal Statements
starting on page 78.

Risk Management. The County has a limitad risk management program for vehicle comprehensive and collislon. As
part of this plan, the County has a mandatory defenslve drlving training class for new employees operating County
vehicles, and a refresher defensive driving training class for those County drivers who have experienced a chargeable
accident. The County insures all licensed vehicles for collislon and comprahensive, Including a $1,000 deductible per
vehicle provided by the State of South Carolina Insuranca Reserve Fund. The County has also acquired commercial
insurance on heavy equipment on those items exceeding $2,500. All heavy equipment claims have a 2 percent of
value deductible. The County also has a $1,000 deductible per location coverage for fire and extended coverage with
the State of South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund.

During flscal year 1991, the County Insured the risk of Job-related Injury or lliness to its employees through the South
Carolina Association of Countles’ (SCAC) Workers’ Compensation Trust. Effective July 1, 1985, the County converted
to a large deductible plan with the SCAC to fund risks assoclated with Workers' Compensation clalms. More
Information on the County’s risk management plan can be found In Note IV.A. of the Notes to Financlal Statements
starting on page 107.

Penslon and Other Post Employment Beneflits. Charleston County participates in the State of South Carolina
Retirement System. All regular County employees are members of either the South Carolina Retirement System or the
South Carolina Police Officer's Refirement System. Mora Information on these pension plans are provided in Note IV.I.
of the Notes to Financlal Statements starting on page 120 of this report.

The County also provides post-employment health, life and dental care benefits (as per the requirements of a local
ordinance) for certaln retirees and thelr dependents. More Information on the post-employment benefits Is shown In
Note IV.G. of the Notes to Financlal Stetements starting on page 117.

Awards and Acknowledgements. The Government Finance Officers Assoclation of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded lts Cartificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 23™ consacutive year to
Charleston County for its fiscal year 2010 Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report. The Cerdlficate of Achlevement Is
the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financlal reporting given to governments that
demonstrate a constructive “spirit of full disclosure” to communicate clearly the County’s financial story.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valld for a period of one year only. We believe that Charleston County’s current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Charleston County also recelved Its 22™ consecutive Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for Its flscal year 2011
budget from GFOA. According to the GFOA, the award reflects the commitment of Charleston County Govermment
and Its staff to meeting the highest principles of governmental budgeting. The award was given based not only on how
well the County budgets its funds, but also on how well it communicates to the public how the money is spent.

The timely preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report was made possible by the dedicated servica of
the entire staff of the Charleston County's Finance Department. Special thanks go to the team headed by Carla Ritter,
who with the assistance of Summer Gillesple, Chrisanne Porter, and Marcus White of the Finance Department
produced the Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report, and coordinated the audit with the external auditors.
Substantial contributions were also made by several financlal staffs throughout the County: Mack Glle, and Catherine
Ksenzak from the Budget Office; Andrew Smith and Julie Riley-Hollar from the Treasurer's Office; Lisa Murray from
the Department of Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Services, Jean Sullivan from Grants Administration; Jackie
Proveaux from the Public Works Department; and Ashley Keene of the Economic Development Office. Much
appreciation also goes to Dawn Murray of the Finance Department who provided administrative support for the
financial notes and the Management's Discussion and Analysis, as well as support to the external auditors. Substantial
assistance also came from the staff members of the County Administrator and Assistant County Administrator for
Finance. Thank yous are also extended to the staff of Scott and Company LLP, the external auditors, for their efforts in
assisting the County produce thls Comprshensive Annual Flnancial Raport.

Alﬂ n O'Neal (-(’:) /([a_ﬁ\

County Administrator

BT e —

Kéith Bustraan
Assistant County Administrator for Finance

[T <) o

Corine Altenhein
Charleston County Finance Director
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to

County of Charleston
South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

JQ\A_CM

y Presu:lent

Executive Director
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Teddie E. Pryor

J. Elliott Summey
Herb Sass

Henry D. Schweers
Henry E. Darby

A. Victor Rawl
Collsen T. Condon
Anna B. Johnson
Joseph K. Qualey

Peggy Moseley

Julle J. Armstrong
Rae Wooten

Irvin G. Condon
Charlle Lybrand
James A. Cannon, Jr.
Scarlett A. Wilson
Andrew Smith

Allen O'Neal

Keith D. Bustraan

Walter L. Smalls

Jennifer Miller

W. Kurt Taylor

Corine Altenhein

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
MEMBERS OF COUNTY COUNCIL

Number of Term
Years Explration
In Office Date
64 12/31/2014 Chairman, District 5
2'%4 12/31/2012 Vice Chalrman, District 3
3 mos. 12/31/2014 District 1
4% 12/31/2014 District 2
8% 12/31/2012 District 4
24 12/31/2012 District 6
6 12/31/2012 District 7
4 12/31/2014 District 8
% 12/31/2014 District9
ELECTED OFFICIALS
19 06/30/2013  Auditor
19% 12/31/2012 Clerk of Court
5 12/31/2012 Coroner
17% 12/31/2014 Probate Court
174 12/31/2014 Register Mesne Conveyance
23% 12/31/2012 Sherlff
4 12/31/2012 Solicltor
14 06/30/2013 Treasurer
OTHER OFFICIALS
Number of Years In
Years Current
With County Position
2% 2% County Administrator
Assistant Administrator for
24% 10 Finance
12 5 Assistant Adminlstrator for
General Services
Assistant Administrator for
23 4 Human and Environmental
Sarvices
20 1A Deputy County Administrator
21 4 Finance Director
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Charleston County Council
County of Charleston, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fimd information, other than the financial
statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units, and the budgetary comparison
schedule of the general fund, of the County of Charleston, South Carolina (the “County’™), as of and for
the year endsd June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financijal statements as
listed in the table of contents. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the County’s
non-major governmental, enterprise, internal service, and fiduciary funds, and the respective budgetary
comparison schedules for the special revenue funds, presented as supplementary information in the
accompanying combining financial statements and schedules, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s
menagement. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units. Those financial
statements were sudited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been fomished to us, and our
opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the component
units, is based solely on the reports of other auditors,

We conducted our audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issned by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of intermal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An eudit inclndes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the emounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, ns well as
eviluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of
other nuditors provide & reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based upon our andif and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Scott and Company LLP © 1441 Main Street, Suite 800 : 702 P!ﬂl“ﬂl Street
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS : Post Office Box 8388 i Craenville, South Carolina 29601

scottandco.com TEL (8o3)256-6021 | FAX (Bo3) 256-B346 * TEL (B64) 236-4400 | FAX (BG4) 236-4402

. Columbia, South Carolina 29202



In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of each non-major governmental, enterprise, internal service,
and fiduciary fund of the County as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the special
revenue funds, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the schedules of capital assets used in the
operation of governmental funds as well as the victim notification schedule of fines, assessments and
surcharges collected, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the portion of the basic
financial staternents from which they have been derived as of June 30, 2011.

As discussed in Note IL B. to the financial statements, the County made adjustments that resulted in
restatements of beginning net assets for two of iis discretely presented component units, to correct
certain errors made in the County’s finencial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 27,
2012, on our consideration of the County’s internal contro] over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in considering the results of our audit.

Accounting principles gemerally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certmin limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses o our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the inforration because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurence.

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical Sections is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial steternents
of the County. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

)&a‘uﬂ M P
Columbia, South Carolina
January 27, 2012



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of Charleston County, South Carolina, we offer readers of the County's flnanclal
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Charleston County for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is designed to assist
the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, providing an overview of the County's flnanclal activity
and Identifying changes In the County's financlal condition, material deviations from the flnanclal budget and
individual fund Issues or concerns. We ancourage readers to consider the information presented here In
conjunction with addlitional Information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found
on pages 2 through 14 of this report, and the County’s financial statements, which follow this section. All
amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financlal Highlights

] Charleston County reported net assets (total assets less total llablities) of $147,813 at June 30,
2011, comprised of $843,254 in total assets offset by $895,441 in total liabilities.

° The County's unrestricted net assets were ($176,751) at June 30, 2011. The negative balance
resulted from expenditures In the transportation sales tax fund. The County Issued transportation
sales tax general obligation bonds In fiscal years 2007 and 2008. The proceeds from these bonds
are used for state and municlpal road projects, and municlpal and speclal purpose disirict greenbelt
acquisitions. The assets created by these expenditures are not Charleston County assets, even
though the County is responsible for the debt used to acquire these asseis. The debt service on
these bonds Is pald from the %4 percent transportation sales tax.

° The government’s {otal net assets decreased by $43,694 during the flscal year endad June 30,
2011, with a $50,793 decrease resulting from governmental actlviies and a $7,099 increase
resulting from business-type aclivities.

° As of the close of the current fiscal year, Charleston County’'s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $224,049, which is a $68,884 decrease from the prior year.
Approximately 18 percent or $41,175 of this total amount is avallable far spending at the
government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

. At the end of the current flscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $41,175 or
approximately 26 percent of the total general fund expenditures.

° Charleston County's total assets decreased by $36,008, while total liabilities increased by $7,685.
Overview of the Financlal Statements

This discussion and analysis is infended to serve as an introduction to Charleston County’s basic financial
statements which are comprised of three sections:

1. Government-wide financial statements,
2. Fund financial statements, and
3. Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains required supplementary and other supplementary financlal Information in addition
to the basic financlal statements.
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Government-wide Financlal Statements. Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the financlal position of Charleston County and are simiar to private sector
financial statements. They include a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. These statements
appear on pages 39 through 41 of this report.

The statement of net assets shows the County's assets Iess its liabilities at June 30, 2011. The difference
between these assets and llabllitles Is reported as net assets. Changes in net assets over time may be
helpful in indicating an improving or deteriorating financial position.

The statement of activiies follows the statement of net assets and presents information showing how the
County’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. The statement presents all underlying events, which
glve rise to the change, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Some included items, such as
accounts payable or earned but unused vacation leave, will produce changes in cash In future fiscal
periods.

Both statements distingulsh between functlons of Charleston County that are principally supported by taxes
and Intergovernmental revenues (governmental actlvilles) from other functions that are Intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

Governmental activities reported In the statements Include general government, public safety, judicial,
public works, health and welfare, economic development, culture and recreation, and education. Major
business activities include environmental management (recycling and waste disposal) and parking garages.
Other business-type aclivities include the Department of Aleohol and Other Drug Abuse Services
(DAODAS), radio communications, revenue collections and a countywide E-911 communication system.

Charleston County’s government-wide flnanclal statements Include component units of the County.
Component units can be blended or discretely presented. Component units are other governmental units
over which the County (the County Council, acting as a group) can exercise influence and/or may be
obligated to provide financial subsidy and are presented as a separate column in the government-wide
statements and as combining statements of net assets and of activiies In the fund financlal statements. The
focus of the statements Is clearly on the primary government and the presentation allows the user to
address the relative relationship with the component units. For those readers Interestad In more Information
on the component units, contact information is provided in Note |. B. on pages 64 through 66 of this report.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 58 through 61 of this report.

Fund Financlal Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activiies or objectives. Like other state and local
governments, Charleston County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
flnance-related legal requirements. All funds of Charleston County governmant can be divided Into three
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds, presented on pages 43 through 49, essentially account for the
same functions as those reported under the governmental aclivities on the government-wide statement of
net assets and statement of activiles. However, this set of flnanclal statements focuses on events that
produce near-term Inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on the balance of spendable
resources avallable at the end of the fiscal year and is a narrower focus than the government-wide financlal
statements. Such information may be useful in evaluating Chareston County’s near-term financing
requirements and avalable resources.

By comparing functions between the two sets of statements for govemmental funds and governmental
activities, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes In fund balances provide a reconclliation fo facllitate this comparison.
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Govearnmantal funds individually presented in Charleston County's statements inckide four major funds: the
General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Transportation and Road Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, and
the General Obligation Bond (GOB) Capital Projects Fund. Although there are many smaller governmental
funds in Charleston County government, they have been presented in a total column termed as "Other
Governmental Funds”. Combining statements for these other governmental funds have been presented on
pages 132 through 142 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. Charleston County maintains and presents two different types of proprietary funds,
enterprise and internal service, shown on pages 50 through 55 of this report.

Enterprise funds report in greater detail the same information presented as business-type activities In the
government-wide financlal statements for Environmental Management and Parking Garages. DAODAS,
Radlo Communications, Revenue Collections and E-911 Communications are presented in one total
column termed as “Nonmajor Other Funds® but may be separately reviewed in the combining statements on
pages 158 through 163.

Internal service funds (ISF8) are an accounting mechanism to accumulate and allocate costs Internally for
Charleston County Government. The County uses intemnal service funds to account for Fleet Management,
Office Support Services, Workers' Compensation, Employee Benefits, and Telecommunications. See pages
165 through 169 of this report. ISFs have been eliminated on the statement of net assets.

Flduclary Funds. Flduclary funds are used to account for resources held for the beneflt of partles outside
the government. Flduclary funds are not reflected In the government-wide financlal statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support Charleston County's own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 171 through 173 of this report.

Notes fo the Financlal Stetements. The notes provide additional information that Is essentlal to a full
understanding of the data provided in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Notes are
presented on pages 62 through 122 of the report.

Other Information. Individual statements, which present more detalied views of nonmajor funds used In
governmental and business-type funds, begin on page 145. Additlonal frend Information about the County,
which may be of interest to the reader, is found under the Statistical Section of this report, starting on page
178.

Government-wide Financlal Analysis

As noted earlier, net assete may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
In the case of Charleston County, assets exceeded liabllities by $147,813 at the close of fiscal year 2011.
This was a decrease of $43,694 or 22.8 percent during flscal year 2011.

The largest portion of the County's net assets ($142,505 or 96.4 percent) Is Invesiment in capital assets
(e.g., land, building, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. An additional $11,287 or 7.8 percent is being held by the County as cash and invesiments
to be used for the planned purchase/construction of additional capltal assets already approved by County
Councll. Charleston County uses these capltal assets to provide services to cltizens; consequently, these
assefs are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used t liquidate those
liabliitles.
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Unrestricted net assets are ($176,751,355), resulling from expenditure of capital proceeds in the
transportation and road sales tax special revenue fund. These expenditures were for state and municipal
roads projects and municipal and special purpose district greenbelt acquisitions. The assets created by
these expenditures are not Charleston County’s, even though the County is responsible for the debt used to
pay for these assts.

An additional portion of the County's net assets, $67,260 or 45.5 percent, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

At the end of 2011 the County had positive balances In three of the four categories of net assets for the
primary government as well as all four categories for the business-type activities. The governmental
activitles had pasitive balances In three of the four categorles. Unrestricted net assets have a negative
belance resulting from the County spending proceeds from the transportation and road sales tax general
obligation bonds. These proceeds were spent on greenbelt purchases, where the asset does not belong to
the County and on non-county road projects, which are also not recorded as County assets.

Charleston Counfy’s Net Assets
June 30, 2011
(Recapped from page 39)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activilles Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and other assets $381,129 $448,304  $111,516 $ 81,680 492645  $528,074
Capital assets 306,888 306,907 43,721 44,282 350,609 351,189
Total assets $688,017  $753,301  $155237  $125962 843,254  $870,263
Long-term liabilities
outstanding $468,703 $485,157 $ 14,335 $ 15,673 483038  $500,830
Other liabilltlas 181,380 179,417 31,023 7,509 212,403 186,926
Total liabllitles $650,083  $664,574 § 45358 _$ 23,182 695441  $887,756
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $109,880 $ 08334 § 32625 $ 30,486 $142,505  $128,820
Restricted-speclal revenues
projects 114,256 11,043 543 519 114,799 11,562
Restricted - other 19,695 20,672 47,565 41,314 67,260 61,086
Unrestricted (205,897) (41,322) 29,148 30,461 (176,751) (10,861)
Total nat assets $37,934 $88,727  $109,879 $102,780 $147,813  $191,507

The County's net assets decreased by $43,694 during fiscal year 2011. The governmental activities had a
decrease In net assets of $50,793. This is due primarily to expenditures in the transporiation and road sales
tax special revenue fund. During flscal year 2011 approximately $15,690 of proceeds from the 2006 and
2007 transportation sales tax general obligation bonds (GOBs) were used by the Charleston County Park
and Recreation Commission, municlpalities, and other special purpose districts to acquire greenspace
within the County. This property Is not an asset of Charleston County. In addition, approximately $38,250 of
proceeds from these GOBs were used fo construct and improve roads that are not assets of the County.

The business type actlivities had an Increase In net assets of $7,099 resulting primarlly from activity In the
environmental management fund. This can be attributed to the ending of the Incinerator contract In flscal
year 2010 and the outsourcing of the material recovery facility opsrations in September 2010. Offsetting the
savings is an increase in landfill operations and curbside collestion of recyclables.
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County of Charleston, South Carolina

Changes in Net Assats (Racapped from pages 40 and 41)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmenta| Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revanues:
Program Ravenues:
Charges for services $ 44,329 $ 33,333 § 38332 $ 42,017 $ 82,861 $ 76,250
Operating grants and
contributions 15,838 29,233 768 284 168,408 29,517
Capltal grarts and
confributions 388 - 306
General Resvenues:
Property taxes 106,384 104,858 - - 108,384 104,858
Other taxes and fees 91,320 87,432 538 554 1,888 87,086
Stats ald to political subdlvisions 12,111 14,223 - 12,111 14,223
Unrestrictad investments
eamings 837 1,318 85 1 922 1,420
QGain on sale of capltsl assels - 19 4168 19 46
Total Revenues 271,025 270,496 39,742 43 803 310,787 314,388
Program Expenditures:
Governmental Actlvities:
General governmaent 55,688 51,008 55,668 51,008
Public safety 82,517 77,891 82,517 77,801
Judical 26,116 25,578 26,116 25,578
Public works 80,325 56,597 80,325 58,587
Health and welfare 7.803 16,553 7.903 18,553
Economic development 1,457 8,078 - - 1,457 8,078
Culturs and recreation 38,886 41,391 38,888 41,301
Education 5,885 5,720 5,885 5,720
Interest and flscal charges 20,739 21,110 20,738 21,110
Business-Type Activitivs:
DAODAS - - 7,803 8,408 7,803 8,408
E-911 communications - - 1,565 1,200 1,565 1,200
Environmental management - - 19,020 33.738 19,820 33,738
Parking garages - - 1,068 1,969 1,968 1,080
Radlo communications - 2,226 2227 2,226 2,227
Revenue collections - 1,483 1,721 1,483 1,721
Total Expenditures 319,486 301,624 34,965 49,283 354,481 351,187
Excess (deficlency) of revenue aver
(under) expenditures (48,471) (31,428) 4777 (5,360) (43.684) {386,789)
Transfers {(2,322) (4,483) 2,322 4,493 - .
Incrense {Dacreases) in Net
Assets (50,783) (35,922) 7.009 (887) (43,604) {38,788)
Net assets, beginning 88,727 124,849 102,780 103,647 191.507 228,208
Net Assets, ending $37.934 $88,727 5109!879 $102,780 $147,813 $101,507
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Governmental Activiles. Governmental actlvitles decreased the County's net assets by $50,783. Key
elements of the decrease are:

Total expenditures for the year Increased by $17,572 (5.8 percent).

Public works expendltures Increased $23,728 (41.8 percent) reflecting increased spending on the
road projects funded from the transportation and roads sales tax special revenue fund.

General government expenditures Increased $4,662 (9.1 percent). This Increase can be contributed
to several departments: facilities management increased due to growth in utility costs, technology
services had increased expenditures for maintenance contracts and the assessor's office had
Increased costs for the Implementation of reassessment.

Public safety expenditures show an increase of $4,626 (5.9 percent.). This increase can be
attributed to increased personnel costs in the Sherlff's office and In consolldated dispatch.

Offsetting these Increases are dacreases In health and welfare, economic development and culture
and recreation.

o Health and welfare shows decrease of $8,650 (52.3 percent.) The workforce investment act
program was transferred to the Berkelsy-Charleston-Dorchester Council of Govermnments
(BCD COG) with the commencement of fiscal year 2011.

o Economic development has a decrease of $4,621 (76 percent). Fiscal year 2010 Included
one-time state grant funds for site development for the Boelng plant.

o Culiure and recreation shows a decrease of $2,505 (8.1 percent) due to reduced spending
for greenbelt acquisitions.

Total revenues for the year showed a slight increase of $529.

Charges for services Increased by $10,996 (33 percent) during the year reflecting the settlement of
a lawsult on the Judiclal Center project, growth In EMS collections and federal prisoner per diem.

Other taxes and fees increased by $3,897 (4.5 percent). The lkocal option sales tax, transporiation
sales tax and accommodations tax all showed growth during the fiscal year because of increased
consumer spending.

Property taxes increased by $1,428 (1.4 percent) due growth in the propenly base for fiscal 2011.
Operating grants and contributions decreased by $13,594 (46.5 percent) during the year. This
reflects the transfer of the workforce Invesiment act program to BCD COG. In addition the County
raceived a onse-time grant in fiscal year 2010 for site development at the Boeing plant

State aid to subdivisions decreased by $2,112 (14.8 percent) due to a decrease in state revenues

and the declsion by state lawmakers to provide funding at an amount less than called for by the
legislated state formula.
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Business-type Activitles. Business-type activities Increased the County’s net assets by $7,080. The
key elements of this decrease were:

» Environmental management had an increase In net assets of $7,374 which is primarlly due to the
explration of the Incinerator contract. The final payment for operator's debt made January 1, 2010,
included a balloon payment which was charged to the County through the operator’s fee.

» DAODAS had an Increasse in net assets of 3847 which can be attributed to a transfer In from the
debt service fund to cover principal and interest payments on the certificates of participation Issued
to build Charleston Center.

» The parking garages showed a decrease In net assets of §1,160 which is primarily due to a transfer
out to the capital projects fund of excess garage renovation funds.

» Revenue collections had a decrease In net assets of $705 after the elimination of the fee pald by
county departments for collections of revenues. These revenues Include solid waste user fese,
business licenses and accommaodations fee.
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Financlal Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Charleston County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds Is to provide Information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such Information Is useful In assessing the
County's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Charleston County's governmental funds reporied combinad ending
fund balances of $224,049, a decrease of $68,884 In comparison with the prior year. This decrease Is
largely due to the transportation and road sales tax special revenue fund which showed a drop in fund
balance of $66,4568. The GOB capital projects fund had a decrease of $1,338 and the debt service fund
showed a decrease of $978.

The ending fund balance of $224,049 for the governmental funds ls composed of flve components:
unassigned fund balance of $41,175, assigned fund balance of $10,093, commiited fund balance of
$37,749, restricted fund balance of $133,852 and nonspendable fund balance of $1,080.

Unassigned fund balance accounts for approximately 18.4 percent or $41,175 of the total fund balance
constltutes. Unassigned fund balance Is avallable for spending at Charleston County’s discretion.

Assigned fund balance is $10,093 or 4.5 percent of the ending fund balance. Assigned fund balances are
Intended to be used by Charleston County for speclfic purposes.

Committed fund balance Is $37,749 or 16.8 percent of ending fund balance and Is comprised of the fund
balances in the capltal project funds. The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can
be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of County Council.

The restricted fund balance totals $133,952 or 59.8 percant of ending fund balance. The major reserved
fund balances are: 1) for roads and stormwater projects of $94,633, 2) for debt service of $19,695), 3) for
greenbelt and tourist-related expenditures of $11,613. The restricted fund balance category includes
amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, extemal resource
providers, or through enabling legislation.

Nonspendable fund balance Is $1,080 or 0.5 percent of ending fund balance. Nonspendable fund balance
accounts for inventories recorded In the general fund.

General Fund. The general fund Is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $41,175 while total fund balance reached
$52,349. Unassigned fund balance Is made up of two components: the rainy day fund and all other
unassigned fund balance. The rainy day fund totals $8,087 and is composed of $2,388 from the general
fund and $5,700 from the environmental management fund. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to {otal fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 26.3 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 33.4 percent of that same amount. This meets the County’s financial policy of
malntaining an unassigned fund balance of 12 to 2 months of expenditures. Excluding the rainy day fund
from the calculation, unassigned fund balance is 24.8 percent of expendilures, which also meets the
financlal policy. There was a slight decrease of $247 In the total fund balance of the general fund during the
current year. Highlights of the general fund were as follows:
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Revenues were $5,782 or 3.5 percent higher than the previous flscal year.

® Property and local option sales tax revenues were $3,057 or 2.6 parcent over the previous year.
Approximately half of the increase, $1,384, is due to higher local option sales tax collections over
the prior year due fo incraased consumer spanding. Current property tax collections were up over
the prior year by $1,143 due to growth in the property tax base. Lastly, delinquent tax collections
were $417 higher than the previous year.

s Intergovernmental revenues Increased $2,270 or 10.8 percent over flscal year 2010. Local
government relmbursements Increased $2,397 for the expanded consolldated dispatch operations
center which reflects the assumption of dispatch services for several new entities. In addition there
was an increase of $1,702 in per diem for federal prisoners held in the Charleston County detention
center. The detentlon center expansion opaned In 2010 and resulted In an Increase In Inmate
capacity of 1,334. The new facllity and Increased capaclty allowed to Sherlff 1o accept more federal
Inmates than In previous years. Offsetting these Increases Is a decrease of $2,112 In the local
government fund allocation from the state reflecting decreasing state revenues.

. Service charges are up $1,304 or 7 percent. Increases in EMS fees of $861 and RMC fees of $228
account for most of the growth. EMS saw an Increase I8 call volume and the RMC experlenced
addltional home gales and reflnancing activity.

® These increases are offset by a decrease in interest earnings of $473 (38 percent) and fines and
forfeitures of $307 (17.8 percent).

Expenditures Increased by $7,121 or 4.8 percent.

. Public Safety expendltures are up $4,916 or 7.2 percent. Expenditures for the Sheriff Increased
$2,951 or 5.5 percent due to Increased personnel costs. Consolldated dispatch expenditures are up
$2,476 or 100.3 percent over the prior flscal year which reflects the addition of staff members to
dispatch for the City of Charleston Fire Depariment, the City of North Charleston, Folly Beach, St.
Andrews Fire Department, and St. John's Fire Department.

® Ceneral Government expenditures are Increased $2,432 or 6 percent. Faclliies Management
expendltures Increased $1,238 or 11.7 percent which reflects the higher cost of utllities. Technology
services Is up $696 or 0.6 percent which reflects Increased capltal costs and Increases In
maintenance contracts. The assessor's offlce Is Increased $475 or 15.5 percent for the
implementation of reassessment.

Transfers out Increased $4,384 or 38.3 percent. This Is primarlly due to a mid-year budget amendment
approved by Councll which Increased transfers out by $8,600. The budget amendment provided for $5,300
in additional pay-as-you-go funding for the capital projects program. In additional, $2,300 was transferred to
the capital replacement fund and $1,000 was transferrad to the workers' compensation internal service
fund. Funding for the budget amendment was from flscal year 2010 fund balance, which excesded amounts
required by the financlal policy.

Debt Service Fund. The debt service fund balance is $19,695 and is $978 or 4.7 percent lower than the
prior fiscal year. The use of fund balance was anticipated in the fiscal year 2011 budget. Transfers in were
reduced $4,110. Fiscal year 2010 Included a one-time transfer In of $5,407 which was the premium on the
2009 general obligation bond Issuance.

Transportation and Road Sales Tax Specisl Revenue Fund. Thie fund balance was reduced $66,455 or
42 .4 percent from the prior fiscal year. Total expenditures were $104,157 an increase of $20,430 from the
prior fiscal year. Public works expenditures for road work increased $24,731 while culture and recreation
expenditures decreased $4,326, reflecting a decrease in greenbelt property purchases. Revenues showed
an Increase of $3,545. This results from an increase in sales tax collections of $1,638 and
intergovernmental revenues of $2,314 for the MUSC road improvement project.
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GOB Capital Projects Fund. This fund showed a decrease In fund balance of $1,339 or 4.7 percent.
Expenditures decreased $30,376 reflacting the completion of the detention center In fiscal year 2010. Other
financing sources decreased $41,602 as flscal year 2010 included the issuance of §50,000 In general
obligation bonds.

Other Governmental Funds. The other governmental funds had a slight increase In fund balance of $136
from the prior flacal year.

Nonmajor Capltal Projects Funds. The nonmajor capital projects funds reflected a fotal fund balance of
$10,744 and are shown on pages 135 through 136 and 142. The fund balance for the nonmajor capital
projects funds decreased $299 from flscal year 2010. The consfruction fund increased $1,557 while the
ITSMIS and equipment replacement funds decreased $873 and $850, respectively.

Nonmajor Speclal Revenue Funds. The nonmajor special revenue funds have a combined total fund
balance of $24,098, all classified as restricted. Nonmajor speclal revenue funds are shown on pages 132
through 135, and 138 through 142. The fund balance for the non-major special revenue funds Increased
$435 from the prior year. The largest Increase In fund balance Is In the construction public works fund which
accounts for state C-fund expenditures.

Proprietary Funds. The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of Information found in the
business-type activities of the govemment-wide financlal statements, but In more detall. Total net assets for
the enterprise funds at June 30, 2011, are $86,294 (before the elimination of internal service fund charges
and Indlirect costs.) The major funds are environmental management and the parking garages with total net
assets of $73,552. The nonmajor proprietary funds have total net assets of $12,742. These funds include E-
911 communications, DAODAS, radlo communications, and revenue collections. See pages 50 through 55,
158 through 163 and 165 through 169 for the proprietary funds statements.

As of the end of the currant flscal year, Charleston Gounty's enterprise funds reported combinad ending net
assets of $86,294 (before internal eliminations), an increase of $4,268 or 5.2 percent In comparison with the
prior year. The environmental management fund accounted for $5,471 of this Increase due to cost savings
with the elimination of the incinerator contract. Offsetting this Is a decrease In net assets of $1,146 in the
parking garages fund resulting from a transfer out to the capltal projects fund of excess garage renovation
funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During fiscal year 2011 County Councll approved an adjustment to the general fund budget totaling $9,700.
In additlon, the Administrator made adjustments to the budget in accordance with the guidelines contalned
In the budget ordinance.

The budget was adjusted by $9,700 during the flscal year. The source of funds was fiscal 2010 fund
balance that was In excess of the county's reserve policles. The expenditure incraases included $5,300 for
the caplial Improvement plan (law enforcement center), $2,300 for equipment replacement, $1,100 for a
voluntary retirement incentive program, and $1,000 for the workers' compensation costs.

Actual revenues and transfers in were $13,310 over the final budget The most significant revenue
variances are outlined below:

e Property and local option sales taxes were over budget by $7,303. Current property tax collections
were $3,668 over budget due to growth in the property base. Local option sales tax collections
exceeded the budget by $2,340 reflecting an Increase In consumer spending primarily in the
second half of the fiscal year. Finally, delinquent tax collections exceeded budget by $1,285, due to
conservative budget estimates.

e Service charges were over budget by $3,506. Master-in-Equity fees were $1,191 over budget
reflecting increased foreclosure activity. RMC fees were $832 over budget reflecting increased
refinancing and home sale activities. Finally, Emergency medical service fees wers $1,030 over
budget reflecting Increases In service calls.
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Intergovernmental revenues were over budget by $1,988 due to increased federal inmate per diem.
The housing capacity of the detention center Increased with the opening of the expansion during
fiscal year 2010. This allowed the Sheriff to accept more federal Inmates, Including those from
immigration services.

Actual expenditures and transfers out were $6,256 under the final budgeted amounts. The most significant
contributions to this variance were the following:

Technology services was $1,448 below budget. Mulfi-year projects, such as funding for state
mandates and the business continuity plan were not completed during the fiscal year. The budget
for these projects was rolled to fiscal year 2012, Capital purchases of $407 were not completed by
the end of the fiscal year, but were encumbered and rolled to fiscal year 2012. In addition, there
were savings In maintenance contracts.

Facillties Management was $886 below budget largely due to savings on maintenance supplies.
These savings were encumbered at the end of the flscal year.

The Sherlff's office was $652 below budget. These savings can be attributed to the detention center
which was below budget for many of its inmate related accounts such as medical services, food,
and custodial and laundry. The majority of this savings wae rolled to flecal year 2012 through
encumbrances or Council actlon.

Coneolidated Dispaich was $423 below budget due to lower personnel costs during the fransition
from other local governments. Savings were seen in consultant fees and computer capital. These
savings were encumbered at the end of the fiscal year

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capltal Assets. Charleston County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
actlvities as of June 30, 2011, amounted to $350,800 (net of accumulated depreciation). This Invastment In
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equlpment, roads, bridges and
dralnage easements. The County's Investment In capltal assets decreased $580 or 0.2 percent for the

current year.
Governmental Activities Byginess- ivities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land and
easements $ 16,704 § 16,808 § 3051 $ 3951 § 20655 § 20,759
Bulldings
236,257 243,278 16,451 16,878 252,708 260,154
Improvements
other than
buildings 733 780 15,389 253 16,122 1,033
Machinery and
equipment 25,708 27,540 6,488 6,870 32,196 34,410
Infrastructure
15,222 15,382 - - 15,222 15,382
Construction In
progress 12,264 3121 1.442 16.329 13,706 19.451
Total $§ 308888 $ 306907 & 43721 § 44282 § 350,609 $ 351,189
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Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note Ill. C. an pages 85 through 88 of
this report.

Long-Term Debt At the end of the current fiscal year, Charleston County had total certificates of
participation (COPs) and bonded debt outstanding of $441,460. Of this amount, $394,957 comprises debt °
backed by the full faith and credit of the government (general obligation bonds), $41,498 |s comprised of
certificates of participation secured by the capital assets constructed with their proceeds, and $5,005 Is
comprised of revenue bond debt secured solely by solld waste user fees.

In addition to the bonded debt Charleston County signed a contract with the S.C. Infrastructure Bank to pay
$3,000 a year starting on January 1, 2004, for a period of 25 years as the County’s commitment toward the
new Arthur Ravenel, Jr. Bridge over the Cooper Rlver. As of June 30, 2011, this obligation Is recorded at a
net present value of $32,051 using a discount rate of 5.7%. This is the same rate the Bank is repaying its
loan from the federal government, using the money recelved from the County.

Governmental Activities usin. Activities Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
General obllgation
bonds $ 394,957 $ 406,591 $ - $ - $ 304957 $ 406,591
Certificates of
participation 35,248 41,757 6,252 7,422 41,498 49179
Revenue bonds - - 4,844 6,374 4,844 6,374
Intergovernmental
note payable 32,051 33,152 - - 32,051 33,162
Total $ 462 254 $481.500 § 11008 § 13,708 $473350 §405206

The County's total bonded debt decreased by $21,046 (4.4 percent) during the current fiscal year. No new
debt was issued during fiscal year 2011.

During July 2011, the County Issued $27,100 In General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds which will
be used for defraying a portion of the costs for the nursing school facility at the tri-county Trident Technical
College and the costs for the Charleston County Law Enforcement Center. In addition, the County Issuad
$167,000 in General Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds to provide funds to defray a portion of the
costs for certain road projects and the costs for greenbelt projects.

The July 2011 GOBs were rated Aaa by Moody's Investor Services and AAA by Standard and Poor's
Corporation. Fitch, Inc upgraded the County's outstanding 2004 and 2006 GOBs to AAA during August
2011.

South Carolina statutes limit the amount of genaral obligation (G.O.) debt a governmental entity may issue
(withoul referendum) to 8 percent of its total assessed value. The cumrent available G.O. debt limit for
Charleston County is $251,667. The outstanding debt at June 30, 2011 subject to the debt limitation Is
$173,825. This would Indicate that the County has not exceeded thelr limit.

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in Note IIl. |. on pages 92 through 106
of this report.



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget Rates

The flscal year 2012 general fund budget s a balanced budget. Total disbursements are $171,081, a
decrease of $5,618 or 3.2 percent from the prior year. The budget includes the use of $6,130 of fund
balance for pay-as-you-go capital projects and other one-time expenditures. As a result of a state-mandated
property basae reassessment, the millage rates for the general fund will decline from 402 mllls to 38.1 mills
and the debt service fund will decline from 6.6 millls to 6.1 mllls. The local optlon sales tax credit will also
decline from $71 to $70 (per $100,000 appraised value).

The general fund budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2012 increased by $4,153 or 2.6 parcent from 2011.
The major changes are:

e Federal prisoner revenue at the detention center is anticipated to Increase $1,500 or 57.7 percent.
This Increase reflects higher utilization of the County's recently expanded detention center by
federal agencles to house federal detainees.

= The local option sales tax is anticipated to increase $1,290 or 3.3 percent. This increase reflects an
anticipated improvement in the local economy.

e State aid to local governments Is decreased $1,540 or 12.6 parcent. Due to the recession and the
resulting challenges with state revenues, the general assembly voted to depart from the prescribed
formula for funding local governments for flscal year 2012.

The general fund budgeted disbursements for flscal year 2012 are decreased $5,618 or 3.2 percent from
fiscal year 2011. The major change for flscal year 2012 is:

The transfers fo other funds are anticlpated to decrease by $5,822 or 36.5 percent to reflect using less fund
balance for pay-as-you-go capital projects.

Requests for Information
This financial report Is deslgned to provide a general overview of Charleston County’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s financing. Questions concerning any of the information should be

addressed to the Finance Depariment, 4045 Bridge View Drive, Sulte A225, North Charleston, SC 29405-
7464.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
ASSETS Activities Activities Total Units
Nomn-pooled cash and cash squivalents $ 4,610,078 $ 212,829 $ 4,682,907 $ 40,928,280
Pooled cash and cash aquivalents 71,812,758 13,344,053 85,358,808 -
Poolad Invastments 137,423,401 - 137,423,401 -
Non-pooled investments - - - 3,079,180
Cash with fiscal agent 125,000 - 128,000 -
Restricted cash - current portion - 1,811,385 1,011,303 -
Recslvabies (net of allowances for uncollectibies) 170,408,424 21,908,410 201,374,834 37,304,418
Intarest recelvable from note recelvable 2,358 . 2,356 -
Due from primary government - - - 609,333
internal balances - current {42,370,008) 22,370,699 - -
inventories 1,432,453 - 1,432,453 623,812
Prepald tema and deposits - - - 430,229
Nofta racelvable - Intarnal balancss (210,398) 216,398 - -
Note receivable - within ona year 348,928 - 348,928
Nots racelvabis - more than one ysar 721,041 = 721,641 -
Dsfsrred lssusnce costy 1,880,857 191,977 2,052,834 254,873
Other noncurrent asasis - - - 40,000
Restricted assets - non-current:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cesh equivaients 1,307,838 51,340,204 52,848,042 6,518,837
Non-poo|ad Investments 4,605,981 - 4,603,951 -
Capltzl asusts, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land and essements - nondepreciable 18,704,242 3,950,630 20,635,172 75,833,794
Construction In progress - nondepreciable 12,264,371 1,442,511 13,708,682 2,185,713
Iinfrastructure - nondspreciabls 8,557,398 - 8,357,305 -
Artwork and other - nondepreciable - - - 11,000
Bulldings 238,250,663 16,451,018 262,707,683 80,956,968
improvemenis other than bulldings 732,302 15,388,819 16,121,321 19,120,870
Machinery and equipment 25,707,898 8,487,785 32,165,483 32,870,424
Infrastructure 8,664,969 - 6,604,809 42,245,489
Library materials - - - 22,339,098
Accumuisted depraciation - - - (86,228,522)
Total assets 688,016,423 186,236,008 849,233,421 235,238 235
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 12,308,232 24,604,485 38,012,717 2,218,475
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 5,054,064 482,338 5,576,622 638,451
Due to component units 009,333 - 609,333 -
Intergovernmental payshis 5,480,404 3,070,038 8,359,472 19.043
Iinterest payable 4,908,492 110,200 8,019,701 400,003
Unearned revenus 132,660,820 2118 132,671,944 36,879,609
Noncurrent lisbllides:
Dus within one year 20,098,087 2,753,344 22,852,311 5,840,404
Due In more than one yaar 458,703,169 14,333,381 483,038,540 43,778,331
Totlal liabliities 630,082,310 43,338,130 695,440,640 88,781,120
ET
investad In capital assets, net of related daht 109,870,879 32,825,114 142,804,933 127,117,150
Rastrictad for:
Environmental trust oparations - 45,008,031 43,008,031 -
Speclal revenue projects 114,258,247 543,333 114,700,580 4,243,274
Debt sarvice 16,604,980 2,366,852 22,281,522 14,391,019
Donors - - - 27,310
Unrestricted (205,897,191) 29,148,838 (176,761,333) 24,678,702
Totul net assats $ 37933018 § 100,678,868 § 147,812,781 $ 170,455,118

886 notes to the financial ststements.



Primary Government

Govermmmental sctivities:
General government
Public safety
Judiclal
Public works
Health and welfare
Economic development
Culture and recreation
Education
Interest and fiscal charges

Total govammental
activitles

Eusiness-iype activities:
DADDAS
E-311 Communications
Environmenta! Management
Parking Garages
Radlo Communications
Revenue Collactions

Total business-type
activities

Total primary government

Component Units:
Charleston County Library
Charleston County PRC

Cooper River Park & Playground

James Island P8D

North Charleston District

St. Androw's Parish Parks
& Playground

St. John's Fire District

St. Psul's Fire District

Charleston County Voluntser
Rescus Squad

Total component units

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2011
Net (Exponss} Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes In Net Assets
Operating Capltal Primary Government
Charges for Grarts and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component
Expenses Sarvices Contributions  Contributions Activitles Activities Total Units

$ 55667451 § 13632341 § 187174 § - $ (41,847934) $ - (41,647,934) $ -
82,516,821 19,420,040 41,888,062 396,000 {60,814,719) - {60,814,719) -
26,116,113 8,379,703 2,204,480 - {15,531,950) - (15,531,950) -
80,325,185 1,780,797 4,661,019 - {73,993,369) N (73,993,368) -
7,903,080 233,266 5,480,548 - (1,181,278) - (1,181,278) -
1,457,107 - 321,952 - (1,135,155) - (1,135,155) -
38,886,387 882,902 - - {38,003,485) - (38,003,485) -
5,884,830 - - - (5,884,830) - {5,884,830) -
20,739,273 - - - {20,739,273) - (20,739,273) -
319,496,257 44,329,061 15,639,213 386,000 {259,131,993) - (259,131,993) -
7.002,742 5.095,135 605,096 - - (2,102,611) {2,102,511) -
1,664,763 1,890,608 - - - 125,852 125,852 -
19,920,437 27,002,882 163,221 - - 7,335,668 7,335,666 -
1,967,543 2,807,583 - - - 840,020 840,020 -
2,226,407 1,137,250 - - (1,089,157) {1,088,157) -
1,483,248 487,742 - - - (985,604) (985,604) -
34,965,228 38,321,177 768,317 - - 4,124,268 4,124,266 -

$ 354481486 $ 82680228 § 18407530 $ 355,000 (259,131,993) 4,124,208 {255,007,727) -
$ 15160288 661,819 & 14,136,367 § 389,163 37,080
30,440,224 12,895,750 10,720,725 {6,823,753)
219,888 - - (219,8988)
10,983,654 4,687,263 - - {6,296,331)
1 lmlm - - = {1 13095704)
3,092,433 1,526,382 3,102 - {1,563,949)
10,436,608 - - 84,500 {10,372,096)
5,038,479 - - 478,876 {4,561,603)
443,536 - 297,393 - (146,142)
$ 77116816 $ 19,771,294 § 14435962 § 11,651,354 (31,256,386)
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Gensral Revenues:

Property taxee
Charleston County PRC
Cooper River Park & Playground
James island PSD
North Charleston District
St Andrew's Parish Paris & Playground
St John's Fire District
$t. Paul's Flre District
Local option sales tax
Transportation sales tax
Accommodations tax
Franchise tax
Alcohol beverage tax
Merchants Inventory tex and
manufacturer's depreciation
Motor cartier tax
Unrestiricted stats ald to political subdivisions
Grants and contributions not
restrictad to specific program
Unresfricted Invesiment sarnings
Gain on sals of capital assets
Fundraising and donations
Miscallansous

Tranafers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in not asssts

Net assets - beginning, as restated {component unit)

Net assets - anding

Sas notes to financisl statements.
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106,384,010 - 106,384,010 -
- - - 15,714,621

- - - 164,513

- - - 6,378,175

- - - 1,011,385

- - - 1,382,505

- - - 10,268,724

- - - 4,434,211
41,340,224 - 41,340,224 -
37,830,907 - 37,930,907 -
9,927,318 - 8,927,318 -
578,884 - 578,884 46,539

- 537,488 537,486 -

1,440,002 10,832 1,450,924 1,103,536
111,247 - 111,247 -
12,111,218 - 12,111,216 -
- - . 2,103

837,142 85,303 922,445 92,844

- 18,643 18,643 185,589

- - - 77,638

- - - 630,869
{2,322,103) 2,322,103 - -
208,338,917 2,574,367 211,313,284 41,592,262
(50,793,070) 7,008,633 (43,894,443) 10,336,676
89,725,001 102,780,233 191,607,224 160,119,239
§ 37933915 § 100,678,006 § 147912781 § 170,456,118
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Transportation and G.0B. Other Total
Dobt Road Sales Tax Capital Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Servics Special Rovenue Projects Funds Funds
Non-poolod cash and cash squlvaients $ 179307 § - 8 - s - $ 2818771 § 4,610,078
Pooled ¢anh and cash squivalents 18,134,796 - - . at, 717,501 49,852,207
Pooled Investments 18,002,828 14,409,382 75,113,880 29,807,511 - 137,423,401
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 33,556 - - 964,282 1,307,838
Restricted Investments - 4,565,951 - - - 4,685,951
Racelvables (net of allowancea for uncollectiblea) 129,173,811 18,360,452 17,492,334 - 14,119,370 179,154,967
Due from other funds 2,520,574 - - - - 2,520,574
Inventories 1,080,137 - - - - 1,080,137
Total susats $§ 10703453 § 37874341 § 92806014 $ 29807511 % 49,619,924 § 380,615,243
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liablities:

Accounts payabls § 2050722 % - % 1843,909 § 2,781,800 § 1,081,178 § 8,337,809
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 4,521,110 - 34 ABS - 408,953 4,984,548
Due to component units 609,333 - - - - 509,333
Dus to other funds 843.974 - - - 1,308,524 1.850.458
Intergovernmental payable 683,022 - 567,038 20,836 3,994,767 5,276,481
Daferrad revenusa 105,836,638 18,183,361 - - 1,407,991 135,428,011
Total llsbllitles 118,354,920 18,183,361 2,448,230 2,802,636 14,779,413 158,568,480

Fund balances:
Neonspendable - Inventories 1,080,137 - - - - 1,080,137
Rustricied - Dabt service - 19,604,980 - - - 19,694,980
Restricted - General Governmant - - - - 33,047 2,047
Restricted - Public Safety - - - - 3,675,813 3,675,813
Rastrictad - Judicial - - - - 3,318,661 3,318,661
Restricted - Public Works - - 79,350,247 - 15,274,510 94,532,757
Rasiricted - Haalth and Welfare - - - 388,450 390,459
Rastricted - Economlc Development - - - - 684,809 84,509
Restricted - Culture and Recroation - - 10.801,537 - 711,364 11,512,801
Commiited - Capital project funds - - - Z7,004,973 10,744,048 37,740,923
Assigned - General Gevernment 8,085,812 - - - - 8,005,912
Assignad - Public Safety 1,704,333 - - - - 1,794,333
Assigned - Judiclal 2,522 - - - - 2,522
Assignad - Public Works 113,092 - - - - 113,092
Asalgned - Health and Welfars 87482 - - - - a7,482
Unassigned 41,175,155 - - - - 41,175,155
Total fund balances — B3R 19,694,980 90,159,704 27,004,875 34,840,511 224,048,783

Total iabiities and fund buiances 3 oress § ST § Waevis 3 TETSH § 4900 3 SRS

See notes 1o financial statemants.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET ASSTS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITEES
June 30, 2011

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 224,048,783

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
the statement of nef assets are different because:

Capltal assets used In governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported In the funds. 297,974,740

Other long-term assets are not avallable to pay for current period
expenditures and thersfore are deferred In the funds:

Deferred Issuance costs $ 1,880,857
Iinterest recelvable 2,356
Note receivable 1,068,567
Property taxes 2,558,182 5,489,962

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs

of Insurancs, and other services {o individual funds. The assets

and llablilides of the internal service funds are included In governmental

activitiaa |n the statement of net assets. 12,944,618

Elimination of indirect revenues and expenses between governmental
funds and the enterprise funds which creates an Internal balance. (23,584,749)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued Interest
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds:

General obligation honds $ (394,957,209)

Certificates of particlpation (35,245,570)

Leases payabls (2,283,607)

Compenssated absences (9.498,835)

intergovernmental note payable (32,051,318)

Accrued interest payable (4,902,911) (478,939,448)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 37,933,915

See notes to financial stetements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Transporistion and G.0O.B. Other Tetal
Dabt Road Sales Tax Capital Govarnmental Governmental
Ganeral Service Speclal Revenus Projects Funds Funds
Ravenuas:
Property, local option sales and transportation sules iax $§ 118636168 § 18788365 § 37930907 ¢ - 8,540,581 $ 183,887,021
Intergovernmental 23,258,612 355,764 2313,895 - 16,571,488 42 499,737
Permits and licensen 3,883,011 - - - - 3,883,031
Fines and forfeltures 1,832,508 - - - 713,583 2 us,m
Intarest m21mM 288,590 407 484 104,949 120,808 1.691.¢
Sarvice charges 19,849,178 - - - 12,172,619 32,021.79!
Rental and use of property 518,064 - - - - 518,564
Othar reveanues 3,001,428 1,750,000 4_9% - 4,047,877 9,838,429
Total revenues 172,841,956 21,181,819 40,7, 104 940 42,188,544 278,998,800
Exponditures:
Current:
Ganeral government 42975388 - 7.385,970 - 62,640 50,423,995
Public safety 72,873,181 - - - 4,308,230 71,281,411
Judicial 15,641,900 - - - 819,727 23,801,633
Publlc works 7,425,024 - &5,926,809 - 5,885,023 18,237,736
Haalth and welfare 3,567,511 - - - 4,290,740 7,858,211
Economic development - - - - 1,473,821 1,473,821
Culture and recreation 13,921,189 - 16,428,154 - 10,044,681 40,394,034
Education - - - - 5,833,110 5833110
Capital outlay - - - 10,255,984 2,450,429 12,708,413
Dabi service - 211 14,416,139 - - 40,627,223
Total expenditures 186,505,016 _ 26,211 104,157,152 10,255,984 42,508 A11 330,637,547
Excess (deficiency) of revenuesa over
{undar) expenditures 16,336,944 {5,029,265) {63.455,632) {10,151,035) [341,867) (62.8_4_0,_72]_
Other financing sources (uges):
Capital lex9e procesds - - - - 032,831 6328
Transfers In 835,872 5,058,750 30,745,966 5,811,738 15,024,523 9,527,149
Transfars out {17,470,734) {1,007, 1l'n (42,745,966) - (15.250.255) (76474,112)
Proceadn from sale of capltal assels 331 70,524
Total other financing sources (uses) B2 Y . BS— L) (R & — (s243,508)
Neat change In fund balances (247,301) (977,672) {66,435,532) (1,339.287) 135,525 {69,884,387)
Fund bslances at beginning of year 20,872,852 156,615,316 28,344,172 __ 282933,160
Fund balances st end of year 3 _S3MS63 6 196040 8 w0ANT0A 5 0045 5 W0t § 224048783

Sea notes to financial statements.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For tha Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net Change In Fund Balances - Totsl Governmental Funds $ (68,884,387)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activitias are differsnt because;

Governmental funds report caplial outieys ss expenditures.

However, In the statament of activities, the cost of thoss asssts

Is allocatad over their estimatad useful lives as depreciation expanse.
This Is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation

in the current perlod:
Capital asset additions $ 13,902,974
Depreciation expense {12,447,198) 1,483,776

In the statement of activities, the gain or loss on dispossl of capital assets Is
reported. Converssly, governmental funds do not report any gain or
loss on disposal of capital assats:

Cost of capital assats $ 1,635,800

Accumuiated depreciation {1,182 268)

Net book value 453,542

Proceads

Loss on dispoaal —%ﬁl

Differance of proceeds and loss on sale {4583,842)

Because soma properly taxes and other Income will not be collected far
saveral months afier the County’s fiscal yaar ends, they are not
considerad "avalishie™ revenues in the governmental funde:
Properiy taxes and local option ssles tax (815,536)

Other revenue which doas not provide current resources 1,071,080

Repaymsnt of principal Is an expenditure In ths governmantal

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabllitles In the statement

of net assets and does not result In an expanse In the statement of

activitias. 18,910,800

Other flnancing source (usa) which does not provide current resources
or currant usesy:

Capital leass proceeds (632,831)

In the statemeant of activities, interest Is accrued on outstanding bonds,
whereas In the governmental funds, Interaat Is axpansad when dus. 148,520

Soms expsnass reportad In the statement of activities do not require
the uss of current financlal resourcas and therefore are not reported as
expanditures In governmental funds:

Compensatad absences pasyable $ 134,288
Deaferred refunding costs and smortizetion of premium 854,660 1,028,976
To record intamal service fund transfers. 4,624,860

The internal service funds are used by managamant to chargs the costs
of Insurance and other services to Individual funds. The net revenue

of the Internal service funds are reported with governmental activitles. 11,031

Elimination of Indirect income between governmental funds and the

enterprise funds. {2,863,044)

The Incrense of governmentsl expenditures to avold tha doubling up

of net loss from the Intarnal service funds. {4,702,78T)

Change In net assats of govarnmental activities $ (50,703,076)
See nofes to financial staternents.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Varlance with
Final Budget
Posltive
REVENUES Original Final Actual (Negative)
Proparty and local option sales taxes $ 113,083,000 § 111,333,000 § 118,636,168 $ 7,303,168
Intergovernmental 19,386,032 21,271,032 23,258,612 1,887,580
Permis and licenses 3,819,850 3,819,850 3,883,031 63,181
Fines and forfeltures 2,270,500 2,270,500 1,832,506 {437,904)
Interest 597,000 597,000 72111 178171
Service chargea 16,343,060 16,342,950 10,849,176 3,506,226
Rental and use of property 585,000 b 618,864 23,864
Other revenues 3,844,522 3,727,152 3,991,428 264,276
Total revenues 159,948,984 159,856,484 172,841,966 12,865 472
EXPENDITURES
CGurrent:
General Government:
County Administrator 861,020 767,220 744,842 22,378
Deputy County Adminiatrator 21,3588 20,355 18,360 1,086
Ansistant Administrator for Finance 460,424 548,157 474,837 73,320
Assistant Administrator for
General Services 345,888 460,718 462,987 7,788
Assistant Adminlstrator for Human -
Sarvices 489,215 345,959 338,249 7,710
Assgessor 3,539,457 3,620,009 3,530,039 89,060
Auditor 1,968,183 1,968,204 1,640,118 128,068
Board of Elections & Voter Registration 1,411,853 1,474,718 1,305,588 168,127
Budget 666,244 596,244 85684,768 11,478
Capltal Projects and Faclliies
Management 12,587,818 12,710,788 11,926,052 885,716
Community Services 544,206 520,680 410,504 110,176
County Councll 1,089,682 1,039,582 1,038,082 1,630
Delinquent Tax 1,141,908 1,087,748 882,072 75,876
Finance 1,024,911 1,010,811 998,166 12,748
Human Resources 1,491,323 1,328,874 1,128,978 169,896
internal Auditor 211,887 211,887 211,117 770
Legal 1,020,690 1,020,690 1,003,408 17,288
Legisiative Delegation 178,207 178,207 159,728 18,479
Nondepartmental (1,148,005) 807,273 605,526 1,747
Procurement 867,950 850,860 764,821 66,869
Register Mesne Convayance 1,622,881 1,829,939 1,674,791 155,148
Ssfety & Risk Management 2,014,038 1,669,038 1,735,858 133,180
Technology Services 8,928,184 9,412,799 7,984,398 1,448,401
Treasurer 1,596,885 1,589,803 1,641,928 87,878
Zoning / Planning 1,504,484 1,659,868 1,412,224 247,645
Total general government 44,580,186 46,919,226 42,975,388 3,943,841

Seo notes to financlal statements.
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CONTINUED
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Public Safety:

Bullding Inspections $ 1,371,412 1,298,316 $ 1,217,699 80,617

Consolidated Dispatch 6,305,204 5,367,523 4,944,730 422,793

Emergency Management 618,138 597,636 895,817 1,818

Emergency Medical Services 9,933,329 9,889,760 9,778,121 113,648

Sherlff 56,088,293 57,090,419 56,430,814 661,605
Total public safety 73,298,463 74,243,662 72,973,181 1,270,481

Judiclal:

Clerk of Court 3,353,451 3,353,658 3,030,759 322,609

Coroner 1,043,010 1,099,292 1,085,661 13,731

Magistrates 4,572,328 4,551,915 4,428,324 123,501

Master-In-Equity 568,283 572,083 559,872 12,211

Probats Court 1,983,221 1,967,146 1,925,370 41,776

8ollcitor 4,883,504 4,763,728 4,612,020 181,708
Total judiclal 16,483,885 15,307,822 15,641,908 665,010

Publlc Works:

Transportation Development 359,684 311,080 362,092 (51,912)

Public Works Department 7,248,463 7,282,182 7,082,832 :
Total public workes 7,808,147 7,603,262 7A425,824 177,438

Health and Welfare:

Iindigent Cars 1,387,718 1,388,718 1,386,220 488

Public Works - Mosqulto Abatement 1,658,462 1,710,100 1,626,218 83,882

State Agencles 329,859 304,859 274,909 29,960

Veterans Affairs 278,560 278,560 277,184 1,376
Total health and welfare 3,654,589 3,683,237 3,567,531 116,706

Culture and Recreation:

Charieston County Library 13,674,356 13,621,189 13,921,189 -
Total culture and recreation 13,874,355 13,921,189 13,921,189 -
Total expenditures 159,207,618 102,878,388 156,505,016 6,173,382

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 661,339 (2,721,914) 16,336,940 19,058,854

See notes to financlal statements.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Other financing sources {usas):
Transfere In $ 4385716 § 431,046 $ 885872 § 454,826
Transfers out (9,686,452) (17,563,802) {17,470,734) 83,068
Proceeds from eale of capial asseta 2,500 2,600 831 {1,969)
Total other financing
sourcas and (uses) (9,245,376) {17,120,258) (16,584,331) 636,925
Net change in fund balance {8,884,037) {19,842,170) (247,301) 19,584,779
Fund balance at beginning of year 52,506,024 52,596,024 §2,596,024 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 44,001,087 $ 32,763,854 $ 82348,633 $ 19,504,779

See notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATENMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Business-type Activiies - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Environmental Parking Other Internal Service
ASSETS Management Qarages Funds Total Funds
Current assets:
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents § 700 § 3100 $ 269,029 § 272,829 $ -
Pooled cash and cash aquivalents 3,630,434 9,913,619 13,544,083 21,980,456

Reatricted cash - current portion 1,611,385 1,611,385 -
Cash with flscal agent - - - - 125,000
Recslvables (net of allowancea
for uncollectibjes) 20,165,610 40,420 1,761,360 21,968,410 251,457
Note recelvable - current portion 67,856 - - 67,856 -
Due from other funds - - - - 843,974
Inventories - - - - 352,316
Total current assets 21,848,551 3,873,954 11,844,028 37,464,533 23,333,203
Noncurrent assoets:
Restrictad cash and cash equivalenta 51,340,204 - - 51,340,204 -
51,340,204 - - 51,340,204 -
Notes recelvable - non-current portion 148,640 - - 148,540 -
Deferred Issuance costs 94,005 56,166 41,806 191,917 -
Capital assets:
Land 1,800,810 2,350,320 - 3,060,930 -
Bulldings 3,654,455 11,859,212 9,554,391 25,068,058 1,085,683
Improvements other than bulldings 16,529,449 - 270,288 16,799,704 -
Machinery and equipment 15,438,933 630,204 2,217,166 18,208,303 28,562,148
Construction In progress 28,358 1,414,156 - 1,442,511 -
Leas accumulated depreciation {13,087,008) (4,285,992) (4.473,483) {21,026,463) (19,374,739)
Total capltal assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 24,164,794 11,987,900 7,568,348 43,721,043 8,913,083
Total noncurrent assets 75,747,543 12,044,066 7,810,158 95,401,764 8,913,003
Total assets $ 957.504,004 $& 18,718,020 $ 19,634,183 § 132,866,297 $ 32,246,296

See notes to finsncial statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmaljor Activities -
Environmental Parking Qther Intsmmal Service
LIABILITIES Management Garages Funds Total Funde
Current abllitles:
Accounts payable $ 23,000,230 ¢ 486,912 § 220,335 § 24,804485 § 3,970,623
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 195,156 32,208 255,188 482,558 129,518
Compensated absences - current 91,878 742 109,928 202,245 18,268
Intergovernmental payable 3,435 1,163 3,065,440 3,070,038 212,973
Dus to other funds 1,214,080 - - 1,214,050 -
Unearned revenue 2,118 - - 2,118 -
Accrued Intereat payable 83,417 14,678 12,114 110,209 6,891
Nots payablie - current - - - - 67,858
Lease payable - current - - - - 233,083
Cortificates of particlpation - current - 368,630 278,164 642,714 -
Revenue bonds - current restricted 1,611,385 - - 1,611,388 -
Accrual for landflll closure - current 297,000 - - 287,000 -
Total current llabilities 27,388,374 902,231 3,948,194 32,236,799 4,680,870
Noncurrent liabilities:
OPEB llability - - - - 13,833,426
Accrual for landfill closure 4,630,000 - - 4,650,000 -
Compensated absences 392,368 64,904 386,201 843,551 387,079
Lease payuble - - - - 271,783
Note payable - - - - 148,340
Certificates of particlpation (net of
unamortized discounts and deferred
amount on refunding) - 3,131,812 2,476,030 5,600,842 -
Revenue bonda (net of unamortized
discounts) - restricted 3,232,208 - - 3,232,288 -
Total noncurrent llablilities 8,274,654 3,196,496 2,864,231 14,335,381 14,640,808
Total llabllities 35,661,028 4,008,727 6,812,425 48,572,180 19,301,878
NET ASSETS
Investad In caplital assets, net of
related debt 19,321,121 8,486,888 4814138 32,025,114 8,169,871
Restrictad for construction 543,333 - - 543,333 -
Restricted for environmental trust 45,008,031 - - 45,008,031 -
Restricted for debt sarvice 2,558,652 - - 2,586,352 -
Unrestricted (5,498,971) 3,129,438 7,927,623 5,581,087 4,774,747
Total net assets $ 61933006 § 11,619,299 $ 12,741,758 $ 66,284117 § 12,944,618
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds related to businasa-type activities  (1,916,732)
AdJustment to reflect the elimination of Indirect coats charged by the governmental funds 235,501,481

H 2

See notes to flnanclal atatements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Govarnmental
Nonmaljor Activities -
Environmental Parking Other Internal Service
Management Garages Funds Total Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for sarvices $ 1,264,887 § 2 807.503 $ 10,560, 937 $ 14,853,387 § 35,611,375
User foos 23,438,036 23,438,036 -
Sale of racyclables 1,671,838 - 1,671,838 -
Other revenues 698,121 - 5.004 703,025 -
Total operating revenues 27,092,862 2,807,563 10,568,741 40,467,186 30,611,375
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 5,372,606 890,639 6,989,959 13,263,204 3,442,818
Contractual servicea 7,685,037 213,049 1,137,978 8,206,961 5,061,144
Materials and supplies 1,298,718 92,229 670,534 2,059,481 7,324,486
Utllidea 144,540 161,082 966,873 1,304,178 1,176,488
Repairs and maintenance 22,771 19,101 1,436,558 1,480,430 280,901
Rental expanses 483,504 - 248,918 730,812 23,449
Vehicie fleet chargea 2,611,410 6,591 36,575 2,654,505 102,420
Employee benefits - - - - 23,076,808
Other expoenses 1,045,468 31,502 3,976,749 4,453,718 1,210,468
Depreclation and amortization 2,307,303 330,160 484,502 3,191,988 2,034,048
Landfill closure 297,000 - - 297,600 -
Total operating expenses 21,497,356 1,744,333 16,400,343 36,642,032 44,511,571
Operating Income {loas) 6,598,526 1,083,230 (4,833,602) 1,828,154 (4,900,168)
Nonoperating revenuea {expensas):
Interest Income 13,441 20,087 51,806 83,303 84,97
interast expense (326,616) (208, 352) {215,402) (751,370) {64,068)
Intergovernmental revenues 163,221 603,006 768,317 -
Galn (lose) on diaposal of capltal assets 148,643 - - 18,643 184,958
Total nonoperating revenues
(axpensea) (131,311) (180,205) 441 499 120,893 185,801
Income (loss) bafora
tranafera 5,464,218 873,935 (4,392,103) 1,840,047 (4,714,298)
Tranafers out - (2,019,988) - (2,010,998) (266,640)
Transfers In 6,499 - 4,335,602 4342101 4,800,808
Change In net assets 5470,714 (1.148,063) (56,501) 4,288,150 (86.438)
Total net assets - beginning 58,462,352 12,765,358 12,798,288 13,034,053
Total net assets - anding $ 61,033,086 § 11,619,203 § 12,741,788 $ 12,944,618
Adjustment to reflect the elimination of Indirect
casts charged by governmental funds 2,807,922
Adjustment to reflect the conaolidation of internal
sarvice fund actvitisas related to enterprise funda 22,581
Change In net aasets of business-type activities $ 7,090,633

Seo notes to financial statements.
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PAGE 1 OF 2
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Businsss-iyps Acfivities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Actlvities -
Environmental Parking Other internal Service
Management Garages Funds Total Funds
Cash flows from opersting activities:
Cash recelved from customers $ 364876 $ 2788404 § 10,877,889 § 37029039 § 272,881
Cash racalpts from interfund aervices provided - - - - 39,161,701
Cash psymeants to supplisrs for goods
and asrvices 9,008,797 (191,173) (6,527,641) 3,240,083 (36,122,547)
Cesh payments to smployess for services (8,802,490) {877,117) (7,116,868) (13.4856,178) {3,380,374)
Net cash {used In) provided by
operating activities 27,828,903 1,718,204 (2,765,241) 28,781,948 921,641
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers In 8,499 - 4,338,802 4,342,101 4,890,808
Transfers (out) - (2,019,908) - (2,019,998) (205,948)
interfund advances (repayments) (19,068,693) - - (19,965,093) .
intergovernmental receipt 150.683 . 606,098 761,779 -
Net cash provided by
noncapital financing activities {19,822,511) {2,019,998) 4,840,898 {16,801,811) 4,024,880
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal pald on long-term debt (1,630,487) {673,389) (858,784) (2,75D,850) (266.236)
Intarest pald (982,532) (203,000) (167,608) (723,208) (68,011)
Praceeds from caplial lsase . . - - 83,282
Intarfund loan principel puyment recelved 83,910 - - 83,810 {63,910)
Procseds from sals of caplial apaste 48,792 - - 48,792 301,701
Acquisidon and construction of capitsl
assels (1,5608,791) (1,050,928) (32,828) {2,5690,346) (1,929,086)
Net cash used In caplfal and
related financing activities (3,277,088) (1,927,358) (755,098) (8,960,439) (1,640,180)
Cssh flows from Investing activities:
interest recelved 16,384 20,057 51,008 87,246 84,971
Net cash provided by Investing activities 15,384 20,087 651,805 97,240 64,971
Net Incraase (dscrease) In cash and cssh
equivalents 4,744,768 (2,200,089) 1,471,267 4,008,942 3,671,292
Cash and cash equivaienta st beginning of ysar 48,207,621 5,842,627 9,711,381 62,761,829 18,414,184
Cash and cash equivaients at and of yesr $ 52952980 § 23633534 § 10,182,048 § 088,768471 § 22,085,450
Reconclilation to balance sheet
Non-poolad cash and cash aquivsients s 700 ¢ 3100 $ 260,020 § 272820 $ -
Pooled cash and cssh aquivalents - 3,630,434 9,013,819 13,644,053 21,960,488
Restricted cash and cash sguivalents 82,061,589 - - 52,981,869 -
Cash with fiscal agent - - - - 128,000
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 052052280 6 3633834 ¢ 10,182648 § B0,780471 ¢ 22,086,45¢

See notes to financial etatements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Reconcliation of operating Income (Joes)

to net cash provided by (used In)
operating activities:

Opersting Incoms (lons)

Adjustments to reconclie operating Income (Ioss)
to net cash provided by (used In)
operating activities:
Deprecistion and smortization
Provialon for lsndfill closure
Provision for uncollectible sccounts
Changes In assats and llabllities:
(Increass) decreass In receivabiss
(Increase) decrease In inventories
Increase (decrssaae) in accounts payable
Increase {decresse) in accrued payroll
Decreass In deferred revenue
Increase In accrual for landflll closure

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by {used in) operating
activitiss

PAGE 2 OF 2

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Businasa-type Activities - Entarprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Actlvities -
Environmentsd Parking Other internal Service
Manggsment Garages Funda Total Funds
3 5608628 ¢ 1,003,230 § (4,833,602) $§ 1,825,184 § (4,900,168)
2,367,303 330,140 494,502 3,191,968 2,634,048
297,000 . . 297,000 -
(299,134) - - (200,14) -
(3,430,647) {21,089) 311,128 (3,140,688) (186.613)
- - - - (60,854)
23,130,244 332,361 1,378,341 24,840,946 3,173,218
{120,004) 13,522 (115,610) (231,872) 62,241
1,878 - - 1,878 -
287,000 - - 207,000 -
22,233,457 654,074 2,088,381 24,088,702 5,621,037

$§ 2782698 $ 1715204 §

(27665,241) § 20,701,948 § 921,041
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

ASSETS

Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents $§ 32,482,212
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 19,668,152
Pooled Investments 32,640,405
Total assets $ 84,687,769
LIABILITIES
Due to component units $ 609,333
Intergovernmental payable 53,411,761
Due to third parties 30,666,678
Total liabliides $ 84,687,769

See notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS

Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents
Inveatments

Recelvables (net of allowancés for uncollectibles)

Due from primary government

Inventories

Prepeld items and deposits

Deferred lssuance costs

Other noncurrent assets

Restricted nssets:
Cash and cash squivalents

Capital assets:
Land and sassments - nondepreclabls
Construction In progress - nondepraclable
Artwork and other - nondepraclable
Bulldings
Improvemants other than bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Library materials
Accumulated depreciation

Total assats

LIABILITI

Accounts payable
Accruad payroll and fringe benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Intorest paysble
Uneamed revenue
Noncurrent llabliltes:
Due within one year
Due In more than one year

Total llabilities
NET ASSETS

{nvested In capital assats, nat of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service

Capital Improvement program

Donors
Unreatricted

Total nat ansets

June 30, 2011
Charieston Charleston Cooper Rlver James
County County Park & leland
Library PRC Playground PSD
$§ 2846319 § 27220618 $ 13470 $ 7,245,363
808,044 15,748,665 180,553 5,184,785
- 120,981 1,381 79,975
35,483 526,080 - 02,249
91,178 141,075 - -
- - - 179,878
- 3,414,641 - 1,724,666
- 73,690,060 66,161 544,230
- 455,746 - 1,281,939
1 1 |m - - -
- 45,384,961 183,786 1,832,882
- 18,036,858 - 46,064
2,744,822 8,740,878 370,933 7,024,609
= 4-3“.316 - 31.3‘4.5“
22,339,056 - - -
(21,624,433) (34,462,386) (538,418) (15,984,688)
6,531,487 162,685,094 257,888 48,317,478
530,345 1,086,242 - 301,087
135,419 175,916 - 73,714
- 217,718 - 35,628
18,528 16,385,998 144,857 4,690,008
36,430 2,995,188 - 1,017,718
980,551 25,468,711 - 8,481,291
1,701,273 45,329,768 141,887 14,599,753
3,470,445 89,740,030 82,462 24,179,478
- 11,989,189 - 1,779,184
- 4,158,155 - -
27,310 - - -
1,332,439 11,867,943 33,547 §,758,060
4830194 §$ 117,558328 116,009 § 31,717,722

See notes to financial statements.



Charleaton

St Andrew’s County
North Parish St John's $t Puul's Volunteer
Charleston Parks & Fire Fire Rescus Squad
District Playground District District Dec. 31, 2010 Totsls
$ 518,747 § 891,487 § 1131645 § 945,718 § 414,893 § 40,928,260
- - 3,008,777 72,403 - 3,079,180
822,236 1,050,637 9,946,392 4,193,107 - 37,304,419
8,485 84,758 245,183 96,002 - 809,333
- - - - - 623,812
- 18,355 107,665 80,762 21,162 439,229
- - 28,068 48,727 - 254,873
- 40,000 - - - 40,000
- - 80,684 1,298,848 - 6,518,837
71,068 519,000 316,723 658,873 87,878 78,953,794
- - - 420,028 - 2,165,713
- - - - - 11,000
481,541 5,410,497 8,779,768 1,871,832 311,761 60,956,986
- - - - 34,747 19,120,570
890,381 1,386,769 8,030,221 3,783,069 1,928,042 32,870,424
- - - - - 42,249,469
- - - - - 22,339,058
(1,174,317) (3,380,259) (5,311,9085) {2,200,353) (1,551,763) (66,228,522)
1,718,181 8,681,232 23,361,785 11,256,844 1,246,521 259,236,233
- 42,992 154,183 96,509 3,707 2,218,475
- 62,424 88,051 102,927 - 638 451
16,681 2,664 - - - 19,645
- 1,197 117,482 27,685 - 400,005
918,810 1,143,822 9,731,976 3,818,810 50,000 35,879,609
- 215,768 1,149,146 434,187 - 8,848,404
- 393,400 5,302,560 3,133,018 - 43,779,831
935,491 1,862,567 18,543,398 7,613,308 83,707 88,781,120
- 256 248,313 374,677 - 14,391,619
- - - 839,119 - 4,243,274
- - - - - 27,310
513,087 426,487 3,394,832 364,643 1,192,814 24,678,762

$ 782660 § 3798685 § 6,818,387 § 3643338 § 1,192814 § 1704585115




Chariasion Comnly Lgry
Govmrmet] acthvifies:
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Chartsston County PRC
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Culturs and mcreation
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTK CAROLINA.
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTITIES - DISCRETELY FRESENTED COMPOWENT UMITS
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2041

Frogeam Favasuss Mot [Expenss) Revenue snd Changes in Mat Assets
At Andrew's Chern County
Qparating Capital Chariaston Charaaton ‘Coopar Miver Jamuy Moslh Parnh B Johin's W Pamy Volumar
Charges for Gramts g Graty and Caumty Comnly Pk & Tebared Chaarisphn Paalor & Fire Fim Fuscun Symml

[miep bt Conkribart Lirary PRE Plygroumd ] Diwirict Plygroard Distric] Diwtalict Duc. ¥, 30 Total
15,10 26 § [ 8, ] § 14,1897 $ L AL 9 o 1 - $ - § - L - % - 3 - § - T
13,086,230 - - 10,728,725 - (2,375, 586) - - - - . - [2.375,506)
2,051,006 206,003 - - - (2,224,202 - . - . . . 2,224,202
431,528 . - - - (431,620) - - - - - - {436,620
DT - - - - [l | - - - - - - 0a7.540)
17,120,496 [T - 10IIN - {0,588, 507) - - . - _ (5.0e,007)
1143780 12000347 - - - {1.ABLTI8 - - - - - - {1.224,700)
E E ] 12,50, 78 - 10,700,725 - 502,70 - - - - - - AZLTEN
13815 - - - - - {138 - - - - - Hamn
200073 - - - - - LAY - - - - = {200.571)
HLM - - - - - {219,500 - - - - - |219,000)
TIA VT - - . . - - FTeIT} - - - - s
3742127 - - - - - . {371242n - - - - (32420
1,586,080 - - - - - . {1,805,0600 - - - - (1,885,080)
57,740 - - - - - - (§7.740) B - - - {87,740}
[¥trr - - - - - - (6.461,744) - - - - (6.4453,744)
4, M3, 4997 303 . - - . . 167,413 - - - - HTA1Y
10,081,004 4,897,201 - - - - - (5.108.211) - - - - {5.,288,33)
nwem - - - - - - - (e - - - (13,660}
[ 8 -] - - - - - - - et sEr] - - - (344,224}
N = - - - - - - (5N - - - {345,830
1,90,1 - - - - - - - 1,204,184 - - - 11,209,704}
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPORENT UNITS

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SQUTH CAROLINA

For the Year Ended June 33, 2014

Progmm Het (Expenise) and Changes i Mot Asscts
St. Andraw's Chas County
Dparating Caphml Charaston Chayiegian EeE 0t LT e Notth Parish it Joln's L Pael's Yoluntesr
Charges for Srapts and Granim and Coary Couirly Pk & Iolnnd Clnriwsion Paris & Flm ] et Squad
= L Coniribuch Coniribdions Lhowy PR Plryorsund FaD District Flygroand Diatrict Dintrict Dac. 11, 2000 Tolal
LR AL - L AL - 8 - & - 8§ - 8 - = ¥ (iAeamay @9 - n - 1 - &  Dnawsssa
. 41,50 - - - - - - - H12,840) - - H112808)
a0 ~ - - - - - - - AT - - - 5027}
1.7, 78 A1,I 31u - - - - - - 1, 208430) - . - . A0}
1,383 646 1,075,422 1278.514) - {278,514}
AL 1,820,202 Lol - - - - - {1,563,543) - - {1,563,34%)
10,435,508 ~ - 4,000 - - - HO,372.008) - - (10,372 09¢)
(1.7 ] - - M - - - - 4,561,609) - [4.581,60%)
1AM - mam - - - - - - - AL i, 188
ST 8 oamaa 5 ecems § s A sy
Sumesal Rerbauet:
Fropary tame - 1741 184813 370,76 141,288 1 1038124 434211 - naaLId
ersivants kmvenlovy tax and
amnuincierers deprecislion - | X re] f 1) N Himd anm 18,708 13742 - 1,104,530
FrRCAka foz - - - - T} - - - - 448m
Smaty sol reviricied 48
apaciic pregemm - 101 - - - - - - - z1:
Umrnohictad hreadERany sarmisgs - "o - o .. - | 1}, ] 100 1My LA
Guina on wals of cuplinl seasls - - - B - - - 16 008 EE 1080
Fusximining awd dosations - - - - - - - - . wEn
Mincallsnsoen - an i1 12 5,00 - - 15190 Ly 1,008 e,
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Introduction

The financlal statements of the County of Charleston (County) have been prepared in corformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The County's
reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. Proprietary funds, governmental and business-type activities, and simllar component
units apply Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions Issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting princlples and practices
are discussed in subsequent sections of this Note. The remainders of the notes are organized to
provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the County's flnanclal activities for the flecal
year ended June 30, 2011.

B. Financlal Reporting Entity

The County of Charleston, South Carolina, was established by the State of South Carolina on April 8,
1948, under the provislons of Act 681 of 1942. The County operates under a Council-Administrator form
of government and provides the following services: public safety (sheriff and fire), highways and streets,
sanjtation, health and social services, culfural and recreational programs, public Improvements,
planning and zoning, courts, economic development and general administrative services. As required
by GAAP, these flnancial statements present the County (the Primary Government) and its component
units, entities for which the County is considered to be financially accountable or for which exclusion of
a component unit would render the financial statements misleading.

The Charleston Publlc Facilities Corporation has been included as a blended component unit because
the County appoints the entire board, recelves all benefits and burdens of Its activities and is fiscally
responsible for its operation. The Charleston Development Corporation has been included as a blended
component unit because the County has a majority representation on the board and receives al of the
benefits and burdens of ks activities. The varlous discretely presented component units were included
since they are flscally dependent upon the County for the levy of property tax revenues, approval of
annual operating budgets, authorization of all general obligation debt issues, or as in the case of the
Charleston County Volunteer Rescue Squad Inc., receives substantlally all of their funding from the
County. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are In subsiance, part of the
government's operations; therefore, data from these unite are combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported In a separate
column In the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
County. Each blended and discretely presented component unlt, except for Charleston County
Volunteer Rescue Squad, Inc., has a June 30 year-end. The Charleston County Volunteer Rescue
Squad, Inc. has a December 31 year-end.

The County appoints the board of the Charleston County Housing Authority but has not Included the

Authority as a component unit because there is no financial accountability or influence by the County
over the Authority.
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Component units are reported In the County’s Comprehenslve Annual Financial Report (CAFR) as shown In

the following table:

Blended Component Units Reported with

Brief Description of Activities and

Telephone: (843) 958-4600

Charleston Development Corporation
Administrative Offlce Address:

4045 Bridge View Drive

Suite B226

North Charleston, SC 28405
Telephone: (843) 958-4600

for essential County functions in
connection with the issuance of tax-
exempt Certificates of Participation
fo finance such facililes. The
Corporation Is governed by a Board
of Directors who is appointed to
staggered tarms by County Councll.
The Corporation exists solely for
the benefit of Charleston County.

Non-Profit Corporate entlty
established September 18, 2004, to
further human, soclal, and
economic development In the
County of Charleston, to promote a
healthier and safer community, and
apply for funding that the County
would otherwise not be eliglble to
recelve. The Corporation Is
governed by a Board of Direclors
which shall consist of one member
of Charleston County Councll, two
Charleston County employees and
two Charleston County cltlzens.
The Corporation exists solely for
the beneflt of Charleston County.

the Primary Government Relationship to the County Reporting Funds
Charleston Public Facilities Corporation | Single purpose corporate entity | Debt Service Fund -
Administrative Offlce Address: established on July 31, 1890, which | Certificates of Participation
4045 Bridge View Drive Is prohiblted from engaging in any | Enterprise Fund -

Room 429 business other than to consfruct, | Parking Garages

North Charleston, SC 28405 own and lease facllitles to be used | DAODAS

Special Revenue Fund -
Charleston Development
Corporation

Discretely Presented Component Units Brief Description of Activities and Relatlonship to the County

Charleston County Llbrary (CCL) The Charleston County Library System was created by South
Administrative Office Address: Carolina Legiglation In 1879 as part of Charleston County
68 Calhoun Street Government. Its primary purpose Is to provide library services to

Charleston, SC 29401
Telephone: (843) 805-6801

the cltizens of Charleston County and bookmobile services In the
rural areas of the County. The Library operates under an 11
member Board of Trustees which is appointed by County Council.
County Councll approves the budget and all general obligation debt
for the Library.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Charleston County Park and Recreation
Commission (CCPRC)

Administrative Office Address:

861 Riverland Drive

Charleston, SC 29412

Telephone: (843) 762-2172

Brief Dascription of Activities and Relationship to the Gounty

The Commisslon was created under the provisions of Act 1595 of
the South Carolina Legislature on August 3, 1972. The Commission
Is empowered to acquire land, establish recreational facilities, and
provide recreational activities within Charleston County. The
Commission I8 governed by a seven member board which is
appointed by the Governor upon racommendation of the County
Council. County Council approves the operating budget, lavies
faxes, and authorizes the Issuance of all general obligation debt for
the Commission.

Cooper River Park & Playground
Commission (CRPPC)

Administrative Office Address:

PO Box 71846

N. Charleston, SC 20415
Telephone: (843) 7470776

The Commission was created on Aprll 27, 1942, under Act 640 of
the South Carolina Legislature to provide parks and recreation
facilitics for use by citizens reslding within the geographic
boundarles of the Commission. The Commission is governed by a
six member Board of Trustees appointed by the North Charleston
District and the Cooper River School District. County Council
approves the operating budget, levies taxes, and authorizes the
Issuance of all general obligation debt for the Commission.

North Charleston District (NCD)
Administrative Office Address:
P.O. Box 63009

Charleston, SC 20419
Telephone: (843) 764-3072

The District was created as a public service district In 1872 by Act
1768 of the South Carolina Legislature. The District provides fire,
sanltation, sireet lighting, and cleaning services to the residents
within Its geographic boundarles. The District is governed by a nine
member Commission appointed by the Governor through
recommendations of the City of North Charlesion and ihe
Legislative Delegation. County Council approves the operating
budget, levies taxes, and authorizes the issuance of all general
obligation debt for the District.

James Island Public Service District
(JIPSD)

Administrative Offlce Address:

P.O. Box 12140

Charlesfon, SC 29422

Telephone: (843) 795-9080

The District was created by Act 498 of the General Assembly of
South Carolina in 1961. The District provides sanltation, flre
protection, and sewer treatment services to the residents within Its
geographic boundaries. The District is governed by a seven
member Commission elected by the residents of the service area.
County Council approves the operating budget, levies taxes, and
authorlzes the Issuance of all general obllgation debt for the
Disftrict.
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St. Andrew’s Parish Parks & Playground
Commission (SAPPPC)

Administrative Offlce Address:

P.O. Box 31825

Charleston, SC 29407

Telephone: (843) 783-4360

The Commission was created by the General Assembly of the
State of South Carofina in 1945. The Commission has the power to
create, develop, maintain, and operate a system of parks and
playgrounds for the use and benefit of the residents within its
jurisdictional area. The Commission is governed by five members
appointed by the Governor upon recommendation of the County
Council. County Council approves the operating budget, levies
taxes, and authorizes the issuance of all general obligation debt for
the Commission.

Discretely Presented Component Units

St. John's Fire District (SJFD)
Administrative Office Address:
P.O. Box 56

Johns Island, SC 29457
Telephone: (843) 559-9194

Brief Description of Actlvities and Relationship to the County

The Fire District was created by Act 369 of the South Carolina
General Assembly on Aprll 9, 1959. The Fire District provides fire
protection services to residents within its geographic boundaries.
The Fire Disfrict is governed by a seven member commission
appointed by the Govemor upon recommendation of the County
Councll. County Councll approves the operating budget, levies
taxes, and authorlzes the Issuance of all general obligation debt for
the Fire Disfrict.

St. Paul's Fire District (SPFD)
Administrative Office Address:
P.O. Box 65

Hollywood, SC 29449
Telephone: (843) 888-8450

The Fire District was formed under Act 440 of the South Carolina
General Assembly in 1949. The Fire District provides fire protection
services to the western portion of the County. The Flre District Is
govemned by a seven member commission appointed by the
Governor upon recommendation of the County Council. County
Council approves the operating budget, levies taxes, and
authorizes the Issuance of all general obligation debt for the Fire
District.

Charleston County Volunteer
Rescue Squad, Inc. (CCVYRS)
Administrative Offlce Address:
P.0. 8012

North Charleston, SC 24906
Telephone: (843) 225-7728

The Rescue Squad recelved Its Charter January 30, 1873, from the
State of South Carolina. The primary purpose Is to provide
volunteer rascue eervices for the cltizens of Charleston County.
The rescue squad Is exempt from federal and siate Income taxation
under Section 501(c) (3) of the U.S. Intemal Revenue Code and is
not a private foundation. The rescue squad fs economically
dependent on the County.

The complete financial statements for each component unit may be obtained from thelr adminlstrative

offices at the addresses stated above.
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C. Basls of Presentation

The County's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement
of net asseis and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detalled
level of financial information. The accounts of the County and s component units are organized and
operated on the basls of funds. A fund is an independent flscal and accounting enfity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial
requirements. There are three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and flduclary.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities dieplay Infformation about the County as a
whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary
funds. The activity of the internal service funds Is eliminated to avold "doubling up” revenues and
expenses. The statements distinguish between those activities of the County that are governmental and
those that are considered business-type acflivities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities for the County at year-end. The statement of activiies presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the County’s governmental activities
and for the business-type activites of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
assoclated with a service, program or department and thersfore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the reclpient for the goods or services offered by
the program, granis and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operatonal or capital
requirements of a particular program, and Interest eamed on grants that Is required to be used to
support a partlcular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues and all taxes are
presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions.

The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues Identifles the extent to which each business
segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County.

Fund Financial Statements

The County segregates transactions related to certaln County functions or activities In separate funds in
order to ald flnanclal management and to demonstrate legal compllance. Fund financlal statements are
designed to present financlal Information of the County at thls more detailed level. The focus of
governmental and enterprise fund financlal atatements Is on major funds. Each major fund is presented
in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Intermal
service funds are combined and the totals are presented in a single column on the face of the
proprietary fund statements. Fiduclary funds are reported by type.
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Fund Accounting
The major fund types are:

Governmental funds are used to account for general governmental activities. Governmental fund
reporting focusas on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets
are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must
be used. Current liabilites are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference
between governmental fund assets and llabillties is reported as fund balance. The following are the
County's major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the primary operating fund of the County. This fund accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except thase required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and Interest on long-term debt of governmental funds.

General Obligation Bond Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for financial resources to be used
to complete several construction projects funded by bond issues. These include the Consolidated
Dispatch Center, Detention Center expanslion, and radlo system Improvements.

Transportaetion and Road Sales Tax Spec/al Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for revenues
generated by the half cent sales tax for roads, public transportation, and greenbelts.

Proprietary funds reporting focus is on the determination of operating iIncome, changes in net assets,
financlal position, and cash flow. Proprietary funds are classified as elther enterprise or Internal service.
These funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Ravenues are recorded when eamed, and expenseas are recorded at the time liabliities are Incurred.

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and
operated in a manner simllar {o private business. In the enterprise funds a fee is charged to external
users. The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

Environmental Management - This fund Is used to account for the County’s solld waste disposal
activities, currently conslsting of the following:

1. Incineration plant service agreement including ash disposal, which was terminated December 2009.

2. Landfill to dispose of Inclneration plant overflow and all county dry goods and construction
materlals.

3. Service contracts for hauling and transfer of municipal solid waste.

This fund Is also used to account for the County's racycling operations, which conslst of the following:
1. Curbside collection of recyclables In the urban areas of the County.
2. Drop-box collection In all areas of the County.
3. Operation of materials recovery fachity.
4. Yard waste mulch facility.

These services are funded from collection of a countywide user fee, tipping fees at the landfill, and sale
of recyclables.
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Charleston County Council elected not to renew the service agreement with Montenay for the
incinerator that ended November 30, 2009. The waste-to-enargy facliity has been dismantled according
to the terms of the facility site lease removing all buildings and equipment improvements. Charleston
County and Montenay are currently negotiating the final adjustment to the operation and maintenance
fees according to the service agreement.

Parking Garages - This fund Is used to account for the operation, financing, and construction of parking
facilities. The County has operated a 454 spacs parking garage adjacent to the County's administrative
and court facilltles, which also serves area hotels, restaurants, and others since the 1970's, During
1992 the fund recelved $12,375,000 of the proceeds from Charleston Public Facilities Corporation (a
component unlt of the County) Certificates of Particlpation fo construct a 1,608 space-parking garage
adjacent to the Charleston Memorlal Hospltal. During 1986 the fund received $8,884,000 of the
proceeds from the 1995 Certificates of Participation to construct an additional 438 space parking
garage adjacent to the existing City of Charleston Cumberland Street garage to service the future
Judicial Center. The County assumed the operation of the existing Cumberiand Street garage in April
1998 from the CHy of Chareston. During flscal year 2004 the parking garage adjacent to the
Charleston Memarial Hospltal was sold to the Medical Universlty Hospltal Authorlty.

Internal] Service Funds - These funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department to other departments of the County, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement
basis.

Fleet Management - This fund is used to account for all operations of the County’s centrally
administered vehicle operation. Functions Included within thie operation are writing the specifications
and asslsiing In the purchase of all on and offroad vehicles and equipment; owning all vehicles and
equipment not specifically used in other County proprietary operatlon; maintaining all vehlcles and
equipment; operating a County-wide fuel distribution and monltoring system; operating a fleet of pool
cars for those departments not directly assigned vehicles; and operating a vehicle parts warehouse.

Office Support Services - This fund Is used to account for the centrally administered mail pick-up and
delivery service, duplicating machines, postage metering service, and records management. Records
management includes establishing records retention schedules for all County operations, centralized
storage of records, and a centralized microfilming operation.

Telecommunications - This fund Is usaed to account for the centrally administerad telecommunications
system, which includes pagers and cellular telephones.

Workers’ Compensation - This fund i8 used to account for the costs of staffing a workers’ compensation
divislon as well as the cost of providing Insurance through the S.C. Association of County
Commissioners Self-Insurance Fund. Funding Is provided by levying a percentage charge against all
departmental payrolls. In fiscal year 1996, Insurance was converted to self-insurance coverage for all
claims less than $100,000.

Employee Benefits - This fund is used to account for costs of providing health and life Insurance to the
County’s employees and retirees. Funding is provided by a percentage charge agalnst all departmental
payrolls and payments ftom retirees. The fund is administered by seven trustees; the Finance Director
and Human Resources Director as psrmanent members, the Chalrman of the Employee Insurance
Commttee for the duration of term in offlce, and for two year periods, trustees appointed by the 1)
Elected Officlals, 2) Appointed Officials, 3) County Administrator and 4) Assistant Administrator of
Finance. As of January 1, 1893, the Trustees had contracted with the South Carolina Department of
Insurance to provide all of the County's health and life Insurance.
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Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. This fund accounts for
assefs held by the entity as an agent on behalf of othars. Agency funds are custodial In nature (assets
equal liabililes) and do not Involve the measurement of results of operations. The County's only
fiduclary funds are agency funds.

Agency Funds - This fund primarily consists of monies collected and disbursed by the County Treasurer
(an elected, constitutionally mandated official) for various governmental units and texing entities within
Charleston County’s borders as defined by South Carolina law. These monies are not under the control
of Charleston County Council. This fund also consists of monles administered by several elected,
appolinted and other officials who, by nature of thelr position, collect and disburse cash. These offlclals
consist of the Revenue Collections Diractor, Clerk of Court (who administers both Clerk of court and
Famlly Court funds), Delinquent Tax Collector, Family Court, Magistrates, Master-In-Equity, Probate
Court Judge, Sheriff, and Solicitor.

Component units are either legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the County
are financially accountable, or legally separate organizations for which the nature and significance of Its
relationship with the County is such that exclusion would causa the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or Incomplete. Component unit disclosures represent a consolidation of various fund types.

D. Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financlal Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets and llabliitles assoclated with the
operation of the County are Included on the statement of net assets.

Fund Financlal Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financlal
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances reports on the sources (l.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (l.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) of current flnanclal resources. This approach differs from the
manner In which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financlal statemants therefore include reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental
funds.

E. Basls of Accounting
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financlal racords and reported
on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Governmental Funds use the modified accrual basls of accounting.
Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basls of accounting. Differences In the accrual and

the modified accrual basls of accounting arise on the recognlition of revenue, the recording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and recalves essentially equal value Is recorded on the accrual
basis when the exchange takes place. On a modifled accrual basis, revenue ks recorded In the flscal
year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the
resources will be collected within the current flscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay llabilltles of the current flscal year. For the County, avallable means
expected to be recalved within sixty days of flscal year-end with respect to property taxes and one
year afiter flscal year-end for all other govarnmental revenues.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving aqual value in
return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes Is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donatlons Is recognized In the fiscal year In which all ellgibllity requirements have
been satisfled. Eligibllity requirements Include timing requirements which specify the year when the
resources are required to be used or the year when use Is first permitted, matching requirements in
which the County must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements in which the resources are provided to the County on a reimbursement basie. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must be avallable before k can be
recognized.

Under the modifled accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and avallable at year-end: delinquent taxes collected within 80 days of fiscal year end,
sale_s tax, grants, Interest, accommodations fees, intergovermmental revenue, and charges for
services.

Unearnaed/Deferred Revenue - Deferred and unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized
before revenue recognition criterla have been satisfled.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of December 31, 2010, but which were
levied to finance fiscal year 2012 operations have been recorded as deferred revenue. Grants and
entiiements received before the eligiblity requirements are met are also recorded as deferred
revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, recelvables that will not be collected within the available
period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time
they are incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting Is on decreases in net
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expendltures are generally recognized In the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due. Allocatlons of cost, such as depreclation and amortization,
are not recognized In the governmental funds.
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F. Assets, Liabllitles and Equity
1. Cash and Investments

The County maintains and controls several major cash and investment pools which the funds of the
primary government share. Each fund's portion of a pool is presented on its respective balance sheets
as "pooled cash and cash equivalents.” In addition, non-pooled cash and Investments are separately
held and reflacted in the respeclive funds as “"non-pooled cash and cash equivalents” and
“Investments,” some of which are restricted assets.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposlis, and short-term
investments. For purposes of the Proprietary Funds' statement of cash flows, all short-term highly
liquid Investments, including restricted assets, with original maturilee of three months or less from the
date of acquisition are considered to be cash equivalents.

South Carolina State law limits Investments fo those authorized by South Carolina Code of Laws
Section 6-5-10. These state statues authorize investments In the following:

Obligations of the Unlted States and agencies thereof.

General obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of Its political units.

Savings and loan association deposlis to the extent insured by the Federal Deposlt Insurance
Corporation.

Certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by securities of the type
described in (1) and (2) above held by a third party as escrow agent or custodian, at a market
value not less than the amount of certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements so
secured, Including Interest.

5. No load open and closed-end portfollos of certain investment companies with issues of the US
Government.

P oON=

The County and s component units have certain funds Invested with the South Carolina State
Treasurer's Oifice which establlshed the South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool)
pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code. The Pool Is an Investment trust fund, In which
public monles In excess of current needs which are under the custody of any county treasurer or any
govermning body of a political subdivision of the State may be deposited. The Pool is a 2a 7-ike pool
which Is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment
company, but has a polkcy that It will operate in a manner conslstent with the SEC’s Rule 2a 7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1840. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(‘GASB") Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Certain Investments end for
External Investment Poals”, Investments are carmried at fair value determined annually based upon
quoted market prices. The total fair value of the Pool Is apportioned to the entitles with funds Invested
on an equal basis for each share ownad, which are acqulred at a cost of $1.00.

2. Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the flscal year are referred to as elther "due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portlon of
Interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (l.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide statements as "internal balances".
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All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. The
allowance for trade accounts receivable is computed based upon an estimate of collections within
each aging category. The allowance for property taxes recelvable Is based upon a composite average
of each delinquent tax year's collections to the outstanding balance at the beginning of the fiscal year.

The County bills and collects property taxes for itsalf and all other taxing entities within the County.
Property taxes are recognized in the period for which they are levied and avallable for financing
current expenditures. Property taxes receivable represents current and delinquent real and personal
taxes for the past ien years, less an allowance for amounts estimated to be uncollectible. All net
property taxes receivable at year-end, except those collected within 60 days, are recorded as deferred
revenue and thus not recognized as revenue until collected in the governmental funds. Taxes on real
property and certain personal property attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of January 1.
Taxes are levled and billed the following September on all proparly other than vehicles and are
payable without penalty until January 15 of the following year. Penaltles are assessed on unpaid taxes
on the following dates: January 18 - 3 percent, February 1 - an additional 7 percent, March 16 - an
additional 5 percent. On March 16, the property tax bills are turned over to the delinquent tax office
and the properties are subject to sale. Taxes on licensed motor vehicles are levied during the month
when the taxpayer's vehicle license registration Is up for renewal. The County must provide proof of
payment to the South Carolina Department of Transportation before that agency will renew the
taxpayer's vehicle license.

The County charges a user fee to real property owners end certaln commerclal and governmental
entitles providing revenues for a portion of the County's solid waste collection and disposal effort (e.g.,
incineration, landfill and recydling). Tipping fees charged fo certain commerclal and governmental
entities are also included. Annual charges to real propeity owners are billed In the fall for the
subsequent calendar year, but are recognized in full in the year of biling. An allowance for
uncollectible accounts is established based upon an historical estimate of the collections within each
customer category: residentlal, commerclal, governmental or housing agencles.

The County also charges an annual storm water fee to real property owners In unincorporated areas
and certain municipalities. Thie fee funds the Couniy’s siorm water management program, which is
now required under federal regulations. An allowance faor uncollectible accounts is established based
upon historical estimates.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Hems

Inventorles are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental
fund-type inventories are recorded as expendliures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepald items In both government-wide and fund financial statements.

In the governmental fund statements, reported Inventories and prepald Items are equally offset by a

nonspendable fund balance which Indicates that they do not constitute "avallable spendable
resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.
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4. Restricted Assels

Certain assets of the County’s Debt Service and Enterprise Funds and component units derived from
proceeds of varlous General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds and Certiflcates of Particlpation are
set aslde for thelr repayment or earmarked by the Trustee for speciic purposes. These assets are
classifled as restricted assets on the balance sheet in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements, because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. All restricted assets are
considered expendable.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (8.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns In the govarnment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an inltial, Individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful Iife in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost If purchased or constructed. Donated capltal assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repalrs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the life of the assets are not capltalized by governmental or business-type activides.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activitles Is Included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest was capitalized for the year ended June
30, 2011.

All reported capital assets except land and certain infrasgucture assets are depreclated.
Improvemenis are depreclated over the remalning useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful
lives for infrastructure were estimated based on the County's historlcal records of necessary
improvements and replacement. Depreclation Is computed using the straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Years
Buildings 45
Buildings Improvements 10- 45
Improvements other than bulldings 10- 48
Public Domaln Infrastructure 20-50
Vehicles S
Office Equipment 5-10
Computer Equipment 3-5
Other Equipment 5-12
Landfill Land 10-20
Sewer Systems 25-50
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6. Long-term Obligations

In the govermment-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premlums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
Deferred refunding costs reprasent the difference betwesn the reacquisition price and the net camrying
value of the refunded debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premlums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current perlod. The face amount of debt Issued Is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums recelved on debt Issuances are reported as other financing
sources whlile discounts on debt issuances are reported as other flnancing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds recelved, are reported as debt service
expanditures.

7. Compensated Absences

It Is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. There is no liabllity for unpald accumulated sick leave since the County does not have a
policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the County. All vacation pay is
recorded when accrued by the employse in the government-wide statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported In governmental funds only if they have matured; for example, as a result of the
employee resignations and retirements.

8. Fund Equity
Govemment-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed In three components:

1. Invested In capital assets, net of related debt — Conslsts of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreclation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or
impravement of those assets.

2, Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on thelr use elther by (1)
external groupe such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of the other
governments; or (2) law through constltutional provislons or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "invested in capital
assets, net of related debt” or “restricted.”

Fund Statements

The County has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions (required implementation date of June 2011). This Statement establishes criteria for
classifying governmental fund balances Into specifically defined classlfications. Classifications are
hlerarchical and are based primarily on the extent to which the County ls bound to honor consiraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in the funds may be spent. Application of the Statement
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requires tha County to classify and repart amounts in the appropriate fund balance classifications. The
County’s accounting and flnance policles are used to Interpret the nature and/or requirements of the
funds and thelr corresponding asslgnment of restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Fund
balances are classified as fallows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not In a spendable form, such
as Inventory or prepald Insurance, or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact — such as a frust.

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of County ordinances,
state or federal laws, or externally Inposed conditions by grantors or creditors — such as a milllage
adopted to pay the County's debt.

Committed — Amounts constrained to speclfic purposes by the County itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., County Councll). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless County Counci takes the same highest level action to remove or
change the constraint.

Assigned — Amounts the County intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by an
officlal or body to which County Council delegates the authority.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

The County permits funds fo be expended In the following order: Commiited, Assigned, and
Unassigned.

9. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the County’s management
to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and llabllitles and disclosure of contingent assets and liabliities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expensas during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

10. Net Assets

Net Assets represent the difference between assets and liabillties. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capltal assets, net of accumulated depreclation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or Improvement of those
assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations Imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by
credliors, grantors, laws, or regulations of other govemments.

The County applies restricted resources first when an expense s Incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. As of June 30, 2011, $22,251,532 of net assets Is
restricted by enabling legislation.

11. Operaling Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the

proprietary funds. For the County, these revenues are charges for services for golld waste disposal,
recycling, parking garages, E-811 communication system, radlo communication syatem, revenue
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collections, and the activity of the programs administered by the Department of Alcohol and Other
Drug Abuse Services (DAODAS), vehicle maintenance, telephone service, and insurance programs.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary
activity of the fund.

12. Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange fransactlons between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without requirement for repayment are reported as interfund tranefers. Interfund transfers are reported
as other financing sources/uses In governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses In
proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the
funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financlal statements.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basls consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) for the General Fund and certaln Speclal Revenue Funds Including Accommodations, Child
Support Enforcement, Economic Development, Educatlon, Fire Districts, Hazardous Materlals
Enforcement, Public Defender, Storm Water Drainage, Sheriff, Solicitor, and Victim Notification Funds.
The balance of the Speclal Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds are budgeted over the life of
the grant or project. Formal budgetary policles are not employed for the Debt Service Funds because
effective budgetary control is alternatively achleved through General Obligation Bond Indenture
provisions and the base lease agresments governing the Certificates of Participation. Certain
reclasses have been made to the general fund presentation of the budget.

All agencles of the County and lts component units must submit requests for appropriationa to the
County Administrator by March 15 along with revenue estimates so that a budget may be prepared. By
May 1, the proposed budgets are presented to County Councll for review. The Councll holds public
hearings and adopts the final budgets by July 1 through passage of an ordinance.

The legal level of budgetary control is determined by County Councll at the individual fund level.
Expenditures by department, sub-organizational level and major category, i.e. personnel, non-
personnel and capltal outlay, are further defined In the budget document and are subject to Gounty
Administrator approval. The County Administrator is authorized to make transfers between major
expenditure categories within departments and between departments within the same fund.

The Administrator has further delegated to the Assistant Administrators the authority to transfer
between departments. The budget ordinance must be amended by Council to effect changes In fund
totals.

Budgets, as reported in the flnanclal statements, are as originally passed by ordinance and
subsequently amended. During the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The results were increases and decreases within the individual departments within the funds. All
annual approprliations lapse at year-end.
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B. Restatement of Prior Year Fund Equlitles

During the flscal year ended June 30, 2011, two of the County’s component units made adjustments
that resulted in a restatement of beginning net assets.

Companent Units

CCL NCD
Net assets, July 1, 2010 3 4,639,221 $ 834,376
Restatements:
Capital assets - (46,668)
Accumulated depreciation 163,224 34,058
Net assets, July 1, 2010
(as reslated) 3 4,792,445 8 821,768

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A Cash Deposltis, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial Credit risk is the risk that In the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be
retumed to it. The County follows Sectlon 6-5-15, South Cerolina Code of Law, 1976 (as amended) as
Its policy for custodial credit risk which states that to the extent that these deposits exceed the amount
of Insurance coverage provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the bank or savings and
loan assoclation at the time of deposit must: (1) furnish an Indemnity bond In a responsible surety
company authorlzed to do business In this State; or (2) pledge as collateral: (a) obligations of the United
States; (b) obligatlons fully guaranteed both as to principal and Interest by the United States; (c) general
obligations of this State or any political subdivision of this State; or (d) obligations of the Federal
National Mortigage Association, the Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, or the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, in which the local entlty I8 named as beneficiary and the
letter of credit other wise meets the criterla established and prescribed by the local entity.

As of June 30, 2011, none of the County's bank balance of $196,671,505 was exposed to custodial
credlt risk.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an Investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the fallure of the counterparty, the
County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securitles that are In the
possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2011, the County had no exposed custodial credlt risk
on its investments which total $174,720,757. $142,089,352 Is raported on the Statement of Net Assets
and $32,640,405 is reported with Agency Funds. The County does not have a formal investment policy
fo address custodial credit risk.
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The State Treasurer sells participation in the South Garolina Local Government Investment Pool to
political subdivisions of the State. Funds deposited into the South Carolina Local Government
Investment Pool by legally quallfled entitles are used to purchase investment securities as follows:

1. U.S. Government Securities (direct obligations)

2. Federal Agency Securitles

3. Repurchase Agreements Secured by U.S. Government Securities and/or
Federal Agency Securitles

4. A1/P1 Commercial Paper (Moody's/S&P highest rating)

Funds belonging to any entity that are on deposit with the South Carolina Local Government Investment
Pool represent particlpation units In a portfollo comprised of the above referenced securities, and the
external Investment pool ks not rated.

it Is policy of the State Treasurer's Office that no derivatives of U.S. Government Securities and/or
Federal Agency Securities and/or A1/P1 Commercial Paper are to ba purchased by or for the South
Carolina Local Government Investment Pool.

Credit Risk

The County had $46,362,714 invested in the South Carolina Local Govemment Investment Pool
(SCLGIP). $12,295,000 has been Invested In cerfificates of deposits and thersfore by definition is not
subject to credit risk. $16,451,938 has besen Invested in debt securltles of the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Discount Nota, $15,000,000 has been Invested in debt securltles of the Federal Home Loan
Bank Discount Note and $84,620,104 has been Invested in Federal Natlonal Mortgage Assistance Pool.
They are rated AAA and Aaa for long-term unsecured debt by Standards & Poor's and Moodys,
respectively. The County has no formal policy relating to the credit risk of Investments.

Investment Policy

The County’s Investmenis are carried at cost or amortized cost. Non-participating interest-earning
Invastment contracts, such as bank certificates of deposit whose terms are not affected by changes in
market rates, are stated at cost. Investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at the time of the
purchase of one year or less are stated at amortized cost, provided the fair value of the investments Is
not signiflcantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the Iesuer or by other factors.
Amortization of investment premiums and discounts is netted agalnst Investment Income for financial
statement purposes. Money market Investments are short-term, highly liquid debt Insfruments including
US Treasury obligations. Interast-earning investment conftracts are contracts that a government enters
Info with a financial institution or other financial services company for which It recelves Interest
payments.
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As a means of limiting lts exposure to fair velue losses arlsing from Interest rates, the County's
investment policy specifies limitatfons on instruments; diversification and maturlty scheduling that are
dependent upon whether the funds being invested are considered short term or long term funds.
Investment maturities for operating funds sre scheduled to coincide with projected cash flow needs,
taking in to account large routine expenditures as well as considering sizeable blocks of anticipated
revenue. Maturities in this category are timed to comply with the following guidelines:

Under 30 days 10% minimum
Under 80 days 25% minimum
Under 270 days 50% minimum
Under 1 year 90% minimum
Under 18 months 100% minimum

Long-term investment mafturity scheduling ls timed according to anticlpatad neads.
The County’s investments have a far value of $174,729,757 as of June 30, 2011.
Maturity Date

Investments and Maturlty: L n 1 r 1-6 vears Over 5 years
Certificates of Deposits $ 12295000 ¢ - § -
SCLGIP 46,362,715 - -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Discount Note 1,451,038 15,000,000 -
Federal Home Loan Bank Discount Note - 15,000,000 -
Federal National Mortgage Assistance Pool 58,883,104 15,737,000 10,000,000
$ 118902767 $ 45737.000 $ 10,000,000
Concentrations of Credit Risk
More than 5 percent of the County’s investments are listed as follows:
Certificates of Deposits 7.04%
SCLGIP 26.53%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Discount Note 9.42%
Federal Home Loan Bank Discount Note 8.58%
Federal National Mortgage Assistance Pool 48.43%
100.00%

Component Units
Cash Deposits, Cash Equivalents and Inveatments
Interest Rate Risk

The Component Units have no formal Investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fak value losses arlsing from increasing interest rates.
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Custodial Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2011, the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission's total bank balance was
$30,959,264. Of thls amount, $29,501,220 was Insured under FDIC or collaterallzed by government
Investments held by the pledging financial Institution’s trust department or agent in the Commisslon’s
name. The uncollateralized balance of $1,458,035 resulted from a iming difference of accounts
collateralized In excess of FDIC. As of the date of the audit opinion letter, all deposits of the
Commission were properly collateralized.

Credit Risk
None of the component unit'’s deposlts or Investments were subject to credlit risk.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
The component units have no formal policies that limit the amounts that may be invested in any one
issuer,

Custodlal Credit Risk-Investments

None of the component units have a formal Investment policy for managing custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2011, St Paul's Fire District had $72,403, James Island Public Service District had $117,474
and St. John's Fire District had $3,006,777 invested in the State Treasurers Local Government
Investment Pool.

Conceniration of Risk

The Ubrary and St Paul's Fire District have no limit on the amount they may Invest In any one issuer.
The remaining component units have no formal Investment policy that would limit its investment
choices. None of the component units have more than 5 percent of thelr Investments In any one issuer.

A reconclliation of cash and investments as shown on the Statement of Net Assets for the primary
government and the component units and Statement of Fiduclary Net Assets for agency funds follows:

Cash on hand - primary government $ 24,098
Cash on hand — component units 52,848
Carrylng amount of deposits - primary government 198,522,407
Carrying amount of deposits - component units 47,304,249
Carmrying amount of Investments - primary government 174,720,757
Camrying amount of investments — component units 3,079,180
Cash with fiscal agent — primary govenment 125,000
Total carrying amount of cash and Investments $ 421927539
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 78,293,379
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 104,921,959
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 60,778,264
Pooled investments 170,063,808
Non-pooled investments 7,745,131
Cash with flscal agent 125,000
Total carrylng amount of cash and investments § 421,927,539

81



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

B. Recelvables

Receivables as of Juna 30, 2011, Including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

Governmental Funds

Primary government: Transportation Non-major
Debt Special Governmental
General Service Ravenue Fund Funds
Recelvables:
Current property taxes $ 114,655,829 § 18824001 § - $ 7,463,028
Delinquent property taxes 3,729,523 821,163 - 372,611
Accounts 12,082,335 - 36,175 856,000
Intergovernmental 15,580,086 - 17,456,159 6,194,870
Notes - - - 106,729
Gross receivables 146,047,773 19,645.254 17,492,334 14,993,238
Less allowance for
uncollectibles:
Current property taxes 8,764,804 1,063,561 - 496,159
Delinquent property taxes 976,561 212,241 - 95,283
Accounts 9,132,707 - - 175,697
Notes - - - 108,728
Gross allowance 16,873.962 1,275,802 - B73.868
Net total receivable $ 129173811 § 18360452 § 17402334 § 14110370
Proprietary Totals
Governmental
Activities-
Business-type Internal Service Primary
Activities Funds Government
Recelvables:
Current property taxes $ - $ - $ 140,942,948
Delinquent property taxes - - 4,923,207
Accounts 26,259,865 120,354 39,363,720
Intergovernmental 1,023,424 122,103 40,376,642
Notes - - 106,729
Interest 6,581 - 8.581
Gross receivables 27,289,870 251,457 _225719,926
Less allowance for
uncollectibles:
Current property taxes - - 8,324,414
Dellnquent property taxes - - 1,284,085
Accounts 5,321,480 - 14,629,864
Notes - - 108,729
Gross allowance 5,321,460 - 24,345,002
Net total recelvable § 21.968.410 $§ 251457  §201374834
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Component Units: ccL CCPRC CRPPC JIPSD NCD
Recelvables:
Current property taxes $ - $15579,174 $§ 151,202 § 4,991,008 § 978,788
Delinquent property taxes - 689,678 12,470 270,611 20,428
Accounts 87,641 153,703 - 268,194 -
Intergovernmental 403 281,200 10.703 22,072 -
Gross recelvables 88,044 _ 16,703,755 174,375 5,552,785 _ 1.008,214
Less allowance for uncollectible:
Current property taxes - 880,223 9,345 301,511 67,830
Delinquent property taxes - 74,867 4,477 16,480 18,148
Accounts - - 40,000 -
Gross allowance . 955,000 13822 358,000 ——22878
Net total receivable § 088044 $15748665 § 160503 § 5194785 § 022236
Total
Component
_ SAPPPC SJFD SPFD Units
Receivables:
Current property taxes $ 1,070,500 $10,007,508 $ 4,231,147 $ 37,100,225
Delinquent property taxes 65,537 250,973 366,717 1,685,412
Accounts - 14,112 537 524,187
Intergovernmental - - 130,374 444 752
Gross receivables 1,136,037 _ 10,362,591 4,728,775 _ 39,754,576
Less allowance for uncollectible:
Current property taxes 70,974 365,530 412,537 2,107,850
Delinquent property taxes 14,426 50,669 123,131 302,207
Accounts - - - 40,000
Gross allowance 85,400 416,199 535,668 2.450.157

Net total receivable
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During April 1999, the County's Fleet Management Intemal Service Fund has financed $791,600 of Its
share of the new heavy equipment repair facility through a loan from the Environmental Management
Enterprise Fund. The loan is payable in semi-annual installments of $40,000 with Interest at 6.08
percent per annum. The note matures on January 1, 2014. This note is presented as note recelvable-
internal balances on the statement of Net Assets for the Business-type activities.

In fiscal year 2004, County Council approved a $400,000 non-interest bearing loan from the County’s
accommodations fee speclal revenus fund to the Conventlon and Visitor's Bureau to be repaid at
$40,000 per year for the next ten years. The loan was expended on the County’s books when made
with a corresponding entry to allowance for doubtful accounts.

The following reflects the future minimum payments receivable at June 30, 2011, under these notes

recelvable:

Primary Government
Year Ending June 30 Business-type Activities
2012 $ 80,001
2013 80,001
2014 80,001
Total minimum note payments 240,003
Less amount representing interest { 23607)
Present value of minimum note payments 216,396
Less current portion { 67,856)
Long-term portion $148,540

During March 2010, the County entered into an agreement with the Clty of Charleston where the County Is
fo provide digital radio system and services for the City's police and fire services at an initial cost of
$1,431,217 for equipment. The County did not complete the 800 megahertz (MHZ) upgrade until August
2010, at which point the City of Charleston owed the County the first of four payments of $375,207.

Primary Government
Year Ending June 30 vernmental Activities
2012 § 375,207
2013 375,207
2014 375,207
Total minimum note payments 1,125,621
Less amount representing interest ( 57054}
Present value of minimum note payments 1,088,567
Less current portion {__346.926)
Long-term portion 8§ 721,641
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C. Capital Assets

Primary government capltal asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Transfers/ Balance

Governmental Actlvities: July 1, 2010 Additions Deletlons June 30, 2011
Capital assets not being

depreclated:

Land $ 16,807,780 $ - $ (103,547) $ 16,704,242

Construction in progress 3,121,481 9,444,723 (301,833) 12,264,371

Infrastructure-easements, land 8,560,117 27,739 (30,481) 8,557,395
Total capital assets not being

depreclated 28,489,387 9,472,462 (435,841) 37,526,008
Capital assets being depreciated:

Bulldings 303,183,385 - - 303,183,365

Improvements other than buildings 2,166,637 - - 2,166,637

Machinery and equipment 82,278,993 5,138,939 (3.312,681) 84,105,251

Infrastructure 38,405,965 1,522,373 (50,916) 37,877,422
Total capital assets belng

depreciated 424,034,960 6,661,312 (3,363,597) 427,332,875
Less accumulated depreciation:

Bulldings (59,907,326) (7,018,374) - (66,928,700)

Improvements other than bulldings (1,386,825) {47,310) - (1.434,135)

Machinery and equipment (54,738,934) (6,546,519) 2,887,900 (58,397,553)

Infrastructure (29,583,913) (1,668,040) 39,500 (31,212,453)
Total accumulated depreclation (145,616,998) {15,281,243) 2,927,400 (157,970,841)

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 278,417,962 (8,619,931) (436,197) 269,361,834

Governmental activities,

Total capital assets, net $ 306,907,349 $ 852,531 $ (872,038) § 306,887,842
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Business-type Activities
Capiltal assets not being

depreclated:

Land

Construction in progress
Total capltal assets not being
depreciated

Capltal asseis belng depreclated:

Buildings
Improvements other than
bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being
depreciated

Lass accumulated depreclation:

Buildings
Improvements other than
bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreclated, net

Business-type activities

Total capltal assets, net

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011
Balance as Transfers/ Transfers/ Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletlons June 30, 2011
39500830 § - 8 - $ 3,850,930
18,329,363 1,079,283 (15,966,135) 1,442 511
20,280,293 1,079,283 (15,968,135) 5,393,441
24,933,128 134,930 - 25,068,058
818,500 15,983,204 - 18,708,704
17,266,453 1,359,063 (339,213) 18,286,303
43,016,081 17,477,197 (339,213) 60,154,065
(8,055,000) (562,040) - (8,617,040)
(562,854) (848,031) - (1,410,885)
{10,396,253) (1,711,315) 308,030 (11,798,538)
(19,014,107) (3,121,386) 309,030 (21,826,463)
24,001,974 14,355,811 (30,183) 38,327,602
44282267 $ 15,435,004 $(15996,318) § 43,721,043
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activides:

General government $ 7,470,339
Public safety 3,859,311
Judicial 1,409,088
Pubtic works 1,772,596
Health and welfare 143,567
Economic Development 9,331
Culture and recreation 616.111
Total $ 15281243
Business-type Actvities:
Environmental Management $ 2332018
Parking Garages 304,531
DAODAS 246,801
E-911 Communications 195,015
Radio Communications 43 021
Total §_ 3,121,386
Component Units:
Capital assets not being Balance (as restated) Balance
depreciated; July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Land $ 59,668,219 16,285,575 § - § 75,953,704
Artwork 11,000 - - 11,000
Construction in progress 2,876 2,674,634 (3.184,995) 2,165,713
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 62,355,293 18,960,209 (3,184,995} 78,130,507
Capital assets being depreclated:
Bulldings 50,840,286 1,215,558 (98,851) 60,956,988
Improvements other than
bulldings 19,610,895 82,250 (572,575) 19,120,570
Machinery and equipment 30,454,175 4,462,391 (2,046,142) 32,870,424
Infrastructure 40,534,685 1,792,217 (77,433) 42,249,489
Library materlals 22,652,457 1,684,184 (1,997,565) 22,339,056
Total capital assets being
depreclated 173,092,498 9.236575 ____ (4,792568) _  177.536.507
Less accumulated depreciation 82.616,457 {7,660,810) 4,048,745 88,228 522
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 90,476,041 1,575,765 (743,821) 91,307,985

Component units
Total capltal assets, net
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Depreciation axpanse was charged to functions of the component units as follows:

General government
Public safety

Culture and recreation

Health and welfare
Waste water

Total

$ 2,526,808
1,471,424
2,793,991

94,047
774,450

§ 7660810

Construction in progress in the Governmental Activities as of June 30, 2011, Is composed of the following:

Project Expended to  Commltments
Primary government: Authorization June 30, 2011  Outstanding

Consolidated Dispatch Center $ 26,870,000 $ 1,631,032 $13.766,976
Properly Tax Software 2,000,000 1,085,616 895,206
Law Enforcement Software 1,500,000 1,052,969 413,076
Cartograph Work order System 160,319 174,067 1,053
Detention Center Expansion 3,431,628 2,805,920 106,253
SCE&G Bullding 12,500,000 34,086 -
Senlor Citizens Center 556,752 277,727 131,524
PSB Cooling Tower 305,000 248,921 142,287
Plctometry Change Analysis 52,460 13,115 39,345
Radio System __12.100.000 4,940,018 6,274,025

Total primary government

$ 59906150 § 12264371 § 21.760.835

Required Future
Financing
General obligation bonds
None
None
None
None
General obligation bonds
General obligation bonds
None
None
General obligation bonds

Commitments outstanding represent signed contracts and outstanding encumbrances of the County. As
of June 30, 2011, the County has assets under capital lease with a total cost of $7,387,320 and a net
book value of $2,910,051. The assets are computer equipment depreclated over a three to flve year
period, copler equipment depreciated over a flve year perlod and two fireflghting vehicles depreclated
over an elght year period included In the County’'s machinery and equipment capital asset category. Also
Included s a capital lease for the Lee Bullding which is being depreciated over a 45 year period. This
asset is included in the buildings capital asset category.
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Construction in progress as of June 30, 2011, in the Business-type activities Is composed of the

following:
Project Expendedto Commitments

Primary government: izati June 30, 2011  Outstanding
Parking Garages Renovations $ 5659744 § 1,414158 $ 1,144,919
Environmental Management Lined

Landfll 142,915 28355 ___ 1145660
Total primary government $ 5802650 § 1442511 $ 1250479
Component Unit:
CCPRC

Hwy 171 property $ - 8§ §75 § -

Wannamaker Phase lli 440,000 110,785 -

W.0. Thomas Boat landing 28,000 11,880 -

McLeod Plantation 700,000 198,985 111,946

Manager’'s reskdence 185,000 1,084 -

West Ashley Phase | 200,000 92,931 88,654

Paimetto Islands bulkheads 40,000 15,215 3,145

James Island fishing dock 15,000 4,850 -

East Arctic property - 14.466 -
Total CCPRC 1,608,000 __ 455,746 203,745
JIPSD

Waste water upgrade 1,891,684 1,281,839 709
Total JIPSD 1,991,684 1,281,939 ____ 709.745
SPFD

Station 1 1,652,079 39,510 643,000

Station 7 2,478,757 358,518 1,180,994

Cascade system 30.000 92,000
Total SPFD 4,254 147 428,028 1,915,994
Total Component Units § 7852831 § 2165713 § 28209484

Required

Future

Einancing

None

None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Impact fees
& Revenue
Bonds

None
None
None
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D. Interfund Receivables and Payables

E.

The composition of primary government Interfund balances at June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Recelvable Payable
Fund Fund
Major governmental funds: General Fund $ 2,520,574 $ 643,974
Non-major governmental funds - 1,308,524
Major enterprise funds: Environmental Management - 1,214,050
Internal service funds 643,974 -
Total $  3.164,548 § 3164548

Interfund activity relates to funding from the County's General Fund related to County policles for cash
flow and operating cash levels of governmental funds, and are axpected to be collected within one year.

Interfund Transfers

A summary of transfers Is as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Out

Major governmental funds:

General Fund $ 885,872 $ (17.470,734)

Debt Service Fund 5,058,750 (1,007,157)

Transportation and Road Sales Tax 39,745,986 (42,745,968)

G.0.B. Captital Projects 8,811,738 -
Non-major governmental funds 15,024,823 (15,250,255)
Major business-type actlvities:

Environmental Management 6,499 -

Parking Garage - (2,019,898)
Non-major business-type acfivities 4,335,602 -
Internal Servica Funds 4,890,808 (265,948)
Total $ _ 78,760,058 $_(78.760.058)

Transfers are used to move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the recsipts to
the debt service fund as debt service payments become due and to use unrestricted revenues
collected In the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds In accordance
with budgetary authorizations.

F. Leases
Operating Leases

In March 2008 the Chardeston County Library entsred Into a new lease agreement for coplers. The

lease agreement is for a sixty-month perlod commencing January 2008, with @ minimum monthly

charge of $12,450, for a total minimum commitment of $747,000 over the term of the lease. In

addition to this lease the Library holds other verbal agreements with varlous parties for the rental of

Library branches. These leases run on a month-to-month basis and are cancelable by either party.

sIf!em:al expense assoclated with the copier and faclliies leases for the year ended June 30, 2011, is
194,845,
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Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 CCL
2012 $ 149,400
2013 74,700

$ 224100
G. Landflll Closure and Post-Closure Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Romney Street
and Bees Ferry landfill sites when they stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. Although closure and post closure care
costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfills stop accepting waste, the County reports
a portlon of these closure and post closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based
on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $4,847,000 reported as the accrual for
landfill closure and post-closure at June 30, 2011, represents the estimated remaining cost reportad of
$22,542,000 less $17,505,000 deferred to date based on the following Information:

Estimated Costs Recognized

Percentage Balance

Of Capacity To Be
Landflll Site Used Closure Postclosyre [otal Recognized
Romney Street 100% $ 5244478 $§ 514200 $5758678 $ -

Bees Ferry:

Ash storage faclilty 100% 929,018 311,500 1,240,518 -
88 acres 100% 8,038,809 - 6,038,809 -
54 acres 100% 6,190,000 3,537,000 9,727,000 -
Bees Ferry lined landiill 12% 1,772,811 817,189 2,390,000 17,540,000
Bees Ferry C&D landflll 97% 1,200,000 __ 583,000 1,793,000 586,000
Totals $21,375116 § 5572889 $26,046005 § 17,505,000

These amounts are based on what It would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in fiscal
year 2011. The County began to close the Landfils in 1884. Actual cost may be higher due to
inflatlon, changes In technology or changes in regulations. The County anticipates that available
resources will be the primary source of funds to pay the cost of closure.

The County has issued under separate cover, a certification signed by its Assistant Administrator for
Finance stating compliance with final Environmental Protection Agency regulations regarding financial
assurancae for operators of Municipal Solid Waste Landflll Facllities, including a required statement
from our Independent auditors. The computations required under these regulations are included in
page 207 in the statistical section of this report.
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H. Short-terrn Debt

The County had no short-term borrowings during the fiscal ysar. Some of the County’s component
units use short-term tax anticipation notes or lines of credit to finance general operating expenditures
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The activity in short-term debt for the fiscal year is as

follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
SAPPPC $ - $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ -
SPFD - 1 |°°0|mo 1 |000|000 =
$ - $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 $ -
l. Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of dabt transactions for the County for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Primary Government: Balance Balance Amounts Due
July 1, 2010 Increase Decrease June 30,2011 in One Year
Governmental actlvities
General obligation bonds $406,590,609 $ -$ 11,633,400 § 394,957,209 § 13,780,839
Certificates of particlpation 41,756,721 - 8,511,151 35,245,570 3,663,071
Intergovernmental note payable 33,151,722 - 1,100,406 32,051,316 1,163,460
Capital lease payable 3,070,072 716,113 975,752 2,810,433 1,067,376
Compensated absences 9,994,780 333,613 424,221 9,804,172 424,221
OPEB 10,938,893 2,894 433 - 13,833,426 -
Total $505502,807 § 3,944,150 § 20,644,930 $ 488,802,126 $ 20,008,967
Businass-type activities
Certificates of participatlon $ 7421833 § -$ 1169627 § 6252256 § 642,714
Revenue bonds 6,374,140 - 1,530,467 4,843,673 1,611,385
Accruel for landflll closure 4,650,000 207,000 - 4,847,000 297,000
Compensated absences 1,199,413 68,023 221,640 1,045,796 202,245
Total $ 19,645,436 3 365,023 § 2921734 § 17,088,725 § 2,753,344

Internal Service Funds predominantly serve the Governmental Funds. Accordingly, long-term kabilities
for them are Included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. Also, for the governmental
activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated from the applicable govemmental fund’s
budgeted operations monles.
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General Obligation Bonds. The County and its component units issue General Obligation Bonds to
provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facllitles. General Obllgation Bonds have
been issued for both general government and proprietary actlviles. These bonds are reported In the
proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. All other obllgations are
reported in the Governmental activities. Ganeral Obligation Bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the County.

Primary government General Obligation Bond's payable at June 30, 2011, is comprised of the following:
—Princloal Amount

Issue Date Title of Issues —Original _Outsfanding

April 2, 2004 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serles 2004,
2.00 percent to 4.00 percent intersst, semi-annual
principal and interest paymenis baeginning in 2004,
matures 2021, the first principal payment was due in
fiscal year 2005. $ 63740000 § 38,530,000

May 2, 2006 General Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Bonds,
Series 2006 (referendum) 4.00 percent to 5.00 percent
Interest, semi-annual interest payments beginning in
November 2006, matures 2027; the first snnual
principal paymert was due in fiscal year 2008. 65,000,000 58,860,000

December 5, 2007 General Obligation Bonds, Serles 2007, 4.30 percent
to 5.0 percent Interest, seml-annual Interast payments
beginning in May 2008, matures 2028; the first annual

principal payment is due in fiscal year 2010. 75,000,000 72,460,000

Dacember S, 2007 General Obligation Transportation Salee Tax Bonds,
Serles 2007 (referendum), 4.00 percent to 5.25
percent intorest, semi-annual Interest paymenis
beginning In May 2008, matures 2027, the first annual
principal payment Is due In flscal year 2010.

150,000,000 145,250,000

August 1, 2009 General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds of
2009, Serles A, 3.00 percent to 5.50 percent Interest,
annual principal payment beginning in fiscal year 2012,
semi-annual Interest payments beginning in fiscal year

2010, matures In fiscal year 2029. 50,000,000 50,000,000

August 1, 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2009, Series
B, 1.25 percent to 3.25 percent Interest, annusl
principal payments beginning in fiscal year 2011, semi-
annual Interest payments beginning in fiscal year 2010,

matures In fiscal year 2021. 20,775,000 17,835,000

Subtotal $ 424,515,000 380,835,000
Less: Deferred refunding cost (1,933,150)
Add: Premlum 15,055,359
General obligation debt per statement of net asssts 394,957,209
Less current portion, Including defermed refunding cost and premium (13,780,839)
Long-term portion outstanding $ 381,178,370
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Certillcates of Particlpation. The County lssues Certificates of Participation through the Charleston
Public Faclities Corporation, a blended component unit, to flnance the acquisition of essentlal
government faclliies. The Certificates have been issued for both governmental and proprietary fund
activitles and are reported In the proprietary fund if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary
fund revenues. All other obligations are reported in the Governmental activities.

Primary government Certiflcates of Particlpation payable at June 30, 2011, Is comprised of the
following:

Principal Amount

Issue Date Title of Issues Original _Outstanding

May 1, 2004 Cerfificates of Participation, Series 2004, Charleston
Public Facilities Corporation, 2.00 percent to 5.00
percent Interest, seml-annual princlpal and interest
payments beginning In 2004, matures 2016. $ 44,160,000 $ 23,715,000

March 3, 2005 Certificates of Participation, Series 2005, Charleston
Public Facllides Corporation, 5.00 percent to
5.125 percent Interest, seml-annual Interest payments
beginning In 2005, annual principal payments beginning

in 2011, matures 2019. 19945000 _ 18,010,000
Subtotal $ 64,105,000 41,725,000
Less: Deferred refunding cost (1,475,276)
Add: Premium 1,248,102
Certificate of participation debt per statement of net assets 41,497,828
Less current portion, including deferred refunding cost and premijum __ (4,305,785}
Long-term portion outstanding $ 37102041
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Revenue Bonds. The County issued $22,570,000 Solld Waste User Fee Revenue Bonds on
October 12, 1994. Proceeds of this Issue were to be used to reimburse the County for the acquisition
of equipment previously financed through a $9.5 million bond anticipation note; flnance construction
costs related fo closure of the Romney Street and Bees Ferry landfills; fund the design and approval
process for permitting a new landfill site; and partially fund a heavy equipment repalr facllity. These
bonds are expected to be repaid from the countywide user fee assessment. The revenue bonds were
refunded in flscal year 2004.

Primary government Revenue Bonde payable at Juna 30, 2011, is comprised of the following:

Principal Amount

Issue Date Title of Issues Original Outstanding

May 4, 2004 Charleston County Solid Waste User Fee Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Serles 2004, 2.00 percent to
5.00 percent Interest, seml-annual principal and
interest payments baginning in 2005, matures in

2014. $ 14525000 § 5005000
Subtotal $ 14.525.000 5,005,000
Less: Deferred refunding cost applicable to business-type actlvitles (236,622)
Add: Premium applicable to business-type activities 75,295
Revenue bond debt per statement of net assets 4,843,673
Less current portion, including deferred refunding cost and premium (1,611,385)
Long-term portlon outstanding § 3232288

Notes Payable. The County’s Fleet Management Internal Service Fund has Issued a note payable

to the Environmental Management Enterprise Fund for $791,600 payable from Debt Service Fund
transfers to the Fleet Management Internal Service Fund.

Primary government note payable at June 30, 2011, Is comprised of the following:

Princlpal Amount

Issue Date Title of Issues Original Outstanding
April 1, 1899 Solid Waste Revenue Bond Fund Promissory
Note, seml-annual payments of $40,000 Including
Interest at 6.08 percent, matures In 2014. $ 701600 § 216,398
Subtotal § 791,600 216,396
Less current portion (67.856)

Debt per statement of net assets $ 148,540
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Annual requirements to amortize primary government notes payable outstanding at June 30, 2011, are
as follows:

Year Ending Internal
June 30 Service Fund Principal Interest
2012 $ 80,001 $ 67,856 $ 12,146
2013 80,001 72,046 7,955
2014 80,001 76,494 3,507
Total $ 240,003 $ 216,396 $ 23,807

Intergovernmental Note Payable. In July 2001 the County entered into an intergovernmental loan
agreement with the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank to fund a portion of the cost of
the new Arthur Ravenel, Jr. Bridge over the Cooper River. The County has agreed to pay $3,000,000
per year for the next twenty-five years beginning January 2004. The County has recorded the
obligation on its records at a net present value uging the discount rate of 5.73 percent.

Annual requirements to amortize the intergovemmental note payable outstanding at June 30, 2011,
are as follows:

Year Ending Intergovernmental
June 30 Note Payable Principal Interest

2012 $ 3,000,000 $ 1,163,460 $ 1,836,540
2013 3,000,000 1,230,126 1,769,874
2014 3,000,000 1,300,612 1,609,388
2015 3,000,000 1,375,137 1,624,863
2016 3,000,000 1,453,933 1,546,087
2017-2021 15,000,000 8,618,890 6,381,010
2022-2026 15,000,000 11,388,001 3,611,999
2027-2028 6,000,000 5,521,057 478,943
Total $ 51,000,000 $ 32,051,318 $ 18,948,684
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Capital Laase Obligations. Several component unks have utllized capiial leases to finance the acquisition of
various types of equipment. The detalls of each entity's capital Ieasing activitles are summarized later In this note.
The County uses capital Iease funding to finance the purchase of various equipment and a building. Capttal
Ieases outstanding at June 30, 2011, Include the following:

CGovernmental Activities Origlnal Outstanding
Lense dated November 2004 payable to Chicora Center Inc.

for the purchase of the building at 3366 Rivara Ave. Payable In

120 monthly payments of $25,725 through October 2014 and

Includes princlpal and Interest at 5.0 percent per annum. $ 2425425 $ 948,027

Lease dated April 2008 payable {p Ontarlo Investments, Inc.

for the purchase of EMS computer equipment. Payable in

elght equal Instaliments of $13,890 through December 2011,

includes principal and interest at 6.059 percent per annum. 100,539 13,579

Lease dated February 2009 payable to Ontario Investments, Inc.

for the purchase of new computer aquipment. Payable in eight

seml-annual Instalmente of $116,101 through October 2012,

Includes princlpal and Interest at 10.6 percent per annum. 775,100 314,208

Leases dated December 2009 to February 2010 payable

to Ontarlo Investments, Inc. for the purchase of new

computsr equipment. Payable In elght equal Installments

of $97,901 through November 2013, includes principal

and Interest at 4.933 percent to 4.964 percent

per annum. 702,710 455,157

Lease dated July 2010 payable to Ontario Investments, Inc.

for the purchase of a new copler. Payabile In five equal Installments

of $13,118 through July 2014, includes principal and interest

at 6.366 percent psr annum. 56,974 45,070

Leases dated December 2010 to May 2011 payable fo

MB Financial Bank for the purchase of new computer equipment.

Payable In eight equal semi-annual Instaliments of $74,383 through

January 2015, includes principal and interest at 1.220 percent fo

1.598 percent per annum. 675,857 509,568

Internal Service Fund

Lease dated February 2010 payable to Ontario Investments, Inc

for the purchase of new copler equipment. Payable In five annual

Instaliments of $3,078 to $9,234 through July 2013 and includes

principal and interest of 5.114 to 7.807 psrcent per annum. 28,768 17,577

Leases dated November 2010 payable ta Ontario Investments, Inc.

for the purchase of new copiers. Payabls in three annual installments

of $24,242 through Dacember 2012, includes principal and intereat

from 2.221 percent to 4.298 percent per annum. 83,282 69,212

Lease deted September 2008-February 2009 payable fo
Ontarlo Investments, Inc. for the purchase of new copler
equipment. Payable In five annual instaliments of

$250,598 through March 2013 and includes principel and

interest at 7.285 to 10.994 percent per annum. 1,130,205 450,037

45878860 2,810,433
Less current portion {1,087,378)
Long-term portion outstanding § 1.743.057
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A summary of the annual requirements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2012 $ 1,087,378 $§ 140,917 $ 1,208,293
2013 1,001,201 71,043 1,072,244
2014 549,305 19,952 569,257
2015 192,551 2,470 165,021
Total $ 2810433 $ 234,382 $ 3.044,815

Bottom portion of page Intentlonally left blank
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Amortization of Long-term Debt. Annual requirements to amortize primary government general
long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2011, excluding notes payable and accrued compensated
absences, are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2028
2027
2028
2029
Totals

Less smount in

Business-type

activiies before

discounts and
deferrad costs

Subtotal

Less discounts

and deferrad

refunding costs
Add Premlums

Total debt-
governmentsl

activity

General Certlficates
Obligation Bonds Of Participation Revenue Bonds

Principel Interest Principal Interes! Principal |nterest Totals
$ 12675000 $ 17,052,437 $ 4,340,000 $§ 2,036,781 § 1,630,000 $ 250250 § 37,984,488
13,865,000 16,532,641 4,270,000 1,833,119 1,710,000 168,750 38,379,510
15,130,000 15,845,302 4,480,000 1,633,060 1,665,000 83,250 38,848,602
16,470,000 15,310,117 4,690,000 1,414,393 - - 37,884,510
18,015,000 14,589,057 4,920,000 1,178,768 - - 38,702,825
19,885,000 13,743,357 5,190.000 927,787 - - 39,756,144
21,715,000 12,784,320 5,450,000 663,513 - - 40,592,833
23,705,000 11,680,532 4,135,000 385,045 - - 39,906,477
25,825,000 10,549,538 2,820,000 177,000 - - 39,371,538
22,400,000 9,440,989 1,420,000 35,500 - - 33,296,489
23,980,000 8,311,782 - - - - 32,271,782
24,230,000 7,165,839 - - - - 31,395,839
26,425,000 6,010,927 - - - - 32,435,927
28,775,000 4,753,890 - - - - 33,628,890
31,275,000 3,376,612 - - - - 34,651,612
33,935,000 1,882,855 - - - - 35,817,855
17,570,000 687,262 - - - - 18,257,262

5,070,000 133,088 - - - -
380,935,000 169,930,645 41,725,000 10,285,858 5,005,000 602,250 608,383,651
- - __(6,460,960) _ (1,572122) _(5.005.000] ___ (502,250 __ (13.540.341)
380,835.000 _ 169.930,545 __ 35,264,031 8.713.734 - - __594,843310
(1,833,150) - {1,103,665) - - - (3,036.815)
__ 15055359 - 1,085,204 - - - 17,040,563
$304957,200 § 160930545 § 35245570 $ 8,713734 § = & = 8 608,847,068
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The annual debt service related to that portion of long-term debt recorded in the primary government's
Business-type activities is as follows:

Year Ending Certificates
June 30 Of Parlicipation Revenue Bonds
Principal nteres Principal Interest Totals
2012 $ 682257 § 317467 § 1630000 $§ 250,250 § 2,879,974
2013 679,651 285,055 1,710,000 168,750 2,843,456
2014 715,301 252,786 1,665,000 83,250 2,716,337
2015 748,083 217,766 - - 965,849
2016 784,692 180,218 - - 964,910
2017 827,667 140,152 - - 967,819
2018 869,367 97,953 - - 867,320
2018 613,117 53,620 - - 666,737
2020 359,706 22,577 - - 382,283
2021 181,128 4,528 - - 185,658
Subtotal 6,460,069 1,572,122 5,005,000 502,250 13,540,341
Less discounts and
deferred
refunding coste (371,611) - (236,622) - (608,233)
Add Premiums 162,898 - 75,285 - 238,193
Total business-type
activities debt $§ 6252256 § 1572122 $ 4843673 § 502250 $ 13170301

The 2004 and 2005 Certificates and related trust agreements require the establishment of 1) a debt
service reserve fund or surety bond, to maintain amounts equal to the next seml-annual principal and
interest payment, and 2) a payment fund for use in disbursing the semi-annual paymente.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond and ceriificate
Indentures, such as fypes of investments, promise to levy tax sufficient o cover debt service and
establishment of a sinking fund. The County i3 in compliance with all significant limitations and
resfrictions as of June 30, 2011.
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Conduit (No Commitment) Debt. The County Is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to
the Code of Laws of South Carolina to acquire or cause to be acquired and in connectlon therewith to
enlarge, Improve, expand, equip, furnish, own, lease and dispose of properties to promote the public
health and welfare of the people of the State of South Carolina and/or to promote the commercial
development of the State. To accomplish these objectives the County has Issued Revenue Bonds to
provide financlal assistance to private sector entities. These bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Neither
the County nor the State is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as llabllities In the accompanying financlal statements. The County has Issued
these conduit debt obligations for Hospital and Health Care, Industrial, Solld Waste, and Pollution
Control facllities.

The following Is a summary of the County’s conduit debt at June 30, 2011:

Current Amount
Outstanding Orlginal Issue Amount
Number of Issues (in millions) (In milions)
4 $180 $287

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term obligations of the component units for the year
ended June 30, 2011:

Balance Balance Amounts Due

Component Units: July 1, 2010 Increpses Decreases June 30,2011  |n One year

Accrued compensatsd absences $ 3248667 & 1,023,319 § (720,235) § 3542651 § 1,628,746
Net other post amployment benefits 2,334,740 755,280 (1 6.776) 3,073,244 15,510
General obligation bonds 15,309,611 16,173,964 (2,047,843) 29,435,022 2,179,947
Capltal lease obligations 9,083,623 626,789 (2,193,334) 7,617,078 1,337,650
Revenue bonds 5,985,680 717,520 (690,380) 6,012,810 881,008
Notes payable 51,563 - (5.333) 48,230 5,543

Total § 36013784 § 102966862 § (0682711) § 49627930 § 5848404
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Range of
Maturity Rangs of
Dates Intprest Ratas
Accrued compsnsated absences:
CCL
CCPRC
JIPSD
SAPPPC
SJFD
SPFD

Total accrued compensated absences
Not other post smployment banefits:
CCPRC

JIPSD
SPFD

Total net other post employment benefits

General obligation bonds:

CCPRC 2012-2021 2.00% - 4.00%
JIPSD 2012-2037 5.00% - 5.50%
SPFD 2012-2025 3.45% -3.59%

Total genersal obligation bonds

Caplial lease obligations:

CCPRC 2011 2.05% - 4.41%
JIPSD 2012-2018 4.07% - 6.88%
SAPPPC 2012-2014 2.99%-3.75%
SJFD 2012-2021 4.368% -5.593%
SPFD 2011 4.67% - 4.86%
Total capital leass obligations
Revenue Bonds:
SAPPPC 2012-2018 3.41%-3.95%
JIPSD 2012 -2036 2.00%-5.75%
Less defermed refunding costs
Total revenue bonds
Notes payable
SAPPPC 2012-2019 3.80%-3.99%

Total component units long-term obligations

JUNE 30, 2011
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
$§ 048431 § 483804 $ (415254) $ 1,016,981

975,621 87.709 (63,145) 1,010,185
428,407 4,405 (24.881) 408,211
38,507 27 (1,541) 35,083
711,959 19,408 - 731,457
149,462 427,878 {234,604) 342734
248,567 ___1.023.319 729,235) __ 3,542,651
1,136,805 363,911 . 1,500,716
1,077,601 364,116 - 1,441,717
120334 27.253 (16,776) 130,811
2.334.740 755280 (16.776) 3,073,244
14,930,000 12,873,954 (1,830,959) 25,972,995
379,611 - {10,314) 369,297

- __ 3300000 (206,370 3,003,630

15,309,611 16.173.954 (2.047.643) __ 29435972
481,051 - (481,051) .
1,996,486 - (441,048) 1,555,440
166,739 165,000 (90,350) 241,389
6,123,435 461,789 (864,975) 5,720,249
315912 - (315,912) -
9083623 __ 626,780 2,193334) ___7.517.078
405,682 - (119,216) 286,466
6,042,805 717,520 (620,646) 6,130,769
—(462.897) - 98472 ___ (404,426)
5,985,680 712.520 (690.390) 6,012,810
51,563 - {5,333) 46,230
$36013,784 § 10206862 § (5682.711) § 49627935
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for component unit long-term obligations, excluding
compensated absences, are as follows:

Total
Component
Year Ending June 30 SPFD CCPRC _JPSD _ Units
2012 $ 201,193 $2682638 § 30902 $§ 3,004,733
2013 291,194 3,577,141 30,902 3,890,237
2014 291,183 3,773,291 30,902 4,095,386
2018 291,193 4,408,653 30,902 4,730,748
2016 291,193 2,098,423 30,902 2,420,518
2017-2021 1,455,968 13,260,770 152,548 14,878,286
2022-2026 1,018,831 - 113,130 1,132,961
2027-2031 - - 113,130 113,130
2032-2036 - - 113,130 113,130
2037 - - 12,441 _12.441
Total 3,931,765 29,800,916 658,889 34,400,570
Less Interest and plus unamortized
premium Included above (838,135) (3,838 021) 289,502 (4,964 648)
Debt per statement of net assets §$3003630  $25072900 § 369207 § 20435922
Future minimum capital lease payments:
Total
Component
Year Ending June 30 JIPSD SAPPPC SJED Unite
2012 $ 456,072 $ 103841 §1,091,730 $§ 1,652,543
2013 304,783 81,177 850,764 1,326,724
2014 288,392 48,115 850,764 1,187,271
2015 147,284 19,387 850,764 1,017,435
2016 147,284 - 734,108 881,482
2017-2021 291,175 - _2646413 2 _ 2,937.588
Future minimum capital
lease payments 1,725,890 252,520 7,024,633 9,003,043
Less amount representing
interest (170,450) (11.131) (1,304.384) _ (1.,485.965)
Debt per statement of net
assets §1555440 8 241380 $5720249 § 7,517,078

General Obligation Bonds:
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Revenue Bonds:

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

—  YearendingJune30

Total

2012
2013
2014
2015
2018
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036

Less Interest and deferred refunding costs included above

Debt per statement of net assets

Notes Payable:

Year ending Juns 30

Total

2012
2013
2014
2018
2018
2017-2020

Less Interest Included above
Debt per statement of net assets
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SAPPPC

7.274
7,271
7,271
7,271
7,271

16,961

53,319

(7,089)
$ 46230

Total
Component

JIPSD _ _SAPPPC Units
923,776 $ 87,383 $1,011,159
924,376 71,763 996,139
919,176 60,805 979,781
823,115 80,850 984,065
914,272 29,958 944,230
1,059,403 - 1,959,403
548,501 - 548,501
490,111 - 480,111
- 156,204
7,758,934 310,658 8,069,593
_(2032,590) _{24193)  (2,056,783)
$ 0720344 $286466 56012810
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Prior Year Defeasance of Debt In prior years, the primary government defeased varlous
outstanding debt Issues by placing proceeds of new debt or other funds In an Irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, the trust accounts and the
defeased debt are not Included In these financlal statements. At June 30, 2011, the following debt
Issues outstanding are considered defeased:

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities
Primary government:
General Obligation Bonds:

Serles 1994 $ 5,830,000

Series 1998 14,155,000

Series 2001 —3.700,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 23,685,000
Certlficates of Participation:

Serles 1985 35743147 § 8426853
Total Certiflcates of Particlpation 35,743,147 __8.426.853
Revenue Bonds:

Solid Waste User Fee Ravenue Bonds

Series 1994 - 5,360.000
Total Revenue Bonds - 5.360.0
Total primary government $ 50428147 $ 13,786,863
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Legal Debt Limit. The County's borrowing power is restricted by amended Article X, Sectlon 14 of the
State Constltution effective December 1, 1977. This section provides that a lecal unit cannot at any time
have total general obligation debt outstanding in an amount that exceads eight percent of ils assessed
property value. Excluded from the limlitation are: bonded Indebtedness appraved by the voters and Issued
within five years of the date of such referendum; speclal bonded indebtedness; levies assessed on
properties located in an area recelving special beneflis from the taxes collected; and bonded indebtedness
existing on December 1, 1977, the effective date of the consfitutional amendment.

Beginning January 1, 1896, the South Carolina Legislature changed the definition of debt subject to the 8
percent limit to Include all Ceriificates of Particlpation at the time of Issue subsequent to December 31,
1985. The following computation reflects the County’s compliance with this limitation:

Assessad value of real and personal property

Value of merchants Inventory and manufacturers depreclation

Total assessed value

Debt limitation - 8 percent of total assessed value

Total bonded debt:
General Obligation Bonds

Less:
Bonds issued pursuant to referendum:

Serles 2004 Refunding G.O. Bond
Series 2007 G.O. Bond Transportation Sales tax
Series 2006 G.O. Bond Transportation Sales tax

Total debt subject to debt limit

Legal debt margin
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$(5,000,000)
(145,250,000)
56,860,000

$380,835,000

(207,110,000}

$ 3,118,892,338
26,943 587

$_3.145,836.935

$ 251,666,874

173,825,000
8 77.841.874
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J. Fund Equity

Nonspendabie Tor Inventorfes and prepaid items. These amounts do not represant available spendable
resources even though they are components of net current assets.

Restricted for debt service. Fund balance subject to the provision of various bond indenture and
Certificate of Participation lease agreements as to restrictions on expenditures.

Committed for capital projects. All capital project fund balances, are committed for the acquisition of
capltal assets, for the completlon of existing projects and for future projects.

Restricted for special revenue funds. Amounts restricted In accordance with the various use restrictions
placed on thelr assets under applicable grant agreements and legislation.

V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management

The County and Its component units are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to and desfruction of assets; errors and omisslons; and natural disasters. For all of these
rieks, the County and its component units are members of the State of South Carolina Insurance
Reserve Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating ae a common risk management and
Insurance program for local governmenis. The County and Its component units pay an annual
premium to the State Insurance Reserve Fund for its general insurance coverage. The State Insurance
Reserve Fund iz self-sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through commerclal
companies for certain claims.

The County and ks component units are also subject to risks of loss from providing health, life,
accident, dental, and other medical beneflts to employees, retirees, and their dependents. The County
has enrolled substantlally all of its employees In the State’s health Insurance plans administerad by the
South Carollna Budget and Conftrol Board. The County records contributions from employer funds,
employees, and retirees in the Employee Benefits Trust Internal Service Fund which remits the
premlums to the State. The State relnsures through commerclal companles for these risks. The
varlous component units of the County Insure the health, life, accldent, dental and other medical
benefits to their employees and their dependents through commercial Insurance companias.

Effective July 1, 1995, the County established a self-insured plan to fund risks associated with
workers' compensation claims. Claims administration is handled by a third party with reinsurance
through commerclal Insurance companles for all individual claims in excess of $100,000. All funds of
the County participate in the program and make payments to the Workers’ Compensation Internal
Service Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year
claims. The claims llability of $3,520,000 reported in the Fund at June 30, 2011, is based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a
liablilty for claims be reporied if information prior to the Issuance of the financial statements Indicates
that It I1s probable that a liabllity has baen Incurred at the date of the flnancial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The County purchases insurance contracts from
commercial Insurers to satisfy certain liabilities under workers’ compensation claims; accordingly, no
llabllity Is reported for those claims. The llablilty Is included In the County's accounts payable as
reported in the fund statement and statement of net assets.
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Changes in the Fund's estimated claims liabllity amount in fiscal year 2011 and 2010 were:

Current Year
Beginningof  Claims and Balance at
Year Ended Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments
2010 $ 2750000 § 3404768 § (3,530,788) ¢ 2,615,000
2011 2,615,000 5915414 (5,010,414) 3,520,000

For all of the above risk management programs, except workers' compensation, the County and its
component units have not slgnificantly reduced Insurance coverages from the previous year; settled
claims In excess of insurance coverage for the last three years were immaterial. For each of the
Insurance programs and public entity risk pools in which they particlpate, the County and its

Component units have effectively transferred all risk with no llabllity for unfunded claims.

Bottom portion of page Intentionally left blank
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B. Segment Information

The County maintalns an enterprise fund which provides drug and alcohol abuse treatment. This fund
is supported by a revenue-backed COP. The County also has an enterprise fund for environmental
management. It |s presented as a major business-type fund.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets: DAODAS
Assets:
Current assets $ 2639834
Deferred Issuance costs 41,806
Caplial assets 8,822 972
Total assets $§ 0504612
Liabliitles:
Current liabilities $ 412,302
Certificates of participetion 2,754,214
Other long-term obligations 295212
Total llablltles 3,461,728
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 4,068,758
Unrestricted 1,974 126
Total net assats 6,042,884
Total llablliities and net assets § 9504612
Condensed Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets:
DAODAS
Operating revenues $ 5,643,453
Depreciation and amortizatlon (256,468)
Other operating expenses 8 33
Operating income (loss) (3,277,346)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest Income 0,544
Interest expense (215,402)
Intergovernmental revenue 60
Total nonoperating revenues (expensas) 389,238
Net Transfers In 2,391,599
Change In net assets (486,509)
Beginning nat assets ____ 6529393
Ending net assets § 6042884
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows:
DAODAS
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities $ (3,375,947)
Noncapital financing actlvities 2,996,685
Capital and related financing activities (723,368)
Investing activities 9.54
Net increase (decrease) (1.093,077)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 2,418,047
Ending cash and cash equivalents S  1.324970
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€. Subsequent Events

On July 27, 2011, the County issued General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds with a par value of
$27,100,000. The County also issued General Obligation Capltal Improvement Transporiation Sales
Tax Bonds with a par value of $167,000,000.

On October 13, 2011, the County purchased the South Carolina Electric & Gas Company building
located on Leeds Avenue. The purchase price was $4.5 million. This property will be developed for a
Sheriff's Law Enforcement Center.

During October 2011, County Council authorized staff to finalize negotiations with Motorola for Phase 3
of the new network design. The price is not to exceed $7,000,000.

During the fiscal year, Charleston County Council approved the future issuance of a tax anticipation
note (TAN) In the amount of $1,000,000 for St John's Fire District. Subsequent to June 30, 2011, the
District has not borrowed any funds on this TAN. The entire $1,000,000 is available to the District as of
the date of their audit report. This note, which bears interest at a rate equal to the interest rate pald by
the South Carolina Investment Pool during the perlod the note is outstanding, ls due and payable in
March 2012,

The St. John's Fire Disfrict is in the process of obtaining general obligation bonds of approximately $7.5
mlllion to fund bulldings/Improvements and several fire truck acquisitions. The Disfrict anticipates the
bond closing will occur in December 2011.

At year end, the James Island Public Service District was walting on approved loan proceeds from two
SC Budget and Control Board (SCB&CB) loans. The loan proceeds are to be used to pay $1,921,684
of the cost of two wastewater projects which will cost $1,901,684, and will be completed in the year
ended June 30, 2012.

The first SCB&CB loan was closed on June 28, 2011, In the amount of $1,334,027. This loan will be
amortized In 80 quarterly payments of $23,273. Payments will begin on October 1, 2011. As of June
30, 2011, the District was still waiting to raceive the proceeds of this loan.

The second SCB&CB loan was recelved on October 3, 2011, In the amount of $586,757. This loan will
be amortized over 79 quarterly payments of $10,319. Payments on this loan are also scheduled to
begin on October 1, 2011.

In October 2011, the Commissioner of St. Paul’s Fire District approved an amendment Increasing a
construction contract by $315,000.

On July 29, 2011, the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission purchased a tract of land
on Hughes Road consisting of approximately 208 acres of highlands and approximately 115 acres of
marshlands. The purchase price was $4,900,000, of which $4,075,000 was funded by the Greenbelt
Bank Board and $825,000 from the Commission.
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On September 11, 2011, the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission purchased a tract of
land on Highway 171 consisting of approximately 48.50 acres of highlands and approximately 10 acres
of marshlands. The purchase price was $3,400,000 which was funded from the debt service fund and
is expected to be reimbursed from the General Obligation Bond proceeds.

On and around August 26, 2011, Hurrlcane Irene caused extensive damage to the Folly Beach County
Park due to beach erosion. Costs to stabllize the beach incurred through November 2, 2011, totaled
$152,860.

D. Contingent Liabllities

Federal Grants. Amounts received or recelvable from grants are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencles, principally the federal govemment. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. Management has not been informed of any
significant matters of non-compliance with grant provisions or planned grantor audits. The amount of
grant expenditures which may be disallowed cannot ba determined at this time, but the County believes
that any amount wlil be immaterial.

Litigation. The County and its component units are party to varlous lawsuits that are normal In the
operations of a county government. These lawsults involve disputes arising from varlous matters,
Including the termination of employment, wrongful death and survival, personal Injury and other tort
actions, delinquent tax sales, contractual agreements, and civil rights violations. It is the opinion of legal
counsel that it cannot be determined whether resolution of these matters, Individually or In the
aggregate in excess of insurance coverage, will have a material adverse effect on the flnanclal
condition of the County and its component units.

Annexatlon. Several of the component units serve geographic regions which are subject to annexation
by the surrounding municipalities. Should these annexations continue, there could be a significant
impact on the operations of the varlous component unlis. The South Caroclina General Assembly Is
currently considering legislation which would require the municlpality which annexes properties of
another political subdivislon to assume responsibility for payment of the pro-rata bonded debt
oufstanding on the date of annexation.

In May 2000, the South Carolina General Assembly passed legislation to address the loss of revenues
by public service districts due to annexations by municlpalities. The leglslation calls for an agreed-upon
plan between the annexing municipallty and the public service district. This plan would protect the
remaining unannexed area In the public servics district from economic loss of revenue brought about by
annexation.

This new legislation should lessen but not eliminate the Impact on the operations of various component
units due to annexations.

E. Commitments
The County and its various component units have various commitments o provide facilities or services

under numerous agreaments signed with third parties in addition to ite construction commitments and
recorded encumbrances.
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In July 2001, the County entered Into an Intergovernmenial agreement with the South Carolina
Infrastructure Bank to make twenty-five annual payments of $3,000,000 beginning in January 2004 as a
local match to help defray the cost of the Arthur Ravenel, Jr. Bridge over the Cooper River built by the
State to replace the existing bridges connecting the City of Charleston and the Town of Mt. Pleasant.
This debt is shown as an Inter-government note payable in Nots | of these financial statements.

The County entered into an agreement with the South Carolina Transporiation Infrastructure Bank
(SCTIB) for the completion of the Mark Clark Expressway. This agreement was executed on June 8,
2007, between the County, the SCTIB, and The South Carolina Department of Transportation. The total
project funding requested was $420 milllon. Preliminary design Is underway on the project.

On September 15, 1997, the County entered Into an Intergovernmental agreement with the City of
North Charleston to help fund the construction of a convention center adjacent to the North Charleston
Coliseum. The agreement requires the County to be responsible for the pro-rata debt service on
$18,095,000 of a total $48,045,000 In Certificates of Particlpation Issued by the City on September 15,
1997. The debt service Is to be pald monthly o a trustee from the revenues of the County
Accommodations Special Revenue Fund. The agreement allows for non-payment in the event of non-
appropriation by the City of North Charleston and for reduced payments if accommodation fee revenues
fall below the payment amount. Annual debt service on the County's $18,095,000 obligation, maturing
In 2020, under the agreement is approximately $1.4 million.

The County parinered with the City of Charleston and Berkeley County to consfruct the Danlel Island
Tennis Center. County Councll commiited to fund $750,000 of the project with 15 annual payments of
$50,000 from Accommodations Fee revenues. This agreement contains the same allowances for
reduced or non-payment as the City of North Charlaston agreemant.

Both of these agreements are funded from a specific source of funds, the Accommodations Fee. The
agreements also contain provisions for the non-payment of these obligations by the County If the
revenues from the Accommodations Fee are not sufficient to make the payment or If the parties that
Issued the debt (the City of North Charleston and City of Charleston, respectively) do not make their
pro-rata debt service. Therefore, the determination has been made that these commlitments do not
represent debt to the County and are not reflected in the entity-wide financlal statements.

In July 2005, the County entered Into an agreement with the LPA Group Incorporated for program
management services of the County’s $150,000,000 roads portion of the half-cent sales tax monies
(Roadwise Program). The original contract amount was $18,329,782 over a flve year perlod beginning
July 2005. The services are to Include; design work, right of way easements, consulting on feasibllity,
land acquisitions, engineering work, developing bid specifications, and construction services.
Amendment 1 of the contract was approved August 23, 2007, changing the contract amount to
$17,973,126 and leaving the contract length unchanged. Amendment 2 of the contract was approved
October 20, 2008, changing the contract amount to $17,882,898 and leaving the contract length the
same. Starting November 2008, the contract confains for a monthly base fee of $316,824, plus 10
percent of work completed. An amendment dated January 27, 2010, extends the term of the contract
untll June 30, 2014. This extension is subject to annual approval for continuation by the County. This
amendment also fixed the contract amount of $11,122,273 over a four year period.
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The following Is a schedule by fiscal year of the minimum future payments under this contract:

Year ending June 30

2012 $ 3.241,852
2013 2,536,401
2014 1,830,560
TOTAL § 7708813

The amount paid for these services for the year-ended June 30, 2011, was $3,774,327.

On April 7, 2008, the County entered into a ten-year agreement with the Charleston Animal Soclety
formerly the John Ancrum Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals for the care and
impoundment of animals dellvered to the shelter by the County. The original agreement with the
Soclety was dated January 23, 1979, and has been updated several times since then. The amended
non-cancelable portion of the agreement calls for the County to pay a base monthly fee of $34,539.
Additionally, the County agrees to pay the Society $5.77 for the recelving and immunization of each
animal placed in custody and $5.77 boarding fee per animal per day. The County will also pay a
euthanasla fee of $5.77 fee for each animal. The County also agrees to pay any reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses assoclated with animal cruelty cases.

As part of the contract, the County provided $4,500,000 in funds and property towards the construction
of a new shelter. Upon early termination of the agreement by the Soclety, the Society shall repay the
County a pro-rata portion of the $4,500,000.

This contract was amended on July 1, 2009. The amended non-cancellable portion of the agreement
calis for the County to pay a base monthly fee of $51,772, as well as, $7.48 for the recelving and
immunization of each animal placed in the custody of the Society, and $7.48 boarding fes per animal
per day. The County will also pay a suthanasia fee of $7.48 to the Society for each animal euthanized.

In additlon, the County agrees to pay a cremation fee of $7.48 for each dead animal brought to the
shelter by a law enforcement officer, animal control officer of the County or municipallty within the
County. The Society will bill the County separately for stray animals that It recelves from cltizens of the
County.

The non-cancelable portion of the agreement states the County shall continue to pay the Soclety the
current monthly fee for a five-year period plus any annual Increases in the CPI during such five-year
period if the County terminates the contract. The agresment was amended February 1, 2011. The
following language was added: The Soclety may contract for accounting services in order to maintain
an accurate record of fees and costs assoclated with the intake of animals delivered to Society. The
Society will submit monthly invoices to the County for relmbursement. These monthly involces shall
include an kemized blll for said accounting services. The Soclety will be entirely responsible for any and
all costs that exceed Fifteen Hundred ($1,500.00) Dollars per month. The County may, at any time,
request from Society a full audit of the accounting services and duties performed by accountant and
Soclety will comply within a reasonable time with any and all such requests.

The Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission has entered into an egreement with the City
of Folly Beach to restrict $60,000 each year to provide for the re-nourishment of the eroslon that accurs
along Folly Beach. During the year ended June 30, 2011, $§0 funds were transferred to the City of Folly
Beach for re-nourishment. Capital Projects fund balance of $414,179 has been reserved for beach re-
nourishment.
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As of June 30, 1897, the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission had provided
approximately $2,085,171 to the City of Charleston for the construction of the Charleston Maritime
Center which was to be leased to and operated by the Commission. On August 4, 1997, the Clty of
Charleston and Charleston County Park and Recreatlon Commission entered Into an agreement that
terminated the Master Lease of the Charleston Maritime Center dated August 1, 1995, between the two
parties. This agreement grants the Commission the right of first refusal for the purchase of the Maritime
Center for a period of 50 years from the date of execution of the agreememt. In the event that the
Commission does elect to purchase the Marltime Center, then the Clty of Charleston will credit
$1,500,000 toward the purchase price. If the Commission elects not to purchase the Maritime Center,
then the Clty of Charlaeston wlll pay the CommiIssion $1,500,000 from the proceeds of the sale.

The Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission has an agreement with the Charleston
County School District to cooperate in the operation of a Communlty Education Program. Each
sponsor has determined which of its facilities and resources Is avallable to the Community Education
Program and agrees to supply the cost of necessary part-time professional staff that may be required.
Avallable state, federal, and private funding Is sought with the remaining costs shared to the extent
agreed upon by the partles. The agreement with the School District was modified in July 1882 to
provide for one-half of the Commission’s share of the expenses to be paid to the school district prior to
December 21 of each fiscal year and the balance to be pald by March 12 of the following year. Total
payments made prior to June 30, 2011, for the 2011 program year were $466,922. The agreement was
modifled for the 2007 program year to provide for an equitable sharing of Increased program fees
collected during the year. The amount accrued as program revenue under thls agreement was
$280,483.

In July 1995 the Commission entered into a lease agreement with Charleston County whereby the
Commilssion assumed the responsibliities of operating and maintaining 19 boat landings throughout
Charleston County. The lease is for a term of 99 years and commenced on July 1, 1995. The
Commission pays a nominal fee of $1 per year under the lease terms, but the agreement expressed the
Iintent of Charleston County to transfer millage each year to help fund related expenses. Funding Is
contingent upon future County Councll approval.

On June 29, 1988, Kiawah Island was sold to Kiawah Resort Associates. The Charleston County Park
and Recreation Commission has been In contact with the owners in order to obtaln a new lease
agreement for Beach Walker Park. A verbal agreement has been made to ensure that the Park can
continue to operate. To date, however, no formal agreement has been signed.

During 1988 the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission was advised by the South
Carolina Highway Department that the proposed Mark Clark Expressway will go through the northern
portion of James Island County Park. The Commission i8 awaiting determination from the South
Carolina Department of Transportation and Charleston County on the future location of the Mark Clark
corridor.

An open letter of credit for $33,460 was established In 1989 with the Wachovia Bank at the request of

the Commissioners of Publlc Works. The Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission Is
required to keep this line of credit open. As of year end, none of this credit had been utlized.
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In December 2000, the U.S. Secretary of the Interlor conveyed property conslsting of approximately 25
acres In fee and 0.8 acres of eagsements to the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission in
a Quitclaim Deed. The property conveyed Includes areas presently known as the Cooper River Marina,
previously known as the Old Navy Base Marina facllities. The conveyanca has several resfrictions
including the following: the property must be used and maintained for the public park and recreation
purposes for which it was conveyed in perpetuity, the property shall not be sold, leased, assigned or
otherwise disposed of except to another eliglble governmental agency that the Secretary of the Interior
agrees In writing can assure the same continued use of the property, and funds generated on the
property may not be used for non-recreational purposes and, furthermore, must be used for the
development, operation end meintenance of the property until it is fully developed in accordance with
the Program of Utilization. There are also various reporting requirements.

On August 22, 2005, the Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission entered info an
agreement with K.L.B. Group DBA Locklear's Baach Clty Grill o allow this corporation to operate the
restaurant at the Folly Pier. The original lease term was for five years beginning October 1, 2005. The
building held for rent had an estimated cost of $1,253,494 and an estimated net book value of
$883,499. Rent started at $7,400 per month and Increases each November based on the current CPI.
The new rental per month based on the CPI Increased to $8,191 per month on November 1, 2010. The
lease also provided for contingent rentals of 7.25 percent of annual sales greater than $1,200,000.

In August 2009 the Commission and K.L.B. Group entered Into an agreement to allow the corporation
to exerclse the option of extending the lease for an additional flve years, with the option terminating on
October 31, 2015.

The following is a schedule by years of the minimum future rentals on the non-cancelable operating
lease as of June 30, 2011:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2012 $ 98,292
2013 98,292
2014 98,292
2015 98,292
2016 32,764
Total minimum lease rentals § 425932

Total rent income of $101,393 was recorded during the year.

The Cooper River Park and Playground Commission contracted on July 1, 1996, with the City of North
Charleston (City) to provide recreational services for the flscal year to the citizens within the
Commission's jurisdictlonal boundarles. Since the original contract date, the Commission and the City
have renewed this contract annually with an effactive date of July 1 of each fiscal year. Under the terms
of this contract, the City agrees to pay all reasonable administrative and professional costs incurred by
the Commisslon, and the Commission agrees to transfer and pay over to the City all appropriated
funds, from whatever source, in the accounts of the Commisslon except for the remaining unreserved
fund balance carried forward from June 30, 2008, in the amount of $61,340. The City also assumed
control and possession (but not legal title) of fixed property and equipment. Due fo the declining tax
base and the fractured property lines of the Commission, it would be difficult or impractical to provide
services to its cltizens without this contract with the City. On June 24, 2010, the Commission entered
into another one yaar contract with the City covering the period from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011, with
essentially identical terms as previous contracts.
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Certain real estate and facilities acquired by the Cooper River Park and Playground Commission are

located within the corporate limite of the Clty of North Charleston. Those facliiles were originally leased

to the City for a 25-year |ease term commencing May 23, 1980, at a $1 annual rental fee. This lease

was renegotlated and signed May 23, 2006, for a 50-year term at a $§1 annual rental fes. Additional

;acilities were leased In February and May of 1980 for a 100-year term also at an annual rental fee of
1.

Under the annual contract with the City of North Charleston, the Cooper River Park and Playground
Commlsslon has agreed to assign to the City all of Its assets, real and personal, thereby allowing the
Clty exclusive use, possession, control and management of these assels. As of June 30, 2011, the
leased assets have a book value of $82,462.

The North Charleston District entered into an agreement on April 1, 1996, with the City of North
Charleston for the City to provide fire, sanitation, and street lighting servicas to the constituents of the
District. The contract requires the payment of substantially all of the Districts revenues fo the City and
lurning over control and possession, but not legal tile to, all of the District's fixed property and
equipment. On an annual basis since June 30, 1997, the District has entered into additional one year
contracts with the City with essentially the same terms as described above. To fulfill the contract at
June 30, 2011, the District owes the City $16,679. This contract was extended for one year untll June
30, 2012.

During the 2011 fiscal year, the Clty of Charleston, SC completed an audlt of the taxes remitted to the
James Island Public Service District for the last flve years relating to properties which were annexed
into the City of Charleston. The Clty of Charleston Is required to remilt to the Disfrict the portion of ad
valorem tax the Clty collects from annexed properties representing the District's fire department budget
that would have baen collected by the District had the properties not been annexed into the city. As a
result of this audit, the City determined the District had been overpaid $385,328 in the general fund and
overpaid $35,946 In debt service. The District will repay the excess remittances over a five (5) year
period beginning In fiscal year 2011 at the rate of $79,066 per year in the general fund and $7,189
through the deft service fund. The Cily will reduce future tax payments each year due to the District
until this overpayment has been recovered by the Clty.

F. Deferred Compensation Plan

The County and Its component units offer ther employees several deferred compensation plans under
programs administered by the South Carolina Deferred Compensation Commission. The multiple
employer plans were created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 457 and 401(K). The
plans, available to all full-ime County and component unlt employees, at their option, permit
particlpants to defer a portlon of thelr salary until future years. Only upon termination, retirement,
disability, death, or an approved hardshlip Is the deferred compensation available to an employee.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the deferred compensation plans were amended to allow for
employer matching confributions of up to $300 per year for each covered participant. Effective
December 23, 2008, the County suspended this match of $75 per quarter. The total contributions made
by the County’s plan members were $2,058,419 for the flscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Total contributions made by the Charleston County Library's plan members were $260,873 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2011.
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G. Other Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description

The County provides post-employment health, life and dental care benefits, as per the requirement of a
local ordinance, for certaln retirees and their depandents. This plan is a single employer defined benefit
plan. Substantially all employees who retire under the State retirement plans are eligible fo continue
their coverage with the County paying 50 percent of health Insurance premiums and the retiree paying
100 percent of life and dental Insurance premlums and the remaining S0 percent of the health Insurance
premiums. The County's regular insurance providers underwrite the retirees’ policles. Retirees may not
convert the benefit into an in-lieu payment to secure coverage under independent plans. Effective July
1, 2008, the County modified Its post empioyment benefits policy as follows:

A) Increase years of service with the County:

1. Twenty five years of service with the County for the fifty percent of health premium
benefit.

2. Flfteen ysars of service with the County for the twenty five percent of health premium
benefit.

B) Reduce surviving spouse benefit fo one year for future retirees who start work with the
County January 1, 2009 and later.

The James Island Public Service District also provides a retiree beneflt equal to 100 percent of the
health insurance premiums over age 65 and a portion if under age 65. The retiree must pay for all life
and dental Insurance premiums. Effactive November 1, 2010, the District will limit the amount it
contrlbutes to the health premium, and the contribution will be subject to annual appropriation.

During the flscal year ended June 30, 20086, the St. Paul's Fire District established a policy that allowed
raetires insurance benefits. The plan was amended In 2009 fo cease coverage at the earlier of the date
of death or the date the participant becomes ellgible for Medicare coverage. The plan was further
curtalled at the end of the 2010 fiscal year, continuing coverage for those Individuals who had retired
prior to June 30, 2010, but providing no coverage to any employee retiring after that date.

The Charieston County Park and Recreation Commission provide retiree benefits as follows:

A) Any covered employee who retires with at least 20 years, but less than 25 years of Commission
covered entlty service credit under the South Carolina Retlrement Systems will be eligible for
Commission funded retiree insurance beneaflts effactive with his/her date of retiremenf, provided
he/she Is eliglble for retirement at the time he/she leaves active Commission service. The last five
years must be consecutive and In a full-time, regular position. The Commission willl pay 50 percent
of the retiree cost and 50 percent of the dependent cost for heaith and dental coverage.

B) Any covered employee who retires with 25 years or more years of Commisslon-covered entity
service credit under the South Carolina Retirement Systemns will be ellglble for Commission funded
retiree Insurance benefits effective with his’her date of retirement, provided he/she is eligible for
retirement at the time he/she leaves active Commission service. The last five years must be
consecutive and In a full-time, regular, positlon. The Commission will pay 100 percent of the retiree
cost and 65 percent of the dependent cost for hesalth and dental coverage.
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C) The health and dental insurance premium for surviving spouses and dependents of deceased
retirees will be waived for one year after the retiree’s death. Following one year, the surviving
spouse and/or dependents are eligible to continue coverage at the same proportlonal cost (50
percent or 65 parcent) as in effect prior to the retiree’s death. Survivors may remaln on the plan
until death or remarriage, whichever comes first.

D) Employees may opt out of the plan. The Commission is not required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate, but has elected {o confribute based on an advanced funding basis based on the
actuarial determined amount.

Funding Policy

As of year-end, there were 543 employees who had retired from the County and are recelving health
Insurance premlum coverage beneflits. The County currently finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go
basis. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County recognized expenses of $1,196,081 for
healthcare, which were net of retiree contributions of $1,176,450. The James Island Public Service
District had 25 employees who had retired and recelving bensfits under their plan. The District
recognlzed expenses of $133,185 for health care premium net of retiree contributions of $34,150. The
St. Paul's Fire District had 3 employees who had retired and recelving beneflis under their plan. The
District recognized expenses of $12,000 for health care premiums. The Charleston County Park and
Recreation Commission had 5 employees who are retired and receiving benefits.

The County's annual cost (expense) for other post employment benefits Is calculated based on the
annual required contribution (ARC) of the smployer, which i8 actuarially determined based upon the
requirements and parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost for each year plus the amount
necessary to amortize any unfunded actuarlal llabllity (or funding excess) over a perlod not o exceed
30 years. The current ARC Is based on a level percent of payroll increasing at 3 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County's annual OPEB cost was $4,570,445 for the post
employment healthcare plan. The County's annual OPEB cost for the current year Is as follows:

Annual Required Confribution $ 4,534,259
Interest on OPER obligation 492,255
Adjustment to ARC — [456,069)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) end of year 4,570,445
Net estimated employer contributions __(1,676,012)
Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 2,804,433
Net OPEB obligation/(asset) beginning of year $ 10,938,993
Net OPEB obligation/(asset) end of year $ 13,833,426

Actuarigl methods and assumptions

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method Is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County’s
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarlal
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then
provides for a systematic funding for these anticlpated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover
the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded
accrued liabliity.
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Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the County and include the types
of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the County
and the County’'s employees to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and
employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarlal value of assets. Slgnificant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Investment rata of return 4.8% net of expenses

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit Cost Method

Amortization method Level as a percentage of employee payroll
Amortlzation Perlod Open 30 year period

Salary Growth 3.00% per annum

Inflation 3.00% per annum

Medical Trend Starting at 8.0% and decreasing by .5% per year fo

4.5% per after 9 years

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the annual
required contributions of the County’s retiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual
resulis are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required
schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend
Information that shows whether the actuarial velue of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 and the preceding two fiscal years were as
follows:

Flscal Year Annual OPEB  Employer Amount Percentage Net OPEB
Ended Cost Confributed Contributed Qbligation
June 30, 2009 $5,947,354 $1,872,824 31.5% $ 8,286,334
June 30, 2010 $4,402,193 $1,749,534 30.7% $10,938,993
June 30, 2011 $4,570,445 $1,676,012 36.7% $13,833,426
Schedule of Funding Progress and Status
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial  Accrued Liabllity AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Value of {AAL) (b) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered
Date Assets (a) - (a/b) Payroll (b
alic)
7/1/2007 s - $52,072,308 $52,972,308 0% $93,550,000 56.62%
7/1/2008 $ - $52,972,306 $52,972,306 0% $97,800,000 54.16%
7/1/2008 s - $47,374,110 $47,374,110 0% $96,600,000 49.04%
711/2010 $ - $47,374,110 $47,374,110 0% $99,400,000 47.66%

119



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

H. Funds Held by Coastal Community Foundation

As of June 30, 2011, the Coastal Community Foundation was holding $431,055 in the Charleston
County Library Fund. The fund was established in November 1983 as a capital fund for the purpose of
providing support for unusual or innovative programs and services at the Library not normally funded by
government appropriations. During the year, $5,000 was awarded as grants to the Library. Of the
balance, $10,087 Is avallable for grants to the Library.

As of June 30, 2011, the Coastal Community Foundation was holding $82,385 in the Roper Foundation
Community Wellness Endowment for the Charleston County Library. The endowment was established
for the purpose of updating the health education information collection. At year-end, $2,900 Is avallable
for grants to the Library.

These amounts are not reflected in the Library's financial statements until grants are received by the
Library from the Foundation,

I. Employee Retirement Systems and Plans
South Cerolina Retirement and Police Officers’ Retirement Systems

Plan Description. All permanent employees of the County and its component unlts, except for certaln
employees involved In law enforcement and flre fighting activities, participate in the South Carolina
Retirement System (SCRS). The employees excluded above particlpate In the South Carolina Police
Officers’ Retirement System (SCPORS). Both systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plans adminietered by the Retirement Division of the State Budget and Confrol Board. The
SCRS and SCPORS provide retirement and disabllity benefits, cost of living adjustments on an ad-hoc
basls, life Insurance and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficlarles. Each plan's provisions
are established under Title 9 of the S.C. Code of Laws. A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
containing financial statements and required supplementary information for both the SCRS and
SCPORS is issued and publicly available by writing the South Carolina Retirement System, P-O. Box
119860, Columbla, SC 20211-1960.

Funding Policy - SCRS. Plan members are required to contribute 6.50 percent of thelr annual covered
salary and the employer Is raquired to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is
9.24 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of ptan members and employers
are established under authority of Title 8 of the South Carolina Code of Law, 1976 (as amended).

Funding Pollcy - SCPORS. Plan members are required to contribute 8.7 percent of their annual
covered salary and the employer is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current
rate is 10.65 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and
employers are establlshed under authority of Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Law, 1976 (as
amended).

Additionally, participating employers of the SCRS contribute .15 percent of payroll o provide a group
life insurance benefit for their participants; and particlpating employers of the SCPORS contribute .4
percent of payroll to provide a group life Insurance benefit and accidental death benefits for their
participants.
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The following table presents the required contributions to the SCRS and SCPORS by the County and
its component units for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2000:

SCRS Contrlbutions 2011 2014 2009
Primary government: $ 6,025,133 § 6,038,511 § 6,157,100
Component units:
CCL 653,680 641,886 670,394
CCPRC 810,537 750,734 691,007
JIPSD 385,833 393,616 402,807
SAPPPC 106,196 109,493 110,901
SJFD 36,538 47,767 44726
SPFD 9,464 0.098 7.633
Total SCRS $ 8037381 § 7992005 § _ 8.084568
SCPORS Confributions
Primary government: S 3604484 § 3,303,451 § 3,280,463
Component units:
SJFD 525,406 492,090 479,814
SPFD 258,048 267,074 236,949

Total SCPORS $ 4478838 § 4062615 $ __ 4007226

One hundred percent of the required contributions have been made for the current and each of the
previous two years.

During fiscal year 2011, Charleston County offered a voluntary retirement incentive fo employees who
were eligible to retire under the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) or the South Carolina Police
Officers Retirement System (PORS). Employees who chose to participate in the program were
required to separate from Charleston County no later than March 31, 2011. Departments and offlces
that had employees participate In the program were required to reduce their budgets by 75 percent of
the annual salary for the retiree. This reduction Is required to be maintained through fiscal year 2014.

Employees were offered two Incentive cholces. They could recelve one week's pay for every year
worked with the county, up to a maximum of 26 weeks pay or they could select to have the county
purchase two and one half years of service credit in SCRS or PORS. A total of 38 Charleston County
employees and 10 Charleston County Library employees retired under the incentive program. The tofal
program cost was $1,253,460. The program resulted in $1,899,927 of savings in the fiscal year 2012
budgest.

J. Pending GASB Pronouncements

The GASB has issued Statement No. 81, "The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnlbus — an amendment
of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34" for periods beginning after June 15, 2012. The effect of
implementation of this statement on the financlal statements for the County’s year ending June 30,
2013 has not yet been determined. The objective of this Statement Is to Improve financlal reporting for a
governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financiel
Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, were
amended to better meet user needs and to address reporiing entity issuss that have arisen since the
issuance of those Statements.
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This Statement modifies certain requirements for Inclusion of component units In this financlal reporting
entity. For organizations that previously were required to be Included as component units by meeting
the fiscal dependency criterlon, a flnanclal benefit or burden relationship also would need to be present
between the primary government and that organization for it to be includad in the reporting entity as a
component unit. Further, for organizations that do not meet the financlal accountabliity criteria for
inclusion as component units but that, nevertheless, should be included because the primary
government's management determines that it would be misleading to exclude them, this Statement
clarifies the manner in which that determination should be made and the types of relationships that
generally should be considered in making the determination.

This Statement also amends the criteria for reporting component units as if they were part of the
primary government (that is, blending) In certain circumstances. For component units that currently are
blended based on the "substantively the same governing body” criterlon, it additionally requires that (1)
the primary government and the companent unit have a financlal benefit or burden relationship or {2)
management (below the level of the elected officials) of the primary government have operational
responsibliity for the activities of the componant unit. New criteria also are added to require blending of
component units whose total debt outstanding is expected to be repaid entirely or almast entirely with
resources of the primary govemment. The blending provislons are amended to clarify that funds of
blended component unit have the same financial reporting requirements as a fund of the primary
government.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 63, “FInancial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Posltion® for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The
effect of Implementation of this statement on the flnanclal statements for the County's year ending June
30, 2013 has not yef been determined. This Statement provides financial reporting guldance for
deferred oulflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elsmenis
of Financial Statements, Introduced and deflned those elements as a consumptlon of net assets by the
govarnment that Is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the
government that is applicable to a future reporting perlod, respectively. Previous financial reporting
standards do not Include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct
from assets and liabilities.

The requirements of this Statement will Improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a government's
net posltion. It alleviaies uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing
guidance whera none previously existed.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — DEFINED BENEFIT HEALTH CARE PLAN
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 (UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

71112007
7/1/2008
7/1/2009
7/1/2010

Actuarial
Value of

Assets (a)

Primary Government

$
$
$
$

Component Units

yial 7

JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

11
JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

7/1/2008
JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

172010
JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

$
$
$

(- K- R OO

ONH P

[ X XX

O, <3 X - X X ]

[ 2%}

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
{AAL) (b)

62,872,306
52,872,306
47,374,110
47,374,110

6,024,108
3,089,213
3,111,459

6,024,106
3,089,213
1,138,768

35,498,663
3,089,213
120,334

5,493,683
3,068,193
130,811

L 2 X X}

DO S OP LR X ]

DAL

Unfunded

AAL

(UAAL)

{b-a)

62,972,308
52,072,306
47,374,110
47,374,110

6,024,10
3,080,213
3,111,459

6,024,106
3,080,213
1,138,768

5,493,683
3,089,213
120,334

5,493,683
3,058,193
130,811

125

Funded
Ratlo

(a/b)

0%
0%
0%
0%

L R XX

fNHh & - 2 X ] PO e

N eHen

Covered
Payroll

(e

93,550,000
97,800,000
96,800,000
99,400,000

4,105,074
6,457,330
2,022,100

4,333,412
7,185,052
2,289,864

4,227,757
7,780,156

4,331,757
8,003,946

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll {{b-

56.62%
54.16%
49.04%
47.66%

146.74%
47.84%
153.87%

139.01%
43.18%
49.51%

1380.00%
39.71%
0%

127.00%
38.21%
0%

CONTINUED



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — DEFINED BENEFIT HEALTH CARE PLAN

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 (UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Flscal Year

Ended
June 30

Primary Government

2008
2009

2010
2011

Component Units

2008

JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

2009
JIPSD

CCPRC
SPFD

2010
JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

2011
JIPSD
CCPRC
SPFD

Annual

Required
Contribution

5,874,245
5,047,354
4,402,193
4,570,445

NHEd HP

481,068
378,935
367,100

@ o

504,234
378,935
242,038

OO N

510,638
378,835

L R7E- ]

510,638
363,911

0 N

Actual
Contributdon
$ 1,662,441
$ 1,872,824
3 1,749,534
$ 1,676,012
$ 133,622
$ .

$

$ 151,532
s$ R
$ R
$ 133,185
3 -
$

$ 146,492
$ .
$ .

N O

Voo @PON M H»

;NN

Net
OPEB

Llability

4,211,804
4,074,530
2,652,659
2,894,433

347,446
378,935
367,100

352,702
378,935
242,038

377,453
378,935

364,146
363,911

Note: The amounts shown as Actual Contribution include the implicit subsidy.

126

Parcant
Funded

28.30%
31.49%

39.74%
38.87%

27.78%
0%

30.05%
0%

26.08%
0%
28.68%

0%
0%
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CHARLESTON COUNTY
COMBINING SCHEDULES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expendlitures
for particular purposes.

Accommodations — This fund Is used to account for the two percent local accommodation tax collected
by the County and the two percent accommodation tax collected by the State on translant room rentals
throughout the County. All expenditures must be tourist related with the exception of the first $25,000 and
five parcent of the remainder of accommodations taxes remitted by the State. The budget is adopted on
an annual basis.

Amerlcan Recovery and Relnvestment Act — This fund was established to account for grants received
under the economic stimulus package enacted by the United States Congress. The Act was intended to
provide a stimulus to the United States economy in the wake of the economic downturn. The budget Is
adopted on a project length basis.

Chlid Support Enforcement — This fund Is used to account for federal monies received to enforce child
support obligations at the local level. The budget is adopted on an annual basls.

Community Development — This fund is used to account for Community Development Block Grants
recelved from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, various state community
development grants and matching funds. The budget is adopted on a project-length basis.

Construction Public Works — This fund is used to account for the recelpt of stdte gasoline tax "C" funds
earmarked for local road maintenance. The budget is adopted on a project-length basis.

Economlic Development — This fund was established o account for local caoperative aconomlc
development activities in the tri-county area. Revenue Is recelved from Multl-county Industrial Park fees
assessed In lleu of property taxes on individual properties under regulations developed by the S. C.
Department of Revenue. The budget Is adopted on an annual basis.

Education — This fund is used to account for speclfic property taxes levied to fund maintenance of
facilities owned by the Trident Technical College within the tri-county area used by residents of
Charleston County. The budget Is adopted on an annual basis.

Emergency Medical Services — This fund is used to account for proceeds of state grants and matching
funds used to purchase equipment for use by emergency medical service personnel. The budget Is
adopted on a project-length basis.

Fire Districts — This fund was established to account for revenues generated by a property tax levy in the
Awendaw, Boone Hall, East Cooper, McClellanville area, North Charleston and West St. Andrew’s Flre
Protection Disfricts and funds recelved under a contract with the Towns of McClellanville and Awendaw to
provide fire protection for the Town's residents. These services are provided by County employees and
through contracts with other entities. The budget is adopted on an annual basls.
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Hazardous Materlals Enforcement — This fund was established to pay for a county-wide hazardous
materials training program and fo acquire equipment needed to support the various fire departments
within the county when they have to handie hazardous material situations. it is funded by a fee charged to
the varlous businesses within the county that use hazardous materials and prior year transfers from the
general fund. The budget Is adopted on an annual basis.

Public Defender - This fund was established to account for the activitles of the Ninth Clrcult Public
Defender. The Public Defender is mandated to defend in the State court system all persons within
Charleston County who are required by Statute, State or Federal Constitution to be provided with a legal
counsel at public expense. The budget is adopted on an annual basis.

Safety Enforcement — This fund Is used to account for federal and state grants, confributions from
individuals and corporations, and County matching funds to provide public safety enforcement and
prevention activities. The budget is adopted on a project-length basis.

Sherlff — This fund was established to account for federal and state grants and asset forfeltures recaived
In various drug interdicion actlvities used {o fund law enforcement activities. The budget Is adopted on an
annual basis.

Sollcltor - This fund was established to account for funds provided by the State, granis for reducing
domestic violence, granis for prosacuting DUI cases and fees charged to first ime defendants under the
Prefrial Intervention Program, who upon completion may have thelr records expunged. State
appropriations are to be used for providing asslstance to victims and witnesses of violent crimes and to
supplement County appropriations for Solicitor actlvities. The budget is adopted on an annual basls.

Storm Water Dralnage — This fund was established to account for the storm water fee the County began
charging November 1, 2006. This fee funds the County's storm water management program which Is
required under federal regulations. The program regulates run off from all properties and activities that
have the potentlal to pollute local water systems. The fee funds operations, maintenance and caplial
Improvements. The budget is adopted on an annual basis.

Victim Notification — This fund was established to account for court assessments and conviction
surcharges received pursuant to a change In state law which reguired counties to provide notification to
victims of violent crime anytime there is a change in the status of the offender. The budget is adopted on
an annual basls.

Charleston Development Corporation — This fund is used to account for the County'’s non-profit
blended component unit. This entity was established in September 2004 to further human, soclal, and
economic development In the County of Charleston. The Corporation exists solely for the benefit of the
County. The budget Is adopted on a project-length basis.

130



Nonmaljor Capltal Projects Funds

Capital Projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital outiays
other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Construction - This fund was established In flscal year 1986 by amendment to the budget ordinance to
raceive the proceeds of property sales and finance new construction with these funds. Per the County
Budget Ordinance, all proceeds from the sale of real estate must be used for capital projects.

Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund was established In fiscal year 2005 to flnance replacement of
fleet and technology equipment, Funding comes from the sale of the County's general capltal asseis
(excluding real estate) and from the general fund.

General Services Conatruction - This fund was established in fiscal year 1805 {o control funds for multl
year facllities maintenance projects, such as building renovations, which have been approved by Council.
Funding comes from the general fund.

ITS/Management Information Systems - This fund was established in fiscal year 1896 to control funds
for multl-year data processing hardware and software acquisitions that have been approved by County
Council. Funding comes from the general fund. This fund also was established to account for the
replacement of computer hardware and software. Funding comes from various leases.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Speclal Revenue Funds
American
Recovery & Chiid
Accommo-  Reinvestment Support Community
ASSETS dations Act Enforcement Development
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents $ - $ - § -  § -
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 1,821,089 49 24,880 375,225
Restricted cash and cash squivalents 984,282 - - -
Recelvables (net of aliowances
for uncollectibles) 2,077,825 361,340 107,884 440,227
Total assets $ 4863196 ¢ 361,388 § 132,764 § 815452
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabllites:
Accounts payable $ 585922 $ 38,734 $ 35,650 $ 248,404
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits - 3,803 16,482 10,569
Due to other funds - 200,088 77,242 -
intergovernmental payable 3,565,910 - - 132,695
Deferred revenue - 18,622 - 25,325
Toftal llabllities 4,151,832 381,339 129,374 416,993
Fund balances:
Reatricted 711,364 50 3,300 308,459
Commilited - - - -
Total fund balances 711,364 50 3,390 308,459
Total liabifities
and fund balances $ 4863196 § 361389 § 132,784 § 815452

See notes to financial statements.
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Special Revenue Funds

Emergency

Construction Economic Medical Fire
Public Works  Development Education Services Districts
$ - 3 - $ - 3 - § -
11,287,696 708,784 - - 797,810
1,745,628 9,887 6,736,922 575 1,850,618
$ 13,033324 3 718,371 $ 5736,922 § 678 § 2,648,128
$ 311,748 ¢ 189878 3 - § - 3 18,109
- 14,784 - - 53,818
- - 189,574 575 -
100,000 - - - 78,077
- - 5,547,348 - 1,681,217
411,748 33,762 5,738,922 575 1,831,321
12,621,576 684,609 - 816,807
12,621,576 684,600 - - 816,807
$§ 13,033,324 § 718,371 § 5,736,922 § 576 § 2,648,128

133



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds

Hazardous
Materials Public Safety
ASSETS Enforcement Defender Enforcement Sherlff
Non-pooled cash and cash equivalents $ - $ - 8 47841 ¢ 50,965
Pooled cash and cash squivalents 236,831 1,020,983 42,484 2,068,109
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Recelvables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles) 294 16,492 866,028 6,653
Total assets $ 237,225 § 1037455 § 956,353 § 2,125727
. — . — ;. — ]
LIABILITI ND E
Llabliities:
Accounts payable $ 62 ¢ 14454 § 853 ¢ 36,642
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 3,963 148,276 45,730 8,380
Due to other funds - - 349,668 -
Intergovernmental payable - 1,487 31,581 3,847
Deferred revenue - 78,871 - -
Total llabllities 4,025 241,188 435412 48,679
Fund balances:
Restricted 233,200 796,267 520,041 2,077,048
Committed - - - -
Total fund balences 233,200 766,267 520,941 2,077,048
Total liabllities
and fund balances $§ 237,225 § 1037455 § 056,353 § 2125727

See notss to financlal statements.
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Caphal

Projects
Special Revenue Funds Funds
Charleston
Storm Water Victim Development
Sollcitor Drainage Notification Corp Construction
$ 2,690,754 ¢ - § 2,211 ¢ - $ -
152,991 2,087,204 32,783 32,826 8,508,684
245,942 653,134 - 221 -
$ 3080687 & 2,720428 § 62,004 33047 $ 8,508,684
$ 5188 § 32632 ¢ 1,291 ¢ - § 281,123
55,444 34,773 14,829 - -
390.‘79 - - - -
81,281 89 - - -
56,408 - - - -
588,800 67,494 16,120 - 281,123
2,500,887 2,652,934 45,884 33,047 -
- - - - °|227|581
2,500,887 2,652,934 45,894 33,047 8,227,661
$ 3089687 & 2720428 § 82,004 § 33,047 § 6,608,684
135

CONTINUED



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Capital Projects Funds

Equipment General Total Nonmalor
Replacement Services Governmental
ASSETS Fund Construction ITS/MIS Funds
Non-pooled cash and cash squivalents $ - - $ - § 2818711
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 403,403 23,319 2,112,471 31,717,501
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 964,282
Recelvables {(net of allowances
for uncollectibles) - - - 14,119,370
Total assets $ 403,403 23318 $§ 2112471 § 49,619,924
Ll ITIES AND FU S
Liablliles:
Accounts payable $ 68 22838 $ - § 1,661,178
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits - - 408,953
Due to other funds - - 1,306,524
intergovernmental payable - - - 3,004,767
Deferred revenue - - - 7,407,001
Total liabllites 68 22,638 - 14,779,413
Fund balances:
Restricted - - - 24,096 463
Committed 403,335 681 2,112,471 10,744,048
Total fund balances 403,335 681 2,112 47 34,840,511
Total liabllides
and fund balances $ 403,403 23319 § 2112471 § 49,019,024

See notes to financial statemeants.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Yeer Ended June 30, 2011

Special Revenus Funds

American

Recovery & Child
Accommo- Reinvestment Support Community
dations Act Enforcoment  Development
Revenuea:
Property taxes ¢ = % - $ - $ -
Iintergovernmental 24,711 1,308,938 1,209,767 3,179,737
Fines and forfeltursa - - - -
Servica charges 8,827,318 - - .
Interast 5,678 - - -
Other revenuas - - . -
Tota| revenues 9,967,604 1,306,839 1,209,787 3,176,737
Expanditures:
Current
QGeneral govemmant - - - -
Public safety - 20,281 78,048 -
Judicial - 237,380 605,920 -
Public works - - - -
Health and welfwre . 1,046,479 - 3,244,281
Economic development - - - .
Cuiture and recrestion 10,044,891 - -
Education - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures 10,044,691 1,304,140 o81,777 3,244,201
Excass (deficiency) of revenuas over
(under) axpanditures {87,087) 2,708 627,960 (64,624)
Other financing sources (uses):
Capial lesse proceeds - - - -
Transfors In - - - 80,450
Transfers out (24,778) {43,293) (540,926) (51,337)
Proceeds from sale of capital sssets - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (24,778) {43,283) (848,829) 38.119
Net change in fund balance (111,288) (40,438) (20,639) (26,408)
Fund balsnces at beginning of
year 02,220 40,545 24,329 424,084
Fund balances at end of ysar $ 711,34 § 50 $ 3300 § 309,469

See notes to financial stataments-



Special Revanue Funds

Emargency Hazardous
Construction Economie Medical Fire Matoriala

Publlc Works Development Education Services Dintricts Enforcement
$ - § 1207438 §619022 § - 1684121 ¢ -
4,851,019 312,388 154,008 33,208 804,338 -

. - - - - 191,200

41,461 - - - - -

- 9,888 - 378 9,608 -

4,692 480 1,829,391 8,833,110 33,601 2,328,007 191,200

- 0,588 - - - -

- - - 35,284 2,427,828 188,381

4,169,033 - - - -

- 1,473,821 - - -

- - 8,033,110 - - R

4,189,033 1,403,409 8,833,110 35,264 2477826 166,381
433,447 48,8982 - {(1,409) {09,789) 2,019
§,820,787 - - 1,403 34,497 -
(6.620,767) - : : (34.48m) :
- - - 1,403 - -

433,447 45,882 - - (99.769) 2,819
12,188,129 438,627 - - 816,566 230,381

$§ 120218576 § 884,609 I - 816807 § 233,200
CONTINUED
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNNENTAL FUNDS

For the Yesr Endsd June 30, 2011

Revenues:
Property taxas
Intargovernmantal
Fines and forfeltures
Servica charges
interest
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expsndituree:

Current:
General govemment
Public safety
Judicial
Public works
Health and waifare
Economic development
Culture and recreation
Education

Capital outiey

Totsl expenditures
Excaas (dailciency) of revenuas over
{under) expenditures
Other financing sourcas (usss):

Capitsl lssss procesds
Transfers In

Transfers out
Proceeds from uals of capital assets

Tatal other finencing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balance

Fund belences st beginning of
ysar

Fund balances st end of year

S0 notes to finenclal statements-

Special Revenue Funds

Public Safely
Defendsr Enforcament Sheriff Solicitor

- 8 - $ - % -
1,202,623 1,786,382 103,500 927,988
- 82,107 101,801 9,728

161,832 - - 819,718
3,596 404 2,732 18,337

- 40,135 444 411 38,945
1,458,450 1,018,108 712,224 1,808,718
- 83,082 - -

- 742,843 628,168 -
4,244,020 1,219,242 - 1,627,889
4,244,020 2,015,137 623,168 1,627,889
(2.788,570) (97,029) 84,088 270,828
2,832,489 101,883 64,100 274,870
- (225,760) (24,878) (218,401)
2,832,488 (124,178) 89,222 88,189
48,919 (221,204) 143,278 326,907
745,348 742,148 1,833,770 2,173,880
708,287 § 820041 § 2077048 § 2,300,007
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Special Ravanus Funds Cepital Projects Funds

Charleston Equipment

Storm Water Victim Development Repiacement
Drainage Notification Corp Construction Fund

$ - 8 - 8 - $ - 8 -
866,684 3,582 - 378,207 -
- 376,177 - - -
1,042,463 - - - -
7.027 - 121 37,874 3,102
- - a4 3,603,800 -
1,716,734 379,738 738 3,018,861 3,102
- 189,510 - - -
- 225,300 - - -
1,725,990 - - - -
: : : 907.17:’: -
1,725,090 414,887 - 907,173 -
(6,256) (38,140) 735 3,006,408 3,102
- - - 8,470,000 205,948
- - {219) (6,641,739) {1,169,784)
. : - 10,953 51,040
. . (219) (1,452,785) (852,808)
(9,258) (35,140) 456 1,556,623 {849,704)
2,602,190 $1,032 32,601 6,670,838 1,283,039

$ 205294 $ 48864 § V047 § 8227501 § 403,335
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Capital Projects Funds

General Total Norvmajor
$Sarvices Governmental
Construction ITS /WIS Funds
Revenues:
Property taxas $ - $ - $ 6,640,581
Intergovernmental - - 16,671,460
Fines and forfeltures - - 713,893
Service charges - - 12,172,618
Interest - - 120,600
Other revenuss - - 4,047,677
Total revenuss - - 42,166,544
Expenditures:
Current
General governmant - - §2,640
Public safaty - - 4,308,230
Judiclal - - 8,188,727
Public works - - 8,808,023
Heslith and welfare - - 4,260,740
Economic developmeant - - 1,473,621
Culture and recrestion - - 10,044,661
Education - - 6,833,110
Capital outisy 132,880 1,400,708 280429
Total expenditures 133,660 1,409,708 42,808,411
Excess (deficlency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (133,380) {1,408,708) (341,887)
Other finencing sources (uass):
Capital lezse procseds - 632,931 632,831
Transfers In - 60,000 15,024,823
Transfers out - (148,790) (18,280,238)
Proceeds from sale of capital sssels - - 896,993
Total other finencing sources (uses) - 837,038 477,392
Net change In fund balance (133,550) (872,871) 135,825
Fund balances st baginning of
year 14,281 2,085,142 34,704,988
Fund balances at end of yesr $ 681 § 2112471 $ 34,640,511

See notes (o financisl statements.
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CHARLESTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET
(GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ACCOMMODATIONS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $ 45000 § 45000 $ 24711 § (20,280)

Service charges 8,100,000 9,801,050 9,927,318 128,268

Interest 25,000 25,000 5,575 (19,425)

Total revenues 8,170,000 9,871,060 0,057,604 86,654
Expendiures:
Current
Culture and recrsation 8,339,981 10,040,471 10,044,891 (4,220)
Total expenditurea 8,339,961 10,040,471 10,044,691 (4,220)
Deficlency of revenues under expenditures (169,981) {169,421) (87,087) 82,334
Other financing uses:

Transfers out (26,000) (26,000) (24,778) 1,222
Net change In fund balance (195,981) (195,421) (111,868) 83,566
Fund balance at beginning of year 823,229 823,229 823,220 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 627,248 § 627,808 §& 711364 § 83,566

Soee notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenuea:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expendltures:
Current:

Public safety
Judiclal

Total expenditures

Excass of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing uses:
Transfers out

Net change In fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
$ 992000 § 1,200,767 § 1,208,767 § -
992,000 1,208,767 1,209,767 -
77,451 75,949 75,949 -
621,873 584,338 603,828 (21,490)
899,424 660,287 681,777 (21,480)
292,676 549,480 527,890 (21,490)
(292,576) (5673,809) {648,929) 24,880
- (24,329) (20,939) 3,380
24,329 24,320 24,329 -
§ 24329 § - 8§ 3380 § 3,380

See notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

Revenuss:
Property taxes
Intergovemmental
Other revenues
Total revenues
Expsnditures:
Current:
General government
Economic developmeant
Total expenditures
{Deficiency) excess of revenues
(under) over expendituras
Net change In fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance st end of year

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

AMOUNT VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 1121503 § 1,121,593 § 1,207438 ¢ 85,848
- 3,050,000 312,368 (2,737,638)
- 40,000 9,588 (30,412)
1,121,583 4,211,503 1,529,391 | (2,682,202)
- - 9,568 (9,568)
1,277,416 4,506,178 1,473,821 3,032,387
1,2T7.418 4,508,178 1,483,400 3,022,768
(155,823) (294,585) 45,982 340,867
(188,823 (204,588) 45,982 340,567
638,627 638,827 638,627 -

$§ 482804 § 344042 § 684009 $ 340,567

See notss to financlal stateaments.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
EDUCATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 5700000 § 50966280 § 5,679,022 § (287,268)
intergovernmental - - 184,088 184,088
Total revenues 6,700,000 5,966,290 5,833,110 (133,180)
Exponditures:
Current:
Education 5,700,000 5,966,200 5,833,110 133,180
Total expenditures 5,700,000 5,966,290 5,833,110 133,180
Exceas of revenues over
expenditures - - - -
Fund balance at beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance at end of year $ - 8 - $ - § -

Soe notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON. SOUTH CAROLINA
FIRE DISTRICTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30. 2011

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 1623000 $ 1672217 $ 1654121 § (18,096)
Intergovernmental 492463 816,771 664,338 (152,433)
Other revenues - 8,212 9,608 4,398
Total revenues 2,118,483 2,494,200 2,328,087 (186,133)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 2,084,391 2,673,454 2,427,826 145,628
Total expenditures 2,084,301 2,673,454 2,427,826 145,828
Excess (deflclency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 31,072 (70,254) (99,759) (20,505)
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers In - 51,490 34,497 16,993
Transfers out (36,672) (36,707) (34,497) (2,.210)
Total other financing sources (uses) (36,672) 14,783 - 14,783
Net change In fund balance 31,072 (64.471) (99,768) (35,288)
Fund balance at beginning of year 916,566 916,586 916,568 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 947639 § 8852008 § 816807 $ (35,288)

See notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGCE-

Revenues:
Service charges

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Total expenditures

(Deficlency) excess of revenues
(under) over expenditures

Other financing eources:
Transfers out

Net change In fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 200000 $ 200000 $ 191,200 §$ (8,800)
200,000 200,000 181,200 (8,800)
255,121 254,919 188,381 66,638
265,121 254,919 188,381 66,638
(55,121) (64,819) 2,819 57,738
- (9,226) ; 9,225

(85,121) (84,144) 2,819 66,963
230,381 230,381 230,381 -

$ 175260 $ 186,237 § 233,200 86,963

Se0 notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC DEFENDER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Reavenuss:
intergovernmental $ 1109146 § 1,110672 § 1,26282% $ 152,251
Service chargea 167,000 167,000 191,932 24,932
Interest - - 3,595 3,988
Total revenuea 1,276,146 1,277,672 1,458,450 180,778
Expenditurse:
Current
Judiclal 4,413,829 4,418,068 4,244,020 174,848
Total expenditures 4,415,829 4,418,888 4,244,020 174,848
Deficlency of revenuas
under expenditures (3,139,683) (3,141,196) [2,785,570) 355,626
Other financing sourcaea:

Transfers In 2,832,480 2,832,489 2,832,489 -
Net change In fund balance (307,194) (308,707) 48,918 355,626
Fund balance at beginning of year 749,348 749,348 749,348 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 44213 § 440641 § 798,287 § 333,626

Saee notes to financial atatemeants.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SHERIFF SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

ETED VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 103,800 ¢ 103,500 § 103,800 .
Fines and forfeitures 202,621 202,821 161,581 (40,840)
Interest - - 2,732 2,732
Other revenues 407,500 406,000 444 411 38,411
Total revenues 713,521 712,021 712,224 203
Expenditures;
Current:
Public safety 687,384 925,688 628,168 297,488
Total expenditures 897,364 925,658 628,168 297,488
Excess (deficlency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 16,187 {213,835) 84,0668 297,891
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers In 84,112 84,112 84,100 {12)
Transfers out - {24,878) (24,678) -
Total other flnancing sources 84,112 89,234 59,222 (12)
Net change In fund balance 100,269 (184,401) 143,278 297,679
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,833,770 1,933,770 1,833,770 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 2,034,039 $ 1,778,369 § 2,077,048 $ 267,679
/
Saa notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SOLICITOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUDGETED AMOLINTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Intsrgovernmental $ 802,600 § 850,353 § 927688 § 77,638
Fines and forfeitures 39,240 39,240 83,728 54,488
Service charges 958,918 926,622 819,716 {108,908)
Intarest . - 18,337 18,337
Other revenuss - - 38,846 38,946
Total revenues 1,800,658 1,816,215 1,898,716 82,501
Expenditures:
Current
Judiclal 1,703,188 1,928,409 1,627,868 300,521
Total expenditures 1,703,155 1,928,409 1,627,868 300,521
Excess (deflclency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 97,603 (112,184) 270,828 383,022
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers In 57,2680 269,306 274,570 8,174
Transfors out (182,847) (221,354) (218,401) 2,953
Total other financing sources (uses) (95,254 48,042 56,169 8,127
Net change In fund balance 2,249 (64,162) 326,997 301,149
Fund balance at beginning of year 2,173,880 2,173,880 2,173,880 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 2173880 § 2173890 § 2173800 §$ 301,149

Seoe notes to financlal statementa.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER DRAINAGE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
BUDGETED AMOUNTS VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 658,500 $ 658,500 $ 666,654 $ 8,154
Service charges 1,180,000 1,190,000 1,042,453 {147,847)
Interest - - 7,627 7,627
Total revenues 1,848,500 1,848,800 1,716,734 (131,768)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works 1,848,500 2,410,897 1,728,890 884,907
Total expenditures 1,848,800 2,410,897 1,725,950 884,807
Deficlency of revenues
under expenditures - {562,397) (9,256) 583,141
Net change in fund balanca - {862,307) (9,256) 553,141
Fund balance at beginning of year 2,662,180 2,662,180 2,662,190 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 2,662,180 $ 2,009,783 $ 2,652,934 $ 563,141
Sese notes to financlal statements.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
VICTIM NOTIFICATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

ETED AMOUN VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental $ 3400 § 3400 § 352 § 162
Fines and forfeltures 437,500 437,500 378,177 {61,323)
Total revenusa 440,900 440,600 379,739 {61,161)
Expenditurea:
Current:
Public safety 239,220 239,220 189,818 48,702
Judicial 233,587 233,597 225,369 8,228
Total axpenditures 472,817 472,817 414,887 87,930
Deficlency of revenues
under expenditures (31,917) (31,017) [35,148) (3,231)
Net change In fund balence (31,917) (31,917) (35,148) {3,231)
Fund balance at beginning of year 81,032 81,032 81,032 -
Fund balance at end of yoar $ 49115 § 49115 § 45884 § 3,231)

Sew notes to financial statements.
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Magistratos:

Finaes:
Trafficicriminal
Wildiifellittering
DUVDUS/BUI

Assossments

Surcharges

Clerk of Court:
Fines:
Fines and Fees
Familly court
DULDUSIBUI
Assessments
Surcharges

SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARQGES COLLECTED

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
VICTIM NOTIFICATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

June 30, 2011
Total
Total Remiitance Retalned by General Victim County

Collections to State County Fund Notificatlen Revenue
2,205,992 § - $ 2205992 § 2,205,992 - $ 2,205,992
51,723 51,723 - - - -
69,078 69,078 - - - -
1,617,523 1,493,161 124,362 - 124,362 124,362
547,510 479,823 87,687 - 67,687 67,687
4,491,826 2,093,785 2,398,041 2,205,892 192,048 2,398,041
1,821,339 1,164,493 656,846 656,846 - 856,846
2,162,334 1,107,933 1,054,401 1,054,401 - 1,054,401
13,089 13,089 - - - -
84,607 54,843 29,664 - 29,664 29,664
262,146 107,682 154,464 - 154,464 154,464
4,343,415 2,448,040 1,993,375 1,711,247 184,128 1,895,378
8835241 § 4541825 § 4203416 § 3,917,238 376177 § 4,293.416

Se0 noles to financial sixtements.

156



CHARLESTON COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENTS - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in @ manner
similar to private business.

DAODAS - This fund records the activity of programs administered by the Department of Alcohol and
Other Drug Abuse Services (DAODAS). These programs reduca the negative Impact of alcohol and other
drugs on constituents by planning and Implementing comprehensive and effective programs of
professional services. State and Federal funding, Medicaid, client fees, and other funding sources
support these programs.

E-911 Communications - This fund is used to account for the operations of the County’s Emergency 911
communication system. This service Is funded through a county-wide service charge on all felephone
service and Is collected by local utllities for the County.

Radio Communications - This fund Is used to account for the comprehensive communications support
to Charleston County agencies and neighboring external public safety agencies, Including management of
the 800 MHz public safety radio system, operation of the communications electronic maintenance facility,
and management of the command posts emergency equipment and vehicles for response to
emergencies and nafural disasters.

Revenue Collections - This fund is used to account for the administration on a fee basis of the collection

of accommodations, business licenses, hazardous materal fees, storm water fees and the solid waste
user fes for the County and Municlpalities.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Non-pooled cash and cash equivelents
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Recelvables (net of allowances for
uncollectibles)

Total current assets
Deferred issuance costs
Capltal assats;

Bulldings
improvements other than bulldings

Machinery and equipment
Lass accumulated depreciation

Total capital assels (net of
accumuisted dapreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assats

PAGE 10F 2
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2011
E811 Radio Revenus
DAODAS Communications  Communications Collections Totals

$ 700 $ - § - § 260,320 $ 209,029
1,324,270 8,088,303 378,678 3,124,468 9,813,610
1,314,884 320,766 119,780 - 1,761,380
2,839,834 8,413,089 498,328 3,302,707 11,044,028
41,806 - - - 41,808
6,504,301 - - - 9,654,391
270,288 - - - 270,286
228,884 1,774,117 210,408 - 2,217,168
(3,228,288) (1,132,807) (112,288) - {4.473,463)
6,822,872 41290 104,107 - 7,868,348
8,884,778 841,210 104,187 - 7,610,156
0,804,012 8,084,279 602,468 3,302,767 10,884,183

$sa notes (o financial statemsnts.
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Current llabifties:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and fringe bsnefits
Compensated ahssnces-current
infergovernmental payabis

Accrued Interest payable
Certificates of perticipation - current

Total current Nabllities
Noncurrent llabilitles:
Certificates of participation {net of
unamortized discounts)
Compensated absances
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total llabliities
NET ASSETS

invested In capital assets, net of
reistad debt
Unrestricted

Total net asscte

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMEINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRIGE FUNDS
June 30, 2010
E-11 Radio Revenus
DAODAS Communications Communications  Coliections Tolals

123483 § 80 S 02688 § 38,078 229,338
104 467 12,638 8,360 42,741 268,168
80,720 - 2,980 26,285 109,928
1,818 700 44 3,063,178 3,086,440
12,114 - - - 12114
276,184 - - - 276,184
698,496 18.420 71,030 3,170,252 3,948,194
2,470,030 - - - 2,478,630
206,212 9,040 0,858 76,391 308,201
2,773,242 9,040 §,888 78,361 20841
3,481,728 27,488 76,888 3,248,843 6,912426
4,008,788 641,210 164,187 - 4,914,138
1,974,128 8,388,803 421,740 146,164 7,827,623
eD4azssd § 0,026,813 § 826807 ¢ 148,184 12,741,768

See notes o financial statemesnts.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
Capital Assets Usad in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance

Function July 1, 2010 Additions * Deletions * June 30, 2011
General government $ 117,408,072 $ 2,463,987 $ {1,524,379) $ 118345880
Public aafety 153,888,699 9,885,420 {1,123,608) 162,660,614
Judicial 61,524,686 30,894 (39,782) 61,518,898
Public works 47,000,139 1,641,827 (208,394) 48,433,572
Health and weifare 4,390,188 1,108,866 (54,554) 5,444,498
Culture and recreation 40,038,894 105,000 (52,854) 40,091,040
Economic Development 45,110 34,840 - 79,750
Total § 424,303,686 $ 15,270,634 $  (3,003468) $ 438,570,852

* The addiions and deleffona Include amounts for inter-function tranafers.

This schedule presents only the capital asast balances related to the governmental funds.
Accordingly, the caplital assets reported In the Intemnal sarvice funds are exciuded from the
above amounts. Genarally, the capital assets of Internal service funds are Included as
govemmental activities In the staternent of net assets.
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STATISTICAL TABLES
(UNAUDITED)
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STATISTICAL TABLES

This section of the County of Charleston South Carolina’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detalled trend and other information es a context for understanding what the information In the baslc
financlal statements, notes to the basic financial statements, required supplementary Information and
other supplementary Information says about the County's overall financial health.

Page
Number

Financlal Trends 179- 185
These schedules contain trend Information to help the reader understand
how the governments financlal performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 1868 - 190
These schedules contaln Information to help the reader assess the
County's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capaclty 191-1065
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the County's current level of outstanding debt and the
County's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 196 -187
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the County's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information 198 - 208
These schedules contaln service and Infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information In the County's financlal report
relates to the services the County provides and the activities It performs.

Financial Assurance Coverage 207

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the Information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

NET ASBETS BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Accrual Bauls of Accounting)
UMNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Govammental Activities
invested in Capital Agsets, Met of Related Debt $ 38590688 5 40128334 § 48908716 § E7350430 § 73784907 § £6,153.284 $102085537 $ DO A0u4zd § 968333460 5 106,870,879
Restricted 51,358,705 28,420,610 32,832,674 60,338,152 51,838,770 69,820,679 120,020,888 26,497,018 31,716,002 133,851,227
Unwestricted 6,557,470 41,088,811 33,243,208 11,749,363 37,628,286 28,178,518 {01,861,688) {1,257,571) {#1,322,471)  |205,897,101)
Total Govemmental Activities Net Assels i 155Eu1 5110&& [] 116,194,687 5 125.440.954 ! 1&051@33 § 186,161,301 !1&)'&84? 3 124,648,874 i SS.EQH ! 37933915
Business-type Activiies
Invested in Gapital Assets, Nel of Related Detxt $ 20476130 § 22545734 § 18301,715 $ 20241171 § 179B3168 § 246837561 § 20839762 § 2770368 § 30486244 § 22025114
Restricted 27,483,201 14,418,181 8482 709 14,141,709 49,158,942 34,873,088 38,021,908 36,674,530 41,832,881 48,107,918
Unrestricted 7,081,588 25,078,072 38,441,836 42,377,249 15,023,549 238,781,008 40,032,882 35,882,001 90,481,308 20,145,836
Totad Business-type Aclivities Net assets [ 55.0_41 |018 § 02440587 3 65706300 i 7&?10&19 ! 82,166,647 3 96,263 527§ 104,394,503 $ 100,040.979 % 102780233 & 109,275,608
Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assats, Net of Retated Debt § 553sBA25 § 92472068 5 GBOO0430 § 77600610 § D1,797.553 § 113,700.855 $129526329 § 127,190,787 § 120,819,704 5 142,504,863
Restricted 78,839,866 42,838,601 41,306,383 71,479,951 100,798,712 104,703,547 168,042,807 60,471,546 73,548,883 182,050,142
Unrestricted 72,630,058 87,883,283 71,705,234 54,078,612 52,851,915 62,960,516 {21,549,698) 34,624,520 {10,881,783)  {178,751,356)

Total Primary Government Net Assats

i 210&8‘!9 $172974042 3181901,047 _$§ 203,187,173 _§ 245218180 !2&1&918 imaﬂﬁ 3 228 205,858 § 191,507

17a
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Accrusl Heals of Acoounting)
UNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 40355397 3 42030860 § 44073003 5 45480730 § 54074087 % 551958000 5 65852283 0§ 57004965 0§ 59006419 s 55.667 451
Public Safety 49,424,542 57,667,474 60,199,756 65,411,830 67,475,922 55,619,715 79,153,052 79,004,832 77,890,858 82,516,621
Judicial 13,274,645 15,150,950 16,303.C00 17,626,761 19,042,062 20,545,790 22,201,442 28,605,375 25,578,697 26,116,113
Public Warks 12,371,692 14,248,365 13.047 445 14,565,632 23717 873 40,185,783 31,011,924 39,605,730 56,597 207 80,325,185
Healith and Welfare 11,240,334 13,698,300 12259223 11,823.614 10,892,770 IARRFA Y 12,879,164 13,211,079 16,552,831 7.803,080
Economic Developmant 730,879 584,991 1,057,507 943,669 3,481,147 1,324,790 3228377 858,483 5,078,107 1,457.107
Cuiture ang Recreation 14,145,906 14,744,185 17,464,877 16,731,110 18,133,308 21,307,230 53,822,207 48,254,152 41,390,976 38,886,387
Educatton 3,549,382 3.502277 3,735,895 3.931,038 5,004,959 5,137,843 5,325,300 5651921 5,719,553 5,824,830
Interest and Fiscal Charges 9,931,428 10,697,842 8,206,029 10,107 693 10,453,448 9,311,104 18,461,680 20,934,569 21,108,522 20,738.273
Total Governmental Activiiies Expenses 155,024,199 172,416,753 177.447.635 139 625877 213,275,582 239,742,540 251,535.239 283127 407 301.824,230 319,496.257
Business-Type Activities:
E 911 Communications 945,397 923,506 905.427 1,167,080 888.812 084,912 1,015963 1,096,409 1,199,876 1,564,753
Envdronmentz| Management 26,371,502 26,266,186 27,252,627 28,335,704 32,430,587 30,229,939 39,064,678 43,200,125 33.738,089 15,920,437
Parking Garages 2,669,181 2,705,187 2,322,980 1,922,168 1,712,310 1,753,719 2,008,385 2,149,055 1,969,322 1,967,543
DOADAS 8,786,426 7,795,981 8,185,195 8.493,417 8,667,218 3,984,048 9,348,853 8,976,846 8.407,723 7802742
Revenue Collections - - - - - - 1,724 477 1,641,615 1,721,430 1,483,346
Radio Communications - - - - - 1,800,420 1,973,647 2,153,163 2,226,905 2,226,407
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 38,772,808 97,890,860 30,000,429 918,370 43 698,928 49,752 248 95.130,018 59296213 49,263,345 3965008
Total Piimary Goverment Expenses § 183797005 § 210,107,813 § 218114084 § 230544247 § 58074510 § 2683404788 § M7071267 § 252 3AAEA0 § 351187975 § 354461486
Pragram Revenups
Govemnmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government $ 10,150,792 $ 13676511 § 15440672 § 17935275 % 19041161 5 185098650 $ 16034883 § 10852721 F 9697135 3 13,632,343
Public Safaty 5,768,142 6,721,223 T.878,504 5,290,751 6,157 762 6,622,976 11,386,678 11,079,418 11,478,288 15,420,040
JSudickal 5,494,170 5,900,661 7,282,559 7.253,058 7.778.88¢ 7.641,424 831821 9,285,809 8,892,660 8,379,703
Public Woaorks 218,747 108,535 143,354 175,664 186,147 1,927 468 4,941,338 4,123,329 1,935,108 1,780,797
Health and Weifare 654 450 804 262 558,244 88,557 1,150,342 4,930,224 612,029 476,756 412,732 233,266
Culture and Recraation 75220 68,528 56,441 73,303 201,705 178,007 4,003,283 1,767,165 "2, 786 882002
Education - - 10,170 - - - - - - -
Operating Grans and Contrbutions 15,693,824 17,388,105 16,592,529 19,298,259 21,435,851 18,216,119 20,814,584 18,703,242 29,232 648 15,639,213
Capital Grantg and Canlnbubans . - . 3,131,573 . - . - - 396,000
Totz! Governmenial Activites Pragram Revenues 38,057,345 44 668 225 47,982 465 54,930,540 55.961,927 57,815,875 §6,122.524 55,288,471 62,565,357 60,364,264
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{CONTINUED)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Accrusl Busle of Aocounting]
UNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Business-Type Aclivities:
Charges for Services:
£ 911 Communications $ 1148171 0§ 1120240 § 1275381 § 1840631 § 1265546 § 1379500 § 1365183 $ 14290954 § 2070582 3 1,680,605
Environmenial Management 26,190,369 29,429,531 32,720083 33,005,012 35,788,249 37,684,493 43,770,882 35,965,988 30,790,268 27,082,802
Parking Garages 2,720,500 2,833,338 8,290,863 2,008,933 2,086,215 2424078 2,501,481 2,898,603 2,550,054 2,807,563
DAODAS 4,374,792 3,707,126 3,782,090 5,519,478 4113,731 8,361,075 4,475,008 4,700,331 8,124,605 5,005,135
Revenue Collactions - - . - - - 1,071,785 464,560 328,849 497 742
Radic Communications - - - - - 107,616 526,126 1,000,355 846,525 1,137,250
Qperaiing Grants and Contributions 4,172,880 3,020.030 3.002077 1,138,657 2,933,166 78,358 3,001.0% 2,661 838 204418 768,317
Capital Grants and Contributions - - - - 904,380 1.240 - . - .
Tolal Business-type Activites Program Revenues 41,915,851 40,719,374 49,169,120 4213311 _ 47082796 ___ AGHAT, ™9 58790375 52,024,319 DA 30089498
Total Primary Govemment Program Revenues 5 _T9672096 § 86308500 § 7151505 § 00163651 & 103044723 § 103463234 § 122012640 § 108.315?% $ 105767238 $ 90.453.758
Net (Expense)/Revenus
Governmental Activities $(110.006854) §(127,747528) §(120,465170) §$({134,675327) §$(157.313,055) ${102,120885) ${225812,715) $(236,336.03¢) ${239338,873) 5 (250,131,893)
Business-iype Activities 2,842,845 3,028,514 10,602,701 3,284,941 3,393,568 5,005,111 1,854,307 (7,201,854 (8,081,480) 4,124,266
Tota Py Governtent Nel (€xpense)Revene S[OETA0 SPCTe0) J(iedesde) 3(iEismwen) §(Eaanrey SATIonme) {21608 SEMo0E0) SQEADI S REN0TT)
Gonaral Revenuos and Other Changes in Net Assets
Govemmantal Aclivities:
Taxes by Source:
Property Tax $ TEEY2139 § 76262067 § 76421628 § 71114 3 82216083 % B289.668 § 8650789 S 06,621,772 $ 104,955,604 S 108,384,010
Local Option Sales Tax 32,081,842 32,445,350 35,622,077 35,100,097 42,159,174 44,024,396 44,458,207 41,085,569 39,955,809 41,340,224
Transportation Sales Tax - - - 5,870,000 37,116,336 38,521,307 40,097,074 37 468,812 36,292,922 37,930,907
Accommodations Tax 6,561,848 5,683,942 6,927,227 7.611,448 8,292.848 9,176,823 9,872,302 8,864,265 8,851,895 9.92¥.318
Franchige Tax 689,269 545,425 568,622 793,129 774,254 538.048 955,712 793,067 825,465 578,864
Merchants Inventory Tax and Manufacture's Depraciation 1,807,919 1,682,766 1,715.718 1,677,255 1,563,067 1,632,214 1,611,561 1,607,308 1,385,8¢1 1,440,082
Motar Canrier Tax 171,851 132,567 77360 108,871 116282 129,110 140,426 138,236 120.432 11,247
Unrestricted State Aid to Political Subdivisions 13,835,678 13,654,987 3,781,116 13,959,555 14,503,288 16,088.226 17,864,865 17,036,681 14,223,422 12,911,218
Granis ang Confributions not Restricted to Speclfic Program 2117.2: - - - - - - - - -
Unresiricted Investment Eamings 3,857,860 727,946 468755 2,495,650 5,757,314 5,421,059 3,740,245 1,173,784 1,318,508 837,142
{zain {Loss}on Sale of Capital Assets 181,165 (214,059 387,618 - 514,247 - - - - -
Transfers (2,816,345) (2,500,762) 8,151,631 (3.289,535) (3,601,687) (5,052,023) (3,881,034) {4,337,551) {4,493,248) (2,322,103)
Total Govemmenial Activities 133,144,257 129,410,979 144,150.548 144,667,582 185,511,816 193,779,728 201,376,338 200,453,043 202,438,980 208,338.917
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{CONTINUED)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CARDLINA
CHANGES IN NET ASJETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Accrual Basls of Accounting)

UNAUDITED
2602 2003 2064 2006 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011
Business-type aclivities:
Property Taxes 5 - ae 3 4 § 84 5 85 3 - § - § - § - 8§ -
Alesholic Beverage Tax 481,219 14,357 528,400 542,207 523037 505,366 542,927 542,927 542,927 537 486
Merchants tary tax and Manufaciure's Depreciation 11,0t5 10,832 10,822 10,832 10,832 10,832 10,832 10,832 10,832 10832
Unessticied Investment Eamings 1,166,267 €40,025 296,412 832,632 1,782,440 3,308,600 2,446,082 747,835 102,188 25,303
Gain {Lass) on Sale of Capral Assels (111,884 (22,975) - - 3an 84,940 es,8a8 A5 ART 45,525 18,643
Transfers 2,818,345 2,500,702 {8,151,831) 3,299,535 3,801,867 6,052,023 3,081,034 4,357,551 4493248 2,322,103
Tots! Business-ype Activities 4,352,182 3,852,300 {7.216,873) 4,675,800 5,922,072 8,031,765 6,640,701 5,084,612 6,194,720 2,974,367
Yots! Prmary Govemment S 574%64% S TSA0E2790 S 1980MBTS 149343572 § 705439086 3 FATIAGY _§ 208325100 _§ 205157658 § F08EITI0 $ 211913209
Spaclal hems § (24788) § (TE73526) § (B1E1217) § 2471484 § 1383840 § - 5 -3 - § - 3 -
Changa In Net Assets:
Govermental Aciivilies 16962645 (5.910,675) 5,534,101 13,483,708 33,582,201 11853083  {24,436,378)  (36,385693)  (25.521,883) (60,793,076)
Business-type Activities 195,027 0,000,874 3,286,828 7,070,931 9,305,940 14,128,880 8,601,080 (1.517,282) (B66,740) 7,000,833
Totsl Primary Govemment § 23is7Er2 § _TI0100 § BB2006H § 21434640 _§ 2898141 § 28779949 3 (1683306) _§ [37008176) $ (WIBRCZO) § (ABOVAIT)
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modiflad Accrual Basils of Accounting)

UNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 20149 2011
QGeneral Fund
Resarved $2640074 $ 23276896 § 2057482 32470102 § 5202242 § 3367810 $ 1,461,994 § 2035197 § 2,727,154 -
Unreesrvad 20,142,964 22,571,681 26 453,427 33,880,138 43,731,880 46,333,758 43,266,382 43,676,650 49,868,870 -
Nonapendable - Inventory - - - - - - - - - 1,080,137
Asaigned - - - - - . - - 10,093,341
Unessigned - - - - - . - - - 41,175,155
Total Genaral Fund 32_2|7|m $ 24,899,576 330,510,908 $ 38|3ﬁ9£ 3 48,934|222 $ 497015588 § 44720377 § 45711847 $ 52596024 § 52,348,633
All Qther Govemmental Funds
Resarved:
Inventorias and Prepaid kems 3 - § 2128671 § 2040852 § 208,021 § 116808 § 11,602 % - 8 - 8 - 3 -
Encumbrances 14,847 985 15,083,314 7.183,103 5,628,457 13,218,333 9,008,571 11,406,709 48 206,358 60,767,918 -
Dabt Service 10,226,831 9,212,188 11,851,845 28 279,538 18,953,106 18,252,403 19,702,506 17,263,879 20,672,652 -
Capital Projects Funds 41,147 186 37,062,341 34,782 368 34,058,613 32,885,864 22,441,838 82,345,276 27,529,138 39,387,522 -
Transportation and Road Sgles Tax - - - - 78,831,458 96,021,511 230,106,542 171,548,405 09,412,383 -
Unreserved, Reported in: -
Speclal Revanua Funds 13,383,688 12,427,657 12,505,052 14,384,178 12,042 386 16,128,286 18,760,941 9,386,950 10,096,827 -
Restricted - Debt Service - - - - - - - - - 19,694,980
Restricted - Transportation Saies Tax - - - - - - - - - 90,159,784
Regtrictad - Spaclal Revenue Funds - - - - - - - 24,096,463
Committed - Capital Projact Funds - - - - - - - - - 37,748,923
Tatal All Other Sovernmental Funds $79,706,/00 S 74|008|1 69 $66,607,150 $GDIMB m $161.864.211 § 3623210975 $274,024,747 $240.337.012 $171,700,150

GASB 54 was implemented fiscal year 2011; fundg balance information is not available for prior fiscal years.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Modified Accrual Haala of Accounting)

UNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2030 2011
Revanues
Taxga by Source:
Property Tex $ 76617795 § 76060047 $ TH637031 § 77352935 $ 822385793 § 52296820 $ 84,190,805 § 94147427 $ 102,001,515 $ 104,625,890
Local Option Sales Tax 32,061.842 32,445,350 35,629,077 38,100,097 42,159,174 44,024,358 44 458,297 41,005,569 39,955,509 41,340,224
Transportation Salas Tax - - - 5,870,000 37,118,336 39,521,307 40,087,074 37,465,312 36,292,922 37,930,907
Intergovarmmantak 31,708,211 34,026 407 35,526,262 35,529,286 38,162,337 36,427,704 44,083,506 43,140,957 49,794,898 42,498,737
Parmits and Licenses 19,395,325 21,240,225 23.974,732 28,134,114 5,039,668 5,290,740 5,700,779 4,436,742 3,985,696 3,883,031
Fines and Forleitures 3,417,423 2,934,280 2,950,070 3,003,825 3,120,755 3,171,438 3,183,551 2,826,897 3,148,433 2,548,009
Interest 4,158,112 3,151,337 2,690,076 4,211,318 8.221.219 12,701,241 13,619,318 6,408,840 2,781,824 1,691,902
Sarvica Charges 3,992,204 4,395,844 5,005,436 5,362,174 30,851,094 31,321,258 32,921,980 28,331,156 29,905,313 32.021,795
Rental and Use of Property 887,732 877,365 913,155 764,147 §24.999 748,143 723,986 832,741 663,882 518,864
Other Ravenues 2,168,314 2,151,627 2,429,797 15,712,452 3,195,766 2,912,008 5,356,322 5,695,690 6,356,037 9,838,439
Total Revenuas 174,508,458 177,382 480 185,755,556 214,130,346 251,127,141 258,416,145 274335719 284178931 _ 274806309 276,996,238
Expenditures
Curmant:
QGaneral Governmert 36,509,028 36,219,659 36,301,070 39,019,532 47,343,859 49,539,889 54,474,427 51,243,769 48,173,320 50,423,995
Public Safety 51,775,854 54,047,711 58,758,537 63,543,857 65,342,995 67,808,448 73,042,772 753,028,138 71,750,504 77.281.411
Judiciml 13,288,448 13,741,592 14,573,038 16,001,052 17,593,865 18,349,156 20,946,565 23,350,831 23,894,465 23,801,633
Public Works 12,482 420 11,679,447 12,461,062 11,762 912 23,287.241 30,892171 28,562,619 36,624,088 55,001,817 79,237,736
Haalth and Welfare 11,470,130 13,388,372 11,880,147 11,665,243 10,822,458 10,984,189 12,728,543 12,878,658 16,366,568 7,858,271
Economic Davalopmaent F32,242 582,208 1,055,405 953,526 3,480,343 1,327 411 3,230,479 858,031 8,121,263 1,473,821
Cultura and Recreetion 13,804,030 14,061 914 15,121,758 16,029,300 17,427,709 20,501,703 53,428,524 47,898,154 42,786,960 40,394,034
Education 3,549,382 3,592,277 3,735,895 3,931,038 5,004,859 5,137,843 5,325,300 5,651,921 5,718,553 5,833,110
Capital Outlay 24,235,436 11,437,184 12,418,844 8,378,554 11,443,269 18,785,576 23,940,281 55,775,140 42,040,219 12,706,413
Dabt Servica:
Principal 6,782,392 8,764,758 11,383,731 9,190,168 13,835,403 14,963,474 16,569,800 16,503,464 19,571,318 18,910,800
Intanast and Fiscal Charges 9,957,303 9,583,270 70,445,027 9.675,723 9,437,517 8,906,724 15,475 402 21,410,902 20,983,775 21,716,423
Bond Izsuance Coats - - 887,728 314,963 288427 - 97,756 102,252 413,348 -
Total Expenditures 184,626 865 177,098,480 189,120,240 100,465,168 227 ADB,085 245,366,584 307,823,558 347,364,348 352,023,810 339.837847
Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expendliures {10,178,207) 264,020 (5,384,684) 23,664,178 23,710,056 13,019,681 (33.487,830) __ (83,185417) _ (78.037.301)  {62,640,750)
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(CONTINUED)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, BOUTH CARDLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Modified Accrual Basis of Accourting)

UNAUDITED
202 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2000 20190 2011
Other Finencing Sources {Uses)
Caplinl Leasa Proceads $ 6706887 § 915806 § 431814 § 844,488 § 841831 § 1420804 § 100538 § 776,100 § 702,710 $ 832,831
Sale of GO Traneporiation Sales Tax Bonds - - - - 65,000,000 - 460,000,000 - - -
8ale of General Dhligation Bonds - - - - - - 75,000,000 - 50,000,000 -
Refunding General Obligetion Bonda Issusd - - 63,740,000 - - - - - 20,775,000 -
Refunding Carliffcates of Participation lesued - - 38,627,153 18,139,845 - - - - - -
Pramium on Bondes Sold - - 2753332 07,783 18975623 - 10,780,016 - 8,493,791 -
Payment to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent - - {100,978,048) (18,749 287) - - - - {21,447,212) -
Transfars In 7,729,355 6,173477 27,328,853 11,448,588 26,475,413 20,464,730 30,244,272 30,727,314 29,771,604 69,527,149
Transters Out {14,086,087) (10,082,211) (22,250 488) (17,580,736) {32,954,151) {28,357.277) {37,208,200) {38,161,026) (35,528,299) (70.474,112)
Proceeds from Sala of Caplial Azssets 118,014 24,645 1,144 447 1,572,580 1,990,818 194,554 48,780 220,347 487,250 70,624
Total Other Financing Sources (Usax) (5,537,811} (3,868,283) 10,685,963 (2,616,750} 82,732,322 (6.266,138) 228,972 407 {4,438,286) 51,233,744 {6.243,608)

Special [tam - - {9,151,217) - 1,383,940 - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (15;716,018} _$ (3584283) § (1816934) § 20047428 $ 87835328 §$ 6751 _,gz $ 195484568 _§ (B7,623682) § (26,503,557) § (68,884.367)
Capital Azsat Expanditures $ 24354576 $ 12453720 § 14,425,020 % 10,602,730 § 18576342 § 15664602 $ 21139930 § 52710904 § 42611071 5 14,204,507
Debt Sarvice as a

Percentage of Noncapital Expanditures 10.4% 11.1% 13.0% 10.7% 11.2% 10.0% 11.2% 12.9% 13.2% 12.5%
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Assessed Value as
Year a Percentage of
Ended Personal Total Taxable Total Direct Estimated Actual Estimated Actual
June 30, Real Property Property Vehicles Assessed Value Tax Rate Taxable Value Tax Value
2002 $ 1207211547 $201,808305 $172,330,164 $ 1,671,350,016 180.2 $ 29,666,989,206 5.63%
2003 1,347,982,940 208,482,465 169,956,308 1,726,421,713 187.7 30,851,205,551 5.60%
2004 1,394,103,212 210,193,376 173,309,334 1,777,605,922 191.9 32,425,619,687 5.48%
2005 2,041,172,452 213,698,050 164,182,170 2,419,052,672 161.3 46,536,987,902 5.20%
2006 2,197,536.874 194,576,361 153,380,326 2,545,493,561 160.8 47,282,058,031 5.38%
2007 2,308,701,112 210,195,223 159,335,124 2,678,231,459 168.0 49 446,157,317 5.42%
2008 2,525,310,042 215,663,434 175,326,815 2,916,300,291 1770 52,960,945,426 5.51%
2009 2,567,170,930 225,355,873 167,364,803 2,959,891,606 181.0 55,081,538,273 5.37%
2010 2,530,782,359 236,859,543 156,340,695 2,923,982,597 181.0 54,571,987,194 5.36%
2011 2,729,144 416 234,746,374 155,001,548 3,118,892,338 1810 58,181,179,259 5.36%

Source: Charleston County Auditor

Note: 1 Property in the county was last reassessed for fiscal year 2005. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.

Note: 2 For FY 1989, the State passed legislation that exempted business inventary from property tax. The assessed value of the exempted inventory
for FY 1990 was approximately $209,000,000. In place of the property tax, the State now pays the County, through State shared revenues
the amount of tax that was received in FY 18988. This amount is frozen for all future years at the FY 1988 level.

Note: 3 Under SC Law all real property is appralsed at actual market value then adjustad to reflect the county-wide composite average of appraised value

to sales for the prior year, to arive at assessed value. This value of both real estate and personal property is then adjusted to a taxable value
between 4% and 10.5% depending on the type of property. This is used to determina the legal debt margin.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND QVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Rate par $1,000 of Asseased Valus)

UNAUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
County Direct Rates:
Charleston County Government Openating 538 50.8 50.8 51.3 402 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2
Charleston County Government Debt Servica 13.0 104 10.4 9.9 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.5 6.6
Park and Recreation Commission Operating 3.7 35 35 35 35 3.5 35 356 az 3.7
Park and Recreation Commisaion Dabt Seyvice 38 37 37 37 2.1 21 24 20 1.8 1.9
Trident Technical Caollege 22 21 21 21 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
County School Board Operating 81.6 89.3 105.1 109.0 g1.1 92.8 854 98.7 8.7 98.7
County School Board Dsebt Service 21.8 204 12,9 12.4 15.8 13.6 18.2 239 27.9 279
Total Direct Rate 180.0 180.2 187.7 191.9 161.3 160.8 168.0 177.0 181.0 181.0
Firs District Rates: 238-515 21.8-509 232-509 239-515 16.7-380 187-403 120-415 120-427 120-477 120-484
Clty'Town Rates: 28.3-116.4 2652-1164 279-1164 285-1164 17.9-1155 185-828 224-928 222-928 222-928 22.2-92.8
Public S8ervice District Rates: 774-10486 721-1045 74.2-1045 742-1114 552-111.2 552-1023 516-1023 552-102.3 57.6-1023 57.6-1023
Source: The above millage ratss were provided by the Charleston County Auditor.
Note: Overlapping rates are those of local and county-wide governments that apply fo property owners within the County of Charleston, South Carclina

Mot all overtapping rates apply to all of Chareston County property owners (i.9., the rates for fire/special purpose districts apply only to tha
proportion of the Charleston County's property owners whose property is located within the geographic boundaries of the fire/special purpose

district).
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Percentage of
Debt Applicable to Jurlsdiction's
Name of Jurisdiction Principal Balance this Jurisdiction Share of Debt
County of Charleston $ 380,935,000 100% $ 380,935,000
Overlapping:
Park & Recreatlon Commission 25,600,000 100% 25,600,000
Public School Districts 231,017,000 100% 231,017,000
Subtotal 256,617,000 100% 256,617,000
Total $ 637,552,000 100% $ 637,552,000

Note: This schedule represents the debt of all county-wide jurisdictions. Individual cities and other districts
within Charleston County have debt which is paid separately from their individual tax levies. These
Individual debis have not been Included in the overlapping princlpal balance bacausa the total debt

differs within each indlvidual Jurisdiction.

This Information was obtalned from the Charleston County Treasurer's Office.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXFAYERS
{Modified Accrual Basls of Accounting)

UNAUDITED
2011 2002
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Asssssed Asseased Assessad
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

SC Electric & Gas Public Utility $ 44582430 1 1.53% $ 31,757,590 1 3.2%
Kapatone Kraft Manufacturing/Chemical 14,728,415 2 0.50% 18,674,750 3 1.8%
Ball South Public Utility 13,798,840 3 0.47% 18,895,380 2 -
Boeing Manufacturing 8.270,113 4 0.28% - -
Klawah Real Estate Co. Real Estate 7,247,820 5 0.25% - -
Charleston/North Charleston MSA Retail 6.298.520 6 0.22% - -
Barkeley Eleciric Co-Op Public Utility 5,831,340 7 0.20% 5,049,640 4 0.5%
Charleston Place LLC Hatel 5,635,510 8 0.19% 3,239,660 8 0.3%
Cummings Manufacturing 5,049,300 9 0.17% 3,702,590 7 -
Kiawah Resort Assoclates Resort 4,933,070 10 0.17% 5.242.340 5 0.5%
Charleston Joint Venhure Real Estate - - 4,475,520 6 0.4%
Trident Raglonal Hoapital - - 2,330,580 9 0.2%
Rhodla Manufacturer - Chamicals - - 1,813,720 10 0.2%
Totals $116,475,358 3.98% $ 95,181,780 7.2%

Source: Charleston County Auditor

* In 2008 Westvaco sold its power generation plant and the paper mill to Kapstone Kraft .
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTICNS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal
Year Original Tax Adjusted Tax Yoar of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Ended Levy for Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage
June 30 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount of Lavy Years Amount of Levy
2002 $ 69,979,712 § 69,979,712 66,574,527 95.1% $ 3329410 $ 69,903,937 99.9%
2003 70,724,095 70,724,085 67,801,645 95.9% 2,834,190 70,635,835 99.9%
2004 73,504,819 73,504,819 70,729,990 96.2% 2,667,218 73,397,206 99.9%
2005 71,882,912 71,882,912 69,530,828 96.6% 2,363,833 71,894,661 99.9%
2006 75,825,360 75,825,360 73,525,524 97.0% 2,126,044 75,651,568 99.8%
2007 76,026,583 76,026,583 73,189,901 96.3% 1,220,087 74,419,988 97.9%
2008 78,854 461 78,854,461 75,500,629 95.7% 1,776,394 77,277,023 98.0%
2009 82,849,921 82,649,921 77,757,867 94.1% 4,031,689 81,789,558 99.0%
2010 92,300,468 92,300,468 86,401,791 93.6% 3,197,038 89,598,829 97.1%
2011 93,003,513 93,003,513 88,052,370 84.7% 3,468,138 91,520,508 98.4%
Source: This information was provided by the Charleaton County Treasurer's Offica.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Govermmmaental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year General Certificates Certificates Total Percentage

Ended Obligation of Capital of Revenue Primary of Pergonal Per

June 30 Bonds Participation Leases Particlpation Bonds Govemment income Caplta
2002 $106,850000 $ 74816433 §$ 679,887 $ 21,583,567 $ 16,790,000 $220,719,887 2.3% $ 680
2003 101,745,000 71,416,880 1,415,624 20,418,320 15,785,000 210,780,624 2.2% 649
2004 100,755,000 71,254,819 1,306,196 13,365,181 14,525,000 201,206,196 1.9% 605
2005 97,535,000 66,092,312 3,636,998 12,642 688 13,280,000 193,886,988 1.7% 576
2008 153,448,297 62,427,073 3,474,081 11,065,789 11,723,994 242,138,234 1.9% 71
2007 146,394,774 §7,631,034 3,873,002 10,231,634 10,491,229 228,621,673 1.7% 666
2008 373,504,430 52,628,009 2,947 139 9,356,755 9,184,837 447.631,170 3.6% 1,309
2008 363,444 567 47,313,497 3,788,455 8,418,114 7,824,327 430,788,980 3.2% 1,238
2010 406,590,609 41,758,721 3,070,072 7,421,883 6,374,140 465,213,425 3.3% 1,309
2011 394,957,209 35,245,570 2810433 8,252,256 4 843,873 444,109,141 32% 1,268

See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for persenal income and population data,
| :
Ratio of Outstanding Debt to Personal Income Outstanding Debt Per Caplta
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON. SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Ratio of G.O. G.0. Bonded

Fiscal Estimated Gross G.O. Bonded Debt to Dabt Per
Year Population Assessad Value Bonded Debt Assessed Value Capita
2002 312,365 $ 29,666,989,208 $106,850,000 0.36% $ 342
2003 316,611 30,851,205,551 101,745,000 0.33% 321
2004 321,014 32,425,619,687 100,755,000 0.31% 314
2005 324,224 46,536,987,902 97,535,000 0.21% 301
2008 320,482 47.,282,058,031 155,025,000 0.33% 471
2007 331,917 49,446 157,317 147,470,000 0.30% 444
2008 342,973 52,960,945,426 362,730,000 0.68% 1,058
2009 348,048 55,081,638,273 353,265,000 0.64% 1,015
2010 355,276 54,571,987,184 391,625,000 0.72% 1,102
2011 350,209 58,181,179,258 380,935,000 0.65% 1,088

Note 1 Details regarding the County of Charleston’s Outstanding Debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.
Note 2 See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for the Property Value Data.

Note 3 See the Schedule for Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data.

Ratio of GO Bonded Dept to Assessed Valus G0 Bonded Dabt Per Capita
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF TOTAL TAX SUPPORTED DEBT TO

ASSESSED VALUE AND TOTAL TAX SUPPORTED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Ratio of Tax Net Tax
General Cortificates Net Tax Supported Debt Supported
Flscal Estimated Obligation of Capital Supported to Assessad Debt Per
Year Population Asseased Value Bonds Participation Leases Debt Value __ Capita
2002 312,365 $ 29,666,989,208 $ 106,850,000 $74,816,433 $ 679,887 $182,348,320 0.61% $ 584
2003 316,611 30,851,205,551 101,745,000 71,416,680 1,415,624 174,577,304 0.57% 651
2004 321,014 32,425,619.687 100,755,000 71,254,819 1,306,196 173,316,015 0.53% 540
2005 324,224 46,536,987,902 97,535,000 66,992,312 3,636,998 168,164,310 0.36% 519
2006 329,482 47 282,058,031 155,025,000 62 427,073 3,474,081 220,926,154 0.47% 871
2007 331,917 49 448,157,317 146,394,774 57,361,034 3,873,002 207,628,810 042% 628
2008 342,973 52,960,945,428 373,504,430 52,828,009 2,888,523 429,018,862 0.81% 1,251
2008 348,048 55,081,538,273 383,444 567 47 313,488 2,907,395 413,685460 0.75% 1,189
2010 355,276 54 571,987,194 406,580,608 41,756,721 2,360,292 450,707,622 0.83% 1,269
2011 360,209 58,181,179,259 394,957,209 36,245,570 2,283,608 432,488,387 0.74% 1,235
Note 1 Details regarding the County of Charlesion's Qutstanding Debt can be found in the notes to the basic financlal statements.
Note 2 See the Schedule of Asseasad Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for the Property Value Data.
Note 3 See the Schedule for Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data.
Tax Supporiad Dabt Per Capita
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, S30UTH CAROLINA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FI3CAL YEARS
UNALUDITED
2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011
Debt Limit $135820190 5140476777 § 144834276 $195786,861 $205985772 § 216723860 3§ 235740344 § 230227848 $ 235980407 $ 251,668,874
Total Net Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 84,600,000 $0,245,000 78.558,957 73,338,857 53,874,268 64,575,657 138,280,341 132,882,601 184,850,000 173,825,000
Legal Cebt Margin $ 51220190 3 6028777 § BB!WS!SN $ 120&5904 $ 138i021d04 § 152147972 § 90480003 § 108384848 S 51.330407 5 77.841,874
Total Net Debt Applicable to Debt
Limit as 2 Percentage of Debt Limit 82 3% 57.1% 54.3% 38.5% 34.05% 29.0% 57.6% 55.5% 78.2% 69.1%

Nat Dabi ss & Percantage of Dabt Linit Lagal Dabt Margin Caiculstion for Fiscal Year 2011

as.0% Total Asnemsed Valus $ 3,146,835,835
Debt Limit (8% of Total Assesaed Valug) 251,666,874
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limh:
Total Bonded Debt 380,935,000
Less: Dabt lssued Through Referendum (207,110,000)
| Total Amount of Dabt Appiicable fo Deirt Limit 173,825,000
| Legal Dett Margin 5 77841874

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 210 20%0

Note: Asticte Ten X, Section fourteen (14) of the South Carolina Constitution of December 1, 1977, as amended, provides that no government shall incur any bonged debt which shall exceed eight percent of the assessed value of the
property therein without voier approval.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND
UNAUDITED
Debt Service Requirements
Net Revenue
Flscal Gross Operating Avallable for
Year Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2002 $ 30,482,043 $ 24,733,210 $ 5,748,833 $ 950,000 $ 1,053,880 $ 2,003,880 287
2003 30,172,896 23,621,983 6,550,913 1,005,000 1,002,579 2,007,579 3.26
2004 33,291,523 25,611,601 7,679,922 1,060,000 716,904 1,776,904 432
2005 34,588,481 27,570,465 7,017,996 1,245,000 620,262 1,865,262 3.76
2006 37,566,510 31,391,286 6,175,244 1,225,000 651,750 1,876,750 3.29
2007 40,753,403 29,564,141 11,199,262 1,275,000 802,750 1,877,750 5.96
2008 435,898 988 390,615,863 6,384,026 1,335,000 539,000 1,874,000 3.41
2009 39,875,189 42,880,897 (3,005,708) 1,405,000 472,250 1,877,250 -1.60
2010 31,007,576 33,276,013 {2,268,437) 1,480,000 402,000 1,882,000 -1.21
2011 27,288,187 19,130,053 8,158,134 1,555,000 328,000 1,883,000 433
Note: 1 Details regarding the County of Charleston's outstanding debt can be found In the notes to the basic financial statements.
Note: 2 Gross revenues include interest, operating grants, and loss on disposal of capital assets.
Note: 3 Tatal operating expenses are exclusive of dapreclation and amortization.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiacal
Yoar Per Capita

Ended Parsonal Personal Unemployment Median  School

June 30 Population Income Income Rate Age  Enroliment
2002 319,723 § 9,448,358,000 29,555 3.8% 338 41,829
2003 324,900 9,763,420,000 30,051 4.2% 345 41,712
2004 332,561 10,589,980,000 31,784 4.4% 353 43,814
2005 336,865 11,584 427,000 34419 4.7% 355 43,485
2008 340,625 12,517,629,000 36,748 5.0% 38.2 43,335
2007 343,522 13.295,048,000 38,702 5.0% 38.0 42,742
2008 342,973 12,380,254,000 36,007 4.5% 36.0 42 303
2009 348,046 13,295,048,000 38,189 5.3% 36.0 42,482
2010 355,276 13,844,611,000 38,969 8.6% 36.9 42 942
2011 350,209 13,845,883,000 39,538 9.4% 36.0 43,796

Some of the stalistics for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 and beyond are estimated from past year trend analysis.

Population Por Cuplial Personal Income
360,000 40,000
38,000
350,000 36,000
340,000 w0
32,000
330,000 30,000
28,000
320,000 26.000
24,000
310,000 25 00
300,000 20,000
2002 2003 2004 2006 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 S00F 2003 0e Q005 G006 2007 200E 2008 20 =AY

The foliowing Data Sources were used to devealop this Infformation:
South Carchina Office of Research and Statletics
Charlegton County Chamber of Commerce
Charleston County School District - 45 Day Enrolimant
South Carolina Assodiation of Courties
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED
County Employment for 2011 162,330
County Employment for 2002 146,828
2011 2002
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of Total County Number of Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Medical University of South Carolina (MUSC) 11,000 1 6.78% 8,200 1 5.58%
Charleston Air Force Base 7,000 2 431% 5,292 2 3.60%
Charieston County School District 5,150 3 3.17% 5,000 3 3.41%
Roper St. Francis Healthcare 3,800 4 2.34% 4,000 4 2.72%
Boeing Charleston 3,000 5 1.85% - -
JEM Restaurant Group Inc. 3,000 6 1.85% - - -
Trident Medical Center (Trident Health Systam) 2,500 7 1.54% 2,000 7 -
Wal-Mart 2,300 8 1.42% 1,500 g 1.02%
County of Charleston 2,150 9 1.32% 1,933 8 1.32%
Piggly Wiggly Carolina Co. Inc. 1,900 10 1.17% 2,447 5 1.67%
City of Charleston 1,700 - 1.05% 1.250 10 0.85%
Kiawah Island Golf Resort 1,600 - 0.99% - - -
Mead Westvaco - - - 2,000 6 1.36%
Totals 45,100 27.78% 33,622 21.54%

Source: Charleston Metro Chamber of Commerce, Center for Business Research.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
General Government
County Council 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00
Administrator 5.00 5.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.31 5.31 6.80
Assessor 44.00 44.00 44.00 47.00 47.00 47.00 49.00 53.00 51.00 53.00
Assist Admin for Finance 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Assist Admin for Gen Svcs - - - - - - - 4.00 4.00 3.00
Assist Admin for Human &

Environmental Sves - - - - - 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4,00
Audttor 31.00 31.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 29.00 28.00 30.00 28.00 31.00
Budget 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 8.00
Capital Projects/Facilities Mgnt. 20.00 20.00 17.00 17.00 17.00 16.00 14.00 12.00 11.00 62.00
Dellnquent Tax 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 10.00 10.00 -
Deputy Caunty Admin 0.10
Elections/Voter Reglstration 8.50 8.50 8.50 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Finance 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 16.00 13.00 13.00
Grants 13.25 12.256 11.25 11.25 11.25 975 .75 B8.75 8.15 7.40
Human Resources 18.00 15.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 17.00 15.00 16.00
Intamnal Auditor 3.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 200
Intemal Services 156.00 148,80 77.60 76.60 72.60 €8.60 68.60 §7.80 61.80 80.00
Legal 584 5.56 5.58 5.56 5.56 6.58 6.42 8.42 7.42 8.67
Legislative Delegation 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Nondeparimental 12.00
Organization Development - - - - - 4.00 4.00 4.35 335 -
Procurement Services 16.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 16.00 16.00 18.00 15.00 14.00
Radio Communications 3.00 3.00 300 3.00 3.00 - - - - -
Register Mesne Conveyance 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 33.00 33.00 32.00 27.00 27.00
Revenue Collections 5.00 5.00 6.00 8.00 6.00 6.00 22.00 22.00 22.00 30.00
Safety & Risk Management 5.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 5.00
Technology Services 10.00 13.00 13.00 8.00 8.00 17.00 17.00 17.00 16.00 16.00
Treasurer 20.00 19.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00
Zoning/Planning 25.00 25.00 2500 25.00 26.00 24.00 24.00 24,00 22.00 21.00
Other {No Longer Used) 6.00 6.00 - - - - - - - -

Total General Government 473.59 465.91 383.91 382.41 380.41 388.91 404.77 412.83 385.03 444 97
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(CONTINUED)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Public Safety
Building Inspections 23.00 22.00 21.00 21.00 22.00 22.00 22.00 24.00 21.00 22.00
Consolidated Dispatch - - - - - - - 1.00 72.50 100.25
Emergency Management 7.00 7.00 6.00 20.00 25.00 27.00 30.00 30.00 24,50 34.00
Emergency Medical 168.00 167.00 170.00 161.00 168.00 174.00 174.00 165.00 139.50 134.00
Planning 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 - - -
Sheriff 674.31 702.31 741.31 777.31 779.31 780.31 792,31 808.11 834.11 8§28.74
Technology Services - - - - - - - 2.00 2.00 -
Other (No Longer Used) 1.00 - - - - - - - - -
Total Public Safety 874.31 §99.31 939.31 980.31 996.31 1,004.31 1,020.31 1,030.11 1,083.61 1,118.88
Judicial
Clerk of Court 54.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 53.00 54.00 54.00 54.00 55.00 56.00
Coroner 6.00 86.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 700 8.00 8.00 3.00
Magistrates Courts 6789 a87.89 67.89 68.89 70.41 7041 70.41 69.41 68.39 68.13
Master-In-Equity 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
Probate Courts 18.30 19.30 19.30 19.30 19.30 19.30 20.30 2030 19.30 19.30
Public Defender - - - - - - - 52.00 52.00 52.00
Solicitor 74.00 77.00 76.00 79.00 81.00 88.00 91.00 93.00 96.00 111.00
Total Judiclal 226.19 229.19 231.19 23219 235.71 243.71 249.71 303.71 305.69 321.43
Public Works
Administrator - - - - - - - 0.69 0.69 0.69
Revenue Collections 12.00 11.00 11.00 12.00 12.00 13.00 - - - -
Chief Deputy Administrator - - - - 1.00 1.00 1.00 - - -
Environmental Management 131.00 127.00 126.00 126.00 126.00 126.00 128.00 127.00 134.20 132.26
Organizational Development - - - - - - - 1.65 1.65 -
Procurement Sves. 200
Public Works 173.00 162.00 158.00 159.00 161.00 168.00 176.00 164.00 150.00 138.02
Transportation Development 21.63
Total Public Works 316.00 300.00 206.00 297.00 300.00 308.00 305.00 293.34 286.54 294.60
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(CONTINUED)
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Health and Welfare

Capital Projects/Facilities 1.00 200 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 200 2.00 2.00

Grants 20.75 18.75 2575 25.75 25.75 28.25 36.25 33.25 33.85 5.60

DAODAS 170.50 125.00 131.00 131.00 131.00 133.00 137.00 129.00 111.00 107.00

Public Works 29.00 28.00 24.00 24.00 24.00 23.00 23.00 24.00 20.00 20.00

Veterans Affalrs 4.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 4.00 400 4.00
Total Health and Welfare 22525 175.75 185.75 185.75 185.75 187.25 20225 192.25 170.85 138.60
Culture and Recreation

Assist Admin for Transporiation - - - - - - - 200 1.80 -

& Emergency Management

Greenbalt 2.00

Planning - - - - - 1.00 1.00 - - -

Revenue Collections 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 - - - -
Total Culture and Recreation - - - - - 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.80 2.00
Economic Development 2.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 5.00
Total Economic Development 2.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 5.00
Total 2,117.34 2,071.16 2,038.16 2,079.66 2,100.18 2135.18 2,186.04 2,237.04 2,246.52 2,32559

Source: Charleston County Budget Depariment

Note: 1 Includes the Authorized Full Time Employees for both Government and Business-type Activities



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Function/Program 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

General Govemment

Auditor - Tax Notices Processad 530,520 503,520 520,000 545,000 600,000 580,283 521,701 550,000 575,000 580,000

RMC Documents Recorded 110,000 143,674 142,244 143,500 147,569 133,772 118,770 84,711 90,880 80,880

Zoning Applications Processed 3,000 2,761 3,340 3,400 3,741 3,338 3,265 2,846 2,500 2,500

llegal Busmesses Located 563 082 898 831 714 278 345 86 117 120
Public Safety

Buikding Inspections Performed 18,000 15,985 18,323 22,583 28,191 23,702 22,518 15472 12,577 18,000

Bad Check Warrants Served 5,280 2,832 2.432 7,107 3,774 6124 6,194 5,504 8,107 7851

Dally Costs Par Prisoner 2 n 40 40 40 40 55 55 55 85
Judicial

Marrage Licenaes Issued 4,800 2275 2,428 3712 3,733 3877 3,769 3,845 3,764 3,900

Master-n-Equity Cases Disposed of 840 a3a 1,323 1,248 718 988 1,390 2,227 3,560 4,000
Heatth and Welfare

Veterans Claims Flled 7,300 7.318 7.438 8,505 8,038 9,215 9,215 10,254 10,688 11,168
Economic Development

Number of New Companies Relocating to Chardeston 1 6 1 4 5 1 4 0 1 3

Number of New Jobs From Relocating Companies 210 888 10 1,767 328 25 380 0 ao 120

Number of Expanding Employers in Charleston 1 4 0 1 2 3 1 3 3 4

Number of Jobs Resulting from Expansion 15 141 0 180 300 268 30 320 4275 323
Culture & Recrsation

Library Visits Per Capita 5.00 5.26 5.50 5.80 821 6.38 6.66 6.99 7.01 7.08

Library Cards In Usa 265,855 309,033 247 821 277,688 350,320 329,188 355,481 310,417 326,600 320,866
Envirormental Management

Total Tons of Incinerated Waste 220,000 220,000 230,873 222108 227,383 227,514 211,907 188,626 68,215 nfa
Parking Garages

Average Operating Revenue Per Space 1,108 1,032 1,124 1,284 1,623 1,777 1,813 2,114 2,043 2,103

Average Operating Expenditure Per Space 781 1.059 1,094 685 945 1,115 984 1,852 1,178 1,118

Sources: Charleston County Budget Performance Maasures

Note: Some af the operating Indicators have not been documented for a full 10 years.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON
CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011

General Government

Automobiles 56 60 70 77 80 84 91 80 79 92

Buildings 21 21 21 28 28 28 44 97 89 104
Public Safety

Pollce Cars 112 149 197 231 290 325 316 332 324 336

Fire Trucks 0 0 6 7 8 1" 1 10 10 10

Ambulances 0 0 0 17 23 24 28 22 23 24
Judicial

Magistrate Courts 13 14 14 14 14 16 15 15 15 15
Public Works

Pavad Streets (in Miles) 0 124 163 186 195 132 1289 128 129 129

Ground Equipment 30 31 32 33 43 51 62 60 65 67

Heavy Trucks 17 20 21 21 25 29 35 a5 35 35
Environmental Management

Collection/Refuse Trucks 17 20 23 27 33 37 45 44 48 44

Ground Equipment 10 1 13 13 16 19 24 26 25 26
Culture & Recreation

Libraries, Maln and Branches 16 18 16 16 18 16 16 18 11 11

Note 1. Town of James Island was created in 2007 creating a decrease in county owned infrastructure.

Note 2. Some Indicators have been added through the years.

Note 3. There was a review of bulldings In fiscal year 2008 that reorganized the bulldings and assigned more to the general government.
Note 4. Charleston County owns 11 libraries and leasaes 5 libraries.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
SOLID WASTE USER FEE RATE HISTORY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Residentlal Non-Residentlal
Fiscal Year
Ended June Single Famlily MuRI-Family One-half Cubic Yard More Than One-half
30 Residences (1) Resldences (2) or Less Per Week {3) Cublc Yard Per Week {4)

2002 $ 89 5 63 $ 78 $ 155

2003 89 63 78 155

2004 89 63 78 165

2005 89 63 78 185

2008 89 63 78 155

2007 89 63 78 155

2008 a9 70 86 172

2009 99 70 86 172

2010 29 70 86 172

(3) 2011 99 70 86 172

{1) Per residencs.
{2) Per unit.
{3) Per property.

{4) Per average number of cubic yards per waek.

(5) In 2011 County Councll approved a ane time $25.00 credit for all Single Family and Multi-Family Residences.



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

USER FEE BILLING HISTORY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year User Fee Applied  User Fee Applled Year End Working

Ended Juna User Fea to Payment of to Other Net Unusad User Capital Balance

30 User Fee Billed Revenue the Disposal Fee Purposes Fae {A)

2011 23,734,852 § 23,737170 $ (350,000) $ 17,960,181 $ 6,126,989 $ 42,618,100
2010 27,815,338 27,111,689 13,772,426 9,992,175 3,347,088 36,491,111
2009 27,398,682 28,708,365 11,676,865 24,631,637 (9,600,137) 33,144,023
2008 26,840,075 26,229,892 10,805,777 11,843,919 4,667,677 42,744,160
2007 23,539,044 23,174,604 10,636,050 10,159,150 2,379,404 38,076,483
2006 23,203,440 21,464,638 9,846,181 21,138,074 (8,759,515) 35,697,079
2005 22,808,943 21,802,327 6,347,904 22,689,167 (7,234,744) 44,456,594
2004 21,547,735 21,321,884 4,868,276 7.286,315 9,167,203 51,691,338
2003 21,093,317 20,689,423 7,006,550 11,517,490 2,165,383 42,524,045
2002 20,135,112 20,212,756 7,936,098 6,030,688 5,336,970 40,358,662

(A) Warking capltal balance net of revenue bond related funds.
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COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

DISPOSAL FEE HISTORY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Gross Disposal Fes Trust Sources Used To Pay Disposal Fee Trust
Flecal Year User Fea Total Sources
Ended June Incingrator Total Disposal Steam Sales Interast Applied to Used to Pay
30 Operations Dabt Service Foo (1) Eloctric Sales  Equity Payment Inconne Disposal Fes Disposal Fes
2011 5 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ] -
2010 4,886,407 10,372,142 15,258,549 630,618 583,305 - 272,200 13,772,428 15,258,549
2008 41,000,707 11,200,561 22,203,268 5,760,181 4,590,673 - 175,549 11,676,865 22,203,268
2008 10,676,239 11,865,234 22 541,533 5,984,861 5312,278 - 438,819 10,805,777 22,541,533
2007 10,217,188 11,523,258 21,740,446 3,772,500 5,787,124 - 1,544,772 10,638,050 21,740,448
2008 9,742,483 10,015,279 19,757,762 3,430,833 4,688,308 - 1,782,440 9,846,181 19,757,762
2005 7,910,814 7,326,349 15,237,163 3,634,265 4493514 - 781,480 6,347,904 15,237,183
2004 7,719,190 5,769,142 13,488,332 3,488,333 4,856,830 - 283,883 4,868,276 13,487,332
2003 7,849,844 6,064,112 13,913,956 3,363,333 3,329,393 - 214,680 7,006,550 13,913,956
2002 8,364,178 6,518,299 14,882, 477 3,302,812 3,288,578 - 354,888 7,936,098 14,882,477

(1) In April 1996 the United States Navy closed its base in Chardaeston, South Carolina.
Since that date tha Navy has been making the minimum required payments under the Navy Steam Agreement.

Tha Incinerator was demolished In Decamber 2010.



COUNTY OF CGHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

MSW Processed (tons)
Ash Generated (wet tons)
Ash Generation Rate (percent of MSW)
Boiler Avallablity {percant of iime)
Unit A
Unit B
Facliity Utilization {percent of design
staaming rate)
Steam Sales (Mibs)
Elactricity Sales (MWh)

{1) Facllity Operating Years from December
1 through November 30 of the year listed.

The Incinerator was demolished In
Decamber 2010

KEY FACILITY OPERATIONAL DATA (1)
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
200,682 200,806 207,249 230,673 225005 226,163 222,110 203,029 N/A N/A N/A
54,920 55,813 55,013 56,6843 65,700 58,557 58,335 50,700 N/A N/A NiA
27.4% 26.6% 26.5% 241% 24.8% 25.9% 26.3% 25.00% N/A N/A N/A
82.4% 80.3% 87.5% 91.5% 89.6% 89.5% 88.8% 83.10% N/A N/A N/A
84.5% 81.7% 84.9% 94.5% 89.6% 91.7% 836.0% 81.70% N/A N/A N/A
84.7% 80.6% 87 2% 95.5% 82.4% 83.9% 91.2% 84.60% N/A, N/A N/A
500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 &00,000 N/A N/A N/A
49,908 54,826 66,557 72,767 66,106 69,853 87,027 59,563 N/A N/A N/A



COUNTY OF CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA
FINANCIAL ASSURANCE COVERAGE
MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL FACILITIES
LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL TEST:
1. Financlal component:

A. Bond rating requirement: Investment grade bond rating of no less than BBB.
The County's current general obligation bond ratings are:

Moody’s Investors Service AAA
Standard & Poors Corporation  AAA
Fitch, Inc. AA

B. Financlal ratio alternative:
The prescribed financial ratios computed under GAAP are:

1. Ratlo of cash and marketable securities to tofal expenditures - Primary Government

Cash and cash equivalents $ 142,887,765
Total expenditures $ 423,600,688
Requirement Is no less than 5 percent 33.73%

2. Ratio of annual debt service expenditures - Pimary Government

Total debt service expenditures $ 44,442,286
Total expenditures $ 423,606,688
Requirement Is no more than 20 parcent 10.49%

2. Financlal assurance limitation test:

Financlal assurance limitation under financlal test:

Total Revenue - Primary Government $ 358,268,205

Maximum percent of revenue elligible for

self-insured local government financial test 43%

Limitation on deferred cost of closure $ 154,055,328

Total estimated closure and post-closure costs for Gounty landfllls:

Estimated costs from Note IIl.G. on landfill closure $ 44,543,005

Less: Expenditures to date $ (22,001.005)

Restricted assets committed to closure $ (4,947,000)
Balance of closure costs being deferred $ 17,595,000
Additlonal permissible deferred cost $ 136,480,328
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APPENDIX B
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE

Following is a summary of certain provisions of the Ordinance enacted by the County Council of
Charleston County, South Carolina (the “County”) authorising the issuance of the Charleston County, South
Carolina, General Obligation Transportation Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of 2012. The summary does not purport to
be a full statement of the Ordinance and reference is made to the Ordinance for a full and complete statement
thereof. Capitalised terms used herein and not defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Ordinance
unless the context hereof otherwise requires.

Registration and Transfers of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners.

€)] Each Bond shall be fully-registered and no Bond may be transferred except by the registered
owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorised in writing upon surrender thereof together with a written
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorised
attorney. Upon the transfer of any such registered Bond or Bonds, the County shall execute and the Authenticating
Agent shall authenticate and deliver, subject to the provisions of Section 12 of Article 11 of the Ordinance, in the
name of the transferee, a new registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount as the unpaid
principal amount of the surrendered Bond or Bonds.

(b) Any bondholder requesting any transfer shall pay any tax or other governmental charges required
to be paid with respect thereto. Any purported assignment in contravention of the foregoing requirements shall be,
as to the County, absolutely null and void. The person in whose hame any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed
and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal of and interest on such
Bonds shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner or his legal representative. All such payments
shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability of the County upon such Bond to the extent of the
sum or sums so paid. No person other than the registered owner shall have any right to receive payments, pursue
remedies, enforce obligations or exercise or enjoy any other rights under any Bond against the County.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in the Ordinance shall limit the rights of a person having a beneficial interest
in any Bonds as against a person (including the registered owner) other than the County, as in the case where the
registered owner is a trustee or nominee for two or more beneficial owners of an interest in any Bond.

(© The Bond Registrar shall not be required to exchange or transfer such Bond or portion of Bond (i)
for which notice of redemption has been mailed to the registered owner thereof or (ii) for the period beginning on
the Regular Record Date and ending on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Notes.

In the event of any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the County may execute and the
Authenticating Agent may authenticate a new Bond of like date, maturity, interest rate, and denomination, as that
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bonds, they shall first be surrendered
to the Paying Agent, and in the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the County
and the Paying Agent evidence of the loss, theft, or destruction, satisfactory to the County and the Paying Agent,
together with indemnity satisfactory to them, provided that in the case of a holder which is the bank or insurance
company, the agreement of such bank or insurance company to indemnify shall be sufficient. In the event any such
Bonds shall have matured, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the County may pay the same without surrender
thereof. The County, the Paying Agent, and the Authenticating Agent, may charge the holder or owner of such
Bond with their reasonable fees and expenses related thereto.

Exchange of Bonds.

Subject to the provisions of Section 9 of Article Il of the Ordinance, the Bonds, upon surrender thereof to
the Bond Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the
registered owner or his duly authorised attorney, may, at the option of the registered owner thereof, and upon
payment by such registered owner of any charges which the Paying Agent, the Authenticating Agent, or the Bond



Registrar may make as provided in Section 12 of Article Il of the Ordinance, be exchanged for a principal amount of
Bonds or any other authorised denominations equal to the unpaid principal amount of surrendered Bonds.

Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers.

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring the Bonds is exercised, the County shall
execute and the Authenticating Agent shall authenticate and deliver the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of
the Ordinance. All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be cancelled by the Paying
Agent. There shall be no charge for such exchange or transfer of the Bonds except that the Paying Agent, the Bond
Registrar, and the Authenticating Agent, may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them, or any of them, for any
tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

Pledge of Full Faith, Credit, and Taxing Power.

For the payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as the same respectively mature, and for the
creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor, the full faith, credit, and taxing power, of the County are
irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the Auditor of Charleston County, and collected by the
Treasurer of Charleston County, in the same manner as other County taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without
limit, on all taxable property in the County, sufficient to pay the principal and interest of the Bonds as they
respectively mature, and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor.

Pledge of Transportation Sales Tax Revenues

@ The Bonds are payable from, and additionally secured by a pledge of, the net revenues raised by
the Transportation Sales Tax. Upon receipt of the net revenues of the Transportation Sales Tax from the State
Treasurer, the Treasurer of Charleston County shall deposit that portion of the net revenues as directed by annual
budget of the County Council into the Sinking Fund Account established for the Bonds and shall maintain proper
books and records for an accounting thereof. To the extent the net revenues derived from the Transportation Sales
Tax are or will be available and on deposit with the Treasurer of Charleston County prior to the due dates of Debt
Service for any fiscal year, the County Council shall reduce the amount of taxes required to be levied and collected
pursuant to Section 2 of Article 111 of the Ordinance. Such net revenues received by the Treasurer of Charleston
County from the State Treasurer from the Transportation Sales Tax shall be deposited in the Sinking Fund Account
and on each payment date of the Bonds shall be applied to pay current Debt Service due on the Bonds. Pending
such application, moneys held in such Account shall be invested by the Treasurer of Charleston County in
accordance with law. All investment earnings shall be applied as directed by the County Council for the costs of
Original Referendum Projects.

(b) The covenants and agreements set forth in Section 3 of Article Il of the Ordinance to be
performed by the County shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit, security, and protection of all registered
owners of the Bonds without preference, priority, or distinction as to payment or security or otherwise (except as to
maturity) of any of the Bonds or any of the others for any reason or cause whatsoever, except as expressly provided
in Section 3 of Article 111 of the Ordnance or in the Bonds, and, except as aforesaid, all Bonds shall rank pari passu
and shall be secured equally and ratably under the Ordinance without discrimination or preference whatsoever.

(c) The County has previously issued its Series 2006 Bonds, Series 2007 Bonds, and Series 2011
Bonds which are payable from and additionally secured by a pledge of the net revenues raised by the Transportation
Sales Tax which ranks pari passu with the pledge securing the Bonds, and such Series 2006 Bonds, Series 2007
Bonds, and Series 2011 Bonds are secured equally and ratably by such pledge, without preference, priority, or
distinction as to payment or security or otherwise (except as to maturity) of any of the Bonds authorised under the
Ordinance. The County Council expressly reserves the right to pledge net revenues derived from the Transportation
Sales Tax to secure the payment of other obligations of the County, including other general obligation bonds,
revenue bonds, notes, leases, or contract obligations, or similar contracts or evidences of indebtedness, and to apply
such net revenues that are not required to pay current Debt Service on the Bonds to the costs of other Original
Referendum Projects.
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(d) Upon payment in full of all principal and interest due on the Bonds, whether at maturity or
pursuant to defeasance in accordance with Article VI of the Ordinance, all funds derived from the Transportation
Sales Tax held by the Charleston County Treasurer in the Sinking Fund Account shall be released from the lien and
pledge in favour of the Bonds created by the Ordinance and shall be disbursed at the direction of the County Council
to pay costs of the Original Referendum Facilities.

Release of Ordinance.

€)] If all of the Bonds issued pursuant to the Ordinance shall have been paid and discharged, then the
obligations of the County under the Ordinance, and all other rights granted thereby shall cease and determine.
Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of Article VI of the Ordinance under
each of the following circumstances:

0] If the Paying Agent shall hold, at the stated maturities of such Bonds, in trust and
irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys for the full payment thereof; or

(i) If default in the payment of the principal of such Bonds or the interest thereon shall have
occurred, and thereafter tender of such payment shall have been made, and the Paying Agent shall hold, in
trust and irrevocably appropriated thereto, sufficient moneys for the payment thereof to the date of the
tender of such payment; or

(i) If the County shall have deposited with the Paying Agent or other escrow agent, in an
irrevocable trust, either moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or direct general obligations of the
United States of America, which are not subject to redemption by the issuer prior to the date of maturity of
the Bonds to be defeased, the principal of and interest on which, when due, and without reinvestment
thereof, will provide moneys, which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with the Paying Agent or
other escrow agent at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay, when due, the principal, interest, and
redemption premium or premiums, if any, due to become due on and prior to the maturity date or dates; or

(iv) If there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent or other escrow agent either
moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or direct general obligations of the United States of
America the principal of and interest on which, when due, will provide moneys which, together with the
moneys, if any, deposited with the Paying Agent or other escrow agent at the same time, shall be sufficient
to pay, when due, the principal and interest due to become due on the Bonds on the maturity thereof.

(b) In addition to the above requirements of paragraphs (i), (ii), (iii), or (iv), in order for the Ordinance
to be discharged, all other fees, expenses, and charges of the Fiscal Agents, have been paid in full at such time.

(c) Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of the Ordinance, the Fiscal Agents shall continue
to be obligated to hold in trust any moneys or investments then held by the Paying Agent for the payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds, to pay to the owners of Bonds the funds so held by the
Fiscal Agents as and when such payment becomes due.

(d) Any release under Section 1 of Article VI of the Ordinance shall be without prejudice to the rights
of the Fiscal Agents to be paid reasonable compensations for all services rendered under the Ordinance and all
reasonable expenses, charges and other disbursements and those of their respective attorneys, agents and employees,
incurred on and about the administration of trusts by the Ordinance created and the performance of the powers and
duties under the Ordinance of the Fiscal Agents.

Deposit of Moneys.

Any moneys which at any time shall be deposited with a Fiscal Agent by or on behalf of the County for the
purpose of paying and discharging any Bonds shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred, and set over to the Fiscal
Agent in trust for the respective holders of such Bonds, and such moneys shall be are hereby irrevocably
appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. If, through lapse of time or otherwise, the holder of such Bonds



shall no longer be entitled to enforce payment of their obligations, then, in such event, it shall be the duty of the
Fiscal Agent to transfer such funds to the County.

Notice of Release of Ordinance.

€)] In the event any of said Bonds are not to be redeemed within the sixty (60) days next succeeding
the date the deposit required by Section 1(a)(iii) or (iv) of Article VI of the Ordinance is made, the County shall give
the Fiscal Agent irrevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable by registered or certified mail, a notice to the
owners of such Bonds at the addresses shown on the Books of Registry that (i) the deposit required by subparagraph
(@)(iii) or (a)(iv) of Section 1 of Article VI of the Ordinance has been made with the Fiscal Agent, and (ii) said
Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with Article VI and stating such maturity or redemption dates
upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, said
Bonds.

(b) The County covenants and agrees that any moneys which it shall deposit with the Fiscal Agent
shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with, and subject to, the applicable provisions of Article VI.

Amending and Supplementing of Ordinance Without Consent of Holders of Bonds.

€)] The County Council, from time to time and at any time and without the consent or concurrence of
any holder of any Bond, may enact an ordinance amendatory hereof or supplemental thereto, if the provisions of
such supplemental Ordinance shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the holders of the Bonds then
outstanding, for any one or more of the following purposes:

1. To make any changes or corrections in the Ordinance as to which the County Council
shall have been advised by counsel that the same are verbal corrections or changes or are required for the
purpose of curing and correcting any ambiguity or defective or inconsistent provision or omission or
mistake or manifest error contained in the Ordinance, or to insert in the Ordinance such provisions
clarifying matters or questions arising under the Ordinance as are necessary or desirable;

2. To add additional covenants and agreements of the County for the purpose of further
securing the payment of the Bonds;

3. To surrender any right, power, or privilege reserved to or conferred upon the County by
the terms of the Ordinance;

4. To grant or confer upon the bondholders any additional right, remedies, powers,
authority, or security that lawfully may be granted to or conferred upon them; or

5. To make such additions, deletions, or modifications as may be necessary to assure
compliance with section 148(f) of the Code relating to required rebate to the United States or otherwise as
may be necessary to assure the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for purposes of
federal income taxation.

(b) The County Council shall not enact any supplemental Ordinance authorised by the foregoing
provisions of Section VII of the Ordinance unless in the opinion of counsel the enactment of such supplemental
Ordinance is permitted by the foregoing provisions of Section VII of the Ordinance and the provisions of such
supplemental Ordinance do not adversely affect the rights of the holders of the Bonds then outstanding.

Amending and Supplementing of Ordinance With Consent of Holders of Bonds.

€)] With the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then
outstanding the County Council from time to time and at any time may enact an Ordinance amendatory thereof or
supplemental thereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to, or changing in any manner or eliminating any of
the provisions of, the Ordinance, or modifying or amending the rights or obligations of the County under the
Ordinance, or modifying or amending in any manner the rights of the holders of the Bonds then outstanding;
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provided, however, that, without the specific consent of the holder of each such Bond which would be affected
thereby, no supplemental Ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions thereof shall: (i) change the fixed
maturity date of any Bond or the dates for the payment of interest thereon or the terms of the redemption thereof, or
reduce the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of interest thereon or the redemption price (or the redemption
premium) payable upon the redemption or prepayment thereof; (ii) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Bonds, the
holders of which are required to consent to any supplemental Ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions
of the Ordinance; or (iii) give to any Bond or Bonds any preference over any other Bond or Bonds. Nothing in this
paragraph contained, however, shall be construed as making necessary the approval of the holders of the Bonds of
the enactment of any supplemental Ordinance authorised by the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII of the
Ordinance.

(b) It shall not be necessary that the consents of the holders of the Bonds approve the particular form
of the wording of the proposed amendment or supplement or of the supplemental Ordinance. The County shall mail
a notice at least once, not more than thirty (30) days after the effective date of such amendment or supplement of
such amendment or supplement postage prepaid, to each holder of Bonds then outstanding at his address, if any,
appearing upon the Books of Registry and to the Paying Agent, but failure to mail copies of such notice to any of the
holders shall not affect the validity of the supplemental Ordinance effecting such amendments or supplements or the
consents thereto. Nothing in this paragraph contained, however, shall be construed as requiring the giving of notice
of any amendment or supplement of the Ordinance authorised by Section 1 of Article VII of the Ordinance. No
action or proceeding to set aside or invalidate such supplemental Ordinance or any of the proceedings for its
enactment shall be instituted or maintained unless such action or proceeding is commenced within sixty (60) days
after the mailing of the notice required by this paragraph.

Effectiveness of Supplemental Ordinance.

Upon the enactment (pursuant to Article VII of the Ordinance and applicable law) by the County Council
of any supplemental Ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions of the Ordinance and the delivery to the
Paying Agent and the County Council of an opinion of bond counsel that such supplemental Ordinance is in due
form and has been duly enacted in accordance with the provisions hereof and applicable law and that the provisions
thereof are valid and binding upon the County, or upon such later date as may be specified in such supplemental
Ordinance, (a) the Ordinance and the Bonds shall be modified and amended in accordance with such supplemental
Ordinance, (b) the respective rights, limitations of rights, obligation, duties, and immunities, under the Ordinance of
the County, the Fiscal Agents, and the holders of the Bonds, shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced,
under the Ordinance subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments, and (c) all of the terms and
conditions of any such supplemental Ordinance shall be a part of the terms and conditions of the Bonds and of the
Ordinance for any and all purposes.
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APPENDIX C

HOWELL LINKOUS & NETTLES, LLC
Bond Attorneys & Counsellors at Law

Post Office Box 1768 The Lining House Concentrating in Municipal Bonds,
Charleston, South Carolina 29402 char thGSBrc;ﬁdCStreﬁt 20401 Local Government Law, Economic
arleston, South Carolina :
Telephone 843.266.3800 Development Incentives,

Fax 843.266.3805 Affordable Housing Development

___March 2012
Charleston County, South Carolina
Charleston, South Carolina
Re: § Charleston County, South Carolina, General Obligation

Transportation Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of 2012

Ladies and Gentlemen:

As bond counsel to Charleston County, South Carolina (the “County”), we have
examined a certified copy of the Transcript of Proceedings and other proofs submitted to us,
including the Constitution and Statutes of the State of South Carolina, in relation to the issuance
by the County of the captioned bonds (the “Bonds”), which are originally dated their date of
delivery, are in fully-registered form, are in denominations of $5,000, or any integral multiple
thereof, and mature, in annual series or installments, on November 1 in the years and amounts,
and bear interest as follows:

Due Principal Interest Due Principal Interest
November 1 Amount Rate November 1 Amount Rate

$ % $ %

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity upon the terms and conditions and
at the prices set forth therein.



Charleston County, South Carolina
__March 2012
Page 2

Interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year commencing May 1, 2012.
Principal of the Bonds is payable to the registered owner thereof, in legal tender at the corporate
trust office of Wells Fargo Bank N.A., Atlanta, Georgia (the “Paying Agent”). Interest on the
Bonds is payable by cheque or draught mailed to the registered owner by the Paying Agent.

The Bonds recite that they are issued by the County pursuant to and for the purposes
authorised by the County Bond Act (Title 4, Chapter 15 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina
1976, as amended), and the Refunding Act (Title 11, Chapter 15, Article 5 of the Code of Laws
of South Carolina 1976, as amended), as amplified by Title 11, Chapter 21 of the Code of Laws
of South Carolina 1976, as amended, both as amended and continued by Section 11-27-40 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the “Bond Act”), the favourable
results of referenda conducted in Charleston County, South Carolina, and an Ordinance duly
enacted by the County Council of Charleston County, the governing body of the County (the
“Ordinance”) to effect a savings in debt service by refunding certain outstanding general
obligation bonds of the County (the “Refunded Bonds”) and to pay costs of issuance of the
Bonds.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the Transcript of
Proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency of the
Official Statement relating to the Bonds. We refer you to our letter of even date herewith with
regard to certain matters regarding the Official Statement.

Based on our examination, and subject to the assumptions and limitations set forth herein,
we are of the opinion, as of the date hereof and under existing law, as follows:

1. The proceedings are regular and in due form of law and the Bonds constitute valid
and binding obligations of the County, secured by an irrevocable pledge of the full faith, credit,
and taxing power of the County and are payable, both principal and interest, from a direct ad
valorem tax upon all taxable property in the County, without limit as to rate or amount.
Provision has been made for the levy and collection of the tax to meet the payment of principal
and interest on the Bonds as the same respectively mature in the event the net proceeds of the
Transportation Sales Tax (as described below) prove insufficient therefor.

2. The Bonds are payable from and additionally secured by a pledge of the net
proceeds of the Transportation Sales Tax (the “Transportation Sales Tax) authorised by the
provisions of Title 4, Chapter 37 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. The
Transportation Sales Tax has been validly imposed under the laws of the State of South Carolina.

3. The Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all state, county, municipal,
school district, and all other taxes or assessments of the State of South Carolina, except
inheritance, estate, or transfer taxes, and the interest thereon (a) is excludable from gross income
for federal income tax purposes and (b) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the



Charleston County, South Carolina
__March 2012
Page 3

federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; however; interest is
taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the
alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations (as defined for federal income tax
purposes). Furthermore, it should be noted that Section 12-11-20 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended, imposes upon every bank engaged in business in South Carolina a
fee or franchise tax computed on the entire net income of such bank, which includes interest on
the Bonds. The opinion set forth in this paragraph is subject to the condition that the County
comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that must be
satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or continue to
be) excludable from gross income for federal and South Carolina income tax purposes. Failure
to comply with certain of the requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be so
included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The County has
covenanted to comply with all such requirements.

We have examined executed Bond No. R-1 of the issue and, in our opinion, it is in due
form of law.

We are relying solely upon the opinion of Grant Thornton LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota,
independent certified public accountant (the “Verification Agent”), that the cash and the
principal of and interest on the Government Obligations (as defined in the Ordinance) held in
trust by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) under the Escrow
Deposit Agreement, dated as of March __, 2012 (the “Escrow Deposit Agreement”), between the
County and the Escrow Agent, when received by the Escrow Agent, will provide moneys at the
times and in the amounts required in order to pay the Refunded Bonds in accordance with the
terms of the Escrow Deposit Agreement, and we express no opinion with respect thereto. We
have further relied upon the opinion of the Verification Agent with respect to the calculation of
the yield on the Bonds and the yield on the Government Obligations (as defined in the Escrow
Deposit Agreement) held in trust pursuant to the Escrow Deposit Agreement.

Except as expressly stated above, we express no opinion regarding any other federal or
state income tax consequences of acquiring, carrying, owning, or disposing of the Bonds.
Owners of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any
collateral tax consequences of owning the Bonds, which may include original issue premium,
purchase at market discount or at a premium, taxation upon sale, redemption, or other
disposition, and various withholding requirements.

It is to be understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of
the Bonds and the Ordinance may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganisation,
moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to
the extent constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement may also be subject to exercise
of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our
attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.



Charleston County, South Carolina
__March 2012
Page 4

Our services as Bond Counsel for purposes of rendering the foregoing opinions have been
based on our review of such legal proceedings, documents, and certificates from the County as
we deem necessary to make the statements contained in this letter with respect to the validity of
the Bonds, and the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds. We have not examined any
documents or other information concerning the business or financial resources of the County,
and we express no opinion herein as to the accuracy or completeness of any information with
respect to the County that may have been relied upon by the owners of the Bonds in making their
decision to purchase the Bonds.

Very truly yours,
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APPENDIX D

DISCLOSURE DISSEMINATION AGENT AGREEMENT

This Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”), dated as
of March __, 2012, is executed and delivered by Charleston County, South Carolina (the
“Issuer”) and Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as exclusive Disclosure Dissemination
Agent (the “Disclosure Dissemination Agent” or “DAC”) for the benefit of the Holders
(hereinafter defined) of the Bonds (hereinafter defined) and in order to provide certain
continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds in accordance with Rule 15¢2-12 of the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the
same may be amended from time to time (the “Rule”).

The services provided under this Disclosure Agreement solely relate to the execution of
instructions received from the Issuer through use of the DAC system and do not constitute
“advice” within the meaning of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act (the “Act”). DAC will not provide any advice or recommendation to the Issuer or anyone on
the Issuer’s behalf regarding the “issuance of municipal securities” or any “municipal financial
product” as defined in the Act and nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be interpreted to
the contrary.

SECTION 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Disclosure
Agreement shall have the meaning assigned in the Rule or, to the extent not in conflict with the
Rule, in the Official Statement (hereinafter defined). The capitalized terms shall have the
following meanings:

“Annual Report” means an Annual Report described in and consistent with Section 3 of
this Disclosure Agreement.

“Annual Filing Date” means the date, set in Sections 2(a) and 2(f), by which the Annual
Report is to be filed with the MSRB.

“Annual Financial Information” means annual financial information as such term is used
in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule and specified in Section 3(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

“Audited Financial Statements” means the financial statements (if any) of the Issuer for
the prior fiscal year, certified by an independent auditor as prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or otherwise, as such term is used in paragraph
(b)(5)(i) of the Rule and specified in Section 3(b) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Bonds” means the bonds as listed on the attached Exhibit A, with the 9-digit CUSIP
numbers relating thereto.

“Certification” means a written certification of compliance signed by the Disclosure
Representative stating that the Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice
Event notice, Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary
Financial Disclosure delivered to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent is the Annual
Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice,
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Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure required to be submitted
to the MSRB under this Disclosure Agreement. A Certification shall accompany each
such document submitted to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent by the Issuer and
include the full name of the Bonds and the 9-digit CUSIP numbers for all Bonds to which
the document applies.

“Disclosure Representative” means the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer or his or her
designee, or such other person as the Issuer shall designate in writing to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent from time to time as the person responsible for providing
Information to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent.

“Disclosure Dissemination Agent” means Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C, acting
in its capacity as Disclosure Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Disclosure
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the Issuer pursuant to Section 9 hereof.

“Failure to File Event” means the Issuer’s failure to file an Annual Report on or before
the Annual Filing Date.

“Force Majeure Event” means: (i) acts of God, war, or terrorist action; (ii) failure or shut-
down of the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the MSRB; or
(iii) to the extent beyond the Disclosure Dissemination Agent’s reasonable control,
interruptions in telecommunications or utilities services, failure, malfunction or error of
any telecommunications, computer or other electrical, mechanical or technological
application, service or system, computer virus, interruptions in Internet service or
telephone service (including due to a virus, electrical delivery problem or similar
occurrence) that affect Internet users generally, or in the local area in which the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent or the MSRB is located, or acts of any government,
regulatory or any other competent authority the effect of which is to prohibit the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent from performance of its obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement.

“Holder” means any person (a) having the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons
holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries) or (b) treated as
the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

“Information” means, collectively, the Annual Reports, the Audited Financial Statements
(if any), the Notice Event notices, the Failure to File Event notices, the Voluntary Event
Disclosures and the VVoluntary Financial Disclosures.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to
Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

“Notice Event” means any of the events enumerated in paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of the Rule
and listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Obligated Person” means any person, including the Issuer, who is either generally or
through an enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other
arrangement to support payment of all, or part of the obligations on the Bonds (other than
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providers of municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities), as
shown on Exhibit A.

“Official Statement” means that Official Statement prepared by the Issuer in connection
with the Bonds, as listed on Appendix A.

“Paying Agent” means the institution, if any, identified as such in the document under
which the Bonds were issued.

“Voluntary Event Disclosure” means information of the category specified in any of
subsections (e)(vi)(1) through (e)(vi)(11) of Section 2 of this Disclosure Agreement that
is accompanied by a Certification of the Disclosure Representative containing the
information prescribed by Section 7(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Voluntary Financial Disclosure” means information of the category specified in any of
subsections (e)(vii)(1) through (e)(vii)(9) of Section 2 of this Disclosure Agreement that
is accompanied by a Certification of the Disclosure Representative containing the
information prescribed by Section 7(b) of this Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 2. Provision of Annual Reports.

@ The Issuer shall provide, annually, an electronic copy of the Annual Report and
Certification to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent, together with a copy for the Paying Agent,
not later than the Annual Filing Date. Promptly upon receipt of an electronic copy of the Annual
Report and the Certification, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall provide an Annual Report
to the MSRB not later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year of the Issuer,
commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. Such date and each anniversary thereof
is the Annual Filing Date. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as
separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as
provided in Section 3 of this Disclosure Agreement.

(b)  If on the fifteenth (15th) day prior to the Annual Filing Date, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report and Certification, the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall contact the Disclosure Representative by telephone and in
writing (which may be by e-mail) to remind the Issuer of its undertaking to provide the Annual
Report pursuant to Section 2(a). Upon such reminder, the Disclosure Representative shall either
(i) provide the Disclosure Dissemination Agent with an electronic copy of the Annual Report and
the Certification no later than two (2) business days prior to the Annual Filing Date, or (ii)
instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in writing that the Issuer will not be able to file the
Annual Report within the time required under this Disclosure Agreement, state the date by which
the Annual Report for such year will be provided and instruct the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent that a Failure to File Event has occurred and to immediately send a notice to the MSRB in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit B, accompanied by a cover sheet completed by the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-1.

(©) If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has not received an Annual Report and
Certification by 6:00 p.m. Eastern time on Annual Filing Date (or, if such Annual Filing Date
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, then the first business day thereafter) for the Annual
Report, a Failure to File Event shall have occurred and the Issuer irrevocably directs the
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Disclosure Dissemination Agent to immediately send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the
form attached as Exhibit B without reference to the anticipated filing date for the Annual Report,
accompanied by a cover sheet completed by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set

forth in Exhibit C-1.

(d) If Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer are prepared but not available prior
to the Annual Filing Date, the Issuer shall, when the Audited Financial Statements are available,
provide in a timely manner an electronic copy to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent,
accompanied by a Certification, together with a copy for the Paying Agent, for filing with the

MSRB.

(e) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

verify the filing specifications of the MSRB each year prior to the Annual
Filing Date;

upon receipt, promptly file each Annual Report received under Sections
2(a) and 2(b) with the MSRB;

upon receipt, promptly file each Audited Financial Statement received
under Section 2(d) with the MSRB;

upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Notice Event received under
Sections 4(a) and 4(b)(ii) with the MSRB, identifying the Notice Event as
instructed by the Issuer pursuant to Section 4(a) or 4(b)(ii) (being any of
the categories set forth below) when filing pursuant to Section 4(c) of this
Disclosure Agreement:

1. “Principal and interest payment delinquencies;”

2. “Non-Payment related defaults, if material;”

3. “Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;”

4. “Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;”

5. “Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to
perform;”

6. “Adverse tax opinions, IRS notices or events affecting the tax

status of the security;”

7. “Modifications to rights of securities holders, if material;”
8. “Bond calls, if material;”
9. “Defeasances;”

D-4



(v)

(vi)

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

“Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of
the securities, if material;”

“Rating changes;”
“Tender offers;”

“Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the
obligated person;”

“Merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the obligated person, if
material;” and

“Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of
name of a trustee, if material;”

upon receipt (or irrevocable direction pursuant to Section 2(c) of this
Disclosure Agreement, as applicable), promptly file a completed copy of
Exhibit B to this Disclosure Agreement with the MSRB, identifying the
filing as “Failure to provide annual financial information as required”
when filing pursuant to Section 2(b)(ii) or Section 2(c) of this Disclosure
Agreement;

upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Voluntary Event Disclosure
received under Section 7(a) with the MSRB, identifying the Voluntary
Event Disclosure as instructed by the Issuer pursuant to Section 7(a)
(being any of the categories set forth below) when filing pursuant to
Section 7(a) of this Disclosure Agreement:

1.

2.

10.

11.

“amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking;”

“change in obligated person;”

“notice to investors pursuant to bond documents;”

“certain communications from the Internal Revenue Service;”
“secondary market purchases;”

“bid for auction rate or other securities;”

“capital or other financing plan;”

“litigation/enforcement action;”

“change of tender agent, remarketing agent, or other on-going
party;”

“derivative or other similar transaction;” and

“other event-based disclosures;”
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(vii)  upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Voluntary Financial Disclosure
received under Section 7(b) with the MSRB, identifying the Voluntary
Financial Disclosure as instructed by the Issuer pursuant to Section 7(b)
(being any of the categories set forth below) when filing pursuant to
Section 7(b) of this Disclosure Agreement:

1. “quarterly/monthly financial information;”

2. “change in fiscal year/timing of annual disclosure;”

3. “change in accounting standard;”

4, “interim/additional financial information/operating data;”

5. “budget;”

6. “investment/debt/financial policy;”

7. “information provided to rating agency, credit/liquidity provider or

other third party;”
8. “consultant reports;” and
0. “other financial/operating data.”

(viii) provide the Issuer evidence of the filings of each of the above when made,
which shall be by means of the DAC system, for so long as DAC is the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement.

() The Issuer may adjust the Annual Filing Date upon change of its fiscal year by
providing written notice of such change and the new Annual Filing Date to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent, Paying Agent (if any) and the MSRB, provided that the period between the
existing Annual Filing Date and new Annual Filing Date shall not exceed one year.

(9) Any Information received by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent before 6:00
p.m. Eastern time on any business day that it is required to file with the MSRB pursuant to the
terms of this Disclosure Agreement and that is accompanied by a Certification and all other
information required by the terms of this Disclosure Agreement will be filed by the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent with the MSRB no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern time on the same business
day; provided, however, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no liability for any delay
in filing with the MSRB if such delay is caused by a Force Majeure Event provided that the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent uses reasonable efforts to make any such filing as soon as
possible.

SECTION 3. Content of Annual Reports.

(a) Each Annual Report shall contain Annual Financial Information with respect to the
Issuer, including the information provided in the Official Statement under the headings:

() Market Value/Assessment Summary of taxable property in the County.
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(i) Tax levy for the County for current fiscal year.

(iii)  Tax collections for the County for preceding fiscal year.

(iv)  Ten largest taxpayers for the County for preceding fiscal year.
(v) Debt service requirements for the next succeeding five years.

(b) Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) as described in the Official Statement will be included in the
Annual Report. If audited financial statements are not available, then, unaudited financial
statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP as described in the Official Statement will be
included in the Annual Report. Audited Financial Statements (if any) will be provided pursuant
to Section 2(d).

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the Issuer is an
“obligated person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been previously filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission or available on the MSRB Internet Website. If the document
incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The
Issuer will clearly identify each such document so incorporated by reference.

Any Annual Financial Information containing modified operating data or financial
information is required to explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the modification and the
impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

SECTION 4. Reporting of Notice Events.

@ The occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds
constitutes a Notice Event:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax status of the Bonds;

7. Modifications to rights of Bond holders, if material;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
Defeasances;

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds,
if material;

Rating changes;

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated
Person;

Note to subsection (a)(12) of this Section 4: For the purposes of the
event described in subsection (a)(12) of this Section 4, the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an Obligated Person in a
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding
under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Obligated Person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Obligated
Person.

The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an
Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Obligated Person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant
to its terms, if material; and

Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of
a trustee, if material.

The Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of ten business days after its
occurrence, notify the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in writing of the occurrence of a Notice
Event. Such notice shall instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence
pursuant to subsection (c) and shall be accompanied by a Certification. Such notice or
Certification shall identify the Notice Event that has occurred (which shall be any of the
categories set forth in Section 2(e)(iv) of this Disclosure Agreement), include the text of the
disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the written authorization of the Issuer for the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such information, and identify the date the Issuer
desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate the information (provided that
such date is not later than the tenth business day after the occurrence of the Notice Event).
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(b)  The Disclosure Dissemination Agent is under no obligation to notify the Issuer or
the Disclosure Representative of an event that may constitute a Notice Event. In the event the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent so notifies the Disclosure Representative, the Disclosure
Representative will within two business days of receipt of such notice (but in any event not later
than the tenth business day after the occurrence of the Notice Event, if the Issuer determines that
a Notice Event has occurred), instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent that (i) a Notice Event
has not occurred and no filing is to be made or (ii) a Notice Event has occurred and the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent is to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (c) of this
Section 4, together with a Certification. Such Certification shall identify the Notice Event that
has occurred (which shall be any of the categories set forth in Section 2(e)(iv) of this Disclosure
Agreement), include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the written
authorization of the Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such
information, and identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to
disseminate the information (provided that such date is not later than the tenth business day after
the occurrence of the Notice Event).

(©) If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Issuer as
prescribed in subsection (a) or (b)(ii) of this Section 4 to report the occurrence of a Notice Event,
the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with MSRB
in accordance with Section 2 (e)(iv) hereof. This notice will be filed with a cover sheet
completed by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-1.

SECTION 5. CUSIP Numbers. Whenever providing information to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent, including but not limited to Annual Reports, documents incorporated by
reference to the Annual Reports, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notices, Failure to
File Event notices, Voluntary Event Disclosures and Voluntary Financial Disclosures, the Issuer
shall indicate the full name of the Bonds and the 9-digit CUSIP numbers for the Bonds as to
which the provided information relates.

SECTION 6. Additional Disclosure Obligations.  The Issuer acknowledges and
understands that other state and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act of
1933 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to the
Issuer, and that the duties and responsibilities of the Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this
Disclosure Agreement do not extend to providing legal advice regarding such laws. The Issuer
acknowledges and understands that the duties of the Disclosure Dissemination Agent relate
exclusively to execution of the mechanical tasks of disseminating information as described in
this Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 7. Voluntary Filing.

@ The Issuer may instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to file a Voluntary
Event Disclosure with the MSRB from time to time pursuant to a Certification of the Disclosure
Representative. Such Certification shall identify the Voluntary Event Disclosure (which shall be
any of the categories set forth in Section 2(e)(vi) of this Disclosure Agreement), include the text
of the disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the written authorization of the Issuer
for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such information, and identify the date
the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate the information. If the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Issuer as prescribed in this Section
7(a) to file a Voluntary Event Disclosure, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall promptly file
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such Voluntary Event Disclosure with the MSRB in accordance with Section 2(e)(vi) hereof.
This notice will be filed with a cover sheet completed by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in
the form set forth in Exhibit C-2.

(b) The Issuer may instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to file a Voluntary
Financial Disclosure with the MSRB from time to time pursuant to a Certification of the
Disclosure Representative. Such Certification shall identify the Voluntary Financial Disclosure
(which shall be any of the categories set forth in Section 2(e)(vii) of this Disclosure Agreement),
include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the written authorization
of the Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such information, and
identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate the
information. If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Issuer as
prescribed in this Section 7(b) to file a Voluntary Financial Disclosure, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent shall promptly file such VVoluntary Financial Disclosure with the MSRB in
accordance with Section 2(e)(vii) hereof. This notice will be filed with a cover sheet completed
by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-2.

(© The parties hereto acknowledge that the Issuer is not obligated pursuant to the
terms of this Disclosure Agreement to file any Voluntary Event Disclosure pursuant to Section
7(a) hereof or any Voluntary Financial Disclosure pursuant to Section 7(b) hereof.

(d) Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to prevent the Issuer from
disseminating any other information through the Disclosure Dissemination Agent using the
means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or including any other
information in any Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to
File Event notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or VVoluntary Financial Disclosure, in addition to
that required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses to include any information in
any Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event
notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure in addition to that which is
specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this
Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report,
Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event
Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure.

SECTION 8. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The obligations of the Issuer and
the Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate with
respect to the Bonds upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the
Bonds, when the Issuer is no longer an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or upon
delivery by the Disclosure Representative to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent of an opinion
of counsel expert in federal securities laws to the effect that continuing disclosure is no longer
required.

SECTION 9. Disclosure Dissemination Agent. The Issuer has appointed Digital
Assurance Certification, L.L.C. as exclusive Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this
Disclosure Agreement. The Issuer may, upon thirty days written notice to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent and the Paying Agent, replace or appoint a successor Disclosure
Dissemination Agent. Upon termination of DAC’s services as Disclosure Dissemination Agent,
whether by notice of the Issuer or DAC, the Issuer agrees to appoint a successor Disclosure
Dissemination Agent or, alternately, agrees to assume all responsibilities of Disclosure
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Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement for the benefit of the Holders of the
Bonds. Notwithstanding any replacement or appointment of a successor, the Issuer shall remain
liable until payment in full for any and all sums owed and payable to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent may resign at any time by providing
thirty days’ prior written notice to the Issuer.

SECTION 10. Remedies in Event of Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer or the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the
Holders’ rights to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall be limited solely to a right, by
action in mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the parties' obligation
under this Disclosure Agreement. Any failure by a party to perform in accordance with this
Disclosure Agreement shall not constitute a default on the Bonds or under any other document
relating to the Bonds, and all rights and remedies shall be limited to those expressly stated
herein.

SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Disclosure Dissemination Agent.

@ The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are
specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent’s
obligation to deliver the information at the times and with the contents described herein shall be
limited to the extent the Issuer has provided such information to the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent as required by this Disclosure Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall
have no duty with respect to the content of any disclosures or notice made pursuant to the terms
hereof. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no duty or obligation to review or verify
any Information or any other information, disclosures or notices provided to it by the Issuer and
shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the Issuer, the Holders of the
Bonds or any other party. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no responsibility for
the Issuer’s failure to report to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent a Notice Event or a duty to
determine the materiality thereof. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to
determine, or liability for failing to determine, whether the Issuer has complied with this
Disclosure Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon
Certifications of the Issuer at all times.

The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent and defeasance, redemption or payment of the Bonds.

(b) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent may, from time to time, consult with legal
counsel (either in-house or external) of its own choosing in the event of any disagreement or
controversy, or question or doubt as to the construction of any of the provisions hereof or its
respective duties hereunder, and shall not incur any liability and shall be fully protected in acting
in good faith upon the advice of such legal counsel. The reasonable fees and expenses of such
counsel shall be payable by the Issuer.

(© All documents, reports, notices, statements, information and other materials
provided to the MSRB under this Agreement shall be provided in an electronic format and
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 12. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent may amend this
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Disclosure Agreement and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such
amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws
acceptable to both the Issuer and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to the effect that such
amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of Holders of the Bonds and would
not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such amendment or
waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking into account any subsequent change in or
official interpretation of the Rule; provided neither the Issuer or the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent shall be obligated to agree to any amendment modifying their respective duties or
obligations without their consent thereto.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have
the right to adopt amendments to this Disclosure Agreement necessary to comply with
modifications to and interpretations of the provisions of the Rule as announced by the Securities
and Exchange Commission from time to time by giving not less than 20 days written notice of
the intent to do so together with a copy of the proposed amendment to the Issuer. No such
amendment shall become effective if the Issuer shall, within 10 days following the giving of such
notice, send a notice to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in writing that it objects to such
amendment.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit
of the Issuer, the Paying Agent of the Bonds, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent, the
underwriter, and the Holders from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any
other person or entity.

SECTION 14. Governing Law. This Disclosure Agreement shall be governed by the
laws of the State of South Carolina (other than with respect to conflicts of laws).

SECTION 15. Counterparts. This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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The Disclosure Dissemination Agent and the Issuer have caused this Continuing
Disclosure Agreement to be executed, on the date first written above, by their respective officers
duly authorized.

DIGITAL ASSURANCE CERTIFICATION, L.L.C.,
as Disclosure Dissemination Agent

By:
Name:
Title:

CHARLESTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA,
as Issuer

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A

NAME AND CUSIP NUMBERS OF BONDS

Name of Issuer Charleston County, South Carolina

Obligated Person(s) Charleston County, South Carolina

Name of Bond Issue: Charleston County, South Carolina General Obligation
Transportation Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of 2012

Date of Issuance: March __, 2012

Date of Official Statement  March __, 2012

CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
CUSIP Number
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EXHIBIT B

NOTICE TO MSRB OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Issuer: Charleston County, South Carolina

Obligated Person: Charleston County, South Carolina

Name(s) of Bond Issue(s):  Charleston County, South Carolina General Obligation
Transportation Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of 2012

Date(s) of Issuance: March __, 2012
Date(s) of Disclosure March __, 2012
Agreement:

CUSIP Number:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with
respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Disclosure Agreement between the Issuer
and Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as Disclosure Dissemination Agent. [The Issuer has
notified the Disclosure Dissemination Agent that it anticipates that the Annual Report will be
filed by ].

Dated:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as
Disclosure Dissemination Agent, on behalf of the
Issuer

cc:
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EXHIBIT C-1
EVENT NOTICE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “event notice” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)(i)(C) and (D).

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Charleston County, South Carolina
Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this event natice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Notice Events (Check One):

1. “Principal and interest payment delinquencies;”

2. “Non-Payment related defaults, if material;”

3. “Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;”

4. “Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;”

5. “Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;”

6. “Adverse tax opinions, IRS notices or events affecting the tax status of the security;”

7. “Modifications to rights of securities holders, if material;”

8. “Bond calls, if material;”

9. “Defeasances;”

10. “Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;”
11. “Rating changes;”

12. “Tender offers;”

13. “Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person;”

14. “Merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the obligated person, if material;” and

15. “Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if material.”

Failure to provide annual financial information as required.

| hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:



EXHIBIT C-2
VOLUNTARY EVENT DISCLOSURE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “voluntary event disclosure” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement dated as of January 30, 2012 between the Issuer and DAC.

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Charleston County, South Carolina
Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this notice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Voluntary Event Disclosure (Check One):

1 “amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking;”
2 “change in obligated person;”

3 “notice to investors pursuant to bond documents;”

4 “certain communications from the Internal Revenue Service;”

5 “secondary market purchases;”

6. “bid for auction rate or other securities;”

7 “capital or other financing plan;”

8 “litigation/enforcement action;”

9 “change of tender agent, remarketing agent, or other on-going party;”
10. “derivative or other similar transaction;” and

11. “other event-based disclosures.”

I hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:



EXHIBIT C-3
VOLUNTARY FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “voluntary financial disclosure” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement dated as of January 30, 2012 between the Issuer and DAC.

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Charleston County, South Carolina
Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this notice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Voluntary Financial Disclosure (Check One):

“quarterly/monthly financial information;”
“change in fiscal year/timing of annual disclosure;”
“change in accounting standard;”
“interim/additional financial information/operating data;”
“budget;”
“investment/debt/financial policy;”
. “information provided to rating agency, credit/liquidity provider or other third party;”
“consultant reports;” and
“other financial/operating data.”

CoNoORALNDE

| hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:
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APPENDIX E

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (“DTC”) AND
DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE COUNTY
BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT THE COUNTY TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY
THEREOF.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the
Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership
nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorised representative of DTC. One fully-registered
bond will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and
will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organised under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerised book-
entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement
of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks,
trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organisations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect
Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners
are, however, expected to receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are,
however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books
of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive
certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system
for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorised
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the
Bond Ordinance. For example, the Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the
Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial


http://www.dtcc.com/

Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed,
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds
unless authorised by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures,
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the County as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns
Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption payments and principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorised representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the County or the
Paying Agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments
by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, or the County, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption payments and principal and
interest payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorised representative of
DTC) is the responsibility of the County or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants
will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the County and the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The County may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

NEITHER THE COUNTY NOR THE PAYING AGENT IS RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE FOR THE
FAILURE OF ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS TO MAKE ANY
PAYMENT OR GIVE ANY NOTICE TO A BENEFICIAL OWNER WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS OR
ANY ERROR OR DELAY RELATING THERETO.

Neither the County nor the Paying Agent gives any assurances that DTC, DTC Participants, or Indirect
Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds (i) payments of principal, premium, if any, and
interest, with respect to the Bonds, (ii) confirmation of beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds, or (iii)
redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as registered owner of the Bonds, or that they
will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants, or Indirect Participants will serve or act in the manner
described in this Official Statement.
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